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"- ttscxenxlxx ThomasCook '
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2011

Revenue* CZ39/tm €7136m Revenue* e3,5t9m f3 087m

Gross marqin %** t3.5X l5 4% EBITDAR marqin %** I3.0r t3 t%

Underlvinq EBIT** tl6lm f249m [Jnderlvinq EBIT*" Cl29m f94m

Underlvinq EBIT %"* 2.2X 35% Underlvinq EBIT %** 30%3.7X

11m 186 20m 100
Tou,t,oTcrator

ouslomr,/.r**r
)wvbundlwtch
anol rusorls

Airlir,octrsfumcz,r*** Airrcraft

* Segmental revenue of €10.915m does not Include t{],329)m of internal revenue, which results in Group revenue of €9,584m
** The term underlying'refers to trading results that are adjusted for separately disclosed items that are significant in understanding the

ongoingresultsoftheGroup SeparatelydiscloseditemsareincludedonthefaceoftheincomestatementandaredetailedinNoteTtothe
Group financial statements. This applies to all references of underlying in this report Underlying segmental EBIT of t290m does not include
corporate costs of €(40)m which results in Group underlying EBIT of t250m

*** SegmentalcustomersofSl0mdoesnotinclude9lmofinternalcustomers,resultinginGroupcustomersof220m
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CUSTOMER
ATOUR
HEART

We know that happy customers are more likely to come back to
Thomas Cook and to recommend us to their friends As customer
loyalty increases, our cost of sale goes down as customers
choose Thomas Cook because of our reputation rather than
our marketing We also know that on average customers that
return to Thomas Cook spend more with us than new customers,
reflecting their increased trust in our holiday offering

We see the tangible value our customer focus creates across
the buslness, shown most clearly in how customers are willing
to pay more for a hotel following improvements in its quality
performance: generating better returns for the business

Operationally we focus our Customer at our Heart strategy in two
areas: the care and reassurance we provide to our customers, set
out in our three Customer Promises of Quality Service and Reliability;
and the contact we maintain with customers ensuring that we are

accessible however they choose to interact with us and forming
long-lasting relationships throughout the year

WANT.
'Customer qt our Heort' is the cornerstone of our strotegy

for profitobte growth. Our desire to creote o genuinety
customer-centric orgonisotion shopes the woy in which we
think obout the cutture of our business, the votues by which

we work ond the services we provide to everyone who hotidoys
with us. lt continues to oct os o powerfuI cototyst for chonge
ond we betieve it is where we hove the biggest opportunity

to differentiote ourselves from the competition.

Thomos Cook Group ptc Annuot R.port ond Account.2OlS

LISTENING
TOWHAT
CUSTOMERS
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Thomor CookGroup plc

OUR
CULTURE MAKES US

DIFFERENT.
ln 2016, we [ounched ourthree Customer Promises:

Quol.ity, Service, Rel.iobiLity. These promises shope everything
we do os o business. They otso form the bosis of our corporote

vo(ues ogoinst which we meosure the performonce of ot[
of our 21,000 cotteogues. We betieve our promises hetp

to set us oport from the competition.

QUATITY

?ut mr ltnat* tnto it

We ore possionote troveI experts
& hove been creoting greot
holidoy memories since 1841.

We shore customer reviews
before you book to help you

choose the perfect trip foryou.

We listen & oct on
yourfeedbock.

Our teoms & the portners we
work with ore olwoys looking

to improve to moke your
next hotidoy even better

SERVICE

Weanllwwffiy fl.ops

0g
We't[ be there whenever you

need us. Ourteoms ore ovoitobte
oround lheworld,24/7.

We ore hoppy to moke you hoppy
& we promise to put you ot the

heort of everything we do.

Your hoLidoy meons
the wortd to us.

We'd love to wetcome you
ogoin & ore committed to sending

you home with greot memories
ofyour hotidoy.

RETIABITITY

We're onnflwm,as Coth

effi
We core. You con trust
us to otwoys be open
ond honest with you.

We otwoys giveyou oLtthe
informotion you need to moke

your time owoy stress-f ree.

Your money's sofe
when booking with us

We're ATOL protected
for peoce of mind.
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OUR
STRATEGY

The montro of 'Customer of our Heort'
sits firmty of the centre of our strotegy
for sustoinobte growth ond our vision
to bethe most toved hotidoy compony.

40o 
s

Thcmor Cook Group plc Annuol Rcpodond Accountl 2Ol8

IS DRIVI NG
PROFITABLE
GROWTH.
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OUR FOCUS FOR
THE YEAR AHEAD

OUR PROGRESS
rN 20tE

24-Hour Satisfaction Pr0mise fully
implemented across our core portfolio

Accommodation NPS up 2 points

lntroduced lnl'4oment our new Group-wide

customer feedback management tool

?4 .!i' .l,a ''t\, i)'aif:.
ir re;aji::i )i t l a I I

-i'af rr-F f r ilaYs

:,,[,.. i l '] l, l, r rii).i,rri'r'l

i-r al : ,1lr) 4,: :;:Li

Further develop inMoment and C-View customer
relationship management tools

New in-destination features for our app

lmprove flight delay information for customers

t
oA
o

oa
o

Launched Hotel Fund with Ll'4EY with five seed Fund to acquire at least five more properties

' Drr?ct per so ra efgagen'rent

, Wetl penetr3t on

' Seanrless CRM

, Rrch content

, Thomas Cook Hotels &

Resorts for unique
expenence

) Selected high-quality
partner hotels

, own Airline

Contr0lled distributi0n reached 70%

Web sales up 12%

Webshare up 2 points to account for 48%

of all bookings

l',lAKlS project launched to simplify hotel

information acr0ss all distribution platforms

assets and first tranche of capital funding

Launched Cook's Club hotel brand

Group Airline capacity increased by l0%

in the summer

with Expedia; UK Belgium & Nordics

Thomas Cook China growing
customers eightfold

A full self-service proposition for all holiday

extras we sell online

lmprove search across our platforms with more
personalised results for our customers

Further simplify the mobile booking journey

to improve conversion

0pen 20 new properties next year including
ten new Cook s Clubs

Further consolidate the number of direct hotel contracts

Consolidate airline growth with operational stability

Launch Express check-in so customers can bypass recepti0n

lntroduce HotelShop for customers to further
personalise their holiday

Grow reach of Thomas Cook Money products in

Roll out new city-break and hotel only offering across

more of our source markets

> Personalised added-extras Ancillary sales up 4% across the Group

& ancillaries Launched Lyk pre paid travel card
, Thomas Cook Money and Roam Insurance products through

lhomas Cook Money

digital and offline

Launched city-break and hotel only offering lncrease sales in china through own channels' Thomas Cook China
with Fosun

, Strategic partnerships

, Leveraging our brand

1'.!
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ABUSINESS
MODEL

FOCUSED
Our business modeI reftects
the customer journey from

dreom to experience.

R ETU RN

ON THE
CUSTOMER
JOURNEY.
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THE CUSTOMER
JOURNEY
0ur customers journey doesn t start in

the airport lt begins when they get their
holiday inspiration online or in a store,
continues through the booking process,

takes them through their experience
on holiday and then the memories they
carry with them afterwards We are
building closer relationships with our
customers throughout this cycle to
increase loyalty and inspire more
customers to holiday with Thomas Cook

Thomo! CookGroup pt. I AnnuolRGpcrtondAccountr2Ol8
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WE DO
OUR CUSTOMER CHANNELS

Putting the customer at the heart of our
business also means buildlng direct contact
with customers whenever and wherever
they want to interact with us This includes
developing our websites to offer a better
online experience, as well as maintaining
a network of profitable stores to attract
inspire and engage our customers on the
high street The customer insight we have

built up over the years, along with the trust
we have developed in the best brand in

travel, shapes the approach we take to every
customer contact

IN-DESTI NATION MANAGEMENT
AND CUSTOMER RELATIONS

Our customer teams are integral to our
business and the holiday experience we
give our customers We believe that the
strength of the relationship we build with
the customer is what sets us apart in a

crowded market Customer Relations and

ln-Destination Services - our teams on the
ground in resort - are critical to building and

maintaining those relationships so that our
customers enjoy the best of Thomas Cook

0ur core holiday offering rs what generates,
preserves and captures value in our business
We focus our holiday offering on our own-
brand hotels and resorts, supplemented by

a defined portfolio of selected partner hotels
By focusing our investment and resources on

a streamlined portfolio of hotels, we are able
to have a greater influence on the customer
experience driving better customer loyalty
and recommendations while delivering higher
returns for shareholders

We recognise that the flight to and from
the destination is an integral part of the
holiday experience By investing in our own
airline. we have influence over the on-board
experience and the sale of additional services
where we can earn higher returns We also
control the booking processes, enabling us to
maximise returns from seat-only sales

To supplement the value that we create
through our holidays we offer a choice of
additional travel-related services to our
customers, including airline seat sales,

meals on board, transfers and excursions,
as well as holiday-related financial services
Sales of these services give customers
the opportunity to personalise the holiday
experience and create additional returns
for the business

PARTNERSHIPS
STRATEGIC PARTN ERSH I PS

We will enter into strategic partnerships
where we have the opportunity to streamline
our business while also tapping into new
markets or widening our offer to customers
0ur strategic partnerships also enable
us to leverage the trust and heritage
of the Thomas Cook brand

PARTNER AIRTINES

We partner with other airlines to maximise
the choice for our customers. increase
flexibility in our operations, and manage
our fleet more effectively

COMPTEMENTARY HOTET
PARINERSH!PS

Partnerships with Expedia and Webjet enable
us to complement our core sun and beach
holiday offer with a wider choice of hotels
across the world at the lowest possible

cost This approach means we can focus
on creating maximum value in the holidays
to our directly-contracted own-brand
and selected partner hotels while earning a
share of the revenue from sales to a much
bigger portfolio of properties

toa
o

o
o
o
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FINANCIAT HIGHTIGHTS

(0.3)P**
UnderllnnEP9

f250m**
underlqinqEBlT

20.4W*
Underhlnqyost magiw

f(l63)m
?ufrl aftcnlox

BUSINESS HIGHTIGHTS

LauncheC o!r new holel brand

Cook s C !b wh ch focuses on

the th fgs thal matte lo a

new !eneralron oI lrave ers

OUR BUSINESS BY SEGMENTS
-----------REVENUEf---------- ------UNDERtYtNG EBtr!!---- ---------CUSTOMERST!-*------

7394m

3 519m

* Segmental revenue of tlo 9l3m does not rnclude

[(] 329)m of rnternal revenue wh ch Tesults rn
croup revenue of[9 584m

I29m

The term underlyrng refers to tradrng resu ts
that are adlusted f0r separately drsclosed lems
that are srgnrfrcant rn understandrng lhe ongorng

results 0f lhe Group Separately drsclosed rtems
are rncluded on the face of the ncome sLatement
and are deta led n Note 7 t0 the Group F nancra

statemen[s Thrs applres to all references oI
underlylng n thrsreport Underlyrngsegmental
EB T of f290m does not rncl!de corporate costs
of E(40)m whrch results rn Group under y ng

EB T of t250m

20m

t*'Segmenta customers oi 3l 0m does not rnclude

I Im of rnternal customers resullrng in Group

customers of 22 0m

l.irll'lTclS -*

Added a new A rllne to the
Group with Thomas Cook

A r nes Baleafrcs

Casa cook lbrza wr I open

next summer as one ofthe
key assets of Thomas Cook

Hotel lnvestments



CHAI RMAN'S
STATEMENT

Thomos CookG.oup plc

The launch in March of our hotel fund in

partnership with Swiss hotel property
development company LI4EY was an

important milestone in accelerating the
expansion of our own-brand hotels and

resorts business With five initial seed
assets, the fund has agreed another two
development projects and has successfully
secured C40 million debt funding enabling
us to more easily f inance our expansion
and increase the proportion of owned
properties in the portfolio

The other side to the strategy is partnering
with the best in the industry to offer
customers increased choice. The launch
of our ground-breaking alliance with Expedia

in our first five markets this autumn, was
a big step forward This gives us access to
best-in-class technology, many more hotels
of ensured quality, and all at lower cost to
our business

0f course, our shareholders rightly expect
to see the fruits of our strategic execution
in the financial results What 2018 has

demonstrated is that the full benefit of
the changes that management has been

making to the business are taking time
to come through This reflects in part
the complexity. scale and cost of the
transformation required Consequently,
in a year of exceptional weather across our
source markets the benefits of our strategic
progress were not enough to offset the
extreme pressure on margins

Annuol RGportond Account. 2Ol8

FRANK
MEYSMAN
"Our shorehotders rightLy expect
to see the fruits of our strotegic

execution in the finoncioI resutts.
The ful.l. benefit of the chonges thot

monogement hos been moking
to the business ore toking time to
come through, reftecting in port
the comptexity, scote ond cost of

the tronsformotion required."

20lE has been a year of mixed fortunes
for Thomas Cook. Although we made
considerable progress on strategy,
achieving a number of important
milestones, the year-end result was
disappointing. A period of prolonged hot
weather across our European markets
in the critical last few months of trading
exposed the fact that we have more to do to
in the way we manage operational risk and
execute the strategy in our key markets.

ln many respects. it was a year of two halves
The business had a good first six months and

delivered improved financial results in May

However, the summer heatwave impacted
both customer and competitive behaviour
leaving our Tour Operator business with
too many holidays left to sell in a heavily
discounted environment 0n revenues of
f9 6 billion, up €574 million on the previous
year, the Group delivered operating profit
of €97 million. and net loss after tax of
fl63 million

Despite the final result. the Board is confident
the strategy for profitable growth the team
has been pursuing is the right one ln an

increasingly competitive environment, it is
evident that the successful businesses will be

those that clearly differentiate their offering
and create real value for the customer

A key part of that strategy is an increased
focus on our core sun and beach holidays.
and in particular our own-brand hotels
where we have higher control over quality
and where we earn a much higher return

The Board will continue to focus management
on executing the strategy with pace and

commitment You can be assured that the
Board is conscious of its duty to unlock fully
the potential of this business for the benefit
of all stakeholders

Turning to the business of the Board, Group

Chief Financial Officer Bill Scott decided to
step down in September. Bill will leave the
Board on 30 November, following the full-year
results announcement 0n behalf ofthe Board

I would like to thank Bill for his contribution
to the business over the last six years

The Board has named Sten Daugaard as Group

Chief Financial Officer on an interim basis
He brings more than 30 years' of experience
in senior financial positions in international
companies and is also a member of the Board

ofThomas Cook GmbH, Germany, Hejoined
the business on I October and is formally
appointed to his role on I December.

I would also Iike to thank all of our people

across the Group for the work that they do.

day to day, to give our 22 million customers the
best weeks of their year. And thank you to you

our Shareholders for your support as we put
Thomas Cook on a path to profitable growth

FRANK MEYS]'IAN
CHAIRMAN

28 November 20lB
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PETER
FANKHAUSER

CHIEF i

EXECUTIVE'S
REVI EW

"lt is importont thot we continue to execute our strotegy where it
motters - ctose to the customer in ot[ of our morkets - to tronsform

our business with consistency, poce ond ftexibitity, enobting us

to oddress chonging customer expectotions ond demonds."



20lE was a disappointing year for
Thomas Coolt, despite achieving some
important milestones in our strategy
for transforming the business.

After a good first six months of the year
we went into the summer with a positive
position, confident of filling all our committed
hotel accommodation and flight capacity at
good returns However. with the start of the
heatwave in May, that demand tailed off in
the fourth quarter, with customers across

our European source markets delaying
decisions about their summer holidays as

they enjoyed record temperatures at home
This delay in bookings resulted in oversupply

across the market and an even more
competitive pricing environment than usual,
restricting our ability to achieve the planned

margins in the "lates" booking period

While all our source markets were impacted,
we saw a particular hit to our UK business
where the slowdown in bookings came on

top of an already competitive market for
Spanish holidays We have a specific plan to
address the performance in our UK business

which I address later in this statement

A higher-than-anticipated decline in gross

margin in the fourth quarter resulted in
underlying operating profit in our Tour

0perator business overall being f 88 million

down at the full year

Notwithstanding the impact of the hot

summet our Northern European tour
operating businesses achieved a near record
level of performance, albeit lower than that
expected at the end of the first hall

The weakness in our Tour Operator was
partially offset by a good performance in our

Group Airline This looked set for an excellent
year until air traffic control strikes and

operational challenges following the failure of

Air Berlin led to industry-wide disruption and

delays Nevertheless our Group Airline delivered

a €55-million improvement in underlying
operating profit this year Despite this positive

result our overall Group underlying operating
profit was €58 million lower than the prior year.

Unfortunately, the Group financial result
masked the good progress that we made on

strategy in the year We've taken important
steps to grow our own-brand hotels business,

establishing our hotel investment fund and
opening ll new hotels including an innovative

new concept in Cook's Club Meanwhile, the
launch of our alliance with Expedia in five
markets is giving customers greater choice,
at lower cost to the business These represent

significant steps forward in our strategy
which is transforming our opportunity for
sustainable growth in the years ahead

ThomorCookGroupptc I AnnuotR.PortondAccount! 2018

CUSTOMER AT OUR
HEART IS DETIVERING
Three years after introducing our "Customer

at our Heart strategy, we now have tangible
evidence that it is delivering Customers are

more loyal to Thomas Cook with a higher
rebooking rate in 20lB than the previous

year and we attracted three per cent more
new customers than in 2017

14ore than that, we see a direct correlation
between Net promoter Score (NPS), our

key measure of customer satisfaction, and

the financial returns we can generate as a

business Where a hotel meets our threshold
measurement on NPS. we earn an additional
two percentage points more in margin the
following year showing that customers are
willing to pay more for better quality

NPS across our hotel portfolio increased
2 points in the past l2 months demonstrating
that the work we've done to improve quality
in destination and our stringent approach to
the hotels we include in our portfolio is paying

off Following a summer of airline disruption,

as we integrated new aircraft and managed
the impact of industry-wide air traffic control
issues, Group Airline NPS was down 3 points
As a result, after two years of consecutive
growth. group NPS fell back 0 8 points in 2018

CUSTOMER CARE
BUITDING TRUST
IN OUR BRAND
0ur focus on the customer drives the big

decisions that we take as a business At an

operational level, that means gathering all the
information that we can about our customers'
experience and constantly monitoring it to
shape the decisions about the hotels we sell

We track the performance of every one of the
3150 hotels that we sell in our core sun & beach

portfolio to ensure it meets our standards

The introduction of a new customer feedback

management tool. lnMoment, at the start of
20lB took us a big step forward by providing

our hotel quality managers with detailed,
real-time information on customers experience
of all elements of a hotel and its service
This enables them immediately to identify
issues and intervene with improvement plans

ln parallel with our quality management
process, we have a rigorous process for Health

and Safety Our independent Health and Safety
auditors visit every one of our core properties
on an annual basis, checking everything from
the building, food, pool and security with a

benchmark that every property must achieve

lf they don't reach the standards we require
we support them to make improvements
But if we decide customers are at risk,
we stop selling the hotel As simple as that

ln the last year. we have stopped selling 55 of

our 3,150 core portfolio properties for health
and safety reasons We also de-flagged
2l hotels from our own-brand portfolio for
failing to meet our quality standards

We are proud to give our continued
support to the Safer Tourism Foundation.
Launched in 2017, the Foundation brings
together key players from across the UK

holiday industry to share information and

resources with the aim of improving health
and safety standards for our customers
and raising awareness of the risks they
may face on holiday The first campaign on

pool safety launched this summer reached

almost 3 5 million holidaymakers

Even with all our checks and balances, there
is a risk that thlngs can go wrong on holiday.

0urjob then is to step in quickly to do all that
we can to take care of the customers - and
to take the learnings to improve our quality
management checks even further and make

sure that the situation does not repeat itself.

This summer was one such moment with the
tragic and sudden deaths of John and Susan

Cooper in August at the Steigenberger Aqua

Magic in Hurghada We immediately sent
our Head of Welfare into the resort to take
care of the family, along with our Head of

Health and Safety to investigate what went
wrong When it became apparent that there
had been increased levels of sickness at the
hotel we moved all our customers out

The circumstances of the Coopers death
remain unclear But the findings of our own

audit have made us reappraise our processes

and our approach to hotel hygiene As a

result, from next season we are introducing
an extra level of assurance that the highest
standards are maintained at all times in all

of our core properties

CUSTOM E R

FEEDBACK DRIVING
BOrD DECTSTONS
putting our customers at the heart of our

business - or "Wearing our customers
flip flops, as encapsulated in our employee
values - doesn't simply shape the decisions
that we take at an operational level day

to day lt also means asking our customers
views about the issues that they care
about and what they expect from their
holiday company

t
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This process has shaped two big - and bold
- moves from Thomas Cook in the past six
months: our decision to stop selling all animal
attractions that keep orcas in captivity and
our new pledge on plastics

We took our decision on captive orcas
lB months after we first announced an

industry-leading Animal Welfare Policy based
on overwhelming changes in customer
sentiment on the issue More than 90 per cent
of customers from our key source markets
told us it was important that their holiday
company took animal welfare seriously

Similarly. our #noplaceforplastic campaign,
which will see us remove 70 million single-
use plastics from our supply chain in the next
l2 months, was based on extensive customer
feedback I.,1ore than 90 per cent of customers
questioned told us that this was an issue
they cared about: almost as many told us this
was an issue they expected us to address;
and more than two thirds said they would
be more likely to use a travel company which
took the issue of plastics seriously

CUSTOMER CONTACT
- FORGING CTOSER
RETATIONSH IPS
We know that the success of our customer-
led strategy rests on strengthening our
direct relationships and ensuring that we are
available where, when and how our customers
need us 0ur ob..lective is to increase the
number of customers who book directly with
Thomas Cook, with a focus on digital channels
where our cost of sale is lower At the same
time, we want to make it easier for our
customers to book all of the services and
holiday extras which help to give customers
a personalised holiday experience

0nline sales increased in all segments this
year with particularly strong growth in the UK,

up almost 30 per cent year on year. Germany
increased by almost 25 per cent and our Airline
by 17 per cent This contributed to a l2 per
cent increase in web sales overall 0nline
now accounts for 48 per cent of bookings,
versus 22 per cent in retail and 30 per cent
through third parties

We also increased the proportion of bookings
we took via our own distribution channels -
up one percentage points to 70 per cent this
year. We made good progress in Germany in
particular. where we have increased the number
franchise agreements with agency partners

CH IEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW
CONTINUED

HOTIDAYS -
IMPROVING CHOICE
AND FLEXIBITITY
0f course. where our customers opinion
matters most is in the holidays that we sell
Our holidays are the primary focus of all that
we do at Thomas Cook. At the heart of that
strategy sits a streamlined portfolio of 3,150

quality hotels where we can have a greater
influence over our customers experience -
generating higher margins and returns for
our business

ln an increasingly competitive market,
where customers have more choice than
ever before. we know that the successful
businesses will be those that genuinely

differentiate their offer and provide real
value to the customer

The good news is that this is a growing
market One in five of our customers go on

more package holidays than three years
ago The difference is that they don t want
to be treated as "mass"i more than two in

three want the opportunity to personalise

their holiday experience That s why we
have launched innovative new services like

Choose Your Favourite Sunbed and Choose

Your Room this summer

They may sound gimmicky but we're making
a serious point and one that our customers
are responding to Alongside our 24-Hour
Hotel Satisfaction Promise which is now
in place across all of our core hotels, we
are distinguishing our holidays from other
package holiday providers, giving customers
more reasons to book with Thomas Cook

HOTETS - OUR OWN.
BRAND STRATEGY
IS WINNING WITH
CUSTOM ERS

When we set out our strategy for profitable
growth, we said that our own-brand hotels
were the cornerstone of that strategy,
presenting the greatest opportunity for
differentiation and, from that higher returns

All our customer research supports that
decision Across our three biggest markets
our customers experience in their hotel
is the most important factor in their
overall satisfaction with their holiday,

Added to that. three in ten customers now
say that the hotel is more important even

than the destination

The NPS in our own-brand hotels in 20lB

was two percentage points higher than our
differentiated portfolio as a whole And our
new concepts like Casa Cook achieve some
of the highest scores for NPS overall
This plays into the financial returns we make
from these hotels We earn a significantly
higher margin from our own-brand hotels
versus those from our selected partner
hotels ln part, these higher returns come
from customers willingness to pay more
for higher quality However, it also reflects
the greater share of profit that we earn
from our own-brand hotels: from a franchise
fee, to a management fee, through to a

share of profits from our fund-owned and
managed hotels

I feel very optimistic about our prospects
ln Summer 2018, we opened 11 new own-
brand hotels including a new concept in

Cook's Club This builds on the success of
Casa Cook extending the same design-led
approach to bigger properties at a more
accessible price that we can roll out at scale

With nine out of ten customers saying that
the d6cor rnfluences the hotel that they
choose, and almost half telling us that the
decor matters more than it did five years ago,

we know that we are meeting a change in

customer needs

The first hotel under the Cook's Club brand
opened in .,une in Crete, and transformed a

traditional beachside holiday resort hotel into
a stripped-back, design-led hotel to appeal
to a new generation of travellers ln its first
summer. the hotel delivered occupancy levels
of more than 93 per cent and increased its
average daily room rate by almost 50 per cent
versus the previous year As importantly, it
showed how we can use our new concepts
to attract a new customer to Thomas Cook:

75 per cent of customers in its first summer
were new to Thomas Cook

ln 2019, we plan to open at least 20 own-
brand hotels This includes up to l0 new
Cook's Club hotels: the Company's first Casa

Cook in its biggest market, Spain; and the
first family Casa Cook, in Greece ln total,
the new properties will take the Company's
own-brand hotel portfolio to 200 with around
40,000 rooms. putting us among the top five
largest sun and beach hotel groups in Europe
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This expansion is boosted by the launch of

our new hotel fund during 2O)8, Thomas Cook

Hotel lnvestments. in partnership with hotel

developer LMEY Casa Cook lbiza will open

next summer as the first new project for the
fund Managed by Thomas Cook. we expect

the 189-room hotel to continue the success

of the first two openings for the Casa Cook

brand where more than 75 per cent of guests

have been new to the Company We are

targeting a further five new projects for the
fund for 2019 focusing on our key brands

of Casa Cook. Cook's Club, and Sunwing

AIRLINE - GOOD
PERFORMANCE IN A
CHATTENGING YEAR
FOR OPERATIONS
The success of our holiday offer is supported
by a well-managed airline which leverages

its relationship with our holiday business

while actively developing its own distribution
channels to compete wing-to-wing with
other European leisure carriers

2018 was a strong year of growth for our

airline against a backdrop of widespread
disruption following the collapse of Monarch

and Air Berlin in 2017 and strike action

across European Air Traffic Control We took
advantage of the upheaval in the market to
expand capacity by 10 per cent this summer

increasing our market share at a number

of our key airports in Germany in particular
We also strengthened our operational setup

to support that growth with the addition of

two new Air 0perating Certificates (AOCs).

including a new operation in one of our

biggest destinations, the Balearics

We made good progress with our efficiency
programme removing a further fsl million

in cost through synergies achieved as we
bring our national airlines closer together
to operate as one European airline

Despite some operational challenges
we delivered good growth in customers and

profit, which increased by t35 million year-

on-year on an underlying basis Our focus
for 2019 is to consolidate the growth we
achieved in 2018, strengthen our customer
offer and further extend our reach

Thomor Cook Group ptc I Annuot R.port qnd Accounts 2Ol8

PARTNERSHIPS
Ultimately, we know that the success of our

strategy will be determined by our abillty to
focus on delivering higher returns from our

core sun & beach holidays while at the same

time partnering with the best in the industry
to offer customers even greater choice

ln this respect, the launch of our Expedia

alliance in our first five markets of the UK

Nordics and Belgium in 20lB was a milestone

development Plugging in Expedia's market-

leading capabilities and extensive catalogue

of city and domestic hotels should transform
the way we offer a choice of holidays to our

customers: more than 150,000 hotels that
meet our health and safety standards with
an rmproved booking journey, at reduced cost
and complexity to our business

Combined with our hotel sourcing partnership

with Webjet to increase our offering in sun

and beach, we have delivered a 58 per cent
growth in overall bed bank bookings for the
year I feel optimistic about the prospects for
this part of the business as we continue the
roll out across markets - and begin to take

advantage of Expedia's distribution channels

to sell our own-brand hotels where we have

excess capacity

OUR PRIORITIES
FOR 2019
Despite the overall result, we have made
good strategic progress through the year

We have delivered many innovative and

exciting initiatives that I believe will transform
the prospects for our business in the future

It is important that we continue to execute

our strategy where it matters - close to the
customer in all of our markets - to transform
our business with consistency, pace and

flexibility, enabling us to address changing

customer expectations and demands

At the same time we must take the lessons

from 20lB We are putting particular focus

on addressing the performance in our UK

Tour Operator where the challenges of
transformation remain significant, operating

in a competitive environment with still too
many legacy systems and processes We now
have a clear plan of action centred on driving

awareness and take-up of our own-brands;

increasing operational flexibility; optimising

returns from our high street assets; and

targeting a best-in-class cost base

Across Thomas Cook, we operate in

markets that are sensitive to a range of
uncertainties including poor weather and

third-party incidents That means we have to
manage risk in our financial and commercial

commitments As a result. we are making

changes to our management of risk internally,
the way we set targets for management

and how we communicate these externally

To provide greater consistency in our core

financials. we are reducing our committed
airline capacity for 2019 and increasing the
focus on higher quality higher-margin hotels
and destinations, with clearer processes and

incentives to ensure these are prioritised
through our retail and online sales network

As a result, looking to 2019 we expect to
deliver progress on underlying EBIT and

lower separately disclosed items, leading to
substantial progress on reported operating
profit Reported operating profit will be

a primary focus going forward, together
with free cash generation To reinforce
the importance of free cash generation,

we have changed our incentive scheme

for management to focus on delivering
operating profit improvements which include

the impact of separately disclosed items
This will ensure we don't take our eye off
dellvering our goal to generate cash to
invest in our strategy and repay debt

CONCLUSION
Time and again we see that where we
listen to our customers. we take the right
decisions for the business For that, I would
like to thank my 21 000 colleagues Their hard

work and commitment is what makes our
business different and will be critical to our
success in the future Despite the challenges

of this summer I feel confident tn the plans

that we have to build a better business

for the benefit of our customers, our people

and all of our stakeholders

PETER FANKHAUSER
CEO

28 November 20lB
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OUR
OPERATI NG

ETMRONMENT
ECONOMTC
The growth of World Travel and Tourism

outpaced global GDP growth for the seventh
consecutive year, according to data from
the World Travel and Tourism Council
Among other factors, the recovery of Turkey.

Tunisia and Egypt as popular mainstream
holiday destinations last year contributed to
a 4 6 per cent growth in the sector globally

lnternational travel in Europe grew by seven
per cent, buoyed by eight per cent growth
in Southern and Western Europe

over the next ten years, Travel and Tourism
is expected to continue to outpace global
GDP growth, at 3 8 per cent per year versus
3 7 per cent respectively Within the sector,
package travel is forecast to grow nine per
cent in volume to 2022

OPPORTUNITIES

Global consumer spending power was
expected to have further accelerated in 2018,

helped by a positive labour market which
will support both domestic and international
travel and tourism expenditure

ln the l2 months to February 20lB 49 per cent
of overseas holidaymakers in the UK and

40 per cent in Germany booked a package
holiday demonstrating its continued
importance within the sector in our
key markets

The return in popularity of Turkey, Egypt
and Tunisia among European holidaymakers
presents further opportunity to develop our
holiday offering in destinations where we
have a strong market position and where
we are able to generate better returns,
especially from our large and growing
portfolio of own-brand hotels

ovERvl Ew
CHATTENGES

ln the Eurozone, the WTTC forecasts a

slowdown in growth, mainly related to the
exceptional growth in 2011.2018 has seen a

new ltalian government challenge EU fiscal
rules, which has resulted in an underlying
tension in the Eurozone ln the UK, the ll"lF
forecasts an economic slowdown related
to Brexit, owing to continued uncertainty
A commitment by oPEC members to cut
production of oil, and renewed sanctions
on lranian productions is Iikely to see the
price of crude rise, though our hedging
policy will mitigate shorfterm impact

ouTtooK
The economic outlook for leisure travel in

the coming years remains positive, balanced
against uncertainty around the outlook for
consumer sentiment - particularly with
regards to Brexit in the United Kingdom
However, even in economic downturns
customer spending on overseas holidays
remains resilient As customers look for
p0ints of differentiation in a competitive
environment for European leisure travel,
we believe we are well positioned to take
advantage of the continued growth in
leisure travel spend

AnnuoI Rcportond Accountr 2Ol8

POUTtCAt &
REGUTATORY
Brexit has continued to dominate the political
and regulatory discourse in the UK in 2018

and while it has also featured prominently in
discussions in Brussels and Europe's other
capitals, so too has the implementation of
important regulatory initiatives from Brussels
that impact our industry For example, the
Package Travel Directive 2015 (PTD) came into
full force. as did the General Data protection

Package (GDPR), and the Payment Services
Directive (PSD2) Following a concerted
campaign by Thomas Cook and other industry
players, 20lB also saw the UK government
take quick and clear action to implement
a change in the law so that unscrupulous
claims management companies were no

longer able to exploit customers and put
forward fraudulent sickness claims

OPPORIUNlTIES
The implementation of the PTD across our
source markets in July 2018 has meant that
all businesses selling holidays to customers
are subject to the same set of rules
While the implementation process proved
difficult across markets, the consistency
and clarity that the regulation brings is
good for consumers

r NTERNAilONAL TOURIST ARRIVATS (MtTUONS)

1990 t995 2000
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They will now receive the same assurances

already offered by major tour operators, with
other operators now subject to the same

obligations that already forms a key part

of our cost base and business model

ln March 2018 the European Commission

announced their proposed New Deal for
Consumers, to ensure that the EU's vast body

of consumer protection law is fit for purpose

in the digital age and enforced consistently
across the EU We welcome this initiative as

a further step to level the playing field for
businesses and we continue to engage with
European stakeholders in Brussels as the
Deal progresses through the institutional
legislative process

CHATTENGES

As a pan-European business with a major

UK operation lack of clarity on Brexit has

been a major source of uncertainty for
the European travel industry, and the
business However, we remain confident
that there will be no disruption to travel
as a result of Brexit, regardless of the
outcome ofthe negotiations. as both

the European Commission and the UK

government have formally outlined their
respective commitments to continued

aviation connectivity even in a no deal

outcome Challenges remain, and the
business continues to prepare for all

potential outcomes

The independent review into Airline

lnsolvency, looking into the impact 0n

passengers and the taxpayer when airlines
fail, is expected to be presented to the UK

government early in 2019 The findings may

recommend additional financial or regulatory
burdens on UK airlines We are engaging

closely with the review's secretariat as they
carry out their work in an effort to protect

customers and ensure measured, balanced

recommendations that do not drive up prices

across the sector.

Thomo.CookGtoup ptc i AnnuotR.PortdndAccountt2OlS

OUTLOOK
We anticipate the political outlook on Brexit

to remain fluid into 2019 However. we expect
greater certainty with respect to potential

impacts on our operations having received

commitments from both the EU and UK

government, which gives our customers
greater certainty in the knowledge that
Brexit will not disrupt their travel plans

2019 in Brussels will see the election of a
new European Parliament, and a mandate

change that will result in a new Commission,

which will then identify their policy priorities

Work Plan for the next five years We are

taking measures to inform the development

of the Work Plan to ensure that travel's policy

priorities are addressed

TRAVEL TREN DS

The growth in travel and tourism spending
globally is well documented and continues
to outpace global economic growth

Leisure travel is a highly-valued segment of
discretionary spend Trends and fashions in

our key source markets. particularly on social

media, point to continued attractiveness of
travel among all demographics

OPPORTUNIIIES
ln Mintel's consumer survey, package travel
is identified as being convenient and easy

to arrange This provides opportunities for
our business to differentiate its offering
in an increasingly complex travel market
ln addition, those who book package holidays

are the most likely of all holidaymakers to
record high satisfaction levels

Thomas Cook's strength as a dependable

brand that is trusted to offer hassle-free

holidays and an added level of care means

it is well positioned to continue to take
advantage of the benefits of package travel

and reap the loyalty and recommendation

that comes with high customer satisfaction

The trend towards increased personalisation

and tailor-making of the traditional package

holidays are opportunities to appeal to

more independently-minded travellers
Thomas Cook's growing range of innovative

holiday extras from private transfers to

bookable sunbeds positions us to take

advantage of this trend 0ur portfolio of own-
brand hotels provide a point of differentiation
and the increased focus on design-led hotels

and higher quallty food offer customers
another reason to book with Thomas Cook,

setting it apart from price-driven hotel

aggregators and online travel agents

CHALLENGES
The sustained increase in leisure travel
presents challenges for holiday destinations
throughout the world The past decade

has seen the world s 20 largest travel and

tourism markets increasingly occupy a

higher share of all global travel and tourism
GDP (72 per cent in 2017) By 2020. these 20

countries alone are forecast to have added

more vlsitors than the rest of the world
combined lt is our role to make sure we
take a responsible approach to destination
planning and work with local authorities and

communities to achieve truly sustainable

holidays for everyone who chooses to travel
with us

The growth in availability and range of
peer-to-peer accommodation booking sites
presents a challenge to the hotel-based

travel industry Our alliance with Expedia has

enabled us to establish a partnership with
HomeAway, Expedia's holiday rental platform

in order to capture a proportion of this spend

among our own customers

OUTTOOK
As customers seek ways to personalise

their holidays it is our role to innovate

and offer new and attractive holidays and

holiday extras to demonstrate the benefits
of travelling with Thomas Cook lnnovation in

hotel brands such as Casa Cook and Cook's

Club demonstrates that we can reach new
audiences while our holiday extras like

Choose Your Room or Choose Your Favourite

Sunbed add value to our offer over and above

the well-recognised benefits of convenience

and peace of mind when booking with a

brand like Thomas Cook
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PROGRESS
AGA!NST

STRATEGY CARE
Customer core is of the heort of our strotegy ond one
of the biggest opportunities we hove to differer-rtiote

o Thonros Cook hotidoy from the competition.

0ur aim is to provide our customers with
a personalised holiday experience that
cannot be replicated elsewhere, driven
by the highest level of customer care at
every stage of their holiday.

We know that satisfied customers are more
likely to book again with Thomas Cook, and
that returning customers take higher-value
holidays at a reduced cost of sale Driven by
our organisational values of 'we put our
heart into it' 'wear their flip flops'and 'we're

one Thomas Cook'. customer satisfaction,
encapsulated in the measurement of net
promoter score (NPS) is a primary metric
against which we manage and incentivise
our business

OUR PROGRESS
rN 2018
We have seen a mixed picture on Group NPS

in 2018, which is down 0 8 points year-on-
year We know that our airline has one of the
biggest impacts on overall customer Nps
The disruption across the aviation sector and
the operational challenges presented by our
growth in capacity in the past l2 months had
a dampening effect on overall NPS The hotel
accommodation score is up two points,
demonstrating the work we've done through
our quality improvement in destination and
our stringent approach to the hotels that we
include in our core portfolio

This year we have substantially improved the
insight we have into our customers holiday
experiences. and the tools that help us act on
feedback to make sure our customers have
the best possible time on holiday with us

We launched a new customer feedback
management tool, lnMoment across the
Group (see case study - holidays) This gives
us better insight than ever before into how
we can give our customers the best possible
holidays lt enables us to immediately identify
issues and quickly improve where we need
to demonstrate the level of care that our
customers rightly expect from us

Following a successful trial over winter
2017/18, we rolled out C-View. our customer
relationship management tool, to nearly all
of our 130 destinations C-View gives our
teams a 360-degree view of our customers
including booking history, customer service
enquiries and holiday preferences lt is
another tool to help us better understand
our customers and give them a more
personalised holiday experience

our 24-Hour Hotel Satisfaction Promise
is now fully implemented across our core
portfolio of hotels, giving an additional
reassurance of quality and service We have
also continued to increase the proportion
of complaints that we receive in resort
before customers return home, through
better education of our teams in resort
and improved system support

This year we increased the proportion
of complaints received in destination to
55 per cent, giving us time to resolve the
issue while our customers are on holiday.
Thls means more customers come home
happy. improving satisfaction scores and
helping us to spend less on customer
relations in our source markets

ouR Focus FoR 2019
We will further develop lnMoment and C-View
to give ourselves an even more detailed view
of our customers to help us improve their
holidays by focusing on what matters most
to each individual holidaymaker.

We want to become more'digital in

destination through improvements to
our companion app and travel guide so it
becomes the quickest and easiest way
for our customers to get the most out of
their holiday. This ranges from information
about local attractions and help in booking
excursions, to getting in touch with our reps

We will also focus on improving the way
we support our customers in cases where
their flights are delayed By offering more
information earlier when we know disruption
may affect customers. we can minimise
the inconvenience we know it can cause
to their holiday

--- NET PROMOTER SCORE

+2.O -2.9 -0.8
Gtaup NPS

2011:452

Acarumalaf,wwNPS Air{haNP.f
2011:340 2011:27.3
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Whether through inspiring online
content, expert travel advice and on-
demand advice whenever it's needed,
we are building seamless contact
with our customers throughout their
holiday journey.

0ur strategy is to increase the number of
customers who book directly with Ihomas
Cook, with a focus on digital channels where
our cost of sale is lower At the same time.
both online and through our agents and
partners, we want to make it easier for our
customers to book all of the services and
holiday extras which help to give customers
a personalised holiday experience

OUR PROGRESS
rN 2018
0nline sales increased in all segments this
year and we again delivered very strong
growth in the UK up almost 30 per cent
year-on-year. Germany increased by almost
25 per cent and our Airline by 17 per cent
This contributed to a J2 per cent increase in
web sales overall 0nline now accounts for
48 per cent of bookings, versus 22 per cent
in retail and 30 per cent through third parties

We also increased the proportion of bookings
we took via our own distribution channels
- controlled distribution - by I 2 percentage
points to 70 per cent this year We made good
progress in Germany in particular where we
have increased our franchise agreements
with agency partners

ThonorCookGroupplc I Annuolf,GpcrtondAccount 2Ol8

PROGRESS
AGAINST

STRATEGY

This offsets a slight reduction in controlled
distribution in the UK as a result of our
store closure programme which reduced
our retail estate from 692 to 593 in the year
ln our Nordic markets, we further increased
controlled distribution to over 92 per cent

Strategically, weve made more progress
to become a truly omni-channel business
We relaunched MyAccount, our single hub
for customers to access all their holiday
information ln the UK, 72 per cent of online
customers now log in and use MyAccount
helping to improve ancillary sales conversion
by 12 per cent

We ve also rolled out our web platform in

Belgium and the UK with the new vision to
delight our customers This has allowed us
to optimise a number of key areas of the
website to support our strategy We have
improved our ancillaries proposition both pre-

and post booking, as well as lmproving site
speed and functionality, driving a 34 per cent
increase in revenue this year

The changes have also enabled strong
growth of family bookings through our
website by improving search and filter
that makes booking family holidays easier.
resulting in 98 per cent growth year-on-year

The Companion app (named the Travel Guide
in Germany) has now been downloaded
3l million times We want it to be the easiest
way for our customers to get in touch with
us as well as help them to personalise their
holidays both before they leave and while in

destination - see case study on page 19

+1.2ppts +12%

CONTACT
The woy we interoct with our customers, in person

ond ontine, is the best opportunity we hqve to
devetop q retotionship thot con [ost o lifetime.

0ur Group-wide 'Focus on Families project
online helped increase sales by improving
the search filters that families tend to use,
and increasing the flexibility of the room
searches This work helped to double year-
on-year online Tevenue for family bookings
and increased conversion by 95 per cent

ouR Focus FoR 2019
We aim to put in place a full 'self-service

proposition for all of our holiday extras,
across online checkout and the holiday
companion app to help customers make
the most of travelling with Thomas Cook

We'll further improve search across our
platforms, with better product availability
online and results that are more
individualised to our customers. based on

improved algorithms and machine learning

0n mobile, we'll build on the great progress
we ve made in conversion this year (up 23 per
cent) by improving site speed and simplifying
our customerjourney

ln 0ctober, we announced a reorganisation in

the UK business to create a Chief of UK Retail
and Money role, filled by our Chief Financial
Services Officer, Anth Mooney This structure
aims to reinvigorate lhomas Cook s UK retail
estate and strengthen its offer of travel-
focused financial services products

Co dro%cl. liati;h,rlia w
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These hotels, combined with the
reliability and service of our airline
and our teams in destination, make
up our holiday offer - one where
we aim to differentiate ourselves
from the competition, improve
loyalty and attract new customers
through recommendation.

our strategy is to streamline our business
around a core portfolio of 3150 hotels where
we can have a greater influence over the
customer experience This approach also
allows us to develop deeper relationships
with hoteliers to better leverage our scale
and improve the returns we generate for
the business, while enabling a simpler,

more efficient lT and systems landscape

OUR PROGRESS
rN 2018
We continued to reduce the number of
directly contracted hotels in our core
portfolio, with the aim of driving higher
volumes of guests into fewer hotels where
we have greater influence on the customer
experience and the commercial relationship
with the hotelier

Thomos Cook Group plc

ln addition. we continue to automate our
'complementary' hotel business, which offers
customers a wider range of hotel options
outside of our core portfolio, primarily via

our agreements with Expedia and Webjet

As a result of this work. we removed a

further 900 direct hotel contracts in 2018,

helping to free up resource for our people
to focus on where we can make the biggest
difference to customers, whilst still providing
our customers with choice and being relevant
to them all year round in spite of our sun and
beach focus

The concentration of hotels in our core
portfolio means that now 80 per cent of
revenue from our differentiated hotels
is generated from our top 1,000 hotels
by volume, This means we have greater
allocations and greater influence on the
hotel experience

We also continue to share more hotels
across our source markets, increasing this
to 43 per cent, compared with just seven
per cent four years ago

ln destination, we have made good progress
consolidating our source market operations
to improve the consistency and quality
of the care we provide our customers
0ur Nordic in-Destination Management team
is now fully integrated with the teams for
Continental Europe and the UK under one

management team

ouR Focus FoR 2019
We will continue to consolidate the number
of direct hotel contracts we hold as we
benefit from the increased choice which our
partnerships with Sunhotels and Expedia
bring, allowing us further to automate our
'complementary' holidays

We will continue our move to in-source our
on-the-ground agents that arrange our
customers personalised holiday experience
in the Caribbean. and setting up ajoint
venture destination management company
in Thailand with Asian Trails By owning or
controlling our in-destination agents. we can
improve the quality and consistency of our
operations, and improve compliance to make
sure everything we offer meets the quality
and assurance standards that our customers
expect from Thomas Cook

As we continue to manage our hotel portfolio
and remove hotels that do no meet our
standards we expect our accommodation
NPS to improve

Annuol R.portond Accountr 2Ol8

PROGRESS
AGAINST OURSTRATEGY

HOLI DAYS
Noturo[ty, our hotidoys orethe primoryfocus of ottthotwe do otThomqs Cook.

At the heort of our offering, we wontto creote q portfotio of trusted, high-quol.ity
hotets which provide excettent votue for money.
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PROGRESS
AGAINST

We continue to grow our portfolio of hotels,
while rigorously managing quality We opened
l1 hotels for summer 2018 including our first
Cook's Club, in Crete, We now have 20 hotels
due to open by the end of 2019, including up

to l0 new Cook's Clubs We will also remove
nine hotels which did not meet the quality
expectations we set

Strategically, the biggest step forward has

been establishing and growing our hotel
fund. Thomas Cook Hotel lnvestments, which
we announced in September 2017 The fund, a
joint venture with Swiss-based hotel property
development company Lf4EY lnvestments,
now has five properties on Rhodes, Crete,

mainland Spain and a development property
in lbiza to open in summer 2019 The properties

will be managed and operated by our Hotels
and Resorts division

The fund has subsequently signed purchase

options on two hotels in l.4allorca and is

in ongoing discussions for a number of
additional properties

We have recently agreed our first tranche
of debt funding of €40 million, which will
allow us to grow the fund and accelerate
the growth of managed own-brand hotels
generating greater returns for the business
The fund will continue to pursue additional
sources of funding to drive additional growth

OUR FOCUS FOR 2OT9
Rolling out up to l0 new Cook's Clubs within
our portfolio is a key priority, as we develop
at scale our new concept after a very
positive first summer in 2018 We also have

two new Casa Cook properties due to open,

including a 189-room fund-owned hotel in

lbiza ln all, we will open at least 20 new
properties next year

Many of the changes we made in the
organisational setup of Hotels and

Resorts will bear fruit next year. including
a strengthened sales team to make sure
we are maximising all opportunities for
distribution including our tour operators,
non-competitive third-party tour operators
direct sales or through our Expedia agreement

We intend to put a greater focus on bringing
managed properties into our portfolio,

where we can better control the customer
experience and significantly improve the
returns for the business from each hotel in

the portfolio

We anticipate at least five property
acquisitions via our hotel fund, Thomas Cook

Hotel lnvestments, as we secure further
funding for hotel developments across our
key destinations

GROWING OUR OWN BRAND HOTETS

€40m 12 +14.5Y"
Owtb|udfukA
rpa"llhis sufi*t uo

Sabs of holilatpto
Owvb,wrdHote%'

STRATEGY
HOTETS

Own-brond hotets ore the cornerstone of our hol,idoy strotegy. By offering our
customers on experience thot is unique to Thomos Cook, we con ochieve higher

morgins ond detiver better customer sotisfoction.

OWN.BRAND

We aim to grow and improve our
portfolio of own-brand hotels.
ay offering distinctive brands tailored
to the diverse needs and tastes of
holidaymakers across our source
markets we know we can attract more
of our existing customers to choose
our hotels, and attract new customers
to Thomas Cook.

Our Hotels and Resorts division now operates
as a hotel company within Thomas Cook

Group, focused around hotel management,
franchising, and sales and distribution
Through our hotel fund. established this year
in partnership with Ll'4EY. we are growing a
portfolio of owned and managed hotels to
deliver better returns for the Group

OUR PROGRESS
tN 20t8
We have continued to expand and strengthen
our Hotels and Resorts division so that we
now have almost 40,000 rooms on sale in

47 destinations across our eight hotel brands
This makes us one of the largest sun and
beach hotel operators in Europe

This year we have increased the sales of
holidays to own-brand hotels by 14 5 per cent
achieving growth from across all segments,
notably the UK where we have grown sales
by 20 per cent

Funlng seo,tred
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PROGRESS
AGAINST ouRSTRATEGY i

iAI RLI NE
Our strotegy for the Airtine is to profitobty grow os o leoding

Europeon leisure oirtine with o retiob[e, customer-focused service
thot tokes odvontoge of its retotionship with our hotidoy business

white octivetydevetoping its own distribution chonnets.

We continuously review our cost
structure to compete in a tough market,
as well as aiming to improve the
reliability and operational performance
of our pan-European fleet to create a
compelling customer proposition to short
haul and long haul leisure destinations.

OUR PROGRESS
rN 2018
2018 has been a strong year of growth in

the Airline, despite the disruption across
European aviation We very deliberately
positioned the business to take advantage
of the growth available following the high-
profile exit of competitors in Germany and
the UK

Strategically we have made further good
progress to build a single airline that benefits
from its relationship with the Group Tour

operator while taking advantage of the
opportunities of its own distribution channels
which contributes 55 per cent of revenue

We effectively added a new airline to our
Group in the Balearics giving us greater

operational flexibility at a very competitive
cost base, see case study We also added
another Air Operating Certificate in Germany,

acquired from Air Berlin in January to
facilitate further growth for Condor

These two new A0Cs allowed our Group

Airline to profitably grow capacity by l0
per cent this summer, gain market share in

Germany and UK and expand the number
of routes it flies by more than 70

At the same time as growing our capacity
and top-line. we continued our efficiency
programme removing a further €31 million
in cost through further synergy potentials
and savlngs across the Group Airlines
including the launch of these two operating
airline platforms

We further developed our strategic
partnership with the Canadian airline Air
Transat From Winter 2018/19, l0 short haul

aircraft from our fleet will operate for the
winter season in Canada, in exchange for
four long haul aircraft This will help us to
better balance the inverse seasonal nature
of our businesses

At the same time. we increased the number
of interline agreements we have with other
airlines to offer customers connecting flights
either before or after a Thomas Cook flight
These include Air Europa in Spain. Loganair
in Scotland and Alaska Airways and JetBlue
in North America

Our pre-order on-board duty free offer
Airshoppen has delivered good results
this year as we seek to become a leading
European inflight retailer

We grew by more than 75 per cent in the UK,

and maintained our high conversion rates in

our Nordic companies We also signed our
first agreement to provide our Airshoppen
service to a third-party airline

PRIORITIES FOR 2OI9
Next year, our priority will be operational
stability After a year of strong growth in a
disrupted European airline market. we are

focusing on our operations to create the
best travel experience with minimal delays,

a true customer-focused service and a

great product

We will achieve through a number of
measures, including moving to an all-Airbus
fleet in the UK and operating our Boeing

aircraft in Germany, as well as increasing the
number of aircraft we retain as operational
reserve. in order to better manage disruption

We will continue to expand the number of
interline agreements we have with partner
airlines to increase the breadth of our offer
to customers

We will also seek to grow sales internationally
as we take advantage of the opportunity
we have in our destination markets, and via
partner airlines, to attract more international
customers to Thomas Cook Group Airline

OUR AIRt!NE PERFORMANCE ......--.-.

+O.2/" +0.5"/"
YioU

2017 t]474 per seat

Loal,fortor
20ll:897%
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PROGRESS
AGAINST i

STRATEGY iSERVICES
Our obiLity to personotise our hol,idoys ond ftights is o key

differentiotor of our business. By offering our customers o 'pick
qnd mix'opprooch to the hotidoys ond fl,ights we sett, we con

give customers o more bespoke experience, generoting higher
customer sotisfoction ond better returns for the business -

white ottrocting more customers to pockoge trovet.

Within this services strategy sits our
financial services division, Thomas Cook
tloney. 8y combining our heritage of
travel money and the trust in our brand
with innovative products that make it
easier for our customers to plan, save,
borrow and spend their holiday money,
we have a sizeable growth opportunity
for the Group.

OUR PROGRESS
rN 2018
This year we continued to increase revenue
per passenger from sales of additional
holiday services, while also introducing new
innovative products which demonstrate the
benefit of travelling with a full-service holiday
company like Thomas Cook

We achieved this primarily through
improvements in the way customers are able
to purchase these so-called ancillary services
online, particularly in the UK By bringing
more products online and improving our pre-
departure customer communication, we've
generated four per cent more revenue across
the Group

ln the course of 2018, we rolled out two
innovative products which captured the
imagination of our customers across the
Group - Choose your Room and Choose Your
Favourite Sunbed

Both of these are showing good results
as customers recognise these hassle-free
add-ons as a means of improving their
holiday experience

We began to implement a yield pricing
strategy on some of our holiday services,
which means prices for airline seats and

late check-out fluctuate according to demand
This allows customers to take advantage
where there is reduced demand and for
us to improve sales across the year.

We made good progress in 2018 with our
financial services division: Thomas Cook

l'1oney launching two new products in the UK

that combined the heritage and trust in the
Thomas Cook brand with the latest technology
A new pre-paid travel card called Lyk replaced
Thomas Cook's existing cash passport offering
lower fees and more benefits for customers
In the travel insurance space. we launched
Roam a simpler way to buy and personalise
the insurance for your holidays

These products were created for the digital
world but are also being implemented in

our retail network to maximise our offering
to our high-street customers, as they are
compelling propositions for our travel agents
to sell The division has also grown its
business-to-business partnerships including
Interl"lundial and Revolut for travel insurance
ln total there are more than three million
customers who use Thomas Cook for holiday
money or travel insurance

OUR PRIORITIES
FOR 2019
We plan to launch Express check-in which
will allow customers to by-pass reception
check-in when they arrive in destination

We will roll out our yield pricing across more
of our holiday services throughout the year

In the same way, we want to introduce
HotelShop, which will allow us to offer more
personalised services together with partner
hotels like espresso machines or champagne
on arrival This will generate more income for
both Thomas Cook and hoteliers while giving
customers more opportunlty to personalise
their hotel stay

We have made changes to the management
of our UK retail network which will
strengthen the relationship between this
important distribution channel and Thomas
Cook l"1oney. allowing us to reinvigorate
sales of financial services products to the
large customer base that regularly use our
network of UK travel agents

+f0.63
Anctil,an4 guas ptafit pchcu4torw

28

32



Thono.C@kcroupplc : AEnuolllportqndAccount 2Ol8

oE
o
.go
o



Thomo! CookGroup plc

PROGRESS
AGAINST

STRATEGY

Annuol Rcportqnd Acccunt! 20I8

This partnership approach also allows us
to tap into new opportunities for growth
by leveraging our brand strength and
expertise in travel.

OUR PROGRESS
rN 2018
Ourjoint venture partnership with Fosun in
China has had a strong year, both in trading
terms and in building the foundations from
which it can grow to become comparable in

size to our other key source markets

We built on our partnership with Alibaba,

the world's largest online marketplace, to
increase the number of holidays we sell on

its travel division Fliggy by over ten times
year-on-year, helping us to further leverage
Alibaba's large customer base of more than
600 million active users in China

At the same time we are building out
our own digital distribution platform to
help us grow our direct customer base

The partnership we have at a Group level

with Sunhotels is now integrated with our
Chinese platform, along with a number of
other bed banks. creating a fully automated
and scalable customer offer.

We have also signed two agreements with
developers to launch our first own-brand
hotels in China taking advantage of the fast-
growing Chinese domestic tourism market
These include 200* room Sunwing family
resorts in Jaishan and Henhyang,

ln .July we launched our new city-break and
hotel-only offering in the UK and Nordic
markets, as part of our strategic alliance
wrth Expedia Group and we have since
rolled it out to Belgium, the Netherlands
and France The new areas on our website,
powered by Expedia technology, have made
a strong start, with conversion improving
by three times Together with our strategic
hotel sourcing partnership with Webjet. this
has led to a 58 per cent increase in overall
bed bank bookings as we complete the
outsourcing of our'complementary' holidays

As we increasingly focus our business on

our core sun and beach holiday offering
where we can make the biggest difference
for customers, and earn higher returns. we
have also been able to create efficiency
savings in other areas of our business
At the same time, our partnerships enable
us to offer a much greater choice of hotels
to our customers

OUR PRIOR!T!ES
FOR 2019
ln China, we will continue to focus on our
own digital channels to increase direct
distribution This includes improving our
mobile platform and developing the potential

of China s largest social media platform
WeChat as a distribution channel for our
holidays We will also Iook to sign more
own-brand hotel management agreements
as we take advantage of the potential in

domestic tourism

Next year we will continue to roll out our
Expedia alliance across all of our markets
within the scope of the agreement We will
also begin to take advantage of Expedia s

distribution channels to sell our own hotel
product where it supports our tour operators
trading position

PARTNERSHIPS
Our strotegy to focus our business where we con moke the

biggest difference to customers is supported by o series
of portnerships which hetp us to mointoin o brood offer

to customers otthe lowest possibte cost.
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. FINANCIAL KPIS .. NON-FINANCIAI KPIS -----.

OUR KPls
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UNDERTYING EBII AND OPERATING
PROFTT (fM) AND MARGTN (%)

20rs 20t6

Underlying EBIT and 0perating Profit provide measures
of the Groups profitability pre and post operating
exceptional items respectively The margin mefrics are
these measures as a proportion of sales We target
improvement in these metrics across all our businesses

2018 performance
Group underlying EBIT of f250 million and underlying EBIT

margin of 2 6% is lower than prior year by €58 millron
Following a strong start to the year with growth in the
first 6 months the prolonged summer heatwave and
airline disruptions resulted in a slgnificant decline in
performance in the second half resulting in a reduction in

all profitability metrics

I{otes:
(r) Hrstor c frgures have been represented on a lke'forIke basrs

(r) FYlT figures have been restated See Note 33 for detar s

UNTEVERED FREE

cAsH Ftow

305

20t3

Definition
t.lnlevered free cash flow is cash generated from
operating activities less exceptional items and
capital expenditure

2018 performance
Unlevered free cash flow is €303 miliion lower than last
year due to lower EBITDA, accelerated transformalional
activity and a working capital outflow due to weak
summer trading activity and lhe knock-on impact this
had on early bookings for the first half of FYl9

285

203 204

Defnton

BASIC EPS AND UNDERTYING EPS NET DEBT f M

2013 20tA

0efinition
Basic earnings per share (EPS) represents profit for the
year attributable to equity Shareholders This metric
provides a measure of Shareholder return that is
comparable over time Underlying EPS is defined as
earnings before separately disclosed items after a

notl0nal tax charge attributable to equity shareholders
We are targeting a positive and improving EpS

2018 performance
Underlying EPS has reduced by 9 4p and Basic EPS

has decreased by (ll 3)p since FYU due to a reduction
in profitability

l,lote:
(i) FYlT Flgures have been restaL€d See Note 33 for detar s

20t3 2014

Definition
Net debt is a measure ofthe Groups gross debt net
of cash and cash equivalents

2018 performance
Net debt has increased by €349 million After adjusting
for currency translation and extension to finance
leases net debt increased by €208 million due to
the above menti0ned reduction in unlevered free
cash flow in conjunction with interest expenses and
dividend payments

, 
,rr1

32
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EM PLOYEE SATISFACTION SCORE:
CORE AN D COM t{ITMENT-I N DEX

Definition
Employee engagement is measured through our annual
Survey Every Voice We focus on the measurement
of two main indexes being our'Core-index and
commitment index 0ur target is to at least maintain
our high core-index score and increase our commitment
index score

2018 performance
our Core-index remains strong and we are encouraged
to see growth in lhe commitment-index Both metrics
are pleasing especially given the challenges and market
conditions that many of our teams have faced this year.

The results tell us that the strategy and direction of the
Company is still supported through0ut the organisation

'The basis for calculatron on the commrtment-index has changed
srnce lasL year and therefore comparat vely lhe pr 0r year s
frgure has been updated to 69 fron 68

206205
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OUR STRATEGIC KPIs

CAR E ACCOMMODATION NPS AIRIINE NPS GROUP NPS

+2.O
This year 36 0%

Last year 54 0%

-2.9
This year 24 4%

Laslyear 27.3o/o

-0.8
This year 44 4%

Laslyear 452o/o

coNTACT coNrRotLED wEB REVENUE
DISTRIBUTION

+1.2ppts n2%

HOLIDAYS DIFFERENTIATED OwN BRAND sAtES oF HOIIDAYS TO -[

HOTEr GROSS PROFIT HOTEL GROSS PROFIT OWN BRAND HOTELS 3

'2.Oo/o '1.4o/o 14.5"/" ;

This year 70%

Last year 68%

AIRU N E YIELD toAD FACToR GROUP AlRtlNE
OWN DISTRIBUTION

+O.2"/" +0.5ppts +5ppts
This year €1476 per seat This year 90 2%

Last year €1474 per seat Last year 897%

This year 55%

Last year 50%

SERVICES ANcltLARYGRoss
PROFIT PER CUSTOMER

+f0.63
This year f26 00
Last year €25 36



Three years into our new strategy,
we can see the results of the consistency
in our approach. 0ur sixth successive
annual colleague survey, 'Every Voice'
showed we have achieved significant
increases since 2015 across our key
people metrics of values, openness,
pride and customer orientation.

?utwhrartiatoit
We seekfeedbock & oct on it

We cho[Lenge the stotus quo
& continuo[Ly [ookfor woys to

moke things better

We're prooctive to onticipote
customer's needs

fhomo. Cook Group plG

We have in place many policies to support
our colleagues in their learning, development
and working life and also to support them in

behaving in a way which reflects our values
and culture, for example our Code of Conduct
and Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy

Colleagues are encouraged to use the
Company's independent whistleblowing
service 'Speaking out' if they suspect or
witness any behaviour which does not
reflect the high standards set out in these
policies and these reports are monitored
and investigated and any significant issues
are escalated to the Board As set out on
page 37 we engage with our colleagues in
a number of ways to seek feedback on the
effectiveness of the various policies and
programmes we pursue to ensure that they
are achieving our overall aim of providing our
colleagues with a great working environment
which allows them to put the Customer at
the Heart of everything they do

Our primary Key Performance lndicator
for monitoring the success of all of our
people related activities and policies is

the result of our Every Voice employee
engagement survey.

VALU ES

The work we undertook in 2017 to listen to
our customers and establish a set of values
and behaviours that truly reflect a holiday
company has shown clear results in this
years survey. These values of Put our heart
into it', 'Wear their flip flops' and 'We re one
Thomas Cook'received the largest increase
in positive feedback, with 84 per cent of our
people saying they know and understand
our values

We continue to embed these values across
the Group, supporting our'Customer at our
Heart'ethos The values are simple, relevant
and easy to use, We re pleased to see them
become everyday language in many parts of
Thomas Cook - being recognised internally
as the factor that most unites our workforce

The values are embedded in our performance
management processes so our people
score their performance against each value
These are equal weighted to the achievement
of objectives set at the beginning of the year.

We encourage the involvement of colleagues
in the Company's performance by including
NPS as a key measure of success in incentive
plans for many of our colleagues across
the Group

Annuot lepcrtond Accounts 2Ol8

OUR
APPROACH TOOUR

PEOPLE
We iniroduced oLrr nerv peopte strotegy in 2015. foctrsed on irrrproving enqogen-rellt orr.cj

puttinE tlre customer of the heort of whot our people dc every cioy. Lost ye,rr, vve introdulced
c new set of vc lues ond beho q'iours thr:t better reftected our p x r pose os o hotidoy corlrpony.

Weathz.infip flops

We Listen corefuLLy to
understond whot's required

We're sotutionfocused & strive
for the best outcome

Wc're onzTlwnas Coth

We're open ond honest
& octwith integrity

We toke ownership & deliver
whot we've promised

We focus on the Little things
thoi moke o big difference

0g

We work os one
Thomos Cookteom

&ffi
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Every year we recognise our Customer

Heroes across each part of our Group. those
people most reflecting our values

OPEN N ESS

To fully harness the strength of talent
across ouT Group we need to foster a

culture of openness where our colleagues

feel empowered to express opinions and

share suggestions on how to improve the
business for our customers

This year's Every Voice shows a significant
improvement in openness scores - up

three percentage points to 67 per cent
This represents a 12 point tncrease since

2015 and demonstrates a sustained cultural
shift in this element of our people strategy
where differences are valued and our

climate continues to become more open

lmprovement in this area has come from
all parts of our business with particular
progress in our Group Airline and UK Tour

0perator businesses

This year, we ve introduced more ways for
our people to share their views, including

two-way feedback channels informal focus
groups, regular town halls, and colleague

suggestion schemes More information about

how we engage with our colleagues can be

found on page 57

We have also become more transparent in

our talent processes, sharing thoughts on

performance potential and career aspirations
with the colleagues in question This measure

has led to more meaningful conversations

between leaders which will help develop our
people in a way that brings out individual

strengths across the GrouP

Weve also taken a more proactive approach

to the way we discuss business change
proposals with employee representative
groups, while also making sure that our

colleagues hear about these changes earlier

than previously - both those directly affected
and others in the business

This more transparent approach - both

sharing the difficult news as well as

communicating the wider vision to all - has

helped improve the way our people feel about

the environment they work in - even when
we are communicating difficult decisions

ThomosCookGroup ptc I AnnuotRcpoitqndAccounts2OlS

COTLABORATION
As we make progress on strategy to bring

our source market businesses together
delivering more projects centrally to reduce

duplication and improve our operational

efficiencies ourvalue of 'Were one Thomas

Cook becomes ever more important

ln October last year we made changes to
our Executive Committee which gave cross-

market horizontal' responsibility to Source

Market Management, designed to further
expedite global collaboration

We implemented the Group Tour Operator

Business Change division designed to lead

global change programmes across the Tour

Operator delivering business efficiencies and

greater alignment of systems and processes

designed to benefit ouT customers

We introduced a Group Mentoring Programme
promoting international support for our high

potential future leaders ln addition we are

finalising the development of a global mobility

framework to help our people to more easily

move around the organisation in their career.

This recognises the global nature of our business

After its first year last year we further
developed our Global Leadership Plus,

our Group-wide Ieadership development
programme to bring together leaders from

across the Group, with a focus on influencing

skills, leadership and collaboration

DIVERSITY AND
INCLUSION AGENDA
As a customer-focused business we know
that a more balanced workforce at all levels

brings wider perspectives and makes decisions

which better reflect the customers that we
serve Ultimately this helps us to build a more

successful business over the long term

As a large international business we have

in place a number of local equality, inclusion

and diversity policies and programmes which
have been developed by, and tailored to, the
different segments of the Group During the
year we have worked to develop a Group

Diversity & lnclusion Framework which will act

as an overarching Group-wide framework for the

various local policies and initiatives and clearly

set out our commitment to offer a working

environment in which everyone is accepted and

included and has an equal chance to succeed

li!

We plan to roll this framework out across

the Group in early 2019 along with our

Group-wide Diversity and lnclusion Plan for
promoting diversity

We have taken some good steps forward in

respect of diversity during the year including

rolling out unconscious bias training, which
raises awareness of implicit bias and seeks

to elrminate discriminatory behaviours

The Executive Committee has now received

this training and we will continue roll-out to
the Thomas Cook Leadership Council (TCLC)

in 2019, including an online module to further
support this important behavioural change

0ur Sponsoring Women to Success
programme launched across Group this year

34 women are sponsored by senior leaders

to build confidence, open doors develop and

encourage their careers

0ur Group Airline has introduced an Airline

Senior Female Leadership Forum (ASFLF)

which has 30 female members l'leanwhile,

our Northern European business has a
'Women in Thomas Cook Northern Europe

network, providing networking and

mentorlng support for women regardless

of role and seniority We have a dedicated

Women's sponsorship programme with 34

active participants At least 50 per cent of
those who have taken part in the programme

have been promoted or offered secondment

opportunities during the time they've been

sponsored ln the UK, we released our first
Gender Pay Report in March which covers
just our UK employees and will report again
progress made in 2019

E'
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OUR PEOPTE
CONTINUED

-\

CASE STUDY

APPRENTICESHIP
AT THOMAS
COOK AI RCRAFT
ENGINEERING
When I left school, I wasn't sure which
path I wanted to take I had lots of wild
career ideas, and engineering has always
appeared as being a 'manly' job, which
never really bothered me My passion for
learning about how things work, being
hands on, having a creative flare and a
lust for travel influenced me to go for the
opportunity offered by Thomas Cook and
I have never looked back Every day in

the hangar is completely different from
another, so you never know what the day
may entail

My Aircraft Engineering apprentice scheme
lasts for four years, the latest cohort
are on a three year programme and you
work in the Thomas Cook Airlines UK

base in Manchester Airport learning to
maintain aircraft

During my apprenticeship I have been
studying at college in North Wales full
time in my first year. I started in Thomas
Cook Airlines' hangar in Manchester while
also doing a mix of study and work for
my second and third years

GEN DER DIVERSITY
ACROSS TH E THOMAS
COOK GROUP

EXECUTIVE
COMMITTEE

THOMAS COOK
TEADERSHIP COUNCIT

OTHER
MANAGERS

OTHER
EMPLOYEES

TOTAL

I have achieved a lot of new qualifications
at college, achieving distinctions across
the board. whilst also completing an NVQ

Level 3 in the hangar. ln my final year I will
gain valuable experience and knowledge
from the engineers that I spent time with,
helping me work towards my aircraft
maintenance licences I have also been
showcasing my skills nationally for the
World Skills competition

Despite being in the minority as a young
woman in a mostly male environment, it
has no impact whatsoever on how I am
treated. lt is great to see that three of the
new apprentices are also young women
who will be working towards becoming
aircraft engineers too

I have another year to go and I look
forward to graduating from my
apprenticeship in September 2019

36
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TATENT AND
SUCCESSION
Building on last year's work, we strengthened
our talent approach this year by introducing
more transparency into the talent evaluation
process We are implementing a global
grading system across the Group which will
better show career paths for different roles

across the Group Thls will be supported by

the upcoming introduction of our new global

mobility framework to make mobility easier

our Navigator alumni (emerging talent
programme) met this year to continue thelr
development From our alumni of 52 future
leaders, 50 per cent have now secured a

promotion, and a further l5 per cent are

leading key projects in their business area

Global Leadership Plus has continued to be

delivered across the Group with 43 leaders

completrng the programme this year and

a commitment moving forward to deliver it
to a further 150 leaders across the Group

Further new talent programmes we have

launched during the year including the
Shining Stars initiative across the Thomas

Cook global lT function, and Spotlight Camp

across Continental Europe These are

designed to encourage colleagues to join
a development programme if they wish to
advance their career in Thomas Cook

Thomo.CookGroupplc i AnnuotPeportondAccount 2OlS

EVERY VOICE -
ENGAGEMENT
Our annual Every Voice colleague survey is

at the heart of our people strategy our sixth
annual Group-wide survey was completed by

18,907 colleagues, representing a response

rate of 76 per cent

We are pleased with the progress we are

making, particularly in the area of developing

an open, values-based culture We are also

pleased to see an increase in commitment
to the organisation and continued

customer orientation especially given the
significant change across the business

and the challenging trading and operating

environment this year

Our Core lndex has remained high at 74 per

cent this year. We redefined our Commitment
lndex this year to focus on the five areas
that have the greatest impact on colleagues'
commitment to the organisation; knowledge
and awareness: customer orientation;
teamwork: learning and development: and

an open culture Weie pleased that we

achieved a one percentage point increase

to 70 per cent, taking it into the 'excellent'

category as defined by the independent
survey provider. Employee engagement also

remained stable at 77 per cent

0ur China business took part in the survey
for the first time, achieving a strong
commitment index of 82 per cent, while our

new office in Palma also participated with
a result of 69 per cent

Over the four year period. we have seen

significant gains across the core metrics
These results are evidence of a sustained
cultural change in openness, belief in our

values, pride in working for the organisation
and customer orientation lt also shows
that our people believe we have maintained
focus on people development and

employee satisfaction during our
transformation journey

i ouR PRroRrrEs
i FoR 201912020

We intend to move to a more agile and
continuous approach to performance

and talent management across the
Group By introducing a'continuous
performance management' process,

we will move away from the
traditional annual performance
review, supporting a more frequent
development and career discussion
This flexibility mirrors the changing

external environment and helps
i us to target development for

i identified successors and high
: potential colleagues

We know we have more work to
do to strengthen our diversity and

inclusion and the role out of Group

Diversity & lnclusion Framework

and Plan as explained on page 35.

This development in early 2019 will be

an important step on thisjourney.
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TO
SUSTAINABILITY

Cne ve,rr ii-rte the torinclr of oisr moking o oifference: v",ith everv hc..l.ido_y'

sustcinol--i[ity strotegy ite hove beeri focr"rsed on progre :is tr:r,vords our three gc,:[s,
os t"r,el[ cI,c r€Sprf iidrng to enrergirtq srrstoirroliiliry issues.

We understand that we face, as a

society, huge social and environmental
challenges. 0ur response is set out
by our Sustainable Tourism Policy.

It was clear that we needed to take the
key principles from our Sustainable Tourism
Policy and create a strategy which is clear
simple and easy to understand for our
colleagues and our customers

0ur sustainability strategy is aligned to
our customerjourney, making it easy

and relatable to our customers and our
colleagues. Within each of the three strands
of the strategy: At Home The Journey, and
0n Holiday, we have articulated a vision
for how we can make our product more

sustainable in the long term We have also
set stretching three-year targets aligned
to this strategy, to accelerate ourjourney
to these aims

We know that operating in an ethical
and sustainable way is not only what
our customers demand. but is also how
we reduce our environmental impacts
while maximising the social and economic
benefits travel can bring

While last year was focused on launching
the strategy, in 2018 the focus has been on
implementation of this strategy and driving
change within our business

fhomos CookGroup plc

OUR
APPROACH

"t, AT t{oME ,,,\
L_, 

--l

2O2O TARGET

100,000 people reached through our
charitable and community programmes

OUR PROGRESS IN 2OI8
ln 2018, we have accelerated our charitable
activities and aligned our measurable impact
across our business, targeting those in most
need in the countries where we operate

Thomas Cook's operations affect individuals
and communities around the world
By working with our partners, NGOs and
other industry tourism groups, we can better
understand and mitigate the negative impact
of our business

The key strand of our work 'at home' focuses
on our impact through our charitable and
community initiatives This concentrates on

improving health and well-being, supporting
vulnerable children, providing natural disaster
relief and enhancing community spaces.
We aim to make a transformational impact
through our charitable work and positively
influence the lives of 100,000 people by 2020
We have seen a huge step towards meeting
this target this year, moving from 17,979

people directly benefiting to 36.135 people

our commitment to the communities in which
we live and work was brought to life in our
reaction following the Manchester Arena
Attack in May 2017 Manchester is the main
base for our UK Airline and one of our main
airports our customers use

Our Thomas Cook Sport and Freedom Travel

businesses are based in the city and of
course we have a large retail presence not
only in Manchester but in the surrounding
area too

ln the months that followed this atrocity,
Thomas Cook Children's Charity committed
to support those affected. As well as
a corporate donation to the'We Love

Manchester fund. our Charity also pledged

they would donate all monies raised the
following month to organisations and
charities working to support those who
had been affected by the tragedy Together.
we raised t280,000 in those five weeks,

ln the last year, we have focused on providing
funding where it is most needed for those
impacted by the tragedy We are now working
with the Manchester Resilience Hub - set up

by the NHS mental health providers in Greater
Manchester as a joint response to the
attack - to provide funding that will focus on
ensuring children, young people and families
who need one to one therapy following the
attack receive it. The Manchester Resilience
Hub screens and coordinates the mental
health care of any child, young person or
adult involved in the attack, and we are
committed to this cause

*t' It
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0ur Airlrne is among the most efficient tn

Europe with only 72 5g C0; per passenger

kilometre compared with an average 0f

B4 9g C0? for the five largest European

airlines last year Condor our German Airline

was ranked ninth in the Charter Carrier

sector by the 2017 Atmosfair Arrlrne lndex

which ranks the carbon effictency of the
200 argest airlines tn the world

ln 2018 we have continued our drive to

acl- eve operdtior'al e+ftctencies across our

Airline 0ur fuel eff iciency worktng group

continues to work on key prolects such

as reducing weight on board improve flight
planning processes and optimtsing routing
Thrs year we launched a new Alrline Thomas

Cook Balearrcs which gave us a new base

in one of our popular destinattons Thrs has

given us greater operational flexibtlity and

better control of operattons

?..o-
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I

202O TARGET

l2 per cent rncrease in fuel efficiency for
Group Airline from a 2008/2009 basellne

OUR PROGRESS IN 2018

The environmental rmpact of the travel

inoustry ts consrderable with growtng

emissions from the travel and tourism sector

We recognise the risks presented by cllmate

change and 0ur duty to reduce 0ur impact

We have for a number of years worked to
reduce our envtronmental impact across our

business and supply chatn As outlined in our

Envrronnrent Policy and Sustainable Tourisrn

Policy this includes reducing the use of water
in our hotels: using sustainable products

and materials wherever possible reducing

0ur production of waste: and s0urcing or
producing renewable energy As a result
of one such prolect this year tn one of our

hotels Sunwrng Kallithea we used 12 000

cubic metres less water than the year before

We are commltted t0 making progress across

our business to decrease our environnlental
impact This is demonstrated through our

continued listing on the FTSE Russell s

FTSE4G00D index and our annual response

to CDp the not for-profit charity that runs

the global disclosure system for companies

ln 2017 we scored B, which means we
are taklng c0ordinated action on cllmate

change issues

Fuel efficiency in our Alrline is centra to this
effort and is a key part of our approach to

running an efficrent and profitable Alrline

This is demonstrated through our target
of a J2 per cent increase in fuel effrciency
per passenger km by 2020 (based on a

2008 basellne) We recognise the challenges
presented by the Parrs Climate Agreement

and the latest IPCC climate report to the
arrlrne industry and we are determined

to drive incremental improvements ln our

current fleet while workrng with the rndustry

to develop more eff tcient aircraft and more

sustainable fuels

Total Scope I

Drrect emtss ons

Tota Scope 2
lndirect em ssrons

4348322 4.342.121

17.949 17,931

lot,il emrssrorr> 4.366.871 4,360.058

Total emissrcns/
Em ll on turnover

We have reported on all the emtsst0n
sources required under the Cornpanies Act

2006 (Strategic report and Director reports)

Regulations 2013 We on y have responsibllity

for the emlssion sources that are included

rn our Annual Report and Accounts We have

used the GHG protocol Corp0rate Accounting

and Reporting Standard (revised editron)

data from EU Emission Tradrng Scheme and

emissron factors fr om the UK Government

GHG Conversron Factors Guldance 2018
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2O2O TARGET

100 per cent of our own-brand hotels to
obtain a Travelife award

OUR PROGRESS IN 2OIE
We know our own-brand hotels are key
to providing a fantastic holiday experience.
They also have a social and economic and
environmental impact in a local community
We aim to maximise the positive impact
and minimise the negative We work
extensively with our hotel brands to
enable our customers to experience local
products and services, giving them an
authentic taste of the local culture.

Thomor Cook Group plc I Annuol loport ond Accountr 2Ol8

SUSTAINABILITY
CONTINUED

By 2020. we aim to have all of our own-
brand hotels accredited by Travelife,
the internationally-recognised scheme
which helps hotels and accommodations
to manage and improve their social and
environmental performance.

The scheme also ensures that staff in resort
are employed fairly and the hotel promotes
local sourcing of products.

We know that Travelife hotels are not only
better for us, but they are better for our
customers too, recording higher NPS scores
in customer satisfaction surveys than our
other hotels

All of our own brand hotels have a contractual
obligation to achieve accreditation ofthe
Travelife scheme and while we have seen
limited growth in 2018, we expect this to
accelerate significantly next year.

This year, we announced the next step in

our Animal Welfare Policy recognising that
the animal attractions we sell are consistent
with our customers expectations of us.
So far we have audited 49 animal attractions
and removed 29 which didn't meet the
minimum ABTA standards that we measure
against During the year this policy was
updated so that from the summer 20,19 we
will not sell any animal attractions that keep
orcas in captivity lnstead we will continue
to identify more sustainable alternatives

This year, we have launched the
'noplaceforplastic' campaign which will
see us eliminate single-use plastic wherever
possible throughout our supply chain.
We have committed to remove 70 million
single-use plastic - equivalent to 3,500
suitcases full within the next l2 months
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CASE STUDY

HUMAN RIGHTS
AND TRAFFICKING

The tourism rndustry employs a higher proportion of women

and young people These groups are more likely to be

susceptible to human rights and trafficking

The issues of human nghts and trafficking are becoming

increasrngly rmportant to our customers ln a recent survey

Swedish holidaymakers sard the most important topic for holiday

conrpanies was that they work against child sex tourism

At Thomas Cook we want to encourage socially-responsible
practices that promote employment and the creation of

lobs that are sustainable adhere to regulation and deltver

equality justice and economtc development

Across our business we have extensive supply chains

leading to the potential risk of human lghts abuses if
polrcies are not adhered to This rs why we are being
proactive and striving t0 take a leadership posrtion on

thrs rssue in the toLrrism industry

Across our extenslve supply chatn which rncludes many

suppliers we rmplemented a mandatory tool kit that
requires all suppliers to sign up to a Code of Ethics and

Conduct that includes a preventive l'4odern Slavery Poltcy

We also require suppliers to share their internal poltcies

and conduct modern slavery risk assessments on all new

supplrers as we do internally

The number of own-brand hotels which have attained

Travelife Awards has risen to 56 out of 186 hotels over

the year To achieve this award hotels have to comply

with independent oversight and audits on key purchasing

processes Thrs reduces the risk of modern slavery practtces

in these hotels and strives to ensure the hotels comply

with local empl0yment legislatton

In 2018, we asked Stronger Together an organisation whose
aim is to reduce modern slavery to conduct an independent

wide ranging revrew of our polictes procedures

implementation and governance concerning human rights
They have many learnings and insights from other sectors
which they have applied to Th0mas Cook

Stronger Together visited a number of our resorts to

examine our work first hand Their recommendations

included better tracking of the implementatton of our
policies and expanding our training programmes We are

rollrng out a programme of policres to address the issues

over the next year which will help mttigate the risks across

the Thomas Cook supply chain
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FINANCIAL
REVI EW

OVERVIEW
REVENUES .-...-UNDERTYING EBII--- --- -

1250m
Underl$nqE?lT dec,u.ased Ey f7(ru, or lStw

oi 0, lih..for-Ake baaia (FY 17: l309wl .

19,584m
Rev ent o n c,uasei by tfl 1 w (6a kl

(FYl7:11,006w],.

NEI DEBT--

f(38e)m
Like-for-Ake nzi ldt nc,oznscd by 1311m, or ofter afjusting

for curunoy hauhtioa awl e*catioa lr frtunreka,tc,t,
o reolu clin w d 820$* F Y 17 : f (19 I ru\.

UNTEVERED FREE CASH FIOW ------------.

f(l8m)
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FINANCIAT RESUTTS AND
PERFORMANCE REVI EW GROU P

] rir"+outir"
Change change

Revenue 9 006 *578 +574

Underlvinqt' r Gross profit t.955 1,992 -37

Underlyinqhr Gross Marqin (%) 20.4% 221y" -Uobps l4obps
-42 -54Underlyinqr'rr 0peratinq expenses

Associated Undertakings fl)

326Underlying(li) profit from operations (Underlying EBIT) -58-76

EBIT Separately Disclosed ltems -54-5499(rs3)

Profit from operations (EBlTl {2-t30))197

Underlyinol') Net finance charqes '19fl43l24l
Separately disclosed f inance charges *154t(26)

Profit before tax -78(s3)

-76-7634)0r0)Tax

Profit after tax -154-172tr65)

Basic EPS

UnderlYino("rEPS

00.61p

(0.3)p

nil 0 6p -0.6p

0 7p ll.3p
glp -9.4p

DPS

l,lnlevered free cash flowLur

o4
o
.goa
o

-303(r8) 285

Free cash flow('r -29446fl48)

Net debt (389)

llotes:

been applied to the Gro!p frnancial statements for FY]T Further details are shown on page I70

(i) Ltke-forlkechangeadlustsforthelmpactofforergnexchangetranslatronandbusrnessstructurechangesThedelarledIke-forlkeadjUslmentsareshownonpag€44
(rv) There s no d vrdend awarded for thrs fLnancial year

reconclllatron offree cash flow s shown on page 54

fl4l m llon resultrng rn FY]7 llke-forl ke net debt of tlSl mrl lon
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SUMMARY OF 2OI8 PERFORMANCE

Overall, our financial performance in 2018 was disappointing,
despite starting the year well and making good strategic progress

Group revenue was [9.6 billion, up 6% on a like-for-like basis, and
group underlying EBIT was f 250 million. down I58 million on a like-for-
like basis

We delivered a strong first six months of the year achieving improved
financial results and going into the summer with a positive booking
position As a result. we were confident of filling all our committed
hotel accommodation and flight capacity at good returns However,

with the start of the heatwave in May. demand reduced sharply with
customers across our European markets delaying holiday decisions
as they enjoyed record temperatures at home This delay in bookings
restricted our ability to achieve the planned margins in the'lates'
booking period

While all our source markets were impacted, we saw a particular hit
to our UK business where the slowdown in bookings came on top
of an already competitive market for Spanish holidays We have a
specific plan to address the performance in our UK Tour Operator, set
out later in this section

Overall, a higher-than-anticipated decline in gross margin in the final
quarter resulted in underlying EBIT in our Tour 0perator business
being t88 million down forthe full year Within this. our Northern
European Tour 0perator achieved a near record performance, albeit
lower than that expected at the end of the first half. despite the
impact of the hot summer.

The weakness in our Tour Operator was partially offset by a good
performance in our Group Airline This looked set for an excellent year
until air traffic control issues led to industry-wide disruption This was
compounded by operational challenges as we grew capacity to take
advantage of the failure of Air Berlin Nevertheless, our Group Airline
delivered a t35 million improvement in profit in 20lB

Overall, our Group underlying EBIT was €250 million, t58 million lower
than the prior year on a like-for-like basis This reduction includes
f 28 million of legacy and non-recurring charges, comprising a

fl4 million write-down of historic hotel receivables, f4 million of flight
disruption costs and €10 million of further transformation costs, taken
through underlying EBIT rather than separately disclosed items (SDls)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
CONTINUED

overall, SDls totalled €155 million which principally relate to
our transformation programme and start-up costs relating t0
new ventures

Free cash outflow was fl48 million, t294 million below last year.

This reflects the lower underlying EBIT performance, higher cash-
related SDls, investment in our new hotel fund and a working capital
impact from the slow start to bookings for the 2019 winter season

Net debt was €389 million, including the impact of non-cash
adjustments for foreign exchange and finance lease extensions,
which totalled €l4l million While net debt is higher than previously

forecast. the Group's lenders remain supportive and we have secured
additional flexibility to ensure we can continue to deliver our strategic
plan With an increased focus on free cash generation and cost
management in our new plans, we are confident that we will make
good progress reducing net debt over the next few years

Also included in the financial statements is €24 million of prior year
balance sheet adjustments. reflecting a write down of historic
balances now considered to be irrecoverable, See page 170 for
further details

LIKE.FOR.tI KE ANATYSIS

Certain items, such as the normal translational effect of foreign
exchange movements, affect the comparability of the underlying
performance between financial years To assist in understanding the
impact of those factors, and to better present underlying year-on-year

changes. 'like-for-like' comparisons with FYIT are presented in addition
to the change in reported numbers

The 'like-for-like'adjustments to the Group's FYIT results and the
resulting year-on-year movements are as follows:

ThomqrCookGroupptc i AnnuclloportondAccount.2OlS

I I cross loperating undertytng

I 
nevenue 

I 
marsin 

lexrenses 
EBr 

Icroup {€m)

Restated FYlTrrr 9.006 22.1% tr,66s)

lmpact of Currency l4ovements 4 - (0

Business transfers

The'like-for-like' adjustments to the Group's performance by business
line (the Group reports the operations of its Group Tour operator
and Group Airline businesses as its primary reporting segmentation,
reflecting the way the business is managed and reported internally)
are as follows:

l.Jnderlying EBII by business line
Group Tour oroup I I I

Operator Airline lcorporate | Group 
I

Restated FYlTtil

lmpact of Currency Movements

Business transfers

Group Airline set up costs{")

FYU Like-forlike (3s) 308

FYlS Reported

Like-for-like chanqe (tm)

Like-for-like chanqe (%) -35% *317o -4%

l{otes:
( ) See Note 33 on page I70 for detarls oI the pnor year restatem€nt

{ r) Group Arrline set up costs related to the set up ol our palma based arr rne

Thomas Cook A rllnes Balear cs

REVENUE

Group revenue increased by 6% to f 9,584 million, due to a return in

popularity for holidays to Turkey and North Africa (Tunisia and Egypt)

which grew by a combined f545 million (44%) Greece remained
strong, growing for the fifth consecutive year. Revenue generated

from Spain was 2% lower, as customer demand shifted towards other
destinations The main components ofthe changes by destination are
as follows:

REVENUE f M ----------

FYIT North Turkey Greece Spain other Lonq FYIS

I ke for hke AFflca short/medrum haul Tevenue
revenue hall

(3s)

94249

(40

-58

-9%

(4)

- {0 3)% 22

Group Airline set up costsr r

Restated FY|T Like-for-like 9,0r0 ?1.8% 0,6s3)

FYlS Reported 9,s84 20.4% (r,707) 250

Like-for-like chanqe (lm)

Like-for-like chanoe (%) r6% -140bps -3Yo

l{otes:
(r) See Noie 33 on page 170 for details of the pr or year restatement
(ri) Gr0up Arrlrne set up costs relaled to [he set !p ol our palma based arrlrne

Thomas Cook A[llnes Baleancs

(4)

-58-54n/a*514

-9%
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UNDERLYING GROSS PROFII AND MARGIN
Underlying gross profit was broadly unchanged at tl,955 million with
revenue growth offsetting a reduction in underlying gross margin
Underlying gross marglns were significantly impacted in the critical
last few months of trading by an oversupply of holidays left to sell
across the market and an even more competitive pricing environment
than usual as a result ofthe extremely hot weather across Northern
and Western Europe As a result, and despite the good start to the
year, Group Underlying gross margin reduced by 140 basis points
versus last year,to 20 4Yo

Our UK and Nordic Tour Operators were particularly impacted by

the heatwave For our UK business the hot weather came on top of
contrnued inflation in hotel costs for Spanish holidays Meanwhile
margins in our Contlnental Europe businesses were also impacted by

the business mix, with strong growth in our Russian business, which
has a lower relative gross margin 0ur Group Airline gross margin was
impacted by disruption caused by third party strike action and delays
in the registration of new aircraft The relative impact on the Group's

underlying gross margin performance by segment is set out below:

UNDERTYING GROSS MARGIN % - - - --- - - - - - -

-0 3%

| -03%

I
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U NDERTYI NG OPERATING EXPENSES/OVERH EADS

0perating expenses before depreciation increased by 4% (f59 million)
to €1,488 million as the benefits of initiatives to increase efficiency
and reduce costs were more than offset by inflation and volume-
related increases to the operating cost base relating to our decision to
increase capacity in our Airline Depreciation decreased by t5 million

I I vear ended

I Year enoed | 30 sep 2ou Like-forlike

| 
30 Sep 2018 | LfL Change

Personnel Costs

Net operating Expenses (473) (448) -25

Sub Total (r,488) (r,42s) -5e

Depreciation

Total (r,6s3) -54

UNDERTYING EBIT

Underlying EBIT of €250 million was 19% lower than the prior year on a
like-for-like basis The principal components of the Group's Underlying
EBIT performance for the year are summarised below under
'segmental revlew'

EBIT

Statutory EBIT of f 97 million was €ll2 million lower than the prior
year on a like-for-like basis. largely due to the lower underlying EBIT.

together with an increase in SDls to fl53 million (FYl7: t99 million)
The principal components of the Groups SDls performance for the
year are summarised below under'other financial items shown on
page 50

-34t0t5

+$12241{2t9)

(r 707)

06%

I

02%
I
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FYIT

rke-for irke
gr0ss margrn

FY18

gr0ss margrn
UK Tour
0perator

Contrnental Northern
Europe Tour EuropeTour
operator operator
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FINANCIAT REVIEW
CONTINUED

SEGFIENTAT REVIEW
PERFORMAIiICE BY BUSINESS L!NE

During the yeai underlying EBIT decreased by €58 million on a like-for-like basis. analysed as follows:

I ro*oprrrto, 
I

I corporatel I

Airline I Eliminations 
I

nr* 
I

Gross Margin [%)

1,394 3,sis
27.1%

0,329) 9,s84

13 5%

Underlvinq EBIT (40)

Underlyinq EBIT marqin (%) 2.6%

Like-for-like Underlyins EBIT chanse

Customers ('000) 21,95390920 163t0 881

A review 0fthe performance ofeach ofour busiRess units is set out below:

lGroupTouroperator rGroupAirline rCorporate lGroup

REVENUE f 1r,l ----------
271%

--._ UNDERTYING EBIT fM ---------- ----. UNDERLYING EBIT%

3l%

tl6lrn
rl29mI'rl
Arrline Corporate GroupTou r

0perator
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(3,ROUP TOUR OF,ERATOIT ......

REVENUE
(f M)

GROSS
MARGTN (%)

UNDER[YING
EBrT (f M)

EBII
MARGTN (%)

2.27,394

Gross Margin (%) 13.5% 15 4% -lgObps

Underlying EBIT 161 246 -85

Underlying EBIT margin (%) 22% 3570 -lsobps

1,394 1]21 ,213 7136 *258

15 4% l9Obps

249 -88

35% -l3obps

CUSTOMERS
(000s)

10,881

UK

0ur UK tour operating business achieved good top-line growth in

FYIB, with revenues increasing by 5% compared to the previous year.

Sales of holidays to differentiated hotels grew particularly strongly,

at 20% Across our destinations, sales to Turkey and Egypt grew

significantly. by 70% and 95% respectively, while sales to Spain, where
we have seen the highest hotel cost inflation, decreased by 9%

Despite rebalancing our destination mix, we continued to experience

margin pressure due to the competitive environment, particularly in

the Summer lates market when the heatwave significantly impacted

market demand As a result, underlying EBIT declined by €56 million to
a loss of €7 million

We continued during FYl8 to take actions to improve the business
positioning, including growing our online sales by almost 30%. closing

a further 100 loss-making retail stores. and improving the quality

and competitiveness of our product offering However, it is clear

that our UK tour operating business continues to operate in a highly

competitive environment where the challenges of transformation
remain significant To address these challenges, we are implementing

a clear set of actions in FYl9 aimed both at growing gross margins

and minimising overhead These include driving awareness and

take-up of own-brand hotelsr reducing our committed risk capacity

and replacing it with more non-risk, dynamically-packaged product;

introducing new automated yield systems: combining our retail stores
business with Thomas Cook Money to optimise store profitability: and

targeting a best-in-class cost base

13.5 161

I I FYIT rike I

I tir. -forlike
rvre I FY]T change -forlike I change

Customers (000s) 10.88t r,032 -l5l

680 645 *55

-351

ASp E) 635 *45

Our Group Tour Operator increased revenue in all our core markets,

highlighting continuing demand for our product and service offering

Total customer numbers fell overall by 3% to l0 I million, with strong
growth in the sales of holidays to own-brand and selected partner

hotels offset by reductions in complementary sales as we scaled

back certain legacy, complementary business lines ln total, revenue

grew by €258 million (or 4%) to €7,394 million (FY17: €7,136 million)

However margins declined in all source markets, particularly in

the fourth quarter, due to the over-supply of holidays left to sell

in the Summer'lates market which put pressure on selling prices

t
oq
a

.9oo
o

Ihe underlying EBIT for our

market. is set out below:

!m

Group Tour Operator, split by source

I | | I FYIT r-ikel
I I I Ltkel -forlrke

I FY|S I FYIT Change {orlike I change

Continental Europe

Underlying Revenue

UK I 954 1.857 *97 1,857 -97

4,168 4,053 .ll5 4 ll3 +5s

1.272 l.2ll *61 I 166 .106

7,394 7,121 A73 7.136 .258
Northern Europe

Total

Underlvinq EBIT

Continental Europe

to56497l

-30-229517

95Northern Europe of

249 -88Tota

5'1
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
CONTINUED

NORTHERN EUROPE

Strong Winter trading for Northern Europe led to a very positive
first half performance. with underlying EBIT up by f9 million. At the
beginning of May, the bookings position for Summer holidays was
7% higher than the previous year, with average selling prices up
5%. However, bookings and margins declined slgnificantly in the
fourth quarter. as many consumers chose to enjoy the prolonged
good weather at home. rather than travel abroad As a result. while
revenue for the year grew by 9% reflecting overall higher volumes
and pricing, full year underlying EBIT fell by f2 million to €95 million
(FYl7: t97 million).

CONTINENTAT EUROPE

0ur Continental Europe business also ended the Winter in a strong
position, with a f3 million lower seasonal EBIT loss for the first half
and a positive booklngs and pricing position for Summer. However, due
to weak demand in the fourth quarter on account of the heatwave,
underlying EBIT for the year as a whole declined by f30 million to
€73 million (FYl7: €103 million) Our German business was also impacted
by the effects of the widespread flight disruption. processing a higher-
than-usual number of flight changes, re-bookings and cancellations
ln our Dutch and Eastern European businesses, volumes and profits
decllned as capacity was reduced

By contrast, Belgium continued to perform well, following the transfer
of our Belgian airline business to SN Brussels in November 2017

Russia and France grew significantly during the year, with customer
numbers up by 13% and l8% respectively. Russian growth was mainly
due to increasingly strong demand for Turkey, while France benefited
from strong growth in demand for North African destinations,
together with the effect of signlficant cost-cutting over recent years
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REVENUE
(f M)

EBITDAR
MARGTN (%)

12.9

UNDERTYING
EBrr (f M)

129

EBIT
MARGTN (%)

3.73,519

3.124 2.84'1 +2ll 2159 +365

533 510 +23 300 -35

62 28 +34 28 +54

3,519 3,185 *334 3,087 .432

(3.063) (2,760) -303 (2,683) -380

456 425 *31 404

DEPARIED
CUSIOMERS (000s)

20,163

Growth in short/medium haul was due to an increase in capacity, as a

result of strong additional demand from third-party tour operators and
seat-only customers, following the collapse of Monarch and Air Berlin/
Niki Short/medium haul yields increased by 6% to fl15 per seat soldr

the long haul business increased yields by l% to f3l2 per seat sold

The strong growth in customers, in combination with the full-year
impact of our upgraded booking system helped drive an increase
in ancillary revenues of ll% to €553 million, primarily in relation to
seat reservations However. with short/medium haul customers
representing a significantly higher share of the overall customer
base, ancillary revenue per customer overall decreasedby 2o/"lo

Ell 42lF\1] like for like: €1775) Thls is because short/medium haul

customers typically spend less on ancillaries than those on long haul

Operating cost increases were in line with capacity growth, including
the impact of higher hedged fuel prices as well as increases in

US Dollar dominated costs (principally leasing and maintenance
costs) due to less favourable exchange rates ln addition, our

Group Airline experienced an unprecedented level of operational
disruption due to a lack of sufficient aircraft capacity in the market.
as well as increased restrictions in European air space These cost
increases were partly mitigated by the implementation of further
efficiencies as part of our profit improvement programme as well
as lower maintenance costs as a result of improved return-of-lease
requirements followinq the extension of aircraft leases As a result,

total cost per average seat kilometer (ASK) increased by 0 22 pence to
4 54 pence per ASK

Underlying EBIT for our Group Airline grew by 3lo/" lo ll29 million on

a like-for-like basis, largely reflecting an improved performance at
Condor, as a result of delivering a successful turnaround, supported
by profitable growth in the short/medium haul business Our UK airline
grew revenues by 14% during the year but reported underlying EBIT

broadly unchanged due to benefits from higher volumes and yields

being offset by significant fuel price and foreign exchange headwinds

CORPORATE

Corporate costs increased by €5 million to f40 million
(FYl7: €35 million), reflecting additional costs incurred to support
corporate projects such as the set-up of the hotel fund

Like
-Iorlike
change

Flight Revenue

Ancillary Revenue

0ther Revenue

Total Revenue

0peratrng Costs

Underlying EBITDAR

Underlyrng EBITDAR
marqin (%)

l3 0% i3 5% -30bps l0bps

Depreciation (ts8) (167) +g (167)

Aircraft Lease Costs (r6e) (r45) -26 (r45)

Underlying EBIT 129 ll5 -14 94 *35

Underlying EBIT margin (%) 37% 36% *l0bPs 30o/o *70bps

Customers (000's) 20,163 18.528 -1,635 11121 *2,436

Proportion of rnternal
sales (%)

42% -400bps

Available Seat Kilometres
(ASK) (m) 75.954 70,171 *3,783 68 2ll *5,743

Seat Load Factor (SLF) (%) 902% 8917o .50bps

Long Haul Yields per
sold seat (t) 312

Shorti Medium Haul Yields
p.itoiri seai iej-- - -- lls

Unit cost (p /ASK) (4 34) (4 37) *0 05 (4 12) '022

l,lote:
(r) Lrke-for lrke change adlusts for the rmpact of forergn exchange and the transfer of the Belgrum

ArrIne to SN BrusseJs

0ur Group Airline revenue 0f €3,519 million was up 14% on a

like-for-like basis reflecting improvements to both volumes and

yields Customer numbers increased by 14% lo 20 2 million, while
yields increased by 6% and l% in short/medium haul and long

haul respectively

26

oc
o

.co
o

306

91 3% -llobps

308 +1,

r10 +$
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
CONTINUED

OTHER FINANCIAL ITEMS
UNDERTYING NET FINANCE CHARGES Analysis of the Group's Separately Disclosed ltems are listed below:

Group net finance costs for the year of f124 million were fl9 million
lower than last year (FYl7: f143 million) Bank and bond interest
charges reduced by f7 million. following the replacement of previous

bonds with new lower-coupon bonds issued in December 2016 and

December 2017 Letters of credit and other interest payable charges
reduced by f13 million, due to lower bonding costs and lower non-cash
interest charges as a result of the changes in discount rates

Further information on Finance costs are set out in Note 8 on

page 140

SEPARATELY DISCTOSED ITEMS

Total Separately Disclosed ltems (SDls) relating to operating and
finance totalled a net charge of tl79 million, which is €39 million
higher than the prior year (FYl7: €140 million) due to an acceleration
of transformation activity. and additional costs associated with the
start-up costs relating to new ventures, partially offset by lower
finance charges

I rvro| "rl
New 0peratinq Model implementation costs

Restructuring costs

0nerous leases and store closures (40) (30)

costs of transformation

EBIT related items

Finance related charqes (26) (41)

(r79) (r40)

0f which:

- Casho 084) (l2s)

N on-Cash (rs)

llote:
(r) tems classrfred as Cash represent both current year cash flows and cash effecls whrch are yet

to be realsed Drsposal of subsrdranes has been lreated as non-cash as the h0tel assets have

been contilbuted t0 fund for Gr0ups interest ln the Hotel Fund

Further information on Separately Disclosed ltems is set out in Note 7

IAXATION
The tax charge for the year was fll0 million (FYl7 f 54 million),

reflecting a non-cash adjustment of €64 million As a result of the
performance of the UK business it is considered appropriate to
release the UK deferred tax assets The cash tax cost of I59 million
is broadly unchanged year on year

I rvra I rvu 
I

lsTl l4?)

l24l (12)

rvre I FYrT
lnvestment in business dev and start'up costs

Airline disruption costs

Bank and Bond interest (7r) (78) Reassessment of continqent considerati0n

Letters of credit and other interest payable {3r} {44)
lmpairment of assets

Fee amortisation 0 Amortisation of business combination intanqibles

lnterest income Disposal of subsidiaries

Loss on disposal of PPENet interest & finance costs before aircraft financing (r0s)

(rs) Litiqation and leqal disputesAircraft financinq

Net Finance Costs nzil (r43) Pension plan amendment

0ther

02r) (84)

l21l (16)

(81

I

(r0)

(8)

53

(3)

(8)

17l

(8) (2)

(rs3) (ee)

(r6)

6)(33)

Tota

Current Tax l42461

B{64

(37)(3s)

Deferred Tax

Total Tax Charqe (n0) (34)

Total Cash Tax

50
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OPERATI NG TEASE CHARGES

Operating lease charges in the year increased by €7 million compared

to last year to f243 million Aircraft operating lease charges increased

by €25 million to fl69 million primarily due to capacity growth

ln addition to the above, the Group incurred seasonal wet lease costs
of fl62 million (FYl7: t75 million) during the year. of which f4 million
(FYl7: f nil) is included within separately disclosed items The year-

on-year increase was primarily due to our successful initiative
to increase our market share in Germany following the Air Berlin

insolvency Due to very limited availability of aircraft the growth
was supported by wet leaser') aircraft

SUMMARY CASH FIOW STATEMENTO)

tm rvra I rvu 
I

Underlvinq EBITDA 469 549
(60) 1t2

(3e) (37)

Workinq capital

Tax

Pensions {28) (28)

342 596Operatinq Cash flow
Exce0tional items (rso) (ros)

0r0l (206)

08) 285

Capital expenditure

Unlevered Free Cash Flow

rvra I rvrr 
I

Bond Refinancinq 10(r2)

1

5(208)

Net tnterest paid (ll8) 029)

Free Cash flow(i) 048) 146lncluded within Underlyinq EBIT

Aircraft operatinq lease charqes

Retail operating lease charges 4t

Hotel operating lease charges

0ther operatinq lease charqes

llotesr
(l) A wet lease rs a leasrng arrangement whereby 0ne party provtdes an atrcraft complete crew

ma ntenance and rnsurance (Acl'11) to another party

(il) n addrt on there are 820 million (FY17 fl3 millron) of onerous ease charges rncluded wrthrr
Sepa rately Drsclosed lt-"ms

UNDERTYING EARNINGS PER SHARE

Underlying earnings per share. before separately disclosed items,

was (0 3) pence, a year-on-year decrease of 9 4 pence (FYl7: 9 I pence).

Basic earnings per share for the year was (10 6) pence, a year-on-year

decrease of ll 3 pence (FYl7: 07 pence) Further information is included

in Note ll on page 142

I rvrel "rl
Profit / (Loss) After Tax

Separately Disclosed ltems

Attributable to Non-controlling lnterests

ExceDtional Taxrl

Adiusted Profit After Tax

Weiqhted averaqe number of shares (m) 1,553 r,536

Underlying Earnings Per Share (Pence)

ll0te:

{r) Th s represents lhe tax rmpact of separately drsclosed rlems

0pening Net Debt

lmpact of currency and other non-cash movements(ii)

Aircraft lease extensions(ii)

Like-for-like Net Debt

144 Proceeds on disposal

Dividend and Co-op payment (67) (40)

Net Cash flow
l920
aal8

236243Tota

(r65)

(40) (l2e)

(s2) (7)

(8e) (17)

08r) (rss)

Net Cash Flow (208) ll3
(38s) (40)Closinq Net Debt

llotes:
(r) The Group uses lhree non-statutory cash flow measures to manage the buslness 0peratlnq

Cash Flow rs net cash from operatrng actrvrties exc uding rnterest lncome and the cash effect
of separately drsclosed rtems rmpactrng EBIT unlevered Free Cash Fl0w s cash from operattng

actrv ties Iess caprtal expendrlure and nel rnteresL paid and Free Cash Flow additionally ncludes
rnterest pard Net Cash flow rs the net (decrease)/rncrease rn cash and cash equrva ents exc ud ng

ihe net movement rn borrow ngs frnance ease repayments and faclltty set-up fees

(il) other movements rn net debt nclude currency translatron and the erlenslons to alrcraft related

finance leases

Free cash flow for the year was an outflow of €(148) million, f 294 million

lower than last year This was the result of a €80 million decrease in

earnings before interest. tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA), a

tU2 million adverse working capital movement and €45 million of higher

cash exceptional costs, as a result of the accelerated transformation
activity The net working capital outflow of €60 million in the year

was largely related to the poor summer trading activity, as well as

a €34 million investment in our joint venture hotel fund

Exceptional items ltm)

Current year cash related exceptionals

0f which will be paid in future years

Prior year cash exceptionals paid in current year l21l

Total cash exceptional itemsrir

llote:
(r) ToLa cash exceptionals rn FYIB are the sum 0f exceptronal rtems t(150) mtllton and Bond

Refrnancing costs ol{(12) mrllon as presented n the cash Flow 
55

t
oao

o
o

40r79

(2r)

140(s)

(0.3)p 9.lp Net cash interest paid decreased to €ll8 million

The Group's cash outflow, together with non-cash changes such as

foreign currency translation. resulted in net debt of f(389) million,

€208 million higher on a like-for-like basis than the position as at
30 September 2017

Current year cash exceptional items are analysed as follows:

I rnr l ",,1

l2s)fl84)

2646

il6
(t62)

5l

0r5)



FINANCIAL REVIEW
CONTINUED

NET ASSEIS

Net Assets increased by f35 million from €256 million at September
2017 to €291 million at September 2018 This includes a positive
revaluation of tl9B million for the Group's derivatives in respect
offuel and currency hedging, due mainly to an increase in the
differential between our hedged fuel prices and spot prices, together
with a positive revaluation of our pension liability of t94 million due to
an improvement in bond yields used to calculate the present value of
the Group's pension obligations

- -- -----NET ASSETS f M---

Thomq.Cookcroupptc 
I

l,lote:
(r) open ng net assets have been restated by I24 m I on to reflect the wflte down 0f hrst0ilc

balances now consrdered to be rrecoverab e

NET DEBI
The Group sources debt and finance facilities from a combination of
the international capital markets and its relationship banking group

During FYlB, the Groups net debt has increased from €40 million to
€389 million, a worsening of t349 million

The composition and maturity of the Group's net debt is

summarised below

I so s.p I so s.p
| 2or8 | zon ,or.r.n, i uatu,ity 

I

€400m 2021 Euro Bond (353) *353 June 2021

ln November 2017 the Group entered into new financing arrangements
amounting to f975 million These include an enlarged €875 million
revolving credit facility and bonding and guarantee facility. maturing in

November 2022 ln addition, the Group has a tl00 million annual rolling
bilateral funding from one of our insurance providers

ln December 2017, the Group refinanced its €400 million bond with
a new bond of the same size which matures in June 2023 This has

further improved the Group's liquidity and debt maturity profile
and has lowered our annual interest costs due to a coupon rate
reduction of nearly 300 basis points compared to the bond which
was refinanced

As at 30 September 2018 the Group had tB75 million of Committed
Facilities, which comprised a Revolving Credit Facility of t650 million,
of which f 20 million was utilised at 30 September 2018 (f 28 million in

September 2017), and a €225 million bonding and guarantee facility of
which €193 million was drawn at 30 September 2018 (30 September
2017: 1261 million) All of the combined l2l3 million of drawn balances
have been used solely for bonding, and therefore is not reflected in

our gross debt

TREASURY AND CASH MANAGEMENT

The Group's funding, liquidity and exposure to foreign currencies,
interest rates commodity prices and financial credit risk are managed
by a centralised Treasury function and are conducted within a

framework of Board-approved policies and guidelines

The principal aim of Treasury activities is to reduce volatility by

hedging, which provides a degree of certainty to the operating
segments, and to ensure a sufficient level of liquidity headroom
at all times

The successful execution of policy is intended to support a

sustainable low-risk growth strategy, enable the Group to meet its
financial commitments, and enhance the Groups credit rating over the
medium term

Due to the seasonality of the Group's business cycle and cash flows,
a substantial amount of surplus cash accumulates during the summer
months Efficient use and tight control of cash throughout the Group

is facilitated by the use of cash pooling arrangements and the net
surplus cash is invested by Treasury in high quality, short-term liquid
instruments consistent with Board-approved policy, which is designed
to mitigate counterparty credit risk. Yield is maximised within the
terms of the policy but returns in general remain low given the low
interest rate environment in the UK, the US and Europe

A small portion of the Group's cash is restricted in overseas
jurisdictions primarily due to legal or regulatory requirements
Such cash does not form part of our liquidity headroom calculation

26

I

lo) 94 90

lrl,slrn98l 29t

openrng Undery ng Tax

net assets pBT charge
restated

SeDaralely Reva ualon Revalualon Currency orv dends 0ther Clos ng

Crsclosed of ol penson loses pdrdto net assets

lems dervat ves abrlty CooD

€150m2022 Euro Bond (666) (662) -4 )une2022

C400m 2023 Euro Bond (3ss) -355 June 2023

Commercial Paper

Revolvinq Credit FacilitVr') Nov 2022

Finance Leases 62 Various

Aircraft related borrowinqs tll Various

*ll Various

.11 n/a

Other external debt

t77l

(216) (ls4)

0s) ls2)
z1{26}

Arranqement fees

Total Debt

Cash (net of overdraft)

Net Debt (38e) (40) -349

f{ote:

{ ) The Revolvrng Cred t Facrlity (RCF) is shown as nrl in FYlS and FYIT however n FYIS lhe Group had

utiIsed f20 mr ron (FYl7 t28 m llon) whrch related to the ancrllary facrlrtres 0f the RCF whrch was
used soleiy for bondrng and s thus net debt neutral

0 43s)lt 427],

36
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HEDGING OF FUEt AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The objective ofthe Groups hedging policy is to smooth fluctuations
in the price ofJet Fuel and foreign currencies, in order to provide
greater certainty for planning purposes The proportion of our
exposures that have been hedged are shown in the table below

Fully Hedged

LJS Dollar Fully Hedged 18% 43%

Fully Hedged B3Yo 5l7o

As Fuel is priced in US Dollars, our net fuel costs are influenced by

both the fuel price and the movements in the US Dollar against our
base currencies

0n a constant volume basis, FYl8 fuel costs increased by

approximately €50m compared to prior year due to higher hedged
fuel rates combined with an FX headwind, predominantly driven by

the Sterling s weakness against the US dollar at the time of hedging
For FYl9, we expect the effects of increasing fuel prices over the
hedging period. offset by an FX tailwind due to a weaker US Dollar

against our base currencies to increase fuel costs by around €60m

The Group does not hedge the translation of overseas profits into
Sterling, and as a result of currency movements during the year,

underlying EBIT in FY17 was lower by fl4 million

The average and period end exchange rates relative to the Group

were as follows:

ThomqtCookGrouD Dlc' AnnuqlR.portqndAccount.2OlS

CREDIT RAT!NG

The Group received an upgrade from S&P to B* in January 20lB with a
Stable outlook Moody's maintained their Bl Stable rating throughout
the year. Fitch also maintained their B* rating, however issued a

Negative outlook at the end of September 2018 following the Group's
pre-close trading update

corporate ratings I zoro I zorz 
I

I nating I outtoor I nating outtooi 
I

Winter
20r9/20

Summer
2019

Wrnter
20r8/t9

Euro

Standard and Poors $+ Stable B Positive

let Fuel Fitch B' Negative $+ Stable

1.35 121 t.30 I 34

il.45 il 05 11.60 l0 93

Moodv's Bl Stable Stable

FORWARD LOOKI NG STATEMENTS

Forward looking statements

This document includes forward-looking statements that are

based on estimates and assumptions and are subject to risks and

uncertainties These forward-looking statements are all statements
other than statements of historical facts or statements in the present
tense, and can be identified with words such as'aim'. 'anticipates',
'aspires','assumes' believes,'could'.'estimates','expects','intends',
'hopes.'may,'outlook'.'plans','potential','projects','predicts', should'.
'targets', 'will' 'would' as well as the negatives of these terms and

other words of similar meaning These statements involve estimates,
assumptions and uncertainties which could cause actual results to
differ materially from those otherwise expressed

The forward-looking statements in this document are made based
upon our estimates. expectations and beliefs concerning future
events affecting the Group and are subject to a number of known and
unknown risks and uncertainties Such forward-looking statements
are based on numerous assumptions regarding the Group's present
and future business strategies and the environment in which it will
operate, which may prove not to be accurate We caution that these
forward-looking statements are not guarantees and that actual
results could differ materially from those expressed or implied in

these forward-looking statements Undue reliance should, therefore,
not be placed on such forward-looking statements

Any forward-looking statements contained in this document apply
only as atthe date ofthis document and are not intended to give any
assurance as to future results other than in accordance with any

legal or regulatory obligations, the Group does not undertake any

obligation to update or revise any forward-looklng statement after the
date on which the forward-looking statement was made, whether as
a result of new information future developments or otherwise

o!
o
!oo
0

I Averaoe Rate I period tnd nate I

| "'r; ,r, I rvre | ,r,, 
I

GBP/Euro I l5 l.l3 1 t3

GBP/US DOIIaT

GBP/SEK
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FINANCIAT REVIEW
CONTINUED

USE OF ATTERNATIVE
PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The Directors have adopted a number of alternative performance
measures (APM), namely underlying EBIT, net debt. underlying EPS,

operating cash flow. free cash flow and net cash flow The Group's
results are presented both before and after separately disclosed
items Separately disclosed items are disclosed in note 4 of the
consolidated financial statements

These measures have been used to identify the Group's strategic
objectives of 'Underlying EBIT and Underlying EBIT margin growth
and 'Net Debt'reduction, and to monitor performance towards
these goals The alternative performance measures are not defined
by IFRS and therefore may not be directly comparable with other
companies' alternative performance measures These measures are

not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS measurements
The definition of each APM presented in this report, together with a

reconciliation to the nearest measure prepared in accordance with
IFRS is presented below

UNDERTYING EBIT

This is the headline measure of the Group s performance, and is
based on profit from operations before the impact of separately
disclosed items Underlying EBIT provides a measure of the
underlying operating performance of the Group and growth
in profitability of the operations

,r'. | ,r, 
I

IFRS movement in working capital and provisions

Reconciliation to IFRS measures:
tm ,r'u | *" 

I

Underlyinq EBIT 250 5lb

IFRS depreciation and amortisation 219 222

IFRS share based payments

0r4)

Payment to the Co-operative Group

Add back cash impact of separately disclosed items on
working capital (26) 21

IFRS lncome taxes paid (3e) (37)

(28) 128)IFRS additional pension contributions

Add back non cash impact of separately disclosed
items

0perating Cash Flow 342

PaVment to the Co-operative Group (s8)

Exceptional items 04(ls0)

lnterest lncome

IFRS net cash used in operating activities 496139

IFRS purchase of tangible assets

IFRS purchase of intangible assets

023) (132)

IFRS interest paid

187) 114)

(lss) (r44)

Reconciliation to IFRS measures:
tm

Payment to the Co-operative Group 58

Free Cash Flow 46048)

32)
Profit from operations

Add back: Separately disclosed items affecting profit
from operations (Note 7) (rs3) (99)

Underlyinq EBIT 250 326

MANAGEM ENT CASH FLOW STATEM ENI
The Group uses three non-statutory cash flow measures to manage
the business operating cash flow is net cash used in operating
activities excluding the cash effect of separately disclosed items
Free cash flow is cash from operating activities less capital

expenditure and interest paid Net cash flow is the net decrease in

cash and cash equivalents excluding the net movement in borrowings,
facility set-up fees and finance lease repayments These cash flow
measures are indicators of the financial management of the business
They reflect the cash generated by the business before and after
investing and financing activities and explain changes in the Group's

Net Debt position

IFRS dividends paid to non-controlling interests
(the Co-operative Group)

22197

IFRS proceeds on disposal of property plant and
equipment and subsidiaries

Payment to the Co-operative Group

71
(s8)

8)(e)Dividends paid

Net Cash Flow (208) lt3



UNDERTYING EPS

Earnings are based on results before separately disclosed items
after a notional tax charge divided by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares. adjusted for any potential dilutive impact of the
assumed conversion of the employee equity-settled share based
payment schemes outstanding

Reconciliatlon to IFRS measuresl
em | ,r,,1 "r l

Profit before tax

fhomcrccol Croup ptc I Annuol Rcport ondAccouni. 2O8

NET DEBI
Net debt comprises bank and other borrowings. finance lease
payables and net derivative financial instruments used to hedge

exposure to interest rate risks of bank and other borrowings, offset
by cash and cash equivalents. Net debt is a measure of how the Group

manages its balance sheet and capital structure A strong balance
sheet and efficient capital structure is essential to withstand external
market shocks and seize opportunities Accordingly. reducing net debt
and the cost of the debt is a priority for the Group

Separately disclosed items (Note 7)

(53) 43 neconclliatign to tFRs measures:

(t79) (t40) tm **l FYIT

Underlying profit before tax
lt2t2lBorrowinqs 11,2921

Underlvinq tax charqer')
0bligations under finance leases (2r6) r54)

Loss attributable to non-controllinq interests

Underlying profit attributable to equity holders of
the parent (s)

Weighted average number of shares for basic
earninqs per share

Net derivative financial instruments -
interest rate swaps

140
Cash and cash equivalents 1,039 r.407

(38s) (40)1,533 1,552

t,533 1.536

(0.3p) glp

Net Debt

Weighted average number of shares for diluted
earninqs per share

Underlying EPS (pence)

llote:
( ) The underlyrng tax charge tl3lm (2017 t44m) includes lFRs tax charge of Ell0m 0017: E34m) and a

notional tax charge on separately dlsclosed items of E2lm (2017 Il0m)
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EMBEDDING
ACULTURE

OUR R!SK ].TANAGEMENT SIRATEGY

The Board is responsible for maintaining the Group s risk management

and internal control systems, with a mandate that includes defining
risk appetite and monitoring risk exposures and mitigations to ensure
that the nature and extent of risks taken by the Group are aligned
with its strategic objectives

RISK APPETITE

The Board has undertaken a detailed exercise to consider the risk
appetite in a number of key areas for the business The results of
this review indicate the relative appetite of the Board across the risk
factors and behaviours lt is evident that this represents a view at
a point in timer changes in the economic environment strategy or
performance of the business will impact this evaluation

The Board has agreed that in relation to Corporate Strategy, Digital

Delivery, Product lT lnfrastructure and Talent the business tolerates
an increased level of risk This position aligns with the strategic
aims and targets set for the business The Board seeks to minimise
exposure to all Health and Safety Reputational and Customer risks
In all other aspects the Board takes a balanced view on risk taking

The Board has used the results ofthis review to influence setting
of Group strategy and is using it to support its ongoing decision-
making process

OUR APPROACH TO RISK MANAGEMENT

operating in a dynamic and continually volatile environment requires
a flexible and responsive risk management process that can match
the pace of change and provide Management with a concise view of
the Groups risk profile at any point in time We continue to focus on

embedding a culture of risk management that will contribute towards
effective strategy execution ensuring both risks and opportunities
are identified and managed to deliver long-term value creation

During 2018 the Group Risk team expanded its work with the first
line functions and decision makrng forums We have embedded
members of the team into the efficiency programmes that are being

implemented in the Tour Operator and Group Airlines businesses.
in order to provide challenge to business plans and to encourage
risk aware decision making We havetaken an active role in the
implementation of the change required by the General Data protection

Regulation We have supported the cyber security teams in their
efforts to increase the maturity of the business and awareness of our
people to the threat posed by cyber criminals We have been active in
the forum that approves allocation of capital for technology projects
and we have further developed the risk management process within
the Group's Hotels and Resorts business to support risk aware
decision making and promote sustainable growth

Annuot R.port ond Accounts 2Ol8

TOP DOWN OVERSIGHT

The top down risk review provides leadership direction and

oversight with regard to the Group s overall risk framework, appetite
and relevant risk pollcies processes and controls The Executive
Committee considers risk on a quarterly basis prior to the
Audit Committee through analysis of the Group Risk Dashboard
This document aggregates key strategic risks alongside quantitative
data from a range of sources, to present a point in time view of risk

across value drivers that are approved by the Board The Executive
Committee assesses whether all key risks are being mitigated
appropriately and mandates action where further mitigations are

required The Group Risk Dashboard is then presented and discussed
at the Audit Committee This process ensures that the Audit
Committee is provided with an enterprise-wide view of the Groups
current risk exposure

BOIIOM UP ASSESSMENIS

Each major business unit has a quarterly risk committee attended
by the risk owners representing all areas of the business as

well as by the Group Risk team The risk committees analyse key

business unit risks and ensure implementation of risk mitigation
plans Where appropriate, significant risks identified at business unit
level are escalated and discussed during the Executive Committee
risk review

ln 2018, we have introduced risk forums within strategically important
group-wide functions in order to promote a greater level of maturity
and to encourage these functions to actively consider how they
manage their functions with due regard to risk

THE AUD!T COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee considers risk exposure against risk appetite
by profiling key risks in respect of their potential impact and likelihood

of occurrence after consideration of mitigating actions During the
year, the Audit Committee reviewed both top down and bottom up

risk analyses The results of these activities have informed the Annual
Audit Plan which will enable a risk-based approach to the internal
audit and assurance programme The report of the Audit Committee
can be found on page 78
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THE RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

, Supports the Board in monitoring risk exposure
agarnst nsk appetite

, Monit0rs the risk management process

overalt responsibility for the
risk management system

Sets strategic objectives
and defines risk appetite

Provrdes oversight and challenge
for risk mrtigatron plans

Rrsk awareness and culture
embedded across the Group

Receives and reviews
Audit Committee reports
on risk governance

, Considers emerging risks
> Sets the risk management

p r0cess

, lmplementatlon of risk mitigation
plans and controls

> l"laintarns executive oversight
of the Group s key risks and
mitigatron

, Group-wide risk rdentification
assessment and monitoring

> l'laintenance of nsk regrsters

VIAB!tITY SIATEMENT
The Directors have assessed the prospects of the Group

in accordance with provision C2 2 of the 2016 UK Corporate
Governance Code

The Directors believe a three-year period is appropriate to consider
vrability as this duration is in line wrth the Thomas Cook Group

business plan (the Business Plan ) In order to assess the viability
of the Group the Directors revrewed each of the principal risks and

uncertainties taking into account current 0perational and financial
performance as well as the Business Plan The key assumptions
which underpin the Business Plan include:

> Group revenue growth (five per cent):
> the benefits of the Group s strategic plans and cost efficiency

measures are delivered in fulI and
, frnancing facilities in the form of debt or aircraft leases will

continue to be available

As part of the analysis stress testing focusing on the followrng
scenarios was performed:

> the Group fails to deliver the benefrts of rts strategic initiatrves and

objectives relating to our product portfolio customer satisfaction
and digital strategy

> a potential short-term weakening in demand due to
Brexit uncertainty:

> a sustained economic downturn resulting in a decrease jn demand
for foreign travel: and

, a major terrorist rncident or natural disaster in one of the Groups
larger destinations

The Directors have identified additional measuTes that could be taken
to ensure that the benefits of the Business Plan could still be realised
f a scenario as noted above were to materialise The Company has

successfully reset rts banking covenants to safeguard the Company

and provide an adequate level of headroom The Directors consider
that these mitigations reduce the risk to covenant headroom and the
rrsk to vrability should a scenario matelalise

Based on the results the Directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Group will be able to contlnue in operation and to
meet its liabilities as they fall due over the three-year period

of their assessment

ASSESSMENT OF THE PRINCIPAT RISKS

The Groups risk management system works effectrvely in assessing
the Group s risk appetite and has supported a robust assessment
by the Directors of the principal risks facing the Group The principal

risks are reviewed throughout the year and discussed with the Board
quarterly This includes all relevant prrncipal risks that could threaten
Thomas Cook s busrness model future performance solvency
or liquidity
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RISK MANAGEMENT
CONTINUED

OUR PRINCIPAT RISKS AND UNCERIAINTIES
The table below lists the principal risks and uncertainties as determined by

the Board that may affect the Group and highlights the mitigating actions that
are being taken. The content ofthe table, howevet is not intended to be an

exhaustive list of all the risks and uncertainties that may arise

PRINCIPAL RISKS MITIGATION

nisk Direction
lafter mitigationl

@ lncreased risk

@ ni.t exposure unchanged

O Reduced risk

@
@
@
@
@
@

0ur Stlategic Priorities
Care

Contact
Holidays

Services
Partnershap

Efficiencies

TRENDVS I.INKTO
2OI7 STRATEGY

Fully implementing our strategy for
profitable growth remains our focus,
however, there is a risk that we cannot
fully achieve the change required due

to scale of change to our business and

operations and the complexity of our
underlying processes and systems *

, Supported by the creation of a new hotel platform, we continue to expand our own brand hotel
offering, to streamline our core product portfolio and to implement the operational change to
fully benefit from our strategic partnership with Expedia

) We continue to develop our TC Money business ancillary offering, service levels and our digital
channels to ensure we meet the demands of our customers

) We have embedded a standalone project management office. reporting to the Executive
Committee, to oversee a significant efficiency programme, which iorms the operational
efficiency objective that underpins our strategy The programme involves simplifying processes

and systems, which support our margin improvement initiatives
> Bi weekly Executive Committee meetings attended by senior management during which

progress and issues are discussed and addressed
) 0perational initiatives are linked to financial benefits and Kpls incorporated in our business

plan Delivery of operational change and the benefits achieved are tracked as part of the
business review process

@
@u

providing a great customer experience
remains at the heart of our strategy
and we believe that this is one of
the key factors that differentiates us
from our competitors in increasingly
competitive markets There is a
risk that we are unable to meet the
expectations of our customers and

thus attract new or retain exjsting
customers, which may have an

adverse impact on our market share
and profitability*

, Senior management continue to focus on ways to improve the experience that our customers
have with us to encourage our people to focus on customer excellence and to develop products
that will attract and retain customers

> We proactively monitor our Net Promoter Score (NpS). both at a hotel and airline level. to identify
and address areas for improvement at each stage ofthe customerjourney (factors affecting
Airline NPS are further discussed on page 60)

> We have implemented our lnMoment tool. which provides all our people with customer feedback
at the individual hotel level Feedback is incorporated into action plans to promote positive

behaviours and to investigate areas of customer concern
> 0ur organisatlonal values are aligned with our Customer Promises of Quality, Service, and Reliability

and all employees are required to include customer related objectives in their annual objectives
, The 24-Hour Hotel Satisfaction Promise has been extended to all of our differentiated properties

and has been re-launched on our websites to highlight this key value add to our customers
> ln FYlg, we plan to launch'Express Check ln t0 our range of innovative holiday features ln fYl8,

we launched'Choose Your Room','Choose Your Favourite Sunbed and'Late Check-Out'in selected
properties; all of which were well received by our customers

, Our CRl"1 tool, CView was launched in FYIS This tool allows us to better understand our customers
We will use this information to enhance the experience our customers have with us

@
@
@
@

<)

We strive to offer a choice 0f quality
products and services that appeal to
customers There is a risk that our
products and services do not meet
the expectations or demands of new
or existing customers.*

' We have allocated significant extra resources to our own-brand hotel portfolio and have recruited

additional highly experienced people ln order to grow the busjness
, We have launched a new hotel brand,'Cook's Club. aimed atyounger discerning travellers, to sit

alongside our premium Casa Cook brand We use customer insight and analysis offuture trends
as the basis for the design of our own brand hotels and to shape the customer experience

> We continue to work closely with our strategic partner, Lf4EY lnvestments, to source and develop
high quality hotels through our new hotel platform

, We continue to refine the hotels within our differentiated portfolio This allows us to focus our
resources 0n quality hotels that will deliver a better experlence for our customeTS

> We now provide our customers with a choice of over 150.000 hotels in global city and European

domestic locations as well as sun and beach locations not in our core portfolio This has been

achieved by implementing the operational changes under our strategic partnerships with Expedia

and Webjet
> we continue to provide innovative ways for customers to personalise their experiences
> We will drive growth and uptake ofourfinancial services products tn digital and offline

These products provide our customers with lower fees on foreign currency transactions and
greater benefits

@
@
@
I@
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PRINCIPATRISKS MINGATION TRENDVS UNKTO
2017 STRATEGY

We aim to make our expanded product
offering and services available and
easily accessible to our customers
in their preferred digital channels
There is a risk that our market share.
profitability and future growth will
be adversely affected by the inability
to develop our digital channels
fast enough to meet changes
in consumer behaviour.*

> We continue to invest in our websites and in technology to allow us to service customers
seamlessly across all channels Through 2018, we have experienced stronger growth in web
bookings across our major markets

) We regularly undertake customer research to better understand what our customers want
and how they interact with our digital channels The results of our research are incorporated
into our development roadmap

> 0ur web platforms in the uK. Northern Europe, Belgium and The Netherlands continues to
deliver strong bookings growth and with the continuous development of'[,4yAccount' customers
have access to a far greater range of products and services to personalise their holidays

> We will invest further in our mobile channels to enhance search functionality and to become
more digital in destinati0n' 0ur Companion App enables our customers to personalise their
experience with us

) We have implemented a central content hub that will distribute hotel images and content
to all our markets at a consistent standard and at a more efficient cost base We Vvill invest
further in this in the coming year

@
@
@@
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We are reliant on being able to attract
the right talent in order to deliver our
transformation agenda There is

a risk that the inability to attract
and retain talent at all levels ofthe
organisation will lead to a lack of
capability or capacity to enable us
to the deliver the change required
by our business strategy

> We have strengthened our Executive Committee ln the past year with the appointment
of an experienced Chief Hotels Officer

> 0ur Group Leadership Development programme for direct reports to Senior Leaders commenced
in 2017 targeting those identified as having potential for senior leadership roles

> We identify high potential talent using a matrix of performance and potential Those identified
have targeted development plans based on their career aspiration

> We use our annual engagement survey to assess employee commitment and to identify actions
to retain talent and develop our customer focused culture

> 0ur Graduate programmes continue to attract a high volume of applications since their
introduction in the UK and Group Airline businesses in 2016

> We have invested in our in house Learning and Development resources in order to give our
people greater access to learning opportunities

> We have a pay for performance culture that is designed to drive performance and provide
meaningful reward for dellvery of our objectives

@
@
@
@
@@
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We are increasingly dependent on
technology to reduce costs and to
enhance customer service through
development of new functionality
and applications There is a risk that
operations would be adversely affected
if our lT infrastructure is unable to
support the needs of the business

> We have a robust process in place to assess proposed development projects and to prioritise
resources to projects that will both support our strategic agenda and provide high return
on investment

) We have strengthened our oversight of development projects through the roll out of dedicated
project management software

) We continue to enhance our lT operations and service delivery processes to ensure that we can
support new technology required by the business

> We have begun the implementation of a programme to consolidate our technology estate
and simplify processes within our tour operator business. which will lead to a reduction
in operational expenditure and facilitate more focused capital expenditure

, We have developed lT programs that address the functional aspects of technology required to
support and enhance our customer s€rvice and an infrastructure program that addresses our
network. data centre and end user compute capabilities that underpin this functionality

@
@
@

There is high level of awareness across
industries of the threat posed by
cyber criminals and of the reputational
damage caused by the loss of personal
data Due to the nature of its business
Thomas Cook necessarily processes a

high volume of personal data and there is
a risk of significant brand and reputation
damage and financial loss should
information security be compromised

> We continue to build upon on our robust Cyber Security Strategy based on five objectives:
Protect, Detect, Deter, Respond, and Recover

, We have successfully implemented a range of people, process and technical controls in line
with our Cyber Security Strategy

, All employees are required to complete annual training in data protection in order to raise
awareness of good cyber security practice

> our Cyber Security Steering Group continues to meet monthly to monitor the progress of the
Cyber Security Strategy implementation and to make recommendations for any additional
mitigations to the Executive Committee The Audit Committee also receives regular updates
regarding progress on cyber risk mitigation

> We have implemented the changes required by the General Data Protection Regulation
This included a project to identify and map all the personal data processing systems used
across the group and to create a central record ofour data processing activities We have
also implemented a remediation programmeto improve controls in our highest risk systems
and to educate our people on the importance 0f data protection

@
@
@
@
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PRINCIPALRISKS TRENDVS TINKTO
2017 STRATEGY

RISKMANAGEMENT
CONTINUED

I.,IITIGATION

The success of our Group Airline
business depends on our ability
to effectively manage our fleet
by ensuring we maintain the right
number and types of aircrafts and
by operating those aircrafts to deliver
a high-quality, on-time and cost-
efficient service for our customers

lnability to operate the required number
and types of aircraft in our fleet may
lead to missed revenue or reduced
margins lnability to operate the fleet
effectively may lead to customer
dissatisfaction, cost increases
and reduced profitability

FYl8 to respond to disruption related to our lncreased flight
on our operational resilience; establishment of dedicated

tion with key suppliers. proactive use of sub-charters and

more efficient use of aireraft reserves
> We will implement additional mitigations in FY]9 to further improve our operations, customer

experience and NPS: more proactive and earlier planning, increase aircraft reserve capacity,

long-term maintenance planning, interface optimizati0n between the individual airlines and the
maintenance function, less reliance on third party sub-charters

> We are continulng the implementation of a programme aimed at achieving efficiencies in

the maintenance. flight operations. ground operations. 0peration control and flight dispatch

departments through the adoption of a more streamlined organisational structure. which will
have a positlve effect on our ability to prevent operational disruptions and to allocate resources

more effectively and efficientlY
, The fleet Management Team continuously assesses the status of our fleetr forecasting

potential needs and managing dismissal and intake of aircraft. 0ur fleet strategy also involves

the structuring of our lease plans over a long period of time. This approach allows us to
refinance the lease/purchase of aircraft on a staggered schedule

) The Long Haul fleet renewal campaign is to be launched in FYlg. The acquisition of new aircraft is

subject io a number of qualitative criteria that guarantee consistency with our product offering

t @
@

@

Cash generation from trading activities
is essential if we are to invest in the
business in order to deliver value over
the long term and to meet scheduled
payments under the terms of our
debt facilities as they fall due There
is a risk of a decrease in operational
performance caused by a range of
factors (including econ0mic, financial
regulatory and market factors). of
which many are outside our control.*

> Cash flow forecasting is performed centrally and we proactively monitor our short, medium

and long-term cash requirements and liquidity headroom
, During FY18, we refinanced our €400million bond at lower cost while extending the debt

maturity profile
> The issuance of a new bank facility in FY]S for the Group Airlines has increased headroom
, We have implemented a robust efficiency programme in order to achieve operational savings

from consolidating technology systems and harmonising processes
) We continue to monitor all opportunities to manage liquidlty requirements and maintain

an adequate level of contingency as well as seeking to lowel the average cost of debt over

the medium term

@

Due to the nature of our business
and industry. the Group will always
be exposed to the risk of a health
and safety incident en route to a

destination in the accommodation or
during an excursion There is a risk that
an incident that results in the injury
or death of a customer would have a
direct negative impact on our reputati0n
and indirect impact on our future
financlal performance

> We monitor developments in health and safety regulations in allthe markets in which we operate

and incorporate changes lnto our common Group policies, standards and procedures The policies

address all major risk areas including accommodatlon swimming pools, balconies. transport,
excurslons, fire and hygiene

, We operate an annual Health and Safety Audit programme for all our differentiated properties-

The programme is delivered by reputable external specialists (SGS and Cristal), verifies compliance

with Federation of Tour operators and industry standards and includes a robust follow-up
process. We have enhanced our audit programme for FYl9 to incorporate additional hygiene

assessments in properties which experience higher than average or increased levels of
reported illness

, The Group Health, Safety, and Security Team regularly reviews and updates its safety and security
training programmes to ensure they continue to reflect best practice

' We havi a gioup wide Customer protection Policy to ensure that customers are not put at risk

in hotels that have undergone construction works or refurbishment
, We actively monitor health and safety incidents reported to us to ensure that we address the

causes. We have seen a marked reduction in illness claims after we put in place prevention and

deteation measures in an effort to addr€ss this issue that was specific to the UK market

@
@@
@
@
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PRINCIPATRISXS MITIGATION TRENDVS LINKTO
2OI7 STRATEGY

ln recent years numer0us c0untries
that rely 0n tourism as a vital export
have experienced geopolitical disruption
thr0ugh political instabillty or terrorist
activity There is a risk of a significant
decline in customer demand should
there be an incident or increased threat
of a terrorist attack in any of our key
tourist destinations.*

> We have a proven ability to shift committed capacity to alternative destinations in the event
offluctuating demand in a given destinatlon

> We continue to rebalance our destination mix and add new destinations to our portfolio,

thereby mitigating the impact of geopolitical events
, We have developed a Hotel Security Framework, which defines a set of minimum security

standardsthat should be operational in our hotels lmplementation ofthe Framework will
follow a risk-based approach

, We proactively monitor the geopolitical landscape by partnering with the Risk Advisory
Group, a leading independent global risk management consultancy that provides intelligence,
investigations and security services

> We continue to follow the guidance of the appropriate state departments relevant
to our source markets

, We have a robustcrisis managementframework which we can activate in the event
of an incident Crisis management test exercises are conducted on a regular basis

J @

A disorderly exit from the EU by the UK

would result in significant disruption
to many businesses A disorderly exit
could present the following risks to
Thomas Cook:

> Loss of access to the European Single

Aviation Market would have a significant
impact on the ability of our UK Airline to
operate in the EU and the us

> Loss of access to EU employment
markets, including the ability for
businesses to place temporary workers
in EU l"lember States without additional
barriers may cause a skill shortage in the
UK and in destination.*

> Our Public Affairs teams has proactively met with Government officials from both the uK and
the EU to ensure 0ur concerns are appropriately understood

, A Brexit Working Group. which included representatives from Finance Tax, HR Communications,
Legal, Risk. the Group Airline and the Tour 0perating Segments, was convened to consider and
assess the impact of all rlsks related to the uK's upcoming exit from the EU

)Weareputtinginplacecontingencyplans withaparticularfocusonensuringthatourcustomers'
holiday experience is not impacted

, We are in advanced discussions with local aviation regulators in Germany, Spain and Denmark
as well as the European Commission and we are confident that our contingency plans will enable
our Group Airlines to continue to access EU airspace in the event of a disorderly Brexit
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There is a risk that we do not comply
with regulatory, legislative and corporate
social responsibility requirements
in the legal jurisdictions where
Thomas Cook operates

, We have a dedicated legal team which works to ensure that we comply fully with regulatory
requirements and which monitors all current and emerging regulatory developments in our source
markets The team receives regulartraining to provide awareness ofcritical changes in relevant

legislation or case law
, A cross functional project team was set up to implement the change required by the General Data

protection Regulation The team included representatives from the Legal, Risk, Human Resources,
lT, Cyber and Customer Experience departments

> We continue to engage with the European Union Competition Commission in their investigation
into the travel industry regarding hotel accommodation agreements

, 0ur Code of Conduct is backed by a comprehensive training programme to ensure that it is fully
embedded across the Group

) 0ur Legal Risk Database enables communication and timely analysis of all risks related to
regulatory. legislative and corporate social responsibility requirements

) ln regards to the EU Competition Commisslon investigation. Thomas Cook is committed to fair
and open competition and will cooperate fully with the Commission through the process

<) ED

* Principal risk with a direct link to the viability statement
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Rlsk Direction
lafter mltlgatlonl

@ lncreased risk

@ nist< exposure unchanged

@ Reduced risk

0ur strategic Priorities
Care

Contact
Holidays
Services
Pa rtnershi p

Efficiencies
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FRANK
MEYSMAN

"We knowthot [istening
to our customers is not just good

corporote governonce, it is essentioI
to successfulty executing our strotegy."

CHAIRMAN'S
CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT

GOVERNANCE H!GHLIGHIS

BOARD ACTIVITY
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BOARD EVALUATION
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
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COMPLIANCE WITH
THE UK CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

This report sets out how the Company

applied the principles of the April

2016 version ofthe UK Corporate
Governance Code ('the Code') lt is the
Board's view that for the year ended

30 September 2018 the Company

fully complied with the provisions

applicable to this reporting period

The Code can be read in full at
wwwfrc org uk

STAKEHOTDER FOCUS

This year has seen significant developments
in the corporate governance arena, which
as a Board we have been monitoring
closely I am pleased that some of the
key themes coming through, such as the
greater focus on our customers, colleagues
and other stakeholders, are areas where
we have already made good progress and

have strong foundations on which to build

With 'Customer at our Heart at the centre
of our strategy for profitable growth, it
should come as no surprise to learn that
our customers are central to our decision
making During the year, the Board had a

live demonstration of our new specialist
customer feedback management software
'lnl"'loment'. We also received updates on our
'Customer at our Heart' initiatives and our
customer key performance indicator - Net
promoter Score (NPS) - at every meeting
More information about how we listen to and

engage with our customers can be found on
pages 23 and 75

I am also pleased to announce that we will
be appointing a new'Colleague Advisory NED

in 2019, whose job it will be to represent the
voice of our colleagues in the boardroom
As an organisation. we already have

significant infrastructure in place around
gathering the views of and engaging with
our colleagues lherefore, we will look at
ways that our Colleague Advisory NED can

become both involved in existing colleague
feedback forums, and establish new ways
of obtaining colleagues' views

A key event for the Board this year was the
visit to our business in China I was struck
by how well our values have been embraced
by our colleagues in our Shanghai office,
sensing a real feeling of"One Thomas Cook"

We saw how Thomas Cook's rich heritage
is being combined with new technology to
build a business tailored to the needs of
the Chinese customer and I was impressed
with the talent and ambition displayed by

colleagues in this new area of the business
We also spent time with our key business
partner and shareholder, Fosun, who again
provided us with valuable insight into how
we can work together to extend our reach
to Chinese customers
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As part of our Board meeting programme,

we also visited our Stockholm office,
being the Head Office of our Tour 0perator
business in Northern Europe, where again
we got to meet with colleagues and receive
updates on our highly successful business
in Northern Europe

Another key component in the Board's
processes for ensuring consideration of a
wide range of stakeholder interests is our
dedicated Health, Safety & Environmental
Committee During the year, the Committee
recommended to the Board a change to the
Group s industry-leading Animal Welfare
Policy which resulted in the Company
ceasing the sale of tickets to attractions
which involve captive orcas This decision
followed careful consideration of the views
of customers suppliers, the environment
and animal welfare concerns including a

specially-commissioned survey of customers'
views on excursions from the Customer
lnsight Team I believe this demonstrates how

this Committee can really support the Board

in fulfilling its duty to consider important
stakeholders in its decision making

BOARD DEVETOPMENT

During the year. a board effectiveness
evaluation was conducted internally in

the format of comprehensive one-to-one
interviews between Board members and

the Group Company Secretary As in previous
years. the review generated valuable
feedback and development opportunities
for us, more details of which can be found
on page 72

As I explained in my statement on page 11.

Bill Scott wlll step down as Group CF0

on 30 November 2018 and Sten Daugaard

will take up the role on an interim basis
Sten brings more than 30 years of experience
working in senior financial positions in

international companies and is also a

member of the Board of Thomas Cook GmbH,

Germany 0n behalf of the Board. I would like
to thank Bill for the valuable contribution
he has made to the business over the last
srx years

ThonosCookGroupplc I AnnuolfeportandAccount.20lS

DIVERS!TY

We continue our work to promote gender

diversity across the business and are

now taking our learnings to improve other
aspects of diversity too We have developed
a new Group-wide Inclusion and Diversity
Framework and Plan that sets out our
commitment to creating an inclusive and
diverse culture, which we will launch in

early 2019 This progress will support our
work to develop a diverse Board and Senior
Management succession pipeline We know
that diverse boards make decisions which
better reflect the customers we serve
and therefore improving Board and Senior
Management diversity remains one of our
firm commitments Please see our People

section on page 34 and the Nominations
Committee report on page 82 for more
information about our work on Diversity

AUD!T, RISK AND COMPTIANCE

During the year. the Audit Committee had the
important task of overseeing preparations

for the implementation of the General Data
protection Regulation ('GDPR') which of
course touches many areas of the business
including our customer care teams, legal,

information security, cyber security and
disaster recovery The Audit Committee Chair

kept a close eye on progress, attending the
Group's regular GDPR Steering Committee
and reporting back to the Audit Committee
on developments More information about
the work of the Audit Committee can be

found on page 78

We also launched new e-learning
programmes, which we are in the process of
rolling out to all of our colleagues across the
Group, for those colleagues without access
to the e-learnings, face-to-face training in

groups is provided The e-learning modules
cover topics such as our values, our Code

of Conduct, Speaking 0ut {whistleblowing),
data protection competition law, anti-
bribery and cyber security The training
is available in ll different languages and
we are monitoring completion rates I am

confident this will support the work we
have done to strengthen the culture of the
business through proactive communication
of our values and continually working to
enable a compliance ethos throughout
the entire organisation

REMUNERATION

At our AGM in February. we were pleased

to secure 98 per cent support from
our Shareholders in respect of our FYIT

Remuneration Report The alignment of
executive and workforce pay continues to be

a key focus for the Remuneration Committee
We have NpS as a key measure of success
in incentive plans for many of our colleagues
across the Group and will be introducing it as
a measure for even more colleagues in FYl9

and over the next three years in our Airline
ln FYl9, we will also start to include a new
''workforce dashboard" in our Remuneration
Committee packs to give the Committee
better visibility of colleague pay across the
Group and provide context for decisions
about executive remuneration our new
Colleague Advisory NED will also be invited
to Remuneration Committee meetings to
represent colleague views

SUMMARY

As a Board we know that listening to our
customers is not just good corporate
governance, it is essential to successfully
executing our strategy. We also know that
our Company is nothing without our hard-
working colleagues Therefore we welcome
the increased focus on engaging with these
important stakeholders and are committed
to challenging ourselves to find new ways
we can gain greater insight to help shape our
actions in the coming year

FRANK MEYSMAN
CHAIRMAN

28 November 20lB
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OUR
TEADERSHIP

FRANK MEYSMAN
NON-EXECUIIVE CHAIRMAN
Appotntment 0ctober20ll
Nationality Belgian I I
committee membershrps

ikii-siiiN;ifi rxo iiriis I
i , Extensive chairmanship i

i experience across public 
ii and orivate comoanres

i > International business expertise
i , Track record in the creatron of

shareholder value on the back
of heritage brands

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS
Non-Executive Dlrector of Warehouses
De Pauw (WDP) and Cha rman of
rhe Board a'd Audit Comnrltee o'
Spade S A

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE
AND APPOTNTMENTS
Vanous senlor posrtions at procter

& Gambie: Douwe Egberts Sara
Lee Corporation where he served
as Executrve Vice Presrdent and on
the Board of Directors: and Chairman
oflBCNV

Committee membership

Nanrnatrons

Remune at on

Aud t
Heallh Safety 6 Envrronmenta

Cha r rmaf

i KEY STRENGIHS AND SKILLS i

i , Strong international i

i leadershio skrlls i

i > Successful track record in i

i KEY STRENGTHS AND SKITLS
i , Extensive experience in
i strategrc f nancial plannrng and
i financial reportinq

i > Chartered accountantwith
i expertrse in leading large

i corporatetransactionsincluding
i debt and equity refinancing
, Knowledge of international

markets having worked in Asra

KEY STRENGTHS AND SKItts :

, Previous experience serving
on the board of a large low-
cost airline

, Deep understanding of the
use of technology in the
consumer market

> Current executive role leading
a global business

BILL SCOTT
cFo
Appointment January 2018

Natronality Brltrsh ;l=

DAWN AIREY
INDEPENDENT NON.EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR AND SENIOR
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Apporntment Apfl 2010
(appo nted slD october 2ol5)
Natronai ty Bntrsh >iF
Commrttee memberships:

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS
None

PREVIOUS EXPERlENCE
AND APPOINTI.{ENTS
Director of Financial Reportlng at
Thomas Cook: Frnancial Contro ler at
Kwrk-Fit a^d senro. {rnance pos,t,ons
at PwC Frrst Pacrfrc Company Shell
and eBookers plc

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS
CEO of Getty lmages and Chair of
the National Youth Theatre

PREVIOUS EXPERlENCE
AND APPOINTMENTS
Senior Vice presrdent of Yahool Et4EA

Presrdent of CLT-UFA UK Televrsron
Lrmited with the RTL Group Chair and
CEO of Five TV: Managing Director of
Globa Content at ITV plq snl 116p'

Executive D rector of easylet plc

BOARDOF
DIRECTORS

PETER FANKHAUSER
cEo
Appolntment November 2014
Nat onal ty Swrss E
Commrttee membership:

i turning around and growing
i travel businesses

| , Proven expertise in developing
and delivering complex strategy
with a clear customer focus

OTHER D!RECIORSHTPS
None

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE
AND APPOTNTMENTS
f4D of the UK and Contrnental Europe
and subsequently C00 at Thornas
Cook Senior posrtions at Kuoni and
CE0 at LTU Group (the third largest
tour operator rn Germany at that time)
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GENDER DIVERSITY BOARDBATANCE ------------ BOARDTENURE
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AN N ET ARIS
IT{DEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointment: July 2014

Natronality: Dutch 
=committee membersh ps

practice of a leading
management consultancy

> Expertise in digital transformation
Continental corporate governance

and strategy
, Knowledge of the European

technology sector

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS
Senior Affiliate Professor of Strategy
at INSEAD in France; Board member
and Chair of the Nominatron and
Remuneratron Committees of ASR

Netherlands NV: Board member and
member of the Audrt Commlttee of
Junghernrich AG; Board member and
member of the Technology and Strategy
Committee and the Nominatrons
Committee ofASlYL NV: and Supervisory
Board member and Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of Randstad NV

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE
AND APPOINTI{ENTS
Partner of f4cKinsey & Company
rn Germany leading its Travel and
Transportation practrce and later rts
l'ledia practice and Board member and
member of the Audit and Compensatlon
Committees of ProSiebenSatl AG

I?3

EHRE BERKIN
lNDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointment November 2012

Natronality: Turkish E
Committee memberships

i iEi 
-sii 

; turciiii iiii iir r rC I
| , ln-depth knowledge of the 

I

/iqlt-

WARREN TUCKER
INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointment: 0ctober 2015

Natlonalrty: Bntrsh iF
Commrttee memberships

i 
-K 

E i aii i fu;iii i r iii -sir-r-r-C

I , Experience of travel industry
: includinq senior finance posrtions
I in a large airline

| , Expertise tn international
I business and strategic
i transformations with knowledge
i of lvl&A and equity markets

i , ual, chartered Accountant and

: experienced CF0 with significant

i YI !:'_.! ?._._'9_.1!::':T._ _

OTHER DIRECIORSHIPS
independent Non-Executive Director
and member of the Audit Committee
of Reckitt Benckiser Group plc:

Independent Non-Executive Director
and Cha r of the Audit Commrttee of
Survitec Limited: Independent Non-
Executive Director and Chair of the
Audit & Rtsk commtttee of the uK Hf4G

Foreign & Commonwealth Off ice and
lndependent Non-Executrve Director
of Tate & Lyle plc

PREVIOUS EXPERTENCE
AND APPOINTMENTS
CFO of Cobham plc: various senror
finance positions at British Arrways
plc and Cable & Wireless plc

MARTINE VERTUYTEN
INDEPENDENT
NON.EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointmentr l"1ay 20ll
Nationality Belgian I I
Commlttee memberships

KEY STRENGTHS AND SKILTS
> Significant experience leading

international businesses with
expertise in finance and lT

, Experienced CF0

, Strong experience rn audit

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS
Supervisory Board member and
Chair of the Audit Commrttee
of STMicroelectronrcs N V and
lndependent D rector and l,4ember
of the Audit committee of Group
Bruxe les Lambert

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE
AND APPOINTMENTS
CF0 of Umicore (a Brussels-based
materials technology group), CF0

of Mobistar (tt'e mobile telephone
operator) Charr of the Audrt Committee
of the Flemish Region rn Belgium and
Non Executrve Director of 3i Group plc

i oDeration of low-cost airlnes

: > Expertise in key destination

i markets, particularly Turkey

i , Strong background in managing
i and developing strategy rn the
; technology sector

i

l-----------_--------------_-i
OTHER DIRECTORSHTPS
Board member of MyGini lnc

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE
AND APPOINTMENTS
Various senror p0sitions at l'(icrosoft
includrng Vice President of EMEA

Non-Executive Director at a broad
range of technology companies
including Alcatel Lucent Teletas and
Non-Executrve Director at pegasus

AirInes and Telepe'{ornance Metis
Call Centres
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CONTINUED

LESTEY KNOX
INDEPENDENT
NON.EXECUTTVE DIRECTOR

Appointment l'4arch 2016

Nationality British EE
Comm'ttee membershrps

ikEilii;i;iii riii i-friri I

i , Substantial financial services i

i and international experience

: > Expertise in consumer-oriented
sectors including fast-moving i

consumer goods and retail i

' Significant Non-Executive Director
experience in UK listed companies

i and an extensive traveller i

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS
Non-Executive Director Chair of
the Remuneration Committee and
member of the Nomlnatrons and
Audit Committees of Legal & General
Group plc: and Non-Executlve Director
Senior lndependent Director and Chair

of the Remuneration Commrttee of
Genus plc

PREVIOUS EXPERTENCE
AND APPOINTMENTS
Chairman of Allrance Trust PLC:

Chair of Grosvenor Group: Senror
Independent Drrector at Hays plc: Non

Executive Director at Signet Jewelers
and t'1Fl Direct Limitedi Chair of the
Remuneration Committee of SABt'4tller
p c: and Non-Executrve D rector of
Centrrca plc

PAUL EDGECLIFFE-JOHNSON
IN DEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointmentr Ju y 2017

Nationality British EE
Committee memberships

i kEYliii N;iiii rxii sir rrs I
i , ln-depth knowledge ofthe global i

i hotel industry I

JURGEN SCHREIBER
INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointment: July 2017

Nationality: German r
Committee memberships:

: KEY STRENGTHS AND SKITLS :

; , Board expeflence servrng at
i board level of large multi-national
i consumer facing businesses

i ' Accomplished private

i equity executive

i , In'depth knowledge
of international markets

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS
Senior l',lanaging Director of Katz
Group; Chairman of The Aldo
Group; and Non-Executive Directo'
of Lidl & Schwarz Drscount and
Hypermarket Board

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE
AND APPOINTMENTS
CE0 of Rexa I Health: CE0 Presrdent
and Deputy Charrman of Edconr and
CE0 and President of Shoppers Drug
l'4art Corporatlon

ATICE MARSDEN
GROUP GENERAT COUNSEL
AND CO}'IPANY SECREIARY

Apporntment September 2015

Nationality Bntish EE

: > In-depth knowledge of corporate

i governance regulation and
j best practice

i , lnternational expenence having
i worked rn the UAE and for a global
i lawfirm

l______-__-_-- ----------'-''':

PREVIOUS EXPER]ENCE
AND APPOINTMENTS
Head of Legal for the UK&l for Thomas
Cook and Senror Associate at Latharn
& Watkins

Committee membership

.r Nomtnations
'-. Remuneration

Audit

Health Safety & Environmental

Chairman

i > Current executive role leading

i a FTSE 100 company

i , Chartered Accountant with
extensive f inancial experience
and knowledge of debt and

equity markets

OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS
CFo of lntercontrnental Hotels
Group PLC

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE
AND APPOTNTMENTS
Various senror finance positions at
rntercontrnertal norels Group PLC

PwC and HSBC nvestment Bank
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE HOWOURREPORT

BOARD
LEADSTHE
BUSINESS

BOARD
Chairman CE0 CF0 and eight lndependent Non-Executive Directors

THE BOARO IS RESPONSIBLE FOR:

>guidingtheGroupsstrategicaimsandapprovingtheGroup'sstrategy budgetaryandbusinessplans;
> approving significant investments and capital expenditure;

> approving the Groups dividend policy and paymentsi
> establishing and maintaining the Groups risk appetite system ofinternal control, governance and approval authorities:

> monitoring executive performance, remuneration and succession planning: and reviewing standards
of ethics and policy in relation to health safety environment, social and community responsibilities

THE BOARD IS GOVERNED BY:

, A Schedule of lYatters reserved for the
Board which sets out matters that can

only be decided by the Board

E
Committee report on pages 78 to 8t

) A documented Division of
Responsibilities between the

Chairman and the CEO

, Terms of Reference for Committees These documents are available

whlch set out matters the Board has on the Group s website at
authorised the Committees to deal with wwwthomascookgroup com

OUR COT.IMITTEES

tr
Committee report on page 82

V
I{EALTH, SAFETY &

E NVI RON M ENTAL COI.I M ITTEE

CEO and three Independent
Non-Executive Drrectors

Responsible for health, safety
and environmental policy and

compliance and developrng standards
and procedures to manage flsk in these

areas across the Group

tr
Committee report on pages 83 and 84

\./
REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE

Five lndependent
Non-Executive Directors

Responsible for advising the Board on
remuneration of Executive Directors

and setting an overall policy for
remunerating the Group s colleagues

tr
Committee report on pages 88 to 109

AUDII NOI,IINATTONS
COI{MITTEE COI'IMITTEE

Five Independent Chairman and four lndependent
Non-Executive Directors Non-Executrve Directors

Responsible for overseeing the Leads the process for Board

Group'sfinancia reportinginternal appointmentsandre-electionand
and external audit, internal control succession planning of Directors
and risk management system and and the Chairman

whistleblow ng policies

FINANCE & ADM I N ISTRATION COT.I T.IITTEE

l',1eets weekly to facilitate swift and efficient operational management decrsions

for the business in relation to day-to-day financing and administratrve matters

A schedule of decrsions taken by the Committee is reported
to each Board f4eeting

DISCLOSURE COI{}IITTEE

The Committee meets regularly dunng the year to consider the Group s

disclosure obligations and to review results announcements prior to release

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

CEO CFO and functional and segment leaders

Meets on a weekly basis to review: trading: execution of strategic projectsi progress against targets: and monitor risk

\,/ V
THOI,|AS COOK LEADERSHIP COUNCIL (',TCLC',) 

i

The TCLC comprises the top 104 senior leaders in the organisation. i

lnformation about the Company s strategy and perform;nce is regularly 
i

i;il;i;;iJixonriirri-Rii ---------------i

, l.'latrix sets out levels of authofltv i

' within the business in respect oi i, to-day operation of the business. I

71

i communicated to the TCLC. who in turn cascade to their teamsto ensure
i everyoneunderstandswheretheyfitintothestrategyandwhattheycan i

id:"h'rqll'9iT?:il:.-!:'-'_il:g:i!---- ------l
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Directors' conflicts of interest

The Board has a set of principles for managing conflicts and an

agreed process to identify and authorise potential conflicts where
appropriate The Nominations Committee reviews any potential
conflicts, as and when they arise. and makes a recommendation to
the Board as to whether the potential conflict should be authorised,
The Nominations Committee regularly reviews all authorised
conflicts lt also reviews the interests of candidates prior to making
recommendations to the Board for the appointment of new Directors
This process was followed throughout the year to 30 September 2018

Re-appointment of Directors

ln accordance with the Code and the Company's Articles of
Association, all Directors are subject to re-election by Shareholders
At the AGM held in February 2018, each of the Directors in post at
the time was submitted for re-election and successfully re-elected
Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a three-year term, subject
to annual re-election by Shareholders. and rigorous review by the
Nominations Committee Each Non-Executive Director can serve up to
a maximum of three such terms

Group Company Secretary

The Group Company Secretary is responsible for advising and

supporting the Chairman and the Board on corporate governance

matters as well as ensuring that there is a smooth flow of information
to enable effective decision making All Directors have access to the
advice and services of the Group Company Secretariat and through
them have access to independent professional advice in respect of
their duties, at the Company's expense The Group Company Secretary
acts as secretary to the Board and its Committees During the
year Alice Marsden held the position of Group General Counsel and

Company Secretary Biographical details can be found on page 66

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CONTINUED

Board composition

As at 28 November 2018. the Board was made up of ll Directors
which comprised the Chairman. two Executive Directors and eight
lndependent Non-Executive Directors

Frank Meysman was the Chairman throughout the year The roles

of the Chairman and CEO are separate and distlnct Dawn Airey is

the Senior lndependent and is available to Shareholders should they
have concerns that cannot be resolved through the normal channels
involving the Executive Directors or the Chairman

Biographical details of all Directors can be found on pages 64 to 66

and on the Groups corporate website at wwwthomascookgroup com

Changes to the Board and Committees

During the year, Michael Healy retired as CF0 with effect from
3l December 2017 and Bill Scott was appointed as CFO with effect from
1 January 2018 0n the 24 September 2018, the Company announced
that Bill Scott would step down from the Board on 30 November 2018

Sten Daugaardjoined the Company on I 0ctober 2018 and will take up

the role of CF0 on an interim basis from I December 2018

Lesley Knox was appointed to the Nominations Committee with effect
from 14 March 2018

Director independence and time commitment

The Nominations Committee and the Board considered the
independence of the Non-Executive Directors against the criteria
specified in the Code and determined that each was independent
They also considered the independence of Emre Berkin whose three-
year term was renewed during the year, before approving the renewal
of this term

The Chairman and each lndependent Non-Executive Director have
provided assurance to the Board that they remain fully committed
to their respective roles and can dedicate sufficient time to fulfil
their obligations

All Directors must obtain the prior consent of the Chairman before
taking on any additional directorships Before providing consent the
Chairman will take into consideration any existing directorships and

commitments and the nature. location and expected time commitment
of the proposed new role The Chairman will not approve any Director
taking on additional commitments that he believes would interfere
with their ability to dedicate sufficient time to the Company
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Meetings

The full Board meets at least six times a year at its scheduled
meetings, and in between these meetings when required.
Board members communicate with each other and Management
outside of formal Board meetings to keep up-to-date with
business developments. The Chairman and the Committee Chairs
hold planning meetings and calls with Management in respect of
upcoming meetings.

At each Board meeting, the CEO presents a comprehensive update
on the progress ofthe Group's strategy and business issues arising
across the Group, and the CFO presents a detailed analysis ofthe
financial performance. both at Group and segment level.

Thom{ cookcroup pic I AnnusiR.portqnd Accountt2olE

Packs for the Board and Committee meetings are circulated using
a fully encrypted electronic portal system. This enables fast and

secure distribution of information that can be accessed using
electronic tablets.

All Directors are invited to attend the meetings and receive the packs

for all Committees. regardless of membership (unless not in line
with governance best practice, i.e. an Executive Director would not
attend a Remuneration Committee meeting unless specifically invited
for a particular agenda item). This ensures all Directors remain well
informed on all matters of the Board's business and reduces the need

for lengthy Committee feedback sessions during Board meetings.

Attendance at scheduled Board and Committee meetings during the year is set out below:

I I I I Hsalth.sarety6'l

Director | *"ol ...#l['il "H[T''$:ll '*[3[i]',1J.11
Nomlnatlons

Committee

Frank Meysman 6/66r6

Peter Fankhauser 4116/6

Bill Scott s/s

6/65r66/6Dawn Airey

4tl6r66/6Annet Aris

Emre Berkin 6/61146r6

Warren Tucker 6r6srs616

Martine Verluyten 6r6sls6'6

4ll6'6sls6'6Lesley Knox

Paul Edgecliffe-lohnson" 6'65'5s,6

Jiirqen Schreiber** llls,5s,6

Former Director
lvlichael Healy***
* paul Edgecliffu-Johnson absent duE to prior commitment

"' JUrgEn Schteiber absent due to illnss
*'* f4ichael Healy stepped down from th6 Board with effect from 3l December ml7
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RE PORT
CONTINUED

WHAT THE BOARD DID
DURING THE YEAR

NOVEMBER
2017

DECEMBER
2017

JAN UARY
20r8

FEBRUARY
2018

MARC H

20r 8

APRIT
2 018

JUNE
2018

JULY
201 8

AUGUST
20r8

SEPTEMBER
20r8

MAY
20r8

> Jurgen Schrerber and
Paul Edgechffe-Johnson
induction activrtres
(included visits
to Peterborough
0berursel Frankfurt
airport and Manchester
airport off ces see
page 71)

a<-
\ F-,/
\\
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During the year, the Board spent significant time considering
the Company's key strategic projects including the launch
of a €400 million guaranteed bond and the launch of the
Company's hotel fund joint venture with LMEY investments
other important items on the Board agenda included Brexit
contingency planning, the three-year business plan and risk
mitigation matters, including agreeing the Board's risk appetlte

ln March, the Board held its meetings in Shanghai, China

in the head office of the Company's joint venture with
Fosun The Board met colleagues working for Thomas Cook
China and received presentations from the Thomas Cook

China management team The Board met with various
representatives from Fosun, the Company's shareholder and

key business partner.

ln May, the Board held an offsite strategy day where it spent
time considering strategic options and opportunities

ln September, the Board held its meetings in Stockholm.
the head office of the Company's Tour 0perator business in

Northern Europe The Board met with colleagues and received
presentations from each member of the lnlanagement team
on the Company's business

The Board also spent half a day focusing solely on people,

where it spent time considering a Group-wide talent review
which examined talent. succession, retention risk and diversity
in respect of the top 100 roles in the business and how this
feeds into the executive pipeline

f hcnor CoclGroup ptc' AnnuoL Rcport andAccounts 2Ol8

BOARD INDUCTION
AND TRAINING

A tailored induction programme is provided to each new Dlrector
on appointment lnductions typically include:

> the provision of a comprehensive induction pack:
> meetings with other Board members and senior management

across a wide variety of geographies;
) visits to the Company s business operations in multiple countries:

and
) presentations and briefings on the Company's business and other

relevant topics

lndividual induction requirements are monitored by the
Chairman, with the support of the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary

Paul Edgecliffe:Johnson and Jurgen Schreiber were appointed to the
Board in )uly 2017 and have since undertaken an induction programme
which included the following:

Visits to the following business areas:

I , The Group Airline head office at Manchester Airport
> The Northern Europe Tour 0perator business head offices

in Stockholm
> The UK Tour Operator business head office

in Peterborough
> The German Tour operator business and Condor Airline

head offices in Oberursel and Frankfurt respectively

0ne-to-one meetings with:

> Executive Directors

8\
> Group General Counsel & Company Secretary
) Members of the Executive Committee
) Other key leaders in the business
, The Company's Senior Statutory Auditor

Feedback received on the induction programme included that it was
comprehensive and that management were very open and informative
when discussing the business, enabling Directors to get a good feel
for the culture of the Company

At Board meetings and, where appropriate, Committee meetings.
the Directors receive updates and presentations on developments
to the relevant legislative and regulatory environments
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CORPORATE GOVE RNANCE RE PORT
CONTINUED

BOARD EFFECTIVEN ESS EVATUATION
During the year. the Group Company Secretary conducted an internal Board effectiveness evaluation in the form of individual one hour

interviews, either by phone or in person. with Board members and other regular meeting attendees Following the interviews, a report was
prepared which was discussed with the Chairman and then shared with the Board at its September meeting The Group Company Secretary and

Chairman developed an action plan which will be monitored throughout the year. The below sets out some of the strengths and areas of focus

identified during the review:

OUTPUTS FROM 2OI8 EVATUAIION
l

, There is a good level of focus on strategy,
with sufficient time allowed for strategy
to be properly considered in Board meetings.

> All actions from the 2017 evaluation have either
been addressed in full or are well underway and

continue to be tracked

> There is a healthy and constructive level

of challenge from Non-Executive Directors
fostered by a positive Board culture.

, The Board continues to possess the necessary
skills, experience and diversity to properly
perform its role, both collectively and as
individuals

, Risk is well presented, considered and assessed
by the Board and the Board feel they have good

visibility of the risks facing the business.

The Board could benefit from receiving more feedback from
strategic business partners on their views of the Company

as a business partner

ACTIONS:

The Audit Committee Chair and Group Company Secretary have
previously met with a number of hotel partners and agency
partners in order to obtain their views ofthe Company as a
business partner. Going forwards the Group Company Secretary
and Chairman will ensure that other key partners, including
suppliers, are included

To assist succession planning, the Board could benefit from

more visibility of high potential individuals at the level below the
Executive Committee

The Board meet high potential individuals when travelling to source
market offices as part of the Board calendar and when they
present agenda items in Board and committee meetings However,

the Group Company Secretary and Chairman will specifically invite
high potential individuals to present to the Board on the business
topics they are working on, to provide additional visibility

Board and Committee meeting time could be better utilised by

ensuring all discussion focuses on key issues rather than receiving
information that could be provided in a pre-read

The Group Company Secretary and Chairman will deliver the
message to all presenters to take their papers as read and focus on

key issues for discussion and will monitor this on a meeting by

meeting basis
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PROGRESS FROM 2OT7 EVALUAIION
Following the externally facilitated evaluation conducted by Dr Tracy Long of Boardroom Review Limited in 2017 the Group Company Secretary

and Chairman agreed an action plan and have been monitoring progress against this throughout the year. During the internal evaluation

conducted this year, Board members were asked about the extent to which they felt progress had been made against last years plan and

feedback was positive, noting particular improvements in many areas, including the below areas which were identified in the FYIT annual report

PROGRESS:

Certain agenda items and the private sessions (i e the meetings The Group Company Secretary and Chairman have w0rked to
of Non-Executive Directors in the absence of Management) increase the overall time available for meetings and improve

can sometimes feel rushed as a result of a lack of time available time allocation of the agenda
on a busy agenda

The Nominations Committee should spend more time looking
at long-term succession planning for the Chair and Committee
chairs as well as the Executive Directors

The Nominations Committee have spent significantly more
on succession planning considering the Chairman, the CEO, the CFO

and Non-Executive Directors, and met six times during the year.

The Board has set a clear tone from the top in respect of culture The annual employee engagement results were presented to
but it could now benefit from spending more time monitoring how the Board by the Group HR Director and allocated time on the
cultural changes are being received and filtering down through Board agenda for discussion A number of exit interviews have been

the organisation conducted by the Senior lndependent Director. The agreement to
introduce a Colleague Advisory Non-Executive Director role in 2019

will also support this intention

CHA!RMAN EVATUATION

Separately, the Non-Executive Directors. under the leadership of the Senior lndependent Director and with input from the Executive Directors,

conducted an evaluation of the Chairman The Senior lndependent Director held individual calls with the other Directors in September and the
outputs from the calls were discussed by the Board in the absence of the Chairman Following this, the Senior lndependent Director provided

feedback to the Chairman.

INDIVI DUAt EXECUTIVE EVATUATION

The individual performance of the Executive Directors is reviewed separately by the Chairman and the Remuneration Committee
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RE PORT
CONTINUED

GOVERN].IENT A1{D
REPUTATIONAT
> The Group Head of publlc Affairs and

Sustainability is in constant dialogue with
governments, public officials and policy

makers on various topics whict affect
ourbusiness. This work is reportcd to the
Health, Safety and Environmental Committee
and topics engaged on during the year can
be found in the Committee! report 0n pages

83 and 84
, During the year, we engaged an independent

research consultancy to survey public

affairs stakeholders. consumet and

corporate journalists, analysts and

lnvestors on thelr attitudes and opinions
on the Company, the results of whlch were
reported back to the Board.

ENVIRONI,IENT
AND COM].IUNITY
) Wo engage with or sit on local destination

committBes and community groups to share
and discuss environmental and community
issues specific to the destinations we
operate in

) \te also sit on working groups and ste€ring
commitees at ABTA and the DRV lttp
German Travel Association) in relation to
specifi c environmental and sustainability
topics where NGo and interest groups

contribute specialist knowledge to
ensure buslnesses are well informed on
important issues

, our Sustalnabltrty team arc ln regular
dblogue with various interestgroups and

thls work is reported back to the Heatth.

Safety and Environmental Commtttee
(see pages 83 and 84).

***

SUPPTIERS
' We have a Supplier Code of Ethica and

Conduct which sets out standards of
behaviour expected of our suppliers which
coverstoplcs such as human rights, chitd
labour, modern slavery, discrimination and
anti+rlb€ry and corruption.

) The CEo hosts an annual meeting event
for our maln hotel partners. whlch ls
attended by the Chairman, the Executive
Committee and the hotel contracting
team, which provides an opportunity for
hotellers to engage with us on a less
formal basis

) We hold an annual presentation for
aircraft financiers and lessors to provide

an update on the financial results and
business of the Group. with a speclfie
focus on the Airline segment
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COTTEAGUES
> our'Every Voice' annual engagement

survey was answered by 18,907

colleagues representing a response rate
of 76% (see page 37)

, We hold half-yearly Group-wide town halls

where the CE0 presents key messages
live to all colleagues across the Group and

an online facility is provided for colleagues
to submit questions

, 0ur Group Airline holds regular webchats
where colleagues can ask senior
management questions and we have
developed an app to communicate with
remote and mobile colleagues

) Many ofour colleagues are represented
by Trade Unions and Works Councils who
we engage with on regular basis, including
our European Works Council-

> We operate an independent
whistleblowing service known internally
as'Speaking 0ut' All matters reported to
the whistleblowing line are investigated
and any significant issues identified are
reported to the Board

> We have various other colleague forums
in different areas of the business.

, 0ur dedicated lnternal Communications
team regularly cascade important
information about the business
to colleagues via the most
appropriate medium
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CUSTOMERS
) 0ur dedicated Customer and Market

lnsight Team are constantly receiving
feedback from customers via surveys
at various stages of the customer
journey: post-booking; pre-departure;
in-destination: and when they
return home

, Last year, we received over one million
free text comments which were tracked
and analysed in real time using speclalist
customer feedback management
software (see page 23)

> Last year, we conducted 25 different
customer research projects to gain
the views of customers on specific
topics. for example, awareness of
our customer promises and attitudes
towards excursions

> We held l5 different'Customer Sounding
Board' sessions where we met in person

with over 100 customers to gain in-
depth insight

INVESTORS
lnstitutlonal investors:
, We have an ongolng comprehensive

lnvestor Relations programme conducted
by the CEo, CFo and lnvestor Relations
team which involves two to four road

shows a year and meetings with existing
and new investors in various countries

> our lnvestor Relations team hold regular
calls, meetings and presentations

wlth analysts
> The Chairman and Remuneration

Committee Chair regularly meet with
Shareholders to discuss corporate
governance and remuneration related
matters respectively.

Private investors:
> All Directors attend the AGM where they

speak with private Shareholders informally
before and after the meeting During the
meeting the Chairman and CEo present to
Shareholders and the Board take questions

> The Companys registrar Equinlti and the
Company Secretarial team respond to
queries from private Shareholders

Debt investols:
> our Treasury team engage in regular

dialogue with key relationship banks
which includes semi-annual meetings
with Management presentations
They also hold update and review
meetings with the Companys credit
rating agencies

, During the year, Management engaged
with bondholders, both during the road

show for last years bond refinancing, and
through semi-annual results calls

) We maintain a presence at investment-
bank sponsored investor conferences

> During the year we refreshed our
corporate website to make it more user
friendly for all investors
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RE PORT
CONTINUED

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INIERNAL CONIROT
The Board recognises its ultimate accountability for maintaining

an effective system of internal control and risk management that is

appropriate in relation to both the scope and the nature ofthe Group's

activities. and complies with the UK Corporate Governance Code

The Board has carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks

facing the Company, including those that would threaten its business

model, future performance, solvency or liquidity This is fully described

in the Risk lulanagement section on pages 56 to 6l

The Group's internal control and risk management systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
These systems have been in place for the year under review and up

to the date ofapproval ofthe Annual Report & Accounts. The Board

has approved the framework and the standards implemented

REV!EW OF SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROT

During the year the Board, through the work of the Audit Committee

has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group's system
of internal control The Board monitors the internai control processes

on an ongoing basis, including financial, operational and compliance

controls, under the auspices of the Enterprise Risk and Audit functlon
Regular reports on control issues are presented to and discussed
with the Audit Committee and there is a follow up process in place to

ensure audit recommendations are fully implemented by Management
Ernst & Young communicated to the Audit Committee certain
weaknesses in internal controls identified as part of their audit of the
financial statements and communicated their view on the systems
of internal control The Board has noted ongoing progress and active

focus in the internal control processes during this year The Board,

in reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control,
can confirm that the following actions are being taken to remedy
the significant failings or weaknesses identified from that review
as follows:
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Matter Type Action

UK

unsupportable
aged debit
balances (note

33) accumulated
through
err0ne0us
accounting
entries and

incorrect
configuration
of interfaces

Significant
control failing

Manual workarounds and

estimates have been replaced
with system interfaces System
interfaces have been upgraded
as necessary These changes
are supported by an increased
focus on controls and greater
awareness of and accountability
for responsibilities regarding
accounting processes following
a change in UK Finance senior
management

Timely booking,
challenge and
approval of
separately
disclosed
items and the
supporting
evidence
thereof.

Controls requiring
improvement

GOING CONCERN
The Directors have assessed the prospects of the Group over the
period of 12 months from the date of approval of the Annual Report

and Accounts and the medium term in the context of its current
operating performance. the principal risks facing the business and its
internal business plan for the next three years ln addition, the Group

has prepared a sensitivity analysis on its business plan and evaluated
the impact of certain principal risks occurring both individually and in

unison, together with mitigating actlons that could be implemented
in such circumstances

As part of their assessment the Directors have also noted that the
Groups funding arrangements are unchanged since being revised

in November 2017 and that they remain in place until November 2022,

other than the reset of certain facility covenants for FYl9 and FY20.

Having considered the above factors, the Directors have concluded
that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the financial statements

INTERNAL CONIROT AND RISK MANAGEMENT IN
RETATION TO IHE FINANCIAL REPORTING PROCESS

The Group has a thorough assurance process in place in respect

of the preparation verification and approval of the Annual Report
& Accounts This process includes:

, the involvement of qualified, professional employees with
an appropriate level of experience (both in Group Finance

and throughout the business):
, formal sign-offs from appropriate business segment Managing

Directors and Finance Directors:
, comprehensive review and, where appropriate, challenge from

key internal Group functions:
) a transparent process to ensure full disclosure of information to

the external auditors Engagement of a professional and experienced
firm of external auditors: and

Group Finance will reassess the
appropriateness of the Group

Accounting Policy regarding
Separately Disclosed ltems and

will implement an enhanced level

of approval prior to recognition
of such items in the financial
statements
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> oversight by the Group's Audit Committee involving (amongst

other duties):

- a detailed review of key financial reporting judgements which
have been discussed by l"lanagement: and

- review and, where appropriate, challenge on matters including:
. the consistency of, and any changes to, significant accounting

policies and practices during the year;
. significant adjustments resulting from an external audit:. the Company's statement on internal control systems prior

to endorsement by the Board; and
. the going concern assumption

The above process, and the review by the Audit Committee of a
comprehensive note that sets out the details of the preparation
internal verification and approval process for the Annual Report &

Accounts provides comfort to the Board that the Annual Report &

Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for Shareholders to
assess the Company's position and performance, business
model and strategy

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBITIIIES
IN RESPECI OF THE ANNUAL REPORT, IHE
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT AND
IH E FI NANCIAT STAIEMENTS
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report,
the Directors' Remuneration Report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations Company law
requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each

financial year. Under that law, the Directors have prepared the
Group and the Company financial statements in accordance with
lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (lFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union The financial statements are required by law to give

a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group and ofthe profit or loss ofthe Group for that period

In preparing those financial statements the Directors are required to:

> select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
> make judgements and accounting estrmates that are reasonable

and prudenti and
, confirm that the financial statements comply with IFRSs as adopted

by the European Union

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above

requirements in preparing the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's

transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position ofthe Company and the Group, and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements and the Directors' Remuneration
Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and. with regards
to the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation
The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and the Group and for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities
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The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
Companys website Legislation in the tJnited Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions

DISCTOSURE GUIDANCE AND TRANSPARENCY
RUTES CONF!RMAIION
Each of the Directors who were in office at the date of this report
and whose names and functions are listed on pages 64 to 66. confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge:

> the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in

accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities. financial position and profit of the
Group; and

, the Strategic and Directors' Report contained on pages 2 to 87

includes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group, together with a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces

FAIR, BATANCED AND UNDERSTANDABTE
The Directors confirm that they consider the Annual Report &

Accounts taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for Shareholders to assess the
Company's position and performance, business model and strategy
In making this confirmation, the Directors took into account their
knowledge of the business, which is kept up-to-date with regular
reports, updates and business reviews circulated prior to and
discussed at each Board meeting, and supplemented by a variety of
written reports, verbal updates and presentations given at Board and
Committee meetings as well as a regular flow of information about
the business between meetings The Directors then took into account
the thorough preparation and verification process in respect of the
Annual Report & Accounts, which included sufficient time for the
Directors to review the Annual Report & Accounts and to feed in their
comments to Management before approving the document

DISCTOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDIIORS
Each of the Directors who held office at the date of approval of this
Directors' Report confirms that: so far as they are aware, there is

no relevant audit information of which the Companys auditors are

unaware; and that they have taken all steps that they ought to
have taken as a Director to make them aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware
of that information

SHARE CAPITAT AND RETATED D!SCLOSURES

Disclosures in relation to the share capital of the Company, including
the Company s malor Shareholders are given in the '0ther Disclosures
section on pages 85 to 87

DIVIDEND

The Board decided to suspend the dividend for FYl8, reflecting the
overall net loss after tax reported by the Group This decision does not
reflect a change in the long-term dividend policy, which is to target
dividend growth that reflects the Groups progress in underlying
earnings per share For FY]T the Company paid a dividend of 0.6 pence

per share resulting in a cash redemption of €9 million

81



CORPORATE GOVE RNANCE RE PORT
CONTINUED

I AUDIT COMMITTEE -------'---l

CHAIRMAN
Martine Verluyten

OTHER MEMBERS
Paul Edgecliffe-Johnson, Lesley Knox, lUrgen Schreiber

and Warren Tucker.

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE
All members of the Committee are lndependent Non-Executive

Directors

Martine Verluyten, Warren Tucker and Paul Edgecliffe.Johnson
are considered by the Board to have recent and relevant financial

experience, as required by the Code, and satisfy the requirements
for competence in accounting and/or auditing under the Disclosure

Guidance and Transparency Rules The Board considers that the
Committee as a whole has competence in the travel sector. Travel

sector experience is highlighted in the Directors biographies on

pages 64 to 66

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPH IES

E S.. t,ali€rs e4 io 06

MEETINGS ALSO ATTENDED BY:

The Chairman and the other Non-Executive Directors, Peter

Fankhauser (CEO) Bill Scott (CFO), Alice Marsden (Group General

Counsel and Company Secretary), Sofya Linderman (Group Head

of Riskl Derek Foster (Group Head of Audit) Neil Dudleston (Chief

lnformation Security Officer), Nick 0ng-Seng (Thomas Cook luloney

Risk and Compliance Director) and Richard Wilson (Senior Statutory
Auditor Ernst & Young)

At the end of four of its meetings during the year, the Committee
(and also those Non-Executive Directors who are not on the
Committee) met with the lnternal Audit and Risk functions and

Ernst & Young, the Company s external auditor, in the absence

of Management

.n

\t
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ROtE OF THE COMl-IITIEE
The role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are set
out in written Terms of Reference which are available at
wwwthomascookgroup com Some of their keys responsibilities are:

> monitoring the integrity of the annual, half-year and quarterly
results statements, including reviewing the significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them:

, reviewing the Company's internal financial controls and internal
control and risk management systems:

> monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Company s

lnternal Audit function:
) establishing and overseeing the Company's relationship with

its external auditor, including monitoring their effectiveness
and independence: and

) monitoring matters raised pursuant to the Company's
whistleblowing arrangements

WORK DURING THE YEAR

Financial reporting and significant judgement areas

The Committee monitored the integrity of the annual, half-year and

quarterly results statements including a review of the significant
financial reporting.ludgements contained in them ln May and
November, the Committee reviewed a comprehensive paper prepared

by the Group Finance Team, which set out the Groups accounting
policies and basis of preparation The Committee also reviewed a

paper prepared by the external auditor, which included significant
reporting and accounting matters The Committee pays particular
attention to matters that it considers to be important by virtue
of their impact on the Group results and remuneration of senior
management, or the level of complexity, judgement or estimation in

their application in preparation of the Group's financial statements
The significant issues considered by the Audit Committee are shown

in the table overleaf.
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Significant issues in relation to the financial statements
considered by the Committee

How the issue was addressed
by the Committee

Revenue Recognition: There are a significant number of transactions
in relation to revenue, given the nature ofthe business The accounting
for revenue is susceptible to management override This brings a risk
around the completeness and accuracy ofthe revenue recognised during
the year.

The Committee evaluated the lT systems and the internal controls in place
around revenue recognition This included a review of the Group revenue
recognition policies to ensure revenue is recognised in line with the policy
The Committee concluded that revenue was complete and accurate.

Accounting for aircraft maintenance provisions: Significant fixed
assets for aircraft and provisions for maintenance and contractual
end of lease obligations are held on the balance sheet

There is an inherent level of estimation included in the calculation of the
maintenance provisions which are based upon forecast aircraft usage
and maintenance costs

Furthermore, there is judgement needed to determine the appropriate
discount rate for the provision

The Committee reviewed the methodology and key assumptions used
by Management in accounting for aircraft maintenance provisions and
concluded that the treatment was appropriate ln addition. the methodology
for the calculation of the discount rate was reviewed and agreed
as appropriate

Sepalately disclosed items: The Group has an established policy of
separately disclosing items that are either exceptional or not reflective
of the underlying performance of the Group

Separately disclosed items are not defined by IFRSS as adopted by the
European Union and therefore judgement is required by the Directors
to identify such items Consistency in identifying and disclosing items
as separately disclosed is important to maintain comparability of
rep0rtin g year-0n-year.

The Committee considered the presentation ofthe Group financial
statements and the appropriateness of the presentation of separately
disclosed items in the Group financial statements ln particular, items
relating to the New 0perating Model and Airline Disruption. taking into
account the observations communicated by the external auditors, Ernst
& Young The Committee reviewed the nature of items identified and
requested removal of certain items which were subsequently adjusted
by Management The Committee concurred with Management that the
treatment of the remaining items was even-handed, consistent across years
and appropriately presented movements on items which have an effect over
a number of years Consideration was also given to the quality of earnings
within underlying results

Carrying Value of Goodwill and Deferred Tax Assets: The Group
holds significant goodwill and deferred tax assets on the balance
sheet Determining the carrying value of these assets is dependent
on judgements about the future results of the business,

The Committee reviewed Management's process for testing goodwill and
deferred tax assets for potential impairment This included challenging the
key assumptions: principally cash flow forecasts, growth rates and discount
rates for goodwill and taxable profit forecasts for deferred tax assets

Provislon for illness claims and associated recoveries: Following
media coverage of the increase in fraudulent illness claims and the
industries response to tackle this issue, including the commencement
of criminal prosecutions against fraudulent claimants. there has
been a significant decrease in the number of illness claims made by
customers in the UK The calculation continues to requirejudgement
and there is limited historical data available in determining the level
of provision required

ln addition, determining the amount recoverable from hotels relating to
these illness claims is subjective and requires Management judgement

The Committee reviewed and challenged the assumptions that
Management had used in determining the provision for illness claims
to satisfy itself that the level of provisioning was appropriate

The Committee reviewed the methodology behind the hotel recovery
position and challenged Management on the assumptions used
The Committee satisfled itself that the level of recovery recognised
was appropriate

Going concern and viability: The Board make an assessment and
statement in respect of going concern and viability

The Committee considered the going concern and viability statements
in light of the forecasts, sensitivities and considerations presented by
Management ln particular. the Committee considered short and long term
liquidity as well as key covenant compilance forecasts, including the Q4
2018 covenant given the result for the year. This consideration included
challenging the base forecasts, the impact of severe but plausible scenarios
and the achievability of planned mitigations in the required timeframe,
It also included consideration of key facility terms on the calculation of
covenants and legal advice obtained in respect thereoi The Committee
concurred with Management's considerations and concluded that the
statement with regards viability adequately explains how the Board has
assessed the prospects of the Group, that the going concern basis of
preparation ofthe financial statements is appropriate, and that there are no
material uncertainties as to the Group's ability to operate as a going concern
in the period assessed



CORPORATE GOVE RNANCE RE PORT
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RISK },IANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL AUDII
Risk Management

The Audit Committee considers risk exposure against the risk appetite
of the Group. as set by the Board, by assessing all key strategic risks

in terms of their potential impact and likelihood of occurrence, after

consideration of all mitigating and controlling actions undertaken by

l'lanagement During the year, the Audit Committee assessed the key

strategic risks and received updates from the Group Head of Risk,

through the Group Risk Dashboard, which highlighted changes in the

Group's risk profile The Audit Committees assessment of risks and

mitigations contributed to the risk based lnternal Audit Plan and wider

assurance pr0gramme

The Audit Committee was supported in its work by the Executive

Committee, comprised of representatives of Senior Management and

chaired by the CEO (please see report on risk management on pages

56 to 6l)

A particular area of focus for the Committee during the year was
the implementation of the GDPR The Committee Chair held regular

progress meetings with the GDPR Steering Committee which is made

up of representatives from relevant departments {including Legal

lnformation Security lT and Customer Experience) and held one-to-one

progress meetings with certain business areas in various locations to
provide additional oversight and support

The Committee received regular updates in respect of the Group's

other legal compliance programmes which covered matters including:

anti-bribery and corruption: competition law: the Package Travel

Directive; hotel and accommodation contractingr and sanctions

lnternal Audit

The Committee continued to oversee and support the development

of the in-house lnternal Audit function The Committee reviewed.

challenged and approved the lnternal Audit Plan to ensure that it
aligned to the Company's strategic risks as well as ensuring that
the lnternal Audit function was adequately resourced to deliver the
lnternal Audit Plan The scope of the lnternal Audit Plan included

the management of risks and controls in operational, financial,

compliance, and efficiency programme activities

The lnternal Audit function includes an lnformation Security (lS)

Assurance department, responsible for reviewing the hardware,

software, infrastructure, and lT operations of the Group, to ensure

they continue to meet the organisation's technology needs

The lnternal Audit function is responsible for:

> providing an unbiased assessment of control design and

operating effectiveness:
) acting as a catalyst for improvement in risk management,

control and governance;
> safeguarding the Company's assets: and
> assessing and ensuring compliance with laws and regulation
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The Head of lnternal Audit reports functionally to the Chair of the
Committee and operationally to the Chief Financial 0fficer and has

direct access to and regular meetings with. the Committee Chair

The Committee received quarterly updates from the Head of lnternal

Audit on key issues identified in lnternal Audit reviews, progress

against the agreed lnternal Audit Plan, together with the status of

I,lanagement's implementation of recommendations ln the financial
year the Committee considered a wide range of matters, including:

, Cyber Security - the Committee received and considered the
results of a review on the implementation of the Groups cyber

security strategy and the improvement in the Group's cyber

security maturity
> General Data Protection Regulation - the Committee considered the

results of the General Data protection Regulation (GDPR) assurance

review and the Committee received regular updates on the Group's

implementation of the change required by the GDPR

) Group Treasury - the Committee considered the results of a
review of the Group's treasury control environment (specifically

foreign exchange risk commodity price risk, and funding
compliance) The Committee was satisfied that there are well
developed processes and controls in place to manage the Group's

risk exposure
> Efficiency Programmes - the Committee was updated on the

progress of the Group s efficiency programmes in the Tour operator
and Airlines The reviews considered the programme governance
(including alignment, risk recording, responsibilities resourcing,

business engagement documentation, integrity of reporting.
and control of costs)

) Complaints and Claims - the Committee considered a review of
the customer complaints and claims process. The Committee was

satisfied that the control environment is operating effectively: the
overall number and value of complaints is stable or falling; and the

customer relations teams in each segment have the necessary

experience and training to handle complaints
> Hotel Portfolio - the Committee considered the results of a review

into how the Group contracts with and monitors the quality of

hotels The Committee was satisfied that the Group continues
to make progress in offering quality hotels to customers This is

shown through improvements in accommodation NPS, customer

satisfaction questionnaires, reduction in customer complaints
and feedback through online reputation management tools
The Committee was satisfied that the Group has processes to

ensure that quality issues are identified and that we work with
hotels to raise quality standards,

> Health and Safety - the Committee considered the results of
a review into how the Group manages health and safety risk
The results showed that the Group has made good progress in
managing and reducing health and safety risk
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During the year, an internal effectiveness assessment of the
lnternal Audit function was completed The assessment measured
performance of the function against the Quality Assessment criteria
provided by the lnstitute of lnternal Auditors, and the Committee
concluded it remains satisfied with the work of the lnternal
Audit function

lnternal Control

The Group's internal control framework is managed by the Group
Finance function The Audit Committee receives updates on internal
control matters at each meeting which provides the Committee
with assurance that the internal controls in place are robust
Regular monitoring of the internal control framework allows timely
identification of issues and formal tracking of remediation plans.

The internal control framework includes Risk and Control Matrices,
which act as a key mechanism to mitigate the risk of financial
misstatement and fraud Self-certifications over the operating
effectiveness of the controls within the Key Control Framework
are received on a periodic basis from each local business segment
Group Finance ensure that agreed actions are being implemented to
support a programme of maintaining and improving internal controls
and work closely alongside lnternal Audit, refining the framework
based on the findings from their reviews

The work on internal controls in the currentyear has focused on
establishing a consistent framework of key controls across the Group,
reviewing the self-certification of the operating effectiveness of those
controls and phased testing of critical account reconciliations

These activities, together with the regular reports from the externai
auditors, have supported the Audit Committee in providing its advice
to the Board in respect of the effectiveness of internal controls (see

section headed 'Risk I'4anagement and lnternal Control'on page 76)

EXIERNAT AUDITOR
The Company's external auditor is Ernst & Young (EY) and Richard
Wilson is the Senior Statutory Auditor

I ndependence

Both the Board and EY have a number of safeguards in place to ensure
the auditors independence and objectivity are protected

EY was appointed by Shareholders in 2017 following a competitive
tender process The external audit contract is put out to tender at
least every l0 years As part of the review of the effectiveness of the
external auditor the Committee considered the auditor's independence
and concluded that the auditor demonstrated independence and
objectivity during the FYIS audit and therefore recommends the
re-appointment of EY for FY19

The Company confirms that it has complied with the provisions of the
Competition and Markets Authority's Statutory Audit Services 0rder in

respect of the financial year under review.

The Committee approved Non-audlt Fee Policy (the 'Policy') ensures
that the provision of non-audit services by the external auditor does
not impair their independence or objectivity The Policy (which is
appended as a schedule to the Audit Committee's Terms of Reference).
is published on the Group's website at wwwthomascookgroup com
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The Policy states that the external auditor should not be engaged in

respect of services'blacklisted' in the FRC's Ethical Standard 2016

Any other material non-audit work must be authorised in advance
by the Committee, unless the engagement is urgent, in which case
the CFO can agree the work with the Committee Chair and report it
to the next Committee meeting The details of non-audit work (if any)
are reported to the Committee on at least a six-monthly basis

Fees for non-audit services during the year totalled t876 417

representing 23 per cent of the fees paid to the external auditor
(further information about non-audit fees can be found in Note 6 to
the financial statements) t2l2 000 of this fee was in respect of the
review of the Company's half-year results, for which the Company s

external auditor must be used and €420,000 was in respect ofthe
Bond issue in December 2017 The Committee considered the level
offees to be acceptable and did not consider it posed any rlsk to
auditor independence

Effect iven ess

At its meeting in November 2018, the Committee considered the
effectiveness of EY as external auditor in respect of the FYIB financial
results The review included consideration of comprehensive papers
from both l"lanagement and the external auditor, and meetings with
Management in the absence of the external auditor.

The effectiveness review considered matters such as: the
competence of the key senior members of the team and their
understanding of the business and its environment: the planning
pr'ocess; effectiveness in identifying key risks; technical expertise
displayed by the auditor over complex accounting matters;
communicating and resolving audit issues; timeliness of the audit
process; cost: and communication of issues and risks to Management
and the Committee

Following the review the Committee concluded that overall EY had
provided an effective and independent audit in respect of FYl8

Pla n n ing

At its meeting in May 2018, the Committee considered and
approved the external audit plan for the audit of the Group for
FY18 The Committee considered significant risk areas for the audit,
the proposed scope the materiality threshold and the approach
to internal audit.

MARTINE VERLUYIEN
CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

28 November 20lB

8r
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ROIE OF THE COMMIITEE
The Board has delegated to the Committee responsibility for reviewing

and proposing appointments to the Board and for recommending

any other changes to the composition of the Board or its
Committees The principal responsibility of the Committee is to make

recommendations to the Board on all new appointments to the Board

as well as Board balance and composition The Committee ensures

that there is clarity in respect of the role description and capabilities
required for such appointments The Committee is also responsible for
reviewing the Directors potential conflicts of interest and for making

recommendations to the Board in respect of authorising such matters

tr

The full Terms of Reference of the Committee are available at

www thomascookgroup com

WORK DURING IHE YEAR

The Committee met six times during the year and the majority of this
time was dedicated to succession planning activities The Committee

considered succession plans and role profiles for a number of key

Board roles

The Committee also considered

> the extension of Emre Berkins appointment term for a further
three years;

, re-appointment of Directors before making a recommendation to the
Board regarding their re-election at the 2018 AGM, and

> Directors' potential conflicts of interests and independence

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has in place a Board Appointments policy (which can be

found at wwwthomascookgroup com) which sets out the principle

that appointments to the Board will be made on merit, having regard

to diversity

During the year, the female representation on the Board was 36 per

cent which exceeds the Hampton Alexander review target for Boards

to have a minimum of33 per cent femaie representation by 2020

The Chairman is a member of the 30 per cent club which has the aim

of promoting the achievement of 30 per cent of women on FTSE 100

boards, and during the year the CEO also loined the club

The Committee aims to maintain the minimum 30 per cent female

representation and also to meet the target set by the Parker Review,

to have at least one non-white Director by 2024

The Committee believe that one of the key actions in achieving

Diversity at Board level is to work to ensure a diverse long term
succession pipeline for executive roles As set out in their'people'
section on page 34 the Group has developed a Group-wide Diversity

Framework which it plans to launch across the Group in 2019

This Framework will apply to all colleagues Group-wide including the
Company's management bodies (such as TCLC) and include targets
which the Company will report against going forward

FRANK MEYSMAN
CHAIRMAN OF THE NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

28 November 2018

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CONTINUED

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

CHAIRMAN
Frank l.4eysman

OIHER MEMBERS

Dawn Airey, Emre Berkin, Lesley Knox (from 14 March 2018)

and Martine Verluyten

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE
A majority of the members of the Committee are

Non-Executive Directors

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

MEETINGS ALSO ATTENDED BY:

The other Non-Executive Directors Peter Fankhauser (CEO) and

Alice Marsden (Group General Counsel and Company Secretary)
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HEAITH, SAFETY &
ENVI RON M ENTAT COM M ITTEE

CHAIRMAN
Emre Berkin

OTHER MEMBERS
Annet Aris. Peter Fankhauser and..JUrgen Schreiber

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE
A majority of the members of the Committee are

Non-Executive Directors

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
,I-
lll r.r.:r'i,.'i !:'

MEETINGS ALSO ATTENDED BY:

The other Non-Executive Directors. Bill Scott (CFO), Marc Jordan

{Group Head of Health Safety and Security), Gunnar Schmidt {Group
Director of Aviation Safety) Alice Macandrew (Group Corporate
Affairs and Communications Director), Stephen D'Alfonso (Group

Head of Public Affairs and Sustainability) and Alice Marsden (Group

General Counsel and Company Secretary)

Thomo. CookGroupplc' AniluclReportondAccount.2OS

ROIE OF THE COMMITTEE
The Board has delegated to the Committee responsibility to review,
develop and oversee consistent policy standards and procedures
for managing health, safety and environmental risks to the Groups
business lt is also responsible for the review and oversight of
the Group s engagement with governments and policy makers
The Committee supports Directors in meeting their duties under sl72

ofthe Companies Act 2016 to have regard to various stakeholders in

decision maklng

The full Terms of Reference of the Committee are available at
www thomascookgroup com

WORK DURING THE YEAR

During the year the Committee continued to closely monitor progress

in its various areas of focus and provide strategic oversight and
guidance to ensure that activities in these areas align with the
Company's overall strategy and values

One of the most serious matters considered by the Committee
during the year was the tragic deaths of two customers, I"1r and Mrs

Cooper, on 2l August 2018 at the Steigenberger Aqua Magic Hotel

in Hurghada. Egypt Mrs Cooper was also a long serving and highly
valued colleague The Committee held an unscheduled meeting where
colleagues who had been involved in the Company's response to the
tragedy attended and reported on actions the Company was taking
The Committee continues to monitor this serious incident and provide
independent oversight of the Company s response and actions

0ther important matters the Committee considered within its four
main areas of focus are set out below:

Customer and colleague Health and Safety
> Monitored the work and performance of SGS the Company s main

third-party audit supplier, who carried out independent health and
safety audits in certain destinations: and Cristal lnternational who
carried out independent security audits in certain destinations

, Monitored the outcomes and findings of audits and any remedial
actions identified

, Approved the Group's Health and Safety strategy which aims to
make Thomas Cook industry-leading in all areas of health and safety

> Reviewed an lnternal Audit review of the health and safety function
, Approved a new market-leading balcony safety policy

Aviation Safety
> Monitored key safety metrics and progress against the Airline's

Safety Plan and Safe@Heart initiative which aims to embed an

enhanced safety culture across the Group Airline
> Received updates on the integration of safety processes into new

Air 0perator Certificates in the Balearics and Germany
> Monitored the safety and security of various airports including those

in Turkey. Tunisia and Egypt
> Monitored the implementation of new safety software and

processes including receiving demonstrations of the same
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Sustainability and Environmental matters
, Recommended to the Board a change to the Group's Animal Welfare

Policy which resulted in removing from sale attractions which
involve captive orcas.

> Approved a plastic strategy aimed at delivering a Group-wide

approach to tackling the business'single-use plastic footprint,
, Approved a detailed review of the Group's approach to human

rights and protecting against modern slavery across the Company's

supply chain.
> Monitored the performance of hotels in achieving a Travelife

sustainability certification
, Monitored carbon reporting under the Carbon Disclosure Project

and the Commitment to The Carbon Reduction Scheme and Airline

fuel efficiency
> Monitored the Company's support for the Safer Tourism Foundation,

a charity which works to improve the health and safety of tourists
travelling overseas

Government and Public Affairs
> Monitored the Group's engagement with stakeholders and policy

makers in London, Brussels, and multiple other jurisdictions in

respect of Brexit
> Monitored the Group's engagement with the independent Airline

lnsolvency Review chair and secretariat as they consider options for
reform of the UK's airline insolvency regulations

> oversaw proactive campaigning of the UK Government in respect of
the Fixed Recoverable Cost regime being extended to holiday illness

claims in response to a surge of fraudulent holiday illness claims
> Monitored the Group's engagement with Greece to reinforce and

strengthen the Group's market-leading position in the country
, Monitored the Group's engagement with EU Member State

Governments as they worked to implement the reformed package

Travel Directive 2015

El,lRE BERKIN
CHAIRMAN OF THE HEALTH,

SAFETY & ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITTEE

28 November 2018

CORPORATE GOVE RNANCE RE PORT
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OTH ER DISCTOSURES
SHARE CAPIIAT
The Company has the following three classes of shares in issue:

Ordinary Shares of C0 0l each t.535.851.315

Deferred Shares of C0 09 each 934,981,938

Deferred Shares of ll each 50,000

0rdinary Shares

The Ordinary Shares carry the right to the profits of the Company
available for distribution and to the return ofcapital on a winding up
of the Company The Ordinary Shares carry the right to attend and
speak at general meetings of the Company, each share holds the
right to one vote The 0rdinary Shares are admitted to the premium

segment ofthe Official List and to trading on the London Stock
Exchange's Main Market

Employees who hold shares under the Thomas Cook BAYE or vested
shares under any ofthe Company's executive share plans, are sent a

Form of Instruction by the relevant trustee in respect of any general
meetings of the Company so that they may instruct the Trustee to
vote on their behall

Deferred Shares

Both classes of Deferred Shares carry no right to the profits ofthe
Company 0n a winding up, the holders of the Sterling-denominated
Deferred Shares would be entitled to receive an amount equal to the
capital paid up on each Sterling-denominated Deferred Share and the
holders of the Euro-denominated Deferred Shares would be entitled
to receive an amount equal to the capital paid up on each Euro-

denominated Deferred Share only after the holders of the Ordinary
Shares and Sterling-denominated Deferred Shares have received, in

aggregate the amounts paid up thereon The holders of both classes
of Deferred Shares are not entitled to receive notice, attend, speak or
vote (whether on a show of hands or on a poll) at general meetings of
the Company

ART!CtES OF ASSOCIAT!ON
The Company's Articles of Association (the 'Articles 

) may only
be amended by a special resolution at a general meeting of
Shareholders The Articles are available on the Company's website at
www.thomascookgroup com

POWERS OF DIRECIORS
The powers of the Directors are set out in the Articles The Directors
were authorised at the 2018 Annual General Meeting to allot shares
equal to approximately one-third of the Company s issued share
capital as at 6 December 2017 or two-thirds in respect of a rights
issue The Directors were also given the power to allot Ordinary
Shares for cash up to a limit representing approximately 10 per cent
of the Company's issued share capital at 6 December 2017 without
first offering them to existing Shareholders in proportion to their
existing holdings (however more than five per cent can only be used
in connection with an acquisition or specified capital investment)

ln accordance with its Articles, the Company has granted third-party
indemnities, to the extent permitted by law to each Director and the
Group Company Secretary. which were in force during the financial
year and up to the date of signing this report The Company also
maintains Directors' and Officers' liability insurance

SHARE TRANSFER RESTR!CTIONS
The Company's Articles are designed to ensure that the number of the
Company's shares held by non-EEA nationals does not reach a level
which could jeopardise the Company's entitlement to continue to hold
or enjoy the benefit of any authorlty permission, licence or privilege
which it or any of its subsidiaries, holds or enjoys and which enables
an air serviceto be operated (each an Operating Right) ln particular,
EC Council Regulation 1008/2008 on the licensing of air carriers
requires that an air carrier must be majority-owned and effectively
controlled by EEA nationals

The Articles allow the Directors from time to time, to set a 'permitted

Maximum' on the number of the Company's shares which may
be owned by non-EEA nationals at such level as they believe is in
compliance with the operating Rights provided that the permitted

Maximum shall not be less than 40 per cent of the total number of
issued shares

The Company maintains a separate register (the'Separate Register')
of shares in which non-EEA nationals, whether individuals. bodies
corporate or other entities have an interest (such shares are referred
to as'Relevant Shares'in the Articles). An interest in this context
is widely defined (see below) The Dlrectors may require relevant
members or other persons to provide them with information to
enable them to determine whether shares are, or are to be treated
as. Relevant Shares lf such information is not provided. then the
Directors will be able, at their discretion, to determine that shares
to which their enquiries relate be treated as Relevant Shares
Registered Shareholders will also be obliged to notify the Company if
they are aware either (a) that any share they hold ought to be treated
as a Relevant Share for this purpose or (b) that any share they hold

which is treated as a Relevant Share should no longer be so treated
ln this case, the Directors shall request such information and evidence
as they require to satisfy themselves that the share should not be
treated as a Relevant Share and, on receipt of such evidence, shall
remove particulars of the share from the Separate Register lf the
Directors determine that such action is necessary to protect any
operating Right due to the fact that an lntervening Act (an 'lntervening

Act' being the refusal, withholding, suspension or revocation of any

Number of shares
in issue at

30 September
2018
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0perating Right or the imposition of materially inhibiting conditions
or limitations on any operating Right in either case, by any state or

regulatory authority) has taken place or is contemplated. threatened
or intended or the aggregate number of Relevant Shares is such

that an lntervening Act may occur or the ownership or control of the
Company is such that an lntervening Act may occur, the Directors may,

among other things:

, identify those shares that give rise to the need to take action and

treat such shares as affected shares ('Affected Shares') (see below);

0r
> set a Permitted Maximum on the number of Relevant Shares that

may subsist at any time (which may not. save in the circumstances
referred to below, be lower than 40 per cent of the total number

of issued shares) and treat any Relevant Shares in excess of this
permitted Maximum as Affected Shares (see below) The Directors

may serve a notice (an'Affected Share Notice') in respect of any

Affected Share An Affected Share Notice can, if it so specifies.

have the effect of depriving the registered holder of the right to
attend. vote and speak at general meetings which they would
otherwise have had as a consequence of holding such shares

Such an Affected Share Notice can if it so specifies, also require

the recipient to dispose of the Affected Shares (so that the Relevant

Shares will then cease to be Affected Shares) within 2l days or

such longer period as the Directors may determine The Directors

are also given the power to sell such Affected Shares themselves
where there is non-compliance with an Affected Share Notice at the
best price reasonably obtainable at the relevant time on behalf of
the Shareholder.

ln deciding which shares are to be dealt with as Affected Shares

the Directors, in their sole opinion, will determine which Relevant

Shares may give rise to the fact of risk of an lntervening Act occurring

and, subject to any such determination, will have regard to the
chronological order in which particulars of Relevant Shares have been,

or are to be, entered in the Separate Register unless to do so would,

in the sole opinion of the Directors, be inequitable lf there is a change

in any applicable law or the Company or any subsidiary receives any

direction, notice or requirement from any state or regulatory authority
which, in either case, necessitates such action to overcome. prevent

or avoid an lntervening Act, then the Directors may either:

> lower the permitted 14aximum to the minimum extent that they
consider necessary to overcome prevent or avoid an lntervening
Act: or

, resolve that any Relevant Shares shall be treated as Affected
Shares The rights of the Directors referred to above apply until
such time as the Directors resolve that grounds for the making of a

determination have ceased to exist whereupon the Dlrectors must
withdraw such determination

The Permitted Maximum is currently set at 45% This Permitted
I'laximum may be varied by the Directors lf the Directors resolve

to vary the Permitted Maximum to deal with shares as Affected
Shares or relax the ownership limitations, they shall publish in at

least one national newspaper in the UK (and in any other country in

which the shares are listed) notice of the determination and of any

Permitted Maximum

Thomos Cook Group ptc I Annuot Rcport ond Account! 2Ol8

The Directors shall publish, from time to time:

, information as to the number of shares particulars of which have

been entered on the Separate Register and
> any Permitted Maximum that has been specified

The Directors may not register any person as a holder of shares

unless such person has furnished to the Directors a declaration,

together with such evidence as the Directors may require, stating
(a) the name and nationality of any person who has an interest in any

such share and. if the Directors require, the nature and extent of such

interest or (b) such other information as the Directors may from time
to time determine

The Directors may decline to register any person as a Shareholder

if satisfactory evidence of information is not forthcoming
Existing holders of shares will be recorded on the Special Register

unless and until they have certified, to the satisfaction of the
Company that they are EEA nationals

A person shall be deemed to have an interest in relation to
Thomas Cook Group plc shares if:

, such person has an interest that would (subject as provided below)

be taken into account, or which they would be taken as having. in

determining for the purposes of Part 22 of the Companies Act 2006

whether a person has a notifiable interest; or
, they have any such interest as is referred to in part 22 of the

Companies Act 2006, but shall not be deemed to have an interest
in any shares in which their spouse or any infant child or stepchild
(or in Scotland pupil or minod of theirs is interested by virtue of
that relationship or which they hold as a bare or custodian trustee
under the laws of England, or as a simple trustee under the laws of
Scotland. and interest shall be construed accordingly,

As at 30 September 2018 611.360726 Ordinary Shares (39 8l%) were
held on the Separate Register

PROVISIONS OF CHANGE OF CONTROT

The Company has in place (i) a f875 million revolving credit facility
and bonding and guarantee facility (the 'Facilities Agreement') and (ii)

€100 million of annual rolling bilateral funding from one of its insurance
providers (the Bilateral Agreement'), The Facilities Agreement provides

that, on any change of control ofthe Company, the lenders under

the Facilities Agreement are obligated to negotiate (for a period not

exceeding 50 days, unless extended by agreement for a further period

not exceeding 30 days) terms for continuing the facilities but where
agreement on new terms cannot be reached, any such lender is

entitled to: (i) receive a repayment of amounts owing to such lender;

(ii) cancel all of its commitments under the Facilities Agreement. and/

or (iii) under certain conditions demand immedlate credit support
The Bilateral Agreement provides that. on a change of control of the
Company, the lender is entitled to examine its willingness to provide

credit so that any continuation of the facility can be adapted to the
changed situation
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The Company also has outstanding C750 million 6.25 per cent
guaranteed notes due 2022 On the occurrence of certain change of
control events relating to the Company. each holder has the option
to require the Company to repurchase all or any part ofthe holder's

notes at a purchase price in cash equal to 101 per cent ofthe principal

amount plus accrued and unpaid interest

The Company's subsidiary, Thomas Cook Finance 2 plc has

outstanding C400 million 3,875 per cent guaranteed notes due 2023

0n the occurrence of certain change of control events relating to the
Company each holder has the option to require Thomas Cook Finance

2 plc (the issuer of these notes) to repurchase all or any part of the
holder's notes at a purchase price in cash equal to l0l per cent of the
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest

POLlIICAt DONATIONS
The Company did not make any political donations during the financial
year (2017: nil)

T'IAJOR SHAREHOTDINGS

The table below shows notifications of major shareholdings received

by the Company in accordance with rule 5 of the Disclosure Guidance

and Transparency Rules:

ThomorCockGroup ptc I AnnuqlRGpcrtqndAcccunts20lS

EMPTOYEE DISCTOSURES

Disclosures in respect of employee involvement can be found on

pages 34 to 37 and 74 to 75

As explained on page 35 the Company has in place various local
policies in respect of Diversity and lnclusion, which will be brought
together under a Group-wide Diversity and lnclusion Framework
in early 2019 The Company's overall position on the employment of

disabled colleagues is that the Company will never discriminate on the
grounds of disability Full and fair consideration is given to applications
received by those with disabilities based on their skills and experience
for the role Those with disabilities within the organisation are
provided with appropriate learning and development, training courses,
career development and promotion opportunities, with care taken
to ensure that these are made fully available lf a colleague was to
become disabled during their employment, reasonable adjustments
would be made to support the colleague to ensure that they are

retained in the business with the appropriate support and/or training
provided for them to continue in their role. or if appropriate an

alternative role within the business

FINANCIAT INSTRUMENTS

Disclosures about the Group's use of financial instruments can be

found on page 52 of the Financial Review

NON-FINANCIAT INFORMATION STATE],IENT INDEX

The below tables set out where information in relation to the
following matters can be found:

Percentage
of issued

capital (%)

as at 28
November

20t8

lnvesco Ltd 2r4.653.6r7 r3.97 2r2668,340 14-17 Matter Page reference

FPI UK Limited {Fosun)

Standard Life
Aberdeen

200,542137 13.06 200,547,137 13.06

t\2,373,327 7.32 112,373.327 7.32

Environmental matters Sustainabllity section on pages 38 to 4l

Colleagues PeoDle section on oaqes 34 to 37

Social matters Sustainability section on paqes 38 to 4l

Human riqhts Paqe 4l of the Sustainability section

Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery people section on pages 34 to 37

The Strategic Report and Directors' Report comprising pages 2 to 87

have been approved and are signed by order ofthe Board by:

ATICE MARSDEN
GROUP COMPANY SECRETARY

28 November 2018

Registered office
3rd Floor. South Building
200 Aldersgate
London ECIA 4HD

Registered number
609t951

Marathon Asset
Management LLP

The Capital Group

0rbis Holdings Limited 76,633,091

71,257,909 5.03 77,251,909 5.03

80,539,797 5.24 76J87.697 4.99

4.99 76,633,09t 4.99

BlackRock. lnc il5,490,266 Below 596 Below 5%

DISCTOSURE OF INFORMATION UNDER
usTtNG RUtE 9.8.4
There is no information to be disclosed under Listing Rule 984

GREENHOUSE GAS EMlSSIONS

lnformation in respect of greenhouse gas emissions have been
included in the'Sustainability section of the Strategic Report on

page 39

87
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ANNUAL STATEMENT
BYCHAIROF
REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

DEAR SHAREHOTDERS

0n behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present our Directors'
Remuneration Report for the financial year ended 50 September 20lB

OUR PERFORMANCE IN FYIS

As noted elsewhere, 2018 was a year of mixed fortunes for Thomas
Cook The Tour Operator business in particular was impacted by a

prolonged period of hot weather across our source markets in the
critical last few months of the year This resulted in reduced revenue,
which when combined wrth increased spend on transformation
activities. impacted both EBIT and Unlevered Free Cash Flow
Despite the disappointing year-end result, the business made good

strategic progress through the year whlch positions us well to drive
performance improvement Delivery of strategic goals included the
launch of our alliance with Expedia in the first five markets, the
launch of our hotel investment fund and the opening of twelve
own-brand hotels including the first Cook's CIub in Crete

The long-term sustainability of the business is based on the delivery
of a very clear strategy to transform Thomas Cook into a more
streamlined business that puts the'Customer at our Heart' We believe
that this strategy continues to be the right one to distinguish us from
our competition and create real value for our customers.

0ur Remuneration Policy (the Policy) directly links Executive Directors'
pay to the achievement of stretching performance targets which
underpin this strategy The Committee ensures that the performance

measures in the incentive plans reflect the Key Performance
lndicators (KPls) of the business and therefore align the interests
of the Executive Directors to those of our Shareholders

PAY PHITOSOPHY

0ur approach is always to ensure that our Policy is aligned with
our strategy. with outcomes that are fair and have a strong Iink
to the delivery of good performance This remains our priority as
a Committee

As set out in the Policy fixed pay is set at median levels against
the market, and the provision of benefits set by the local market in

whlch the Executive Director operates Variable remuneration is a
combination of both short and long-term incentives which are linked
to the execution of the strategy

We set stretching targets to incentivise and reward profitable
growth, disciplined cash management, great customer service, high
levels of colleague engagement and long-term value creation for our
Shareholders The diagram below shows the alignment between
our strategy (as set out on pages 2 to 9) and KPls (as set out on
page 32)

Thomo. Cook Group plc

ANNUAL STATEMENT
REMUNERATION

El Sce ta!es 86 in !tr

BY CHAIR OF THE
CO M M ITTEE

DIRECTORS'
REMUNERATION

REPORT

REM U N ERATION COM M ITTEE

CHAIRMAN
Warren Tucker

OTHER MEMBERS
Dawn Airey, Annet Aris, Paul Edgecliffe-Johnson and Lesley Knox

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE
All members of the Committee are lndependent
Non-Executive Directors

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES
El Sec !::qes 6,i lr cf.

MEETINGS ALSO ATTENDED BY:

The Chairman and other Non-Executive Directors Peter
Fankhauser (CEO). Alice Marsden (Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary), Pete Smith (Mercer) and members of the
HR Leadership Team as required, being julie Armstrong (Group

HR Director). Caroline Forsyth (Group Reward Director) and Emily

Hallett (Head of Executive Remuneration) All attendees are by

invitation only

SCHEDULED MEETINGS

Ihis report is set out in the following key sections:
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LINKING PAY WITH PERFORMANCE

Underlying EBITr

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Unlevered Free Cash Flow

Net Promoter Score (NPS)

Colleague Engagement

CFO Departure

As has been announced, Bill Scott will be leaving Thomas Cook on

31 May 2019 having stepped down from the Board with effect from
50 November 20lB The Committee agreed Bills leaving arrangements
in line with the policy and the details were also disclosed at the
time on our website Full details of the arrangements are set out
on page 107

ln order to ensure continuity we are pleased that Sten Daugaard

who has served as a Non-Executive Director on the Board of our
German subsidiary has assumed the CF0 role on an interim basis
until a permanent successor is appointed Sten s knowledge and

experience will be a valuable addition as we continue to deliver our
business transformation

Conrnrittee activrties

Committee activities during the year included:

) ongoing dtalogue with Shareholders:
> deciding the salary increase for the CEO for April 2018

resulting in an increase of two per cent, in line with the overall
employee population:

, determining performance against the targets set under the FYIB

Annual Bonus PIan:
> deciding on the continued operation of the terms of the Annual

Bonus Plan and setting targets for the FYl9 Plan:
> determining award levels under the PSP for the grant to be made in

FYl9 As was the case last year, the PSP award will only vest subject
to challenging Relative TSR and EPS targets described more fully on
page 106;

> approving the exit arrangements for Bill Scottr
, approving the remuneration of Sten Daugaard in line with the Policy;
> Considering the adjustment to prior year accounts and whether

there should be any impact on deferred remuneration:
> taking into consideration gender pay gap employee terms and

conditions and corporate governance developments throughout the
year and:

, performing annual governance checks: including the review of
dilution limits shareholding levels against the Policy, and reviewing

risks associated with executive remuneration

Core Measure

Core Measure

Core Measure

Role-specific measure
(Leadership)

lnterests are
further aligned
with Shareholders

Core Measure ./ through Total

Shareholder Return
(TSR) as a Core

!leasu re

on paqe 54

REMUNERAIION OUICOMES IN FYIS
Short tenr incentives

We continue to make progress against our strategic objectives
achieving a number of important milestones over the year which are
shown in the strategic projects outcomes for the FYIB Bonus Plan on
pages 102 and 103 However following challenging trading conditions
in the summer we did not achieve our financial targets nor our
performance hurdles and in accordance with the FYl8 Bonus Plan

rules no bonus is payable

Targets and outcomes for the year are fully disclosed on page 102

Long-term incentives

The PSP award made in FY16 (granted in December 2015) is subject to
the achievement of performance conditions relating to FYIS This was
the first award made under the new performance conditions of EPS

and TSR As performance against the targets have not been achieved.
awards held by Executive Directors will lapse on the third anniversary
of the grant date in December 2018 The targets and outcomes under
this award are shown on page 103

0verall variable pay cornpared to the maximum available

Financral outcomes reflect the challenging trading conditions of
summer 2018 and additionally the Group NPS score for the year
showed a slight decline This is clearly disappointing as it fails to
reflect the considerable progress management has made to transform
the business for sustainable growth Remuneration outcomes for the
year reflect these results and are shown below compared with the
maximum available:

CEO

€2 6m
_______l

maxlmum

cF0 I
€0 Jgm €0 95m

__ _____-a__ ________l
actual maxrmum

I Base salary I Benefits rncl pens on

Note:

89
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ANNUAT STATEMENT BY CHAIR
OF REMUN ERATION COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

APPROACH FOR FYIg
Salary reviews

Salary reviews are undertaken annually in April of each year.

0verall salary increases for the Group for 2019 have not yet been

considered, with the exception that any increase that is awarded

to Executive Directors in April 2019 will not exceed the increase
provided to the general employee population

Short-term incentives

Three years ago. we reviewed our bonus plan (the plan) to align it to
our'Customer at our Heart' strategy Ihe Plan was rolled out to all

bonusable roles across the Group, where possible, and continues
to be operated consistently across the Group The FYl9 Plan will
have more emphasis on operating profit. which takes account of
spend on separately disclosed items, and more focus on free cash

flow generation There will be full retrospective disclosure of targets
and performance against these targets in next years Directors'

Remuneration Report The annual bonus opportunity will remain

at 150 per cent of base salary with one third of any payment being

deferred into shares

Long-tenn incentives

The Committee intends to grant PSP awards in early January 2019

Due to the fall in the share price, the Committee decided that at the
present time FYlg psp Awards should be scaled back by 50%, although

ifthere is a material change to the share price this may be adjusted
to reflect the share price at the time of award. The performance

conditions for the award will be Relative TSR and Basic EPS, the target
range of which is disclosed on page 106

REMUNERATION AT A GTANCE

The table below shows the remuneration arrangements for Executive

Directors for FYl9 and provides a high-level summary ofthe outcomes

for the year:

FYI9

Bill scott

t420,000
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FYIS

chiel
Erecut ve
officel

chiel Chael
Financial Financial
officer olflcel
lBill scott) {llichael

Heatyl

Bonus
payment

% of base salary 0% 0% 0%

€0f0

LTIP awards
vesting
in the year

% of maximum
award vesting

Number of vested None

shares

llote:
l'lrchael Healy was el grble ior a FYIB bonus paymenl for the per od I october 2017 to 3l l"larch 2018

howeveT rn accordance with calculated 0utcomes no bonus rs payable

ENGAGING WITH COTTEAGUES

We are conscious of recent corporate governance developments,

the reporting of which will apply to us from 1 January 2019 and we
are working towards implementing and reporting against them

As the Chairman explained in his Corporate Governance Statement
on page 62 we are looking at ways we can give the Remuneration

Committee better visibility of colleague pay across the Group

including introducing a new'workforce dashboard into Remuneration

Committee packs and inviting the new'Colleague Advisory NED to
attend Remuneration Committee meetings, so that the Committee

can better consider colleague pay and views and provide for the best
possible alignment with Executive pay

CTOSING REMARKS

As a Committee we believe that our approach to remuneration

closely aligns the interests of Executive Directors to the interests of

our Shareholders ln the coming months, we will begin work on our

Directors Remuneration policy to be put to a Shareholder vote at our

AGI'4 in February 2020 and we will be consulting with you in respect of
this next year, 0ur aim remains to ensure a clear link between pay and

performance and we will continue to operate in accordance with our

Policy that rewards for the execution of our'Customer at our Heart

strategy, and the delivery of long-term Shareholder value

WARREN TUCKER

CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

28 November 20lB

l{ame

lnnual salary

Peter Fankhausel

t732 100

l.laximum bonus 150% of base salary
opportunity (one-third
defered lnto shares
for two yearsl

150% of base salary
(to be prorated for
time served)

PsP award (subject to
performancel

75% of base salary No award
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DIRECTORS'
REMUNERATION DIRECTORS'

REPORT REMUNERATION
POUCY

This section of the report sets out Thomas Cook's Directors' Remuneration policy (the 'Policy') The Policy was subject to a binding
Shareholder vote at the Company's Annual General Meeting on 9 February 2017 and was effective from this date

REMUNERAIION PHITOSOPHY AND PRINC!PtES
Thomas Cook Group plc's Remuneration Policy supports the organisation's overall remuneration philosophy of pay for performance
and is based on the following principles:

> Attracts and motivates high-calibre
talent without paying more than is
necessary

, Facilitates delivery of a level of total
remuneration which is competitive
with companies of a similar size,
international aspect and complexity
in the relevant market for talent

, Focuses l"lanagement on rigorous
execution 0f Thomas Cook's strategy
with the right behaviours in line with
the Company s values

> Performance-related pay plans

will provide meaningful reward to
I'lanagement. dependent upon the
satisfaction of challengrng targets
which are critical to the delivery of
our business strategy

, Provides an appropriate mix of fixed,
short and long'term performance-
related pay via simple structures

> Reflects the Company s relentless
focus on performance and preserves

and enhances company reputation
without encouraging excessive
risk-taking

> ls linked to the creation of long-term
sustainable value through long-term
performance targets and share-based
remuneration

, Remuneration should support the
creation of long-term Shareholder
value and the building of a strong
and sustainable future for Thomas
Cook worthy of our customers and
our heritage

9r
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CONTINUED

POTICY TABTE

Element Pulpose and llnk to
strateglc objectlYes

0peration

DI RECTORS' REM U N ERATION POTICY

Base salary , Provides fixed remuneration
for the role which reflects
the size and scope of
the Executive Director's
responsibilities

) Attracts motivates and
retains the high-calibre
talent necessary to deliver
the business strategy

) Salaries are paid monthly and are normally reviewed annually There is no automatic right to an increase each year

) Consideration is typically given to a range of factors including:

- size and scope of the Executive Directors responsibilities;

- performance and experience in the rolei

- typical pay levels for comparable roles in companies of a similar size international aspect and complexity
in the relevant market:

- the economic climate and market conditions in which the business operates: and

- overall salary budgets and levels across the Group

Retirement
benefits

, To provide competitive post
retirement benefits

> Attracts and retains the
high-calibre talent necessary
to deliver the business
strategy

> Set at an appropriate level of
risk and cost to the Group

) Payment may be made either into a pension Plan (for example, a defined contribution Plan or into such other
arrangement the Committee considers has the same economic benefit) or paid as a cash allowance with Company

contributions set as a percentage of basic salary in lieu of any Company pension contributions

' Peter Fankhauser also has a German pension provision relating to his employment with Thomas Cook prior to his

appointment to the Thomas Cook Group Board which has been frozen at the level accrued to 26 November 2014

(thedatehewasappointedCEo)andwillbepayablefromage60 peterhastheoptiontocommutetheannualpension

to a one-off lump sum payment at age 60 lf peters employment is terminated without good cause a pension may be

paid from termination

Benefits ' Ensures the overall
remuneration package is
competitive

> Attracts and retains the
high-calibre talent necessary
to deliver the business
strategy

, Benefits may include those currently available to Executive Directors ancluding a car allowance a travel allowance
or reimbursements, tax advice, private healthcare benefits for the Executive Directors and their immediate family,

employee travel concessions and life assurance These are reviewed annually by the Committee to ensure that they
provide a competitive remuneration package and facilitate the delivery of the business strategy

, Executive Directors will be entitled to take part in any'all-employee benefits and share plans on the same basis as

other employees

, The Company reserves the right to offer benefits to Executive Directors depending on their individual circumstances
whichmayinclude(butarenotlimitedto) housing travel.healthcareandotherallowances

> ln the case of non-UK Executive Directors the Committee may consider additional allowances in line with standard
practice for that region

Annual bonus ) Focuses l,lanagement
on rigorous execution of
Thomas Cook s strategy on
an annual basis

) Rewards annual
performance against
challenging annual targets
and key performance

indicators which are critical
to the delivery of our
business strategy

> Compulsory deferral into the
Company's shares provides

a link to the creatron of
long-term sustainable value
and therefore a retention
element

> The clawback and malus
provisions enables the
Company to mitigate risk

, Measures and targets are set annually and payout levels are determined by the Committee after the year end based

on performance against those targets

> The Committee has full discretion to amend the bonus payout (upwards or downwards), if in itsJudgement any

formulaic output does not produce a fair result for either the individual Executive Director or the Company taking
account of the overall business performance or situation of the Company

> Executive Directors must defer at least onelhjrd of their annual bonus into Company shares which then vest two
years after the cash bonus payment date

> Clawback and malus provisions will apply to the cash and deferred elements of the annual bonus as described in the
notes to this table

, Eligibility for any bonus payment will be forfeited if the participant leaves employment before the cash bonus payment

date, or before the vesting date in the case of any deferred share award unless in specific good leaver circumstances

) Good leaver terms are described in more detail in the 'Service Contracts and Loss of 0ffice Payments section of
this Policy

92
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Maximum opportunity
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Perfotmence metrlcs

> Whilst the Committee has not set a monotary
maximum, ordinalily base salary increases will
usually not excesd the aveiage increase awarded
to othfi eInployees in the Group

, More signffieant increases maybe made to
salary levels in certain circumstances as required.
for example, to reflect

- incr€ase iri scope of role or responsibllity;

- performance in role; and

- an Executive Dkector being moved to appropriate
markot posltioning over time.

, performance, through our performance Management process, is one of the key considerations in reviewing
and setting salary

> Contributions into any plan or paid as a cash
allowance will be up to 30% of base salary per annum

) None

, Tho Committee has not set a monetary maximum ) None
(given the value of benet'rts will vary based on the
individual's cireumstances) and reserv€s the right
to provide such level of benefits.as it considers
appropriate to support the ongoing str4egy 0f
the Company

> For maximum performance:

- 150% of salary

t The Committee will have regard t0 various performanoe measures (which will be determlnod by the Commlttee)
measured over the lelevant finanaialyear. wheh determlning bonus outoomes

) No less than 70fr ofthe award is based on fihancial measures and up to 30X ofthe award may be based on
the achievement of other strategic or role-specific objectlves. whlch may be financial or non-financial

) For achlevemeht of a 'threshold' pBrformance level (the minimum level of performance that results in any payment).

Ro more thafl 20% ofthe maximum for each element of the bonug pays out

) For achievoment of a 'mid' performanc€ lerrel. no more than 60* of the maximum for each performance metric
in relatlon to the bonus pays out

> For achievemeot of a'maximum'p€rformance level. 100*i ofthe maxiinum pay! out
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DI RECTORS' REMU NERATION POTICY
CONTINUED

POIICY TABTE coNTNUED

Elemenl Purpose and link to
strategic objectives

0peration

long-term > Focuses Management > A summary of the key features of the Plan is set out below:

shate-based on rigorous execution of - awards will vest dependent upon the achievement of performance condltions set by the Committee measured over
incentiye Plan Thomas Cook's strategy over a perlormance period of at least three years;

the longer-term - awards made under the new psp approved by Shareholders in February 2017. i e. awards made from December 2018

an additional holding period {currently two years) following the end of the performance

e determines otherwtse:

retion to amend the number of shares that vest {upwards or downwards), if in its
tput does not produce a fair result for either the individual Executive Director or the
the overall business performance or situation of the Company: and

articipant leaves employment before vesting unless in specific'good leaver

terms are described in more detail in the'Service Contracts and Loss of office
olicy

s will apply as described in the notes to this table

the creation of long-term
Shareholder value

strateglc share-
based awald

Updates to Policy
following AGil:

, l.laximum awaad
level is capped
at 200f laligned
to maxlmum
PsP awardl

, The Commlttee
will only use
thls award
following
consultation
wlth major
Shareholders

, The Strategic Share lncentive
Plan (SSIP) provides focus on

near-term strategic targets
that are important to the
future strategic success of
Thomas Cook

> Long-term TSR targets
support the creation of long-
term Shareholder value

> A summary of the key features is set out below:

- an individual Executive Director can only participate in the SSIP once every four years;

- participation in the SSlp precludes partlcipation in the psp (or any other long-term incentive plan) in respect of that
particular financial year:

- an initial share-based award may be made based on the achievement against predefined strategic performance

target(s) assessed over a period of at least two financial years:

- the number of shares in the initial share-based award will be determined following the assessment of the strategic

target(s):

- the initial share-based award will be subject to a TSR multiplier measured over three years commencing in the year

the individual is invited to participate in the SSIP:

- awards will be subJect to an additional holding period following the end of the TSR performance period, unless the

Committee determines otherwise;

- the Comm i ttee has full d iscretion to amend the level of vesting (upwa rds or downwa rd s), if in its judgement any

formulaic output does not produce a fair result for either the individual Executive Director or the Company taking

account of the overall business performance or situation of the Company; and

- the award will lapse if the participant leaves employment before the initial share-based award is made unless

therearespecificgoodleavercircumstances lftheparticipantleavesemploymentfollowingthegrantoftheinitial
share-based award the award will subsist on its original terms unless the Committee determines otherwise

> Clawback and malus provisions will apply as described in the notes to this table

chalrman and
ilon-ExscutiYe
Director tees

, To reward individuals for
fulfilling the relevant role

) Attracts and retains
individuals with the skills

experience and knowledge
to contribute to an effective
Board

> The Committee is responsible for determining the fees for the Chairman of the Company

) The fees for the other Non-Executive Directors are set by the Board

> The fee structure may include:

- a basic fee:

- additional fees for chairmanship or membership of Board Committees;

- additionalfeesforfurtherresponsibilities(forexample SeniorlndependentDirectorship);and

- travel and hotel costs that are deemed to be an employment benefit by the relevant tax authority may also be paid

{along with any associated tax liability)

PAYI.IEiIIS WHIC}I ARE I{OT Iil ACCORDAI{CE WITI{ TI{E POTICY

payments) notwithstanding th;t they are not in line with the policy set out above where the terms ofthe payment were agreed (i) before the 2014 Annual General Meeting (the date

wereconsislentwiththeShareholder-approvedpolicyinforceatthetimetheywereagreediorliii)atatimewhentherelevantindividualwasnotaDlrector0ftheCompanyand in

the opinion ofthe Committee the payment was not in consideration for the individual becoming a Director of the Company For these purposes payments includes the C0mmittee

sattsfytng awards of vaflable remuneration and in relation to an award over shares the terms of the payment are agreed at the time Lhe award is granted
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llaxlmum opportunlty
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Perfotmance metrlcs

, Under the Plan rules, the aggregate value of all
awards made in respect of any financial year must
not exceed 200% of base salary

> The normal maximum face value of awards is 150%

of base salary However. the Committee has a

discretion to award up to the Plan rules maximum,
when it believes the situation warrants a higher
level of award

) The performance measures for the PSp will be a combination of financial measures and share price-based

measures,measuredoveratleastathree-yearperformanceperiod Normally.theweightingswillbeasfollows:

- at least 40% will be based on financial measures;

- at least 40% will be based on share price-based measures; and

- the remaining proportion may be based either on financial or share price-based measures

)Theperformancemeasuresmaybeadjusted,followinggrant bytheCommitteetoensureaconsistentbasis
of calculation and to provide a fair reflection of the Company's performance

) For achievement of a 'threshold' performance level (which is the minimum level of performance that results
inanypartofanawardvesting) nomorethan25%ofeachrespectiveelementoftheawardwillvest

>Forachievementofa'maximum performancelevel(whichisthehighestlevelofperformancethatresults
in any additional vesting). 100% of each respective element of the award will vest

)TheCommitteemaydeterminethata target levelofperformanceisapplicabletotheaward The'target'
performance level will be between'threshold'and'maximum' performance levels and will be set in the context
ofthe business Plan For achievement of the'target'performance, between 50% and 70% ofeach respective
element of the award will vest

, Normally, there will be straight-line vesting between'threshold and maximum' or when applicable. between
'threshold'and 'target and between target'and 'maximum

, An initial award of shares of up to 150% of base salary
can be made dependent on the achievement against
strategic targets

> This initial award of shares may be increased by 33%

or decreased by 50% dependent on TSR performance

{i e the overall maximum award size in respect of any
financial year is 200%r of salary)

> Awards will be subJect to (i) a performance condition measuring strategic targets over at least two years and
(ii) a performance condition relating to the Company's TSR measured over a period of at least three years

> For achievement of a 'threshold' performance level against the strategic target (which is the minlmum level of
performancethatresultsinaninitial awardbeingmade) nomorethan25%ofthemaximuminitial awardwill
be made

, For achievement of a 'maximum' performance level against the strategic targets (which is the highest level of
performance that results in an initial award being made), an award equal to 100% of the maximum initial award
will be made

> The initial award can then be increased by 33%r or decreased by 50% based on TSR performance ensuring that
through the whole vesting period the award is subject to performance

The maximum level offees will not exceed the limit r None
set out in the Company's Articles of Association and
will be set at a level which the Committee (or the
Board. as appropriate) considers:

- reflects the time commitment and contribution that
is expected from the Chairman and Non-Executive
Directors: and

- appropriately positioned against comparable roles
in companies of a similar size and complexity in the
relevant market.

ilote:
I The maxrmum award size was approved at 225% however was subsequently capped

at 200% and rs reflected rn the wording above and through0ut thrs pohcy
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CONTINUED

EXPLANATORY DETAIT FOR POLICY TABTE

Common award terms

Awards under any ofthe Company's share Plans referred to in this
report may:

a) be granted as conditional share awards or nil or nominal-cost
options or in such other form that the Committee determines has

the same economic effect;

b) have any performance conditions applicable to them amended or

substituted by the Committee if an event occurs which causes the
Committee to determine an amended or substituted performance

condition(s) would not be materially less difficult to satisfy;

c) incorporate the right to receive an amount (in cash or additional
shares) equal to the value of dividends which would have been
paid on the shares under an award, that vest up to the time of
vesting (or where the award is subject to a holding period at
the end of the holding period) This amount may be calculated

assuming that the dividends have been reinvested in the
Company's shares on a cumulative basis;

d) be settled in cash at the Committee's discretion; and

e) be adjusted in the event of any variation of the Company s share

caprtal or any de-merger, de-listing, special dividend or other event

that may affect the Company s share price

Explanation of chosen performance measures and the target
setting process

Performance measures have been selected by the Committee to
reflect the targets and key performance indicators that are critical to
the delivery of our business strategy (as shown on page 32)

Challenging performance targets are set by the Committee each
year for the annual bonus Plan, PSP and when applicable, the SSlp

When setting these targets, the Committee will take into account
a number of different reference points, including the Company's

business Plan and consensus analyst forecasts of the Company's
performance Full vesting will only occur for what the Committee

considers to be stretching performance against these targets

Malus and Clawback

As highlighted in the Policy table malus and clawback arrangements
are in place The following elements of the remuneration package are

subject to these provisions:

> the cash part of the annual bonus will be subject to clawback
provisions for a period of at least two years following payment:

> the unvested deferred annual bonus shares will be subject to malus
provisions: and

> the PSP and SSIP will be subject to malus and clawback provisions

until the end of any holding period for a period of five years from
the grant of a PSP award, or in the case of the SSIP the date the
Executive Director was invited to participate in the SSIP

ThoncrCookGroupplc I AnnuolleportondAccount 2OlS

Malus and clawback may be applied in the following circumstances:

) a material adverse misstatement or misrepresentation of the
Company's or any Group member's financial statements; and/or

, the participant or their team having engaged in gross misconduct or

in conduct which resulted in significant losses, as determined by the
Committee: and/or

> the Company having suffered serious reputational damage or

financial downturn. as determined by the Committee as a result of
any action (or in the case of awards under the new PSP or SSIP any

action or omission) taken by the participant or their team

Salary, pension and benefits are not subject to clawback

Shareholding requirements

Executive Directors are required to build and maintain a shareholding

in the Company to a value of at least 200 per cent of base salary

within a five-year period commencing on appointment as an

Executive Director.

Unless the Committee determines otherwise, those Executive

Directors who do not at any point meet the shareholding
requirements must hold any shares vesting net of tax under the
Company's share Plans until the requirements are met

Policy for the remuneration of employees generally

Remuneration arrangements are determined throughout the Group

based on the same principle of pay for performance Reward should

be achieved for delivery of our business strategy and should be

sufficient to attract, motivate and retain high-calibre talent, without
paying more than is necessary, with remuneration based on

market rates

Thomas Cook has operations based in a number of different countries
and employees with different levels of skills and experience, and

whilst based on the over-arching principle of pay for performance,

reward policies may vary depending upon these factors

APPROACH TO RECRU ITM ENT RE],I U N ERATION

When agreeing a remuneration package for the appointment of a new
Executive Director the Committee will apply the following principles:

> The remuneration package will be sufficient to attract, motivate and

retain the high-calibre talent necessary to develop and deliver the
business strategy

> The Committee will seek to ensure that no more is paid than
rs necessary

> ln the next applicable Annual Remuneration Report, the
Committee will explain to Shareholders the rationale for the
relevant arrangements
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lnitial
long-term
incentive
award

The following variations may be considered by the Committee for
inclusion in a recruitment package for an Executive Director:

An initial long-term incentive award may be made in
line with the opportunity in the policy table (either

200% under the PSP or 150% under the SSIP with the
opportunity to increase to 200%r upon vesting subject
to TSR performance)

The Committee will ensure:
) the award is linked to the achievement of appropriate

and challenging performance targets The Committee
has the flexibility to use different performance
measures and weightings to those set out in the
Policy table;

, the award will be subject to the leaver provisions
set out in the 'Service Contracts and Loss of office
Payments section; and

> awards will only be made following consultation

The initial annual bonus opportunity will be in line with
the opportunity of 150%, as set out in the Policy table

The Committee will ensure the award is linked to the
achievement of appropriate and challenging performance
targets The Committee has the flexibility to use different
performance measures and weightings to those set out
in the Policy table

The terms of any compensation will be determined
by taking into account the terms of any forfeited
awards, including;
, performance achieved or likely to be achieved:
> the proportion of performance/vesting period

remaining: and
, the form and timing of the original award

ilotice period The initial notice period may be longer than the Company's
six-month Policy (up to a maximum of 24 months)
However, this will reduce by one month for every month
served. until the Company's Policy position is reached

Where necessary, the Company will pay appropriate
relocation costs, in line with market practice
The Committee will seek to ensure that no more
is paid than is necessary

ThomorCookGroup ptc i AnnuotRcportondAccountr20lS

For an individual becoming an Executive Director as a result ofan
internal promotion from within Thomas Cook or as a result of an

acquisition, any awards under other arrangements which were
made prior to joining the Board may be allowed to continue under
the original terms or under a revised basis (such as a roll-over into
Thomas Cook shares) if the Committee determines appropriate

Fee levels for a new Chairman or new Non-Executive Directors will be
determined in accordance with the Policy set out in the Policy table

SERVICE CONTRACIS AND IOSS
OF OFFICE PAYMENTS

Executive Directors
> Executive Directors have Company service contracts For Peter

Fankhauser and Bill Scott. the service contracts provide for
a six-month notice period from both the Company and the
Executive Director

> lf the Company terminates the employment of the Executive Director
with immediate effect, a payment in lieu of notice may be made
This may include base salary, pension and benefits

) The extent to which any performance linked elements of an

Executive Directors remuneration package will be delivered will
depend on the ctrcumstances ofthe Executive Directors departure
and whether the Committee considers the Executive Director to be a
'good leaver' A'good leaver'scenario may constitute circumstances
where the Executive Director leaves because of disability, injury,
ill-health, redundancy or retirement or the Executive Director's
employing company or business being sold out ofthe Group, for any
other reason that the Committee determines appropriate or on the
Executive Director's death

> lf an Executive Director leaves as a 'good leaver during the annual
bonus performance year or before the normal bonus payment date,
a bonus payment in respect of the year may be made, which will
be pro-rated to reflect the portion of the performance year elapsed
and performance achieved at the end of the performance year.

This bonus may be paid in such proportions ofcash and shares as
determined by the Committee and paid on the normal payment dates

, lf the participant leaves as a 'good leaver' before the end of the
deferral period, any unvested deferred bonus awards will vest at the
normal vesting date

, Any'good leaver's unvested awards under the PSP vest to
the extent determined by the Committee taking into account
performance achieved against any relevant performance targets
and the proportion of the vesting period that has elapsed

, SSIP awards will lapse if the individual leaves prior to the initial
share-based award being made, unless in a good leaver scenario,
defined for the purposes of the SSIP as death ill-health inlury
or disability only lf a participant in the SSIP leaves after the
initial share-based award has already been made. the award will
continue to subsist on its original terms, unless the Committee
determines otherwise

) Where PSP and SSIP awards are subject to an additional holding
period, they will be released following the end of the holding period,
unless in the case of death when vesting will be accelerated
Awards structured as options shall be exercisable for a period of six
months (or l2 months in the case of death) from vesting (or where
subject to a holding period, release)

lnitial
annual bonus
opportunity

compensation
for forfeited
awards

Relocati0n
costs

Under reporting regulations Thomas Cook is required to set out
the maximum amount of variable pay which could be paid to a new
Executive Director in respect of their recruitment The Committee has
set this figure in line with the maximum allowed under the short-term
and long-term incentive Plans combined, being either 350 per cent
if a PSP award has been made, or 300 per cent (rising to a maximum
of 350 per cent based on the TSR multiplier) if a SSIP has been made.

in addition to the maximum opportunity under the annual bonus
This excludes the value of any compensation for forfeited awards

llote:
I The marimum award srze was approved at 225 per cent however was subsequently capped

at 200 per cent and rs reflected rn the word ng above and throuqhout thrs po|cy
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OUTSIDE APPOINTMENTS

The Company recognises the benefits to the individual, and to the
Group, of Executive Directors taking on external appointments as

Non-Executive Directors Subject to the approval of the Committee an

Executive Director may accept such appointments at other companies

or other simiiar advisory or consultative roles The Committee has

set a limit of one external appointment for each Executive Director,

to one FTSE 100 or 250 company. or an international company of
a similar size The Board will review the time commitment of all

outside appointments and ensure that it is satisfied that this will not
negatively impact upon the Executive Director's time commitment to
the performance of Thomas Cook duties

The Committee will allow Executive Directors to retain any

fees payable

STATEMENI OF CONSIDERATION OF CONDIIIONS
ETSEWHERE IN THE COI{PANY
When setting the Policy for Executive Directors remuneration,

the Committee has regard to the pay and employment conditions
elsewhere within the Group This includes consideration oi

, salary increases for the general employee population:
, overall spend on annual bonusi
, participation levels in the annual bonus and any long-term

incentive plans:
, company-wide benefits (including pension): and
, any other relevant factors as determined by the Committee

ln order to take into account the views of the general employee
population when formulating Executive Director pay Policy the
Committee may review information provided by the HR function
and feedback from employee satisfaction surveys

STATEM ENT OF CONSI DERAIION
OF SHAREHOTDER VIEWS

The Company is committed to ongoing engagement and seeks major

Shareholder views in advance of proposing significant changes to its
remuneration policies The Committee Chairman is available to discuss

with Shareholders any remuneration matters to help shape our Policy

and practice We report annually on any feedback received and our

responses to Shareholders views

DI RECTORS' REMUN ERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

, ln the event of a takeover or winding-up of the Company (other

than as part of an internal re-organisation of the Thomas Cook

Group), PSP and SSIP awards may vest to the extent determined
by the Committee, taking into account the performance achieved

against any relevant performance targets and, the proportion of
the vesting period that has elapsed (in the case of PSP awards) and

the period oftime that has elapsed since grant (in the case of SSlp

awards where the strategic performance condition{s) have not yet

been satisfied) Vested awards will be released from any holding
periods at the time of transaction Where a takeover occurs after
an Executive Director has been invited to participate in the Plan but

prior to the grant of the initial share-based award, the Committee

may grant the individual an award which takes into account the
Company's performance and the length of time the individual has

been a participant in the SSIP

> Awards may alternatively be 'rolled over' into new shares of an

acquiring company or at the Committee's discretion be amended

or allowed to subslst on their original terms. ln the event of any

demerger, delisting, special dividend or other event which, in the
Committee's opinion may affect the Company s current or future
share price, awards may, at the Committee's discretion, vest (and be

released) on the same basis as for a takeover
> The Committee reserves the right to make any other payments

in connection with an Executive Directors cessation of office
or employment where the payments are made in good faith in

discharge of an existing legal obligation (or by way of damages

for breach of such an obligation) or by way of a compromise or

settlement of any claim arising in connection with the cessation
of an Executive Director's office or employment Any such
payments may include but are not limited to paying any fees for
outplacement assistance and/or the Executive Director s legal and/or
professional advice fees in connection with their cessation of office
or employment

Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman, are appointed
pursuant to a letter of appointment The notice period for the
Chairman is three months, and one month for the other Non-Executive

Directors All Non-Executive Directors are subject to annual re-election
by Shareholders at the Annual General l4eeting The Non-Executive

Directors'letters of appointment continue until the date stated in

their appointment letter unless they are terminated for cause or on

the notice period stated. or if they are not re-elected at the Annual

General Meeting The Directors'service contracts and letters of
appointment are kept for inspection by Shareholders at the
Company's registered off ice
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!TLUSTRATIVE PERFORITIANCE SCENARIOS
This section illustrates the levels of remuneration that may be received by the current Executive Directors. Their remuneration is set in
accordance with the Policy. The charts below show three scenarios: (a) fixed pay, comprising of base salary. benefits and pension, (b) mid
and (c) maximum of overall potential:

- cEo - PETER FANKHAUSER - -------- ------ --- --- CFO - Bttt SCOIT --- ---
Total remuneration f '000 Total remuneration €'000

4 000

3,500

3 000

2 500

2.000

I 500

r 000

500

€1.034

H

I 400

1,200

t,000

800

600

400

200

0

(a) Fixed

€519

H
(a) Fixed

0

(b) Mid (c)

I Tota f xed ffi Annual bonus I Total frxed lE Annual bonus

ln developing the scenarios, the following annualised assumptions have been made:

hl Fixed Based on fixed pay being received only, for example, base salary, benefits and pension.
This is calculated as follows:
> Base salary at the date of this report
> Benefits are based on the amount shown in the single figure table in this yeaas Annual Report on remuneration (CFo benefits

have been extrapolated from nine months to twelve months)
) Pension measured by applying cash in lieu rate against base salary as at the date ofthis report

Base salary lE'000s1 Benellts (t'000s) Penslon (C'000s) Iotal fixed l€'000s)

t82

€t5

nEn

CFO

8732

8420

t220

f84

€1,034

€5t9

lblr,rld lf performance is in line with the Company's expectations:
, Annual bonus pays out at 60% of maximum for on-target performance, based on a maximum annual eligibility of l50% of salary
> A pSP award with a face value of 150% of base salary pays out 60% of maximum (the FYl9 award will be scaled back from this level)

(cl llaximum lf performance is in line with the maximum eligibility levels:
, Full pay-out of annual bonus i e. 150% of salary with stretching performance achieved
> A psp award with a face value of 150% of base salary pays out at 100% of maximum in line with stretching performance

(the FYl9 award will be scaled back from this level)

Iote:
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ANNUAL
REPORT ON

The Remuneration Committee presents its Annual Report on
Directors'Remuneration, which is set out within this section.
Decisions taken on remuneration during the year are in line
with our Directors'Remuneration Policy, which was approved
at our Annual General Meeting in February 20u.

IHE ROtE OF IHE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for recommending

to the Board the Policy for Executive Directors and for setting the
remuneration packages for each Executive Director

The Committee also has input into the remuneration arrangements
of the Executive Committee in conjunction with the CEO and has

oversight of the Policy and remuneration packages for other senior

leaders with particular focus on the variable pay elements, ensurlng

incentives are consistently applied beyond the CEO and CFO to ensure
the execution of the strategy throughout the organisation

The aim of the Committee is to align the Policy with the overall

strategy of the Thomas Cook Group, and to ensure remuneration
reflects our Shareholders'and customers' interests governed by our

Policy and its philosophy and principles

During the year, the Committee had six scheduled meetings At the
end of each financial year at the Committee's meeting in September

a review is undertaken of activities against its Terms of Reference
(available on the Thomas Cook Group plc website) to ensure the
Committee is properly fulfilling its duties and responsibilities

Annuol R.port ond Account. 2Ol8

DIRECTORS'
REMUNERATION

Atten dees

The Committee invites individuals to attend meetings, as it deems

beneficial, to assist it in reviewing matters for consideration

lndividuals who have provided support and advice to the Committee

during the year include the Board members, Alice Marsden - Group

General Counsel and Company Secretary, Rachael Gillett - Group &

UK HR Director (until May 2018), Julie Armstrong, Group HR Director
(from May 2018), Caroline Forsyth - Group Reward Director, Emily

Hallett - Head of Executive Remuneration and pete Smith and Sophie
Black, Partners at l4ercer. the Committee's independent external
adviser Warren Tucker Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is
also a member of the Audit Committee and, as such, ensures there
is knowledge and coordination rn respect of risk and accounting

issues No Director or senior Executive is present at the section
of the meeting when their own remuneration arrangements are
being discussed

External advisers

The Committee obtains independent external advice from
Mercer. Mercer's fees for the year were f90,413 Fees covered

attendance at Committee meetings general advice and updates
on remuneration developments

Mercer also provided advice to the Company in respect of market
incentives, job evaluation, pensions and insured benefits

Mercer are members of the Remuneration Consultants Group (RCG)

and comply with its Code of Conduct The Committee is satisfied that
their advice was, and continues to be, objective and independent

The following pages set out the remuneration of the Executive

Directors during FYl8, and the intended approach for FYl9
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stNGrE FTGURE OF TOTAT REMUNERATTON (AUDTTED)

The following table sets out the single figure of total remuneration for Directors for the financial years ending 30 September 2017 and 2018

Sa arylfees

€'000 E'000
FYIS FYIT

Group Bonus Plan I nso I

looo Looo I e ooo L'ooo I

rvra I rvrr I rvrza I rvrr 
I

pension I Totat I

'ooo 
Looo I t'ooo Looo I

rvra I rvu I rvre I rvrz 
I

Executive Directors

Peter Fankhauser 837 t,8371024aa2t7

Bill Scott2 63t2

5032

390

Non-Executive Directors

Frank Meysman zts 215

Dawn Airey 6r06

Annet Aris 6165

84

63

Emre Berkin

60 ll60

6060

Paul Edgecliffe:Johnson

Lesley Knox

Jurgen Schreiber

Warren Tucker 808043
Martine Verluyten

84

89

Former Executive Directors

Michael Healyl 135 536 16 26 - 694 

-_ 

34 154 185 1,390

l,lotes:

I l'4ichael Healy stepped down from the Board on 3l December 2017

2 Bill Scott was appornted t0 the B0ard effectrve l.January 2018

travel and accommodatron expenses whrch are chargeable to IJK rncome tax (or would be rf the lndividual was resrdent in the U()

ADDITTONAT DTSCLOSURES RELATING TO rHE SINGTE FIGURE TABTE (AUDITED)

Further information in respect ofthe base salary, pension, annual bonus and PSP amounts is shown in this section:

Sa la ry

The table below shows the base salaries of Peter Fankhauser and Bill

Scott at the end of FYIS and at the end of the previous financial year.

I srtrry.t I srtrry rt I p.r..ntrg. 
I

| 30 september 2018 I 30 september 2017 | increase 
I

FYl8 Group Bonus Plan. (the FYIS Plan) (audited)

The maximum FYIS plan opportunity for both Peter Fankhauser and
Bill Scott was 150 per cent of base salary, one-third of which is subject
to deferral into shares to be held for two years. subject to malus
(reduction before the vesting date), as described on page 92

As described in the Chairman's statement on page 89. there is no

bonus payment for FYIS due to both financial hurdles not being met,
however, Directors have achieved against their individual objectives
and these outcomes are described below

For the CE0, the role-specific objectives were partially achieved. (i3

per cent out of 15 per cent of the maximum bonus opportunity) and
are described below

The leadership objective is measured by the overall engagement
of colleagues across the Group As described in the KPls section
(page 32) and 0ur People section (page 34), we have improved on our
very high core index score achieving the full five per cent for this
element of the FYIS Plan

Peter Fankhauser t732,100

Bill Scott t420,000

Pensions (audited)

Currently, both Peter Fankhauser and Bill Scott recelve a taxable cash
allowance of an amount equivalent to 30 per cent and 20 per cent of
base salary respectively
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Bill Scott's role specific objectives were to achieve cost savings
from the restructuring of the finance department to achieve greater
efficiency and, as with the CE0, to achieve an employee commitment
target, both of which were fully met The diversity objective was not
met as fewer than 50 per cent of appointments in the target levels
were female

Michael Healy achieved the stretch level on his role specific objective
to refinance selected financial instruments to achieve cost savings
and partly met the criteria under the handover objective

FvtS
Measures l*,,.,.,1

rr,,.rnoro | ,.*.,]
l2oe6) | (60fr)

I nesulting level I

I ofaward I

stretch I performance I {of max x I

nooxt I achieved I opportunity) 
|

Group underlying EBIT'? (constant currency)

Group Unlevered Free Cash Flow3

Net Promoter Scorei

35% Q251m)

1220n I300m t380m

412

0%€l8m)

0%444457 462

ANNUAL REPORT ON DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Most of the strategic projects under the role specific objective were
delivered Revenue targets from Sun Hotels and cost savings under
our Fit for Growth programme were exceeded, however, three out of
the five new hotel investments under the LMEY Fund and 60 per cent
of the target revenue from the Expedia partnership were delivered,
resulting in an overall achievement of B0 per cent of the maximum for
this element of the FYl8 Plan

FYIS Group Bonus Plan (audited)(Continued)

CE0 - Peter Fankhauser

Strategic Projects: Deliver & execute
committed benefits for strategic projects in
FYI8, for example:

Hotels & Expedia revenue targets
Cost reduction target

Five LMEY Fund investments

Role-specific

Leadership, Commitment Index Employee
Satisfaction Score (Thomas Cook Group)

14aintain lncrease by l%
n/a at74% to75%

To have an identified development plan
Leadership: Succession

Total level of award after application of the financial performance hurdles as a % of maximum opportunity

80% 8%

75% aEu

?5v"5% for 2-3 key people Fully met

CF0 - Bill Scott

FYIS
Measures l*..,-l

,^*l
{60,6l 

I

I nesulting level II ofaward I

Performance I (otmax* I

achieved I opportunity) 
|

Ihreshold
(20x)

Stretch
000x1

Group underlying EBIT (constant currency)?

Group Unlevered Free Cash Flows

Net Promoter Score4

35% f320m €360m €380m E251ml
Core

f300m (€18m)

451 46.2 41.2

€4 8m

0%444

Strategic Projects: Complete outsourcing
restructure of Tour 0perations Finance n/a E3 8m t5lm 0%

Leadership: Commitment lndex Employee
Role-specific Satisfaction Score {Thomas Cook Group)

Maintain at lncrease by l%
n/a 14% pointtoTs% 75% 25%

Gender Diversity 0%Eil

Achieve increased female leadership diversity in
Finance function 50% or majority of new hires

across levels 2-4 to be female in FYl8

Total level of award after application of the financial performance hurdles as a % of maximum opportunityl 0%
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CFO - Michael Healy
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1,,...,., I

,.rn.,l
l6ox) 

|

FY]8
Measures

Stretch
(l00rl

Threshold
l20x)

I nesulthg levet II of award I

performance I lofmaxx I

achieved I opportunityl 
I

Core

'Group underlying EBIT'?
(constant currency)' t320m €360m €380m t257mr 0%

Group Unlevered Free Cash Flow3 35% 8220n €300m t380m (tl8m) 0%

Net Promoter Score4 0%47.?5%

o%

457 462 L4L

Strategic Projects: Complete the refinancing
of selected financial instruments to achieve
cost savings

Leadership: Ensure efficient and effective
handover to successor

To include effective handover of senior accounting
officer duties; auditing & reporting responsibilities;

and. Committee &. Project work

15% t850m f875m €900m f975m 7.5%
Role-specific

Partly met 4.5%

Total level of award after application of the financial hurdles as a % of maximum opportunity;

l{otes:

purposes is drfferent lrom the achrevemenl staled ear ier rn the report

2 Group underly ng EBIT is defrned as Earninqs before rnterest and tax excluding exceptiona rtems measured 0n a constant currency basrs

drvrdends or the refrnan0ng ofthe croups bank facilltres and bonds

ln order for there to be any payment under the Plan. the two financial hurdles of €298m Group underlying EBIT and f150m Group Unlevered Free

Cash Flow must be achieved

Deferred Bonus Plan

The Committee considered whether malus should be an applied to the FYl6 and FYIT Deferred Bonuses due to accounting adjustments for prior
years Malus was not applied as the adjustments were not attributable to a specific year and did not positively impact the outcome

Long-Term lncentives

The awards made in FYl6, which are subject to achievement of three-year performance targets ending in FY1S will not vest. These awards will
lapse in December 2018, the third anniversary from the date of grant

15%

ll December 2015 {FYl6)
psp Award - performance conditions | *..*,.n l"",l,l',#H*i I u*tltul*l | "*t*J'r**ll Or,aora 

I

Leve of
vest ng

Basic EPS
Basic EpS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary Shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average numb
outstanding during the FYIS in ar
ofthe performance period endi 50% 9.3p 13.8p 16.5p -ll.3p

Relative TSR
The lndexed TSR measures the TSR of the Company
relative to the FTSE 250 excluding financial services
and commodities over the full three-year performance
period ending 30 September 2018

096

0x50%

096

Equal to
the index

index *8% index. 12%
perannum perannum index -9.6%

This will result in all

Director

shares lapsing, as shown below

I
oate ot grant 

I
Earliestvestlngdate | ilumberofsharesunderaward i tiumberofsharestapsing 

I

Peter Fankhauser \ltzl20t5 rul2/20r8 880 t02 880.r02

Michael Healy il/12/20t5 il/r2120r8 509,608 509,608

Bill Scott \lt2l20ts

r03

tlt2l20t8 146,683

107
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ANNUAT REPORT ON DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Scheme interests awarded during the financial year (audited)

PSP awards were made to Peter Fankhauser and Bill Scott
of the individual awards shown below:

Thomor Cook Group plc I AnnuoI lcport ond Account! 2018

in FYlS

Or," o, I

awara 
I

Details of the performance conditions can be found on page 109 with details

l

Director lype of award 1,,,]
shareprice | , I

Facevaluel usedtol r dl
ofaward I calculateaward'l pe d'l

End o, Number of
performance shares Face value

period awarded of award

Bill Scott

peter Fankhauser conditional Share Award pSP 0lll2l20l7 30/09/2020 899.498 t50% €1,076,699 ll9.7p

ll9.7P

224.815

Conditional Share Award PSP 0t11212017 30/09/2020 426.06s 150% €510.000

Notesi

I Expressed as a % of base salary at the trme of award

2 The share pflce used to calculate lhe award was ll9 7p being the average closrng share pr ce of the three days pror to grant

3 lvlinrmum performance rs equai to 25% of maxrmum award

No awards were made to l4rchael Healy dur ng FYl8

Payments to past Directors

The outgoing CF0, Michael Healy, received base salary of €155,300 for the six month period to 3l March 2018 ln addition he received fl5,802 and

t33.825 in benefits and pension contributions respectively. Michael's award under the FYIT Bonus Plan was €86,558, one-third of which was
deferred in shares for two years

Loss of office payments

There were no loss of office payments made to past Directors during the year

External appointments

Executive Directors currently do not hold any external appointments

Current Executive Directors service contracts

The dates of the service contracts for Peter Fankhauser and Bill Scott are 23 February 2015 and I .January 2018 respectively Executive Directors

have roiling service contracts terminable in line with the Directors' Remuneration Policy The service contracts are available on request for
inspection at the Company's registered office

STATUTORY GRAPH

The graph below shows the TSR for holders of Thomas Cook Group plc 0rdinary Shares for the ten-year period since 30 September 2008,

measured against the FTSE 250 Index and the FTSE All Share Travel & Leisure lndex These indices were chosen as relevant comparators, as the
Company is a member of both indices, with one reflecting a broad equity index and the other being specific to the travel sector The calculation
of TSR is in accordance with the relevant remuneration regulations and is broadly the change in market price together with reinvestment of

dividend income This graph shows the value of €100 invested in Thomas Cook Group plc on 30 September 2008 compared with the value of €100

investedintheFTSE250 lndexandtheFTSEAll ShareTravel &Leisurelndex TheintermediatepointsarethevaluesattheCompanysfinancial
year ends

TOTAL SHAREHOTDER RETURN (€) - --------

Thomas Cook 
- 

FTSE 250 FTSE All Share Travel 6 Leisure lndex

350

300

250

20a

r50

100

50

30 Seot 08 50 Sept 09 30 Sept I0 30 Sept Il 30 Sept 12
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50 Sept l4 30 Sept l5 30 Sept l6
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The table below shows the pattern of remuneration of the CEO during this

I rvos I rvro | ", I
rvu 

I
rvrs 

I
rvre 

I
rvrz I rvra 

I
cE0

period

rnu I rus 
I

Peter Fankhauserr nlan/anlan/a n/a nla t4 296m El 209m €l 837m 81,024

n/a nlaCEO single figure Harriet Green'? nla nla
of remuneration Sam Weihagens nla n/a

Manny Fontenla-Novoa4 f2 996m L2322n

n/a €717k €2 855m fl 046m

tl53k tl Ulm n/a n/a

tl 008ms n/a

n/at248k

n/an/an/anla

n/an/anlanlan/an/a

0%l87o22o/o69%n/an/an/anlaGroup Bonus
Plan payout
(as %

maxtmum
opportunity)

Peter Fankhausel n/a n/a

Harriet Green nla

Sam Weihagen n/a nla

Manny Fontenla-Novoa 96% 80%

Peter Fankhauser

n/a nla 100% 0% n/a

nla
nla
096

n/a

n/a

n/a

0%

n/a

n/a

nla

0%

n/a

n/a

l0%6

n/a

nla

nla

n/a

nla

n/a

23%

n/a

nla

0%

n/an/a

nla

nla
PSP vestino
(as % of
maxtmum
opportu nity)

Harriet Green n/an/an/anlan/anlanlan/anla
See

below2

Sam Weihagen

Manny Fontenla-Novoa 68% 0%

nlanlan/an/anlanla004n/an/a

n/aalan/an/an/an/an/a0%

The table above shows the prescribed remuneration data (as shown in the left-hand side column) for the Director(s) undertaking the role of CEO

during each of the last ten financial years

llotes:

I peter Fankhauser was appointed CEo on 26 November 2014 and has been employed rn the Group srnce I May 2001

departurewith4ll5T2l sharesvestrngunderthrsaward

3 Sam Werhagen was appointed CEO on 3 August 20ll and remained in post unLrl lhe app0rntment of HarneI Green on 30.]uly 2012

4 Manny Fontenla-Novoa slepped down as CEo on 2 August 20ll

6 Relates to the June 2012 pSP and C0 p awards and the September 2012 psp award representing the ful value recerved

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN REMUNERATION
COMPONENIS OF IHE CEO

The table below sets out the percentage change in the remuneration
of the CEo lt also sets out the average percentage change in the
remuneration of other employees in the Group A peer group of UK-

based employees has been selected We have selected this peer group

as the CEO is UK-based and therefore pay movement in this peer group
is subject to similar external market conditions We have excluded

employees subject to long-term collective agreements for the same
reason, in order to ensure that the comparison is on a like-for-like basis

X change in remuneration from FYU to FYlS

x change in | *.h.rg. ,n I x.h.ng. ,n
base salary I benefitsrl annual bonus2

RETATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY
The table below displays the relative expenditure of the Company on
all employees' pay and Shareholder distrjbutions as required by the
reporting regulations

I roul| ,.1
zote I v.r"on-y.., I

r, | % changerl

overall expenditure on Group
employee pay'? 8.1%

Shareholders distributions 20.1%

llotes:
I Some of the yearon'year rncrease s attflbuled to a benefrt from elchange rates The flgures

shown rn the table are extracted from the Groups frnanctal statements

2 The sum of Group emp oyees aod Directors pay nc ude employer socra securrty payments

I0t9945

CEO 2.O% 7.4% -t0096

UK-based employees 3.1% 4.1% -70%

llotes:

I The marn benefrls provrded to UK-based empl0yees are pnvate health rnsuranc€ life assurance
travel concess ons and car allowances The rncrease rn benefils for the CE0 ts a result of
rncreased premrums on pr vate health rnsurance life assurance and the continuatron of tax advtce

relatrnq to peter s former elpatflate arrangement

2 ln ord€r to provrde the most direct compaflson possrble, the above calculalron rncludes al
UK-based employees partrcipatrng rn the Thomas Cook Bonus plan and other plans which have a

slgn frcant Group element Bonus payments rn FYlT were 78% for the CEo and on average 73% for
those in th€ Group Bonus Plan ln FYIS achrevement lor lhe CEo was 0% and for those who are lJ(
based and in the Thomas Cook Bonus plan the average payment levelwllbe22% The difference
rs caused by the operatron oI the frnancral hurdles whrch reduced the calculated bonus of the CE0

by 100% but tlK based employees recerved a bonus based on their personal obJectives and any

segment outcomes albert that thrs was reduced by 50% throuqh operatron of the frnancral hurdles
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ANNUAL REPORT ON DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Targets under the award are set out below:STATE M E NT O F I t.I PLE M E NTAIION O F R E M U N E RATION
POLICY IN THE FOttOWING FINANCIAT YEAR

2019 salary reviews

Salary reviews for the Group are in April each year The Committee will
undertake the annual salary review for the CEo at this time

FYl9 Group Bonus Plan

FYlg maximum opportunity for Executive Directors annual bonus

will remain at 150 per cent of base salary Any payments under the
FYlg Plan will be subject to financial hurdles for the Group Operating

Profit and Group Unlevered Free Cash Flow measures being met
Core measures focus on our customer. profit and cash metrics to
drive business performance and growth, with role-specific objectives
set to support the delivery of our'Customer at our Heart strategy

| ,ro tr,,,r.o,,t 
I

Total Shareholder Return (TSRI

The lndexed TSR measures the TSR

of the Company relative to the FTSE

250 excluding financial services and

commodities over the full three-
year performance period ending
30 September 2021

Level oI vesting

Threshold
l2s%)

Target
(60%)

Maximum
(r00%)

Perrormance
Required

Equal to the
index

*6% above the
index per annum

*10% above the
index per annum

Basic Earnings PeI shale lEPs)

Basic EpS is calculated by dividing
the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary Shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average
number of Ordinary Shares
outstanding during the final year

of the performance period ending
30 September 2021

Level of vesting Performance
Required

Threshold
loEUl

Maximum
(r00%)

9p

Weighting %

overall
opportunity

Group 0peratinq Profit Group 0perating Profit

Group Unlevered Free Cash

Flow

Net Promoter Score (NPS) Net Promoter Score (NPS)

Delivery of Strategic KPls CF0 transition

Bonus targets are set on a constant currency basis at the start ofthe
performance period Details of the targets will be disclosed at the end

of the performance period, in the FYl9 Directors' Remuneration Report

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

The Committee will grant the next award under the PSP following the
announcement of our FYIS results in accordance with the current
Policy The Committee determined, in line with current best practice.

that FY19 PSPAwards should be scaled back by 50%, although ifthere
is a material change to the share price this may be adjusted to reflect
the share price at the time of award There will be no award made to
Bill Scott

ln line with the Policy and our previous three PSP grants. the awards
will vest to the extent stretching EPS and Relative TSR targets
(weighted equally) are achieved over a three-year performance period

ln parallel to the scale-back of awards to participants, the EPS and

TSR targets have been revised to provide stretching but motivating
targets more in line with expectations of successfully executing the
strategy Following the end of the vesting period, awards will be

subject to a two-year holding period

l,lote:

I The Group UnJevered Cash F ow nteasure rncludes a half year larqet on wh ch 50 per cent of the

outcome s determ ned

The EPS targets. set on a constant currency basis for the FYl9

PSP award have been set by the Committee taking into account

multiple considerations. including the Groups overall business

strategy expectations for future years as incorporated into our

long-term Business Plan, growth expectations within our sector,

and historical performance

The EPS vesting schedule is non-linear with an intermediate point

The Committee may take into account the impact of any major

restructuring plans (not envisaged when setting the target) when

assessing performance against the EpS target, to ensure the
PSP rewards actions taken by management whtch are in the best

long-term interests of Shareholders Details of the intermediate
point will be disclosed retrospectively following the end of the
performance period

EpS target ranges for both outstanding awards are shown on

page 109

l5p
35%

Group Unlevered Free

Cash Flowl

l5%

l5%

r06
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CFO TRANSIT!ON ARRANGEMENIS
Bill Scott will stand down from the Board and his role as CFO with
effect from 30 November 2018. He will be employed by Thomas Cook

until 3l May 2019 Sten Daugaard was appointed interim CFo with
effect from I October 2018, but not appointed to the Board while a

permanent successor is identified The leaving arrangements for
Bill set out below are in accordance with the Policy approved by

Shareholders at the 2017 Annual General Meeting:

, There are no payments for loss of office
) Salary and benefits will be paid on a full monthly basis during the

notice period
, No bonus is payable for FYlS as dlsclosed on page 89
> The FYl9 bonus will be determined by the Committee in November

2019 following the end of the financial year and will be prorated to
reflect the period employed during the year. One-third of any bonus
payable will be deferred for two years but will be deferred in cash
as Bill Scott will not be an employee of the Group at the time of
payment and cannot therefore participate in the Deferred Bonus
Plan under the plan rules

> No FYl9 PSP award will be made
, Outstanding PSP awards will vest at the normal vesting date i e

on the three year anniversary from grant and will be prorated to
reflect the period employed

> The outstanding RSP award made to Bill Scott prior to his

appointment to the Board will vest at the normal vesting date and

no proration will apply in accordance with the rules of the RSP Plan
, 0utstanding deferred bonus awards will vest in full at the normal

vesting dates
> Malus and clawback provisions remain in force throughout

NON-EXECUTIVE D! RECTORS

The Chairman is paid a fee of f275.000 per annum

The Non-Executive Directors are paid an annual basic fee, plus

additional fees for the chairing of Board Committees

Non-Executlve Director fees

Non-Executive Director fees are reviewed periodically to ensure they
remain at an appropriate level relative to the market, and that they
reflect the skills expertise and the contribution of the Directors

The annual rates of Non-Executive Drrector's fees for FYl8 are shown
in the table below:

Non-Executive Director

Additional fee for the Chair of the Audit Committee

Additional fee for the Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Additional fee for the Chair of the Health.
Safety & Environmental Committee

ThomorCookGioupplc I AnnuctReportondAccount 2Ol8

Peter Fankhauser 2.332.872

Bill Scott 25.007

Frank Meysman 692000

Dawn Airey 42,000

Annet Aris

Emre Berkin

Paul Edqecliffe-Johnson 17.852

Lesley Knox 46,r00

JUrgen Schreiber

Warren Tucker 30,800

Martine Verluyten 165,000

Former Director

Michael Healyr 1,212,890

FromS0September20lSto2SNovember20lSthereweren0changestoanyoftheDrrectors benefrcral

rnterests rn shares

Each of the Non-Executive Directors has been appolnted pursuant to
a letter of appointment, which is available on request for inspection

at the Company's registered office The appointments under

these letters continue until the expiry dates set out below unless

terminated for cause or on the period of notice stated below:

I oate of latest I

Director I letter of appointment 
I

Expiry date | ,o,,.. r.r,oo I

Frank Meysman 27 March 2013 N/A 5 months

Dawn Airey 2l July 2016 ll April 2019 | month

Annet Aris 16 March 2017 30 April 2020 I month

Emre Berkin 2l September 2018 30 October 2021 I month

Paul Edgecliffe
Johnson 26 )uly 2017 ?5 )uly 2020 I month

Lesley Knox 25 February 2016 28 February 2019 I month

.lrirgen Schreiber 26 )uly 2017 25 )uly 2020 I month

Warren Tucker 22 September 2016 3 october 2019 I month

Martine Verluyten 16 March 2017 6 May 2020 I month

Directors and former Director's share interests (audited)

The following table shows the beneficial interests of the Directors
in the shares of the Company:

I eeneficial holdings I

| (Number of shares as at 50 September 2018) 
|

t{ote:

I Annuat fees I I lnterest rn shares for l'4rchael Hea y shown as at 3l December 2017 the date he stepped down from

| €'000 | the Board

60

20

20

Additional fee for the Senior lndependent Director
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ln line with the Policy, the value of the Directors'holding has been

calculated by taking the greater ol a) the initial financial commitment:
and b) the market value at 30 September 20lB

At 30 September 2018, the shareholding of Peter Fankhauser and

Bill Scott were 426 per cent and four per cent of salary respectively
(shown below) Under the Policy. Bill Scott has five years from his
appointment on I January 2018 to achieve the required level of
shareholding Therefore both Executive Directors were compliant
with the Policy in FYl8

Aclua shareholdrnq

I Sharehold ng requlrement
shareholdrnq requrrement

Directors and former Director s interests in shares under the DBP and PSP (audited)

Date of grant

O.rrr,l
share price at 

I

date of grant 
I

,.".*O 
I ',^*l

Earliest
At vesting date

30 september of outstandrng
2018 awardsGranted

At
30 September

2017

ANNUAL REPORT ON DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

SHAREHOTDING REQUIREMENT (AUDIIED)
Under our Shareholding Requirement Policy, Executive Directors are

required to build up within five years of appointment to the Board

and maintain a minimum shareholding of 200 per cent of base salary
Until the shareholding requirement is met, vested shares cannot be

sold, other than to pay tax in respect of the relevant award

To ensure alignment with Shareholders and to encourage a share
ownership culture across the senior team, members of the Executive
Committee are required to build up within five years of becoming an

Executive Committee member, and maintain 50 per cent of base salary

in the Company's shares

200%

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SHAREHOTDING vs POIICY REQUIREMENT ----------

426%

Peter Fankhauser

Performance Share Plan t2i 03/2015 fl 486 120.152 720,752 0 12103/2018

flt3 880 r02 880,102 1t11212018

€0 86 t.388,248 - t,388,248 0ul2/2019

899,498 899,498 0111212020fl t97

ft 191 0 06/0u20r8

tl21205
01fi212016

0ut2l20t1

Deferred Bonus Plan 08/0r/20r6

15102120t1

08/0r/20r8

t0 888

fl25
89,071 3u0t/2019

222,558 222.ss8 29112120t9

Bill Scott

Performance Share Plan t2l03lz\s
111t21201s

011212016

011t2120t7

fl 486 208.9t3 12103120t8

rul2/20r8

208 913

fl 13 146 683

298 864

t46,683

298,864 0tlt2l20t9

€t 197 126.065 426,065 0t11212022

Former Director

Michael Healy

Performance Share Plan t2l03/2015

)tfi2l20ts

0lltzl20t6

fl 486 s32.129 532,729 0 12103/2018

Et t3 663 520 153,912 s09,608 il/r2l2018

t0 86 s30,039 421.425 0l/12/201995 464

Deferred Bonus Plan 08/0r/20r6

ts10212011

llote:
The lapsed element of 14rchael Hea y s FYl6 and FYlT pSp awards relate to the proratron for trme

Blll Scott was awarded an RSp pr or to beqom n! a DrrecLor as drsclosed rn the FYlT D rectors Remuneratlon Report

fl tgr 150,885 - 150,885

€0 888 73 168 73,168 3u0u20r9

0 06/0r/2018

08/0u20r8 fr 2s - 184,647 184,647 29112120t9
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DETAITS OF SHARE PTANS
Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP)

Under the DBP one-third of any bonus payment made to Executive Directors under the Group Bonus Plan is deferred into shares for a period

of two years on a compulsory basis The DBP awards shown in the previous table represent one-third of the FYl6 bonus payment and FYIT

bonus payment respectively DBP awards are made at the earliest opportunity following bonus payment date, and are released on the second
anniversary of the actual bonus payment date

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Under the pSP participants are awarded a conditional award of shares in Thomas Cook Group plc Shares under the awards will vest to the satisfaction
of stretching performance conditions measured over three years being met, Performance conditions for awards up to and including March 2015, were
based on absolute share price, Group underlying EBIT and Group Cash Conversion For subsequent awards, granted from December 2015 onwards, the
performance conditions are Relative TSR and Basic EpS performance conditions for the outstanding awards are shown below

Performance Condltions for PSP Awards (audited)

FYl6 PSP awards
The performance measures, targets and performance achieved under the FYl6 PSP awards which will lapse on ll December 20lB are set out on page 103

FY|T PSP awards
The FYIT PSP awards made to Executive Directors are subject to equally weighted Basic EPS and Relative TSR performance measures as set out
in the table below:

i total shareholder Return (TSR)

i The lndexed TSR measures the
i TSR of the Company relative to
i the FTSE 250 excluding financiali services and commodities overi the full three-year performance
i period ending 30 Septemberi 20t9
i

Level of vesting Performance :

Required :

Threshold (25%) Equal to the index 
i

Target (60%) *8% above the i

index per annum i

i

Maximum *12% above the :

(100%) index per annum i

:

Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) Level of vesting Perrormance

BasicEpsiscalculatedbydividino 

- 

Required

the profit or loss attribu6ble " Threshold (25%) 11.2p

to 0rdinary Shareholders ofthe
Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary Shares M.rr* lgrpoutstanding during the.final year^ 

il00%)of the performance period. ending
30 September 2019

FYIS PSP awards
The FYIB PSP awards made to Executive Directors are subject to equally weighted Basic EPS and Relative TSR performance measures as set out
in the table below:

Total Shareholder Return (TSRI

The lndexed TSR measures the
TSR of the Company relative to
the FTSE 250 excluding financial
services and commodities over
the full three-year performance
period ending 30 September
2020

Level ofvesting Performance :

Required :

Threshold (25%) Equal to the index :

:

Target *8% above the j

(60%) index per annum I

I

Maximum *12% above the :

(100%) index per annum :

:

Basic Earnings Per Share (EPSI

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
the profit or loss attributable
to 0rdinary Shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average
number of 0rdinary Shares
outstanding during the final year
ofthe performance period ending
30 September 2020

Level of vesting Performance
Required

Threshold lOp
lzs%)

Maximum
(r00%)

l8p

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOTDER VOTING
The table below sets out the results ofthe votes on the Directors' Remuneration Policy and Report at the 2017 and 20lB Annual General Meetings:

I votes for I proportion of total I votes against I proportion of total I Total number ot I Total number oI I

I numberofshares I votescast I numberofshares I votescast I votescast I voteswithheld 
I

Annual Remuneration Report (2018 Annual
General Meetinq) r,235,7r0,r58

Remuneratron policy (2017 Annual General Meetinq) 994.036,827

98.09 24,055,734

78.32 275,169,117

r-9r r.259.765.892 220,5r5

2t.68 1.269.206.244 ts,663,744

This Annual Report on Directors' remuneration has been approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

WARREN TUCKER

CHAIRMAN, REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

28 November 20lB 
lo9



Thomo. CookGroup plc

INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR'S

REPORT

i_r'.]l [)l]:- 0:r

ln our opinion:

, Thomas Cook Group plc's Group financial statements and parent

company financial statements (the "financial statements") give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company's
affairs as at 30 September 2018 and of the Group's loss for the year
then ended:

, the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards ("lFRS")

as adopted by the European Union;
> the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared

in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union as applied

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and
> the financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with the

requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and, as regards the Group

f inancial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

i'Jir;'r rt'! tati.r.,il lr'ri

We have audited the Group and parent company financial statements
of Thomas Cook Group plc for the year ended 30 September 20lB

which comprise:

Palent company

Related Notes I to 20 to the financial
statements including a summary of
signif icant accounting policies

Group statement of changes in equity
for the year then ended

Related Notes I to 34 to the financial
statements including a summary of
significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and IFRS as adopted by the European Union

and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

Annuot RGport ond Acccuntr 2018

Tff THE MHMBERS
OFTHOMAS frOSK
GROUP PI-tr

B;srs tot !-il ir a -l

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on

Auditing (UK) ("lSAs (UK)") and applicable law 0ur responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report below We are

independent ofthe Group and Company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed public

interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

C(t L; tiir(r 5'rldI rtg lr- ,ILi !l:.rl 't)lis .Jc) ltal aartrai-' il

ar l[j v al]i,ir\ i:i,^,ti illa'-rll

We have nothing to report in respect of the following information in the
Annual Report, in relation to which the lSAs (UK) require us to report to
you whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to:

, the disclosures in the Annual Report set out on pages 58 to 6l that
describe the principal risks and explain how they are being managed

or mitigated:
, the Directors confirmation set out on page 76 in the Annual Report that

they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing
the entity, including those that would threaten its business model,

future performance, solvency or liquidity;
> the Directors statement set out on page 76 in the financial statements

about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the going

concern basis of accounting in preparing them, and their identification
of any material uncertainties to the entity's ability to continue to do so

over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of
the financial statements:

, whether the Directors' statement in relation to going concern required

under the Listing Rules in accordance with Listing Rule 9 8 6R(3) is

materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the auditr or
> the Directors' explanation set out on page 57 in the Annual Report as

to how they have assessed the prospects ofthe entity. over what
period they have done so and why they consider that period to be

appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the entity will be able to continue in operation and

meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment.
including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualifications or assumptions

Group income statement for the year

then ended

Company balance sheet as at
30 September 2018

Group statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended

Company cash flow statement for the
year then ended

Group cash flow statement for the
year then ended

company statement of changes in equity
for the year then ended

Group balance sheet as at
30 September 2018
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[_]vervte,,l c'f oLti airdii ;pfirt)acir

understanding
Ihomas cook's
buslness

> We have built a pan European audit team with experience of large multinational audits and industry expertise in hospitality retail and airlines Building upon

the knowledge and information we have obtained in our first year audit of last year we updated our understanding of the Group's strategy, business model

and operaung environment This was achieved through enquiry, analytical procedures. observation and visiting a number ofthe Group's operating units
, We performe-d risk assessment procedures including monthly meetings with management, our observations from prior year, halfyear and interim work

to identlfy risks of material misstatements
> Following the pre-close trading update issued by management we have updated our risk assessment and response, the details of which have been included

in the kev matters section below

ilaterlallty r When we established our audit strategy, we determined our overall materiality for the Group financial statements ln doing so we considered which measure

aligns best with the expectations ofthose charged with governance and the users ofthe flnancial statements

' Wd revised our 0verall Group materiality. subsequent to managements trading update on 24 September 2018 to fl4m which represents approximately

5% of forecast underlying profit from operations

ludlt scope our scope is tailored to the particular circumstances and structure of the Group and is designed to cover components that are significant for the purposes

offorming our group audit opinion and respond to the risk of material misstatement of the Group financial statements

, We performed an audit ofthe complete financial information of 20 {FYl7 20) components and audit procedures on specific balances for a further

l8 (FYl7r 17) components
, The componenis where we performed full or specific aUdit procedures accounted for 85% (FYl7 86%) of revenue and 86% (FY17, 86%) of underlying

operating costs
, Tire comionents subject to review scope procedures covered the remaining l5% (FYl7: l4%) of revenue and 14% (FYl7 l4%) of underlying operating costs

fey audit
matters

We have identified the following key audit matters that, in our professionaljudgement, had the greatest effect on our overall audit strategy. the allocation

of resources in the audit and in directing the component audit team s efforts

> Classification of separately disclosed items
) Going concern basis used in preparation ofthe Annual Report & Accounts
, Revenue recognition due to the susceptibility to management override through inappropriate manual journals
, Leased alrcraft maintenance provisions
) Provision for illness claims and associated recoveries from suppliers
, Carrying value of goodwill
, Recoverability of delerred tax assets

(ev aLr0it rnetlSr-5

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionaljudgement. were of most significance in our audit ofthe financial statements of

the cunent period and include the most significant assessed-rislis of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified.

These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing

the efforts of the engagement team These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

our response to the llsk xey obserYations communlcated
to the ludit Commlttee

Classification of separately disclosed items l€ugm, Fn7: €l40ml
Refer to the Audit Commrttee Report (page 79): Accountlng pollcies (page 130): and N0te 7 of the Consolidated Financial Statements (page lr)

The Group separately discloses items in the ln response to the revision ofthe risk assessment we increased the level of audit

income statement that are considered material partner and director involvement in assessing separately disclosed items, and increased

either because of their size or their nature, their participation in component audit team work We also added an element of

or which are non-recurring Management unpredictability in our scope of testing by testing amounts included in components

considers that separate reporting helps where we did not originally plan to test-

We challenged management on the
items includ€d initially in separately
disclosed items and requested that
a number of adjustments be made to
comply with the Groups accounting
policy

ln light of our audit findings. the
guidelines published by ESMA and the
FRC'S thematic review we communicated

to the Audit Committee that we had

strongly recommended to management
that they strengthen the process

over the identification and approval of
separately disclosed items

There is significantjudgement in

determining the appropriate type of
items to exclude in assessing the
Group's underlying performance

and therefore fair. balanced and

understandable disclosure of separately

disclosed items is important for the
users of the financial statements in

order for them to make this assessment

provide a full understanding of the Group's ) We obtained evidence of the separately disclosed items to understand the ratlonale for
performance. Underlying EBIT which excludes the separate classification and have challenged the appropriateness by confirming they
separately disclosed items forms part of the are in iine with the Group's accounting policy i.e, material or non-recurring to warrant
basis for determining the Group's compliance separate disclosure.
with key banking covenants. ) We compared separately disclosed costs incurred with the budgets approved by

Separately disclosed items are not defined by the Board We have also assessed consistency with the nature ofseparately disclosed

IFRS and therefore considerablejudgement is items reported in the prior year.

required in determining the appropriateness , We confirmed that the related tax on separately dlsclosed items

of such classification. Consistency in items is presented consistently
treated as separately disclosed is important ) We reviewed the enhanced disclosures relating to items classified as separately

to maintain comparalility of reporting disclosed and concluded that they provide further transparency on the nature of

year-on-year. these items This, in turn, provides clarity on those items excluded from underlying

Following the trading update on 24 september performance of the Group

2018 and our reassessment of audit materiality
we revised our risk assessment to include

the risk of management override through the
inappropriate use of manual journals
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IN DEPEN DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO TH E
MEMBERS OFTHOMAS COOKGROUP PLC

CONTINUED

nsk 0ur response to the risk xey observations communicated
to the Audlt Commlttee

Going concern basis used in preparation of the Annual Report & Accounts
Refer to the Audit commrttee Report (page 79) and Note 2 ofthe Consohdated Frnanoal Statements (page l24l

The Group's Annual Report & Accounts are
prepared on the going concern basis of
accounting This basis is dependent on a

number offactors including the Groups
trading results the Group's continued access
to bank borrowing facilities and the Groups
ability to continue to operate within its
financial covenants

The Group s borrowing facilities are sub.ject
to financial covenants tested quarterly on

a rolling l2-month basis These consist of a
leverage covenant and a fixed charge covenant

The leverage covenant is a measure of profit
before separately disclosed items as djsclosed
rn the financial statements interest tax
depreciation, amortisation aircraft operating
lease rentals and other exceptional items
which the Company determines are material
and of an unusual or non recurring nature
compared to net debt

The fixed charge covenant is a measure of
profit before separately disclosed items as
disclosed in the frnancial statements interesl
tax, depreciation amortisation, operating lease

charges and other exceptional items which the
Company determines are material and of an

unusual or non-recurring nature compared to
net interest and operating lease charges

During the year. the Group received
agreement from Lenders to reset the leverage
covenants for the first two quarters of FYl9

and FY20 respectively in order to secure
additional headroom

Covenants in the last two quarters of FYlg

remain tight, but pass under management s

severe but plausible scenarios

Following the trading updates on 24 September 2018 and 27 November 2018 and
observation of subsequently revised covenant compliance forecasts we have increased
the amount of audit partner and director involvement in the following procedures and
have used corporate finance specialists in assessing the adequacy of the management s
sensitives and covenant headroom

> We obtained the cash flow and covenant forecasts and sensitivities prepared by

management and assessed the calculation of headroom in respect of the banking
covenant compliance

, We assessed the reasonableness of management's business plans and
appropriateness of the inputs and key assumptions used in the forecasts

) We considered the accuracy of prior year forecasts against actual resu lts to assess the
accuracy of managements forecasting process

> We performed independent sensitivities to assess whether the headro0m calculations
are reasonable

> We obtained evidence of the agreements obtained from lenders confirming
the covenant resets for the first two quarters of FYl9 and FY20

, We met with the Company's legal advisers and reviewed their advice to the Company
in relation to the calculations of financial covenants and satisfied ourselves on the
conclusions drawn by the directors from that advice

> We obtained the Company's forecast liquidity for the next l2 months noting
the headroom that is forecast on a monthly basis

We have assessed that the severe
but plausible scenarios identified by
management are reasonable

We conclude that the use of the
going concern basis of accounting
is appropriate and concur with the
directors that no significant uncertainty
has been identified

Revenue recognition due to the susceptibility to management override through inappropriate manualjournals l€9,584m, FYU: C9,007m1
RefertotheAuditCommrtteeReporl(page79)Accountingpolicres(pagel30)andNote4oftheconsoldatedFrnancralStatementslpaqel33)

The accounting for revenue is susceptible to 0ur procedures specifically designed to address the risk of management override
management override through the recording of controls includedjournal entry testing placing particular focus on manualjournal
of manual, top sidejournal entries either entries in revenue
in the underlying ledgers or via consolidation For a number of reporting unit revenue streams we also used data analysis tools on

100% of revenuejournal entfles in the year. These tools test the flow ofjournal data from
revenue through to cash receipt to verify the occurrence of revenue and identify and test
anomalyjournals

We also assessed the design of key controls, and where appropriate tested
the operating effectiveness of controls over revenue and the financial statement
close process

ln addition, as part of our overall revenue recognition testing:

, For those in-scope businesses and revenue streams where we did not use data
analysis tools we performed alternative substantive procedures over revenue
recognition including tests of details for a sample of revenue transactions

> We understood the Groups revenue recognition policies and how they are applied
including continued assessment of the appropriateness of management's judgement
in determining whether the Group is acting as principal or agent in concluding the
appropriate accounting treatment for each revenue stream

' We performed cut-off testing for a sample of revenue transactions around
the period end date

0urjournal entry and data analytic
testing procedures did not identify any
instances of inappropriate management
override in the recognition of revenue
across the Group

Based on the audit procedures
performed we did not identify evidence
of material misstatements in the
revenue recognised in the current year

We c0nsider the revenue recognition
policies applied and judgements made
to be appropriate
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0ur responsetothe rlsk l(ey observatlons communicated
to the ludlt Committee

Leased aircraft maintenance provisions lt378m, FYIT: t366ml
Refer to the Audit Committee Report lpage 79); Accounting policies lpage 132): and Note 25 ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements (page I59)

The Group recognises provisions for We have evaluated the methodology and key assumptions adopted by management in its We concluded the assumptions
maintenance obligations in relation to calculation of aircraft maintenance provisions and walked through the controls over the within the models used to calculate
leased aircraft The calculation of aircraft process This involved the following procedures: the provlsion. including the discount

thearithmeticalaccuracyandintegrityrate.asat30September20]8were- 
appropriate and supported by underlying

ableness ofthe assumptions adopted evidence

testing of source data in the model
son of assumptions to contract terms
intenance events to the latest rate reviews

XltJlrtJf&.,.0, n" ra i nte na nce i nte rva I I i m its
to the manufacturers information and tested the actual flight hours to the technical
logs and the forecast flying hours to the forecast flying hour plans

We have tested the completeness of the provisions by comparison to fleet and financing
registers and reviewing lease agreements for hand back obligations

We assessed the discount rate applied to the provision Using our valuation
specialists, we determined the appropriate rate to be applied to this provision

by reference to IFRS guidance in this area

Customer clalm lecoveries and provisions lRecoveries rrom suppliers tllm, FYU: €2lmt lllness provision €18m, FYIT: t24ml
Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 79): Accountrng po|cres (page 132) and Note 25 of the ConsoIdated Financial Statements (page 159)

There has been a significant decrease year
on-year in the number of illness related claims
from customers in the UK following media
coverage offalse claims and criminal cases

However, there remains a significant risk in
assessing expected recoveries from suppliers
in respect of historical claims Judgement is
required to assess whether recovery of costs is
either probable or virtually certain In addition.
the estimate ofthe probable amount that will be

received from the supplier is inherently uncertain

Additionally. there is judgement in
determining the level of provision for new
claims, particularly in respect of underlying
assumptions such as the total amount of
potential compensation probable amount to be

settled in respect of claims, and the likelihood
of having a valid defence against such claims

ln respect ol recoveries we have:

, Challenged whether appropriate evidence exists to support the recognition of recovery
assets, such as acknowledgement from a hotel that they were at fault and intend to
reimburse the Group. or a signed agreement in place in relation to that claim

> Challenged how the amount recognised will be recovered by seeking evidence that
signed contracts are in place with hoteliers ln instances where signed contracts were
not available or where the recovery is with parties that are not hotels we have sought
additional evidence such as the evidence of the right and history
of auto-recovering amounts from supplier invoice payments

We have also evaluated the methodology and key assumptions adopted by management
in its calculation of provision for illness claims and walked through the controls over the
process This included:

> Challenging the consistency and reasonableness ofthe assumptions adopted
> Testing the arithmetical accuracy and integrity of the data in the provision models
) Testlng manual adjustments to provisions to understand their rationale and ensure

that they are appropriate

Management made adjustments which
ensured that there was appropriate
evidence to support the recoveries from
suppliers on the balance sheet at the
year end date

our procedures also did not identify any
material misstatement of provisions

for illness claims and the assumptions
in the underlying calculations were
assessed as reasonable

carrying ualue of goodwill 1t2,585m, Fn7: fl,627m1
nefertothe Audit Commitlee Report{page79): Accounting p0licies (page 127)r and Note 12 ofthe Consolidated Frnancral Statements (page 142)

The Group holds significant goodwill on
the balance sheet The Groups business
is geographically diverse and the changing
geopolitical environmental and economic
landscape will continue to lnfluence buslness
performance and could impact the carrying
value of goodwill

The annual impairment test of goodwill
includes several key areas of estimation and
judgement over the future performance of
the business and specific assumptions such
as discount rates and terminal growth rates
Changes to these assumptions or adverse
performance could have a significant impact
on the available headroom and any impairment
that may be required.

We understood the methodology applied by management in performing its impairment
test for each of the relevant Cash Generating Units ('CGUS').

We performed detailed testing to assess critically and corroborate the key inputs to the
valuations, including:

> Analysing the historical accuracy of budgets to actual results to determine
whether forecast cash flows are reliable based on past experience

> Working with our internal specialists, corroborating the discount rate used by obtaining
the underlying data used in the calculation and benchmarking it against market data
and comparable organisations

> Validating the growth rates assumed by comparing them to economic and
industry forecasts

For all CGUs we calculated the degree to which the key inputs and assumptions would
need to fluctuate before an impairment was triggered and considered the likelihood
ofthis occurring, We performed our own sensitivities on the Group's forecasts and
determined whether adequate headroom remained

We assessed the disclosures in Note l2 against the requirements of IAS 56 lmpairment of
Assets in particular in respect of the requlrement to disclose further sensitivities for CGUS

where a reasonably possible change in a key assumption would cause an impairment

The audit procedures performed to addressthis risk were performed by the Group auditteam

We agreed with management's
conclusion that no impairments were
required. based on the results of our
work

0f the Group's goodwill, that relating
to the uK CGU is most sensitive to
reasonable possible changes in key
assumptions

Sensitivities have been disclosed in the
"lntangible assets" note to the Group

f inancial statements as management
believe a reasonable change in

assumptions could cause an impairment
in the UK CGU We consider the
disclosures made to be appropriate

1',17
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0ur respons€ to the rlsk [ey obse]vatlons communlcated
to the Audit Committee

Recoverability of deferred tax assets ltllTm, FYU: s2l6ml
Refer tothe Audit Committee Report (page79) Accounting policies (page l3l): and Note 24 ofthe Consoldated Financial Statements (page 158)

Management appliesjudgement in assessing We performed detailed testing to assess the recoverability of deferred tax asset We have considered the recognition

the reiognition ind ricoverability of the recognised which included: period over which deferred tax assets
ncluded they

i ,ns
s of recognition

s ) st le profit
assets

recognised 0r utilised during the year.

The key audit matters as set out in the table above differ from those
reported in the prior year, due to inclusion ofthe going concern
matter which was one of the matters that had greatest impact on the

allocation of partner time During the course of preparing the financial
statements in the current year the Company identified a prior year

adjustment which has been adjusted and is disclosed in Note 33 to the
financial statements ln the course of our audit we have confirmed the
appropriateness of the adjustment made

' I r ,.. I r', ,'

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit

in evaluating the effect of identifled misstatements on the audit and in

forming our audit opinion.

"1.rii'i ,1 1V

The magnitude of an omission or nisstatement that, individually or in

the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides

a basis for determining the nature and extent of our audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the Group to be fl4m (FYl7: €l5m).

which is 5% (FYl7 5%) of forecast underlying profit from operations.
We believe that forecast underlying profit from operations is the most
relevant performance measure to the stakeholders of the Group as it
is a key input for banking covenants, management bonus amounts and

shareholder valuation models

We determined parent company materiality to be f29m (FYl7 €28m)

which is l% (FVl7: l%) of equity.

l-r( t i::l lal-i,t l:ari9 rari ly

The application of mateiality at the individual account 0r balance
level. lt is set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately low level
the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
m isstate nents exceeds materia I ity.

0n the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment
of the Group s overall control environment, ourjudgement was that
performance materiality was 50% (FYl7: 50%) of our planning materiality,
namely €70m (FYl7: t75m). reflecting our expectation of audit differences

Audit work at component locations for the purpose of obtaining
audit coverage over significant financial statement accounts is

undertaken based on a percentage of total performance materiality
The performance materiality set for each component is based on

the relative scale and risk of the component to the Group as a whole

and our assessment ofthe risk of misstatement at that component
ln the current year, the range of performance materiality allocated to

components was f 0 7m to €3.5m (FYl7: tl 0m to €3 8m)

i.if_rlr - t'.r' ti i,rt es'' !iil
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered
as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all

uncoirected audit differences in excess of €070m (FYl7: €0.75m), which
is set at 5% (FY17: 5%) of planning materiality, as well as differences

below that threshold that, in our view warranted reporting on
qualitative grounds

We evaluate any unconected misstatements agatnst both the
quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light

of other relevant qualitative considerations in forming our opinion

AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT
I:, (ri t-ti rilr.- 511rp1

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our

allocation of performance materiality determine our audit scope
for each entity within the Group Taken together this enables
us to form an opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
ln determining our audit scope, we take into account:

, size (based on contribution to Group underlying profit from operations

and Group revenue);

> Forecast
Underlying
profit from
operations
t280m

> Less amortisation of
business combination
intangibles of t8m
(see Note 7 to the
financial statements)

) Eorecast underlying
profit from
operations excluding
amortisation
of business
combination
intangibles of 8272m
(basis for materiality)

, Materiality of €l4m
{5% of materiality
basis)

We reassessed initial materiality set at the planning stage after the
revision of management forecasts following the 24 September 20lB

trading update After the pre-close update on 27 November 2018 we
consider that this materiality has remained appropriate as we carried

out audit procedures on the adjustments to the financial statements
that give rise to the final result



) risk profile (including country risk, risks from the complexity
of operations and accounting treatment and judgements, controls
findings and risk arising from change in the period including changes
to lT systems and key management personnel)r

> the number of significant accounts based on performance materiality;
and

> any other known factors when assessing the level of workto be
performed at each entity.

The Group structures its financial reporting consolidation with a
"head office level" consolidation of 120 (FYl7 ll5) components 0f the
head office Ievel components 82 (FYl7 79) relate to consolidation entry
components ln addition.3 (FYl7 3) ofthe head office components relate
to tour operator sub-consolidations which are performed locally in UK

Continental Europe and Northern Europe with a total of 135 (FYl7 125)

sub-components 0f the sub-consolidation components 28 FY17: 28ir

relate to consolidation entry components This results in 35 (FY17 53)

reporting components at the head office consolidation level and
107 (FYl7 97) reporting components at the sub-consolidation level

Our approach to scoping has been at the head office consolidation level;
however, the Group team also directs the sub-scoping in each of the
three tour operator sub-consolidations to enable us to obtain sufficient
audit evidence as a basis for our opinion on the Group as a whole

ln assessing the risk of material misstatement to the Group financial
statements and to ensure we had adequate quantitative coverage of
significant accounts in the financial statements, ofthe 142 (FYl7 130)

reporting components ofthe Group, we selected 38 (FYl7 37) which
represent the principal components within the Group, These components
were audited by 13 (FYl7: 12) overseas EY component teams, 2 (FYl7 2)

UK component teams and the primary audit engagement team ln FYIT

we also used one non-EY component auditor to perform full scope
procedures over one sub-component

0f the 38 (FYl7: 37) components selected. we performed an audit of
the complete financial information of 20 (FYl7 20) components ("full

scope components") which were selected based on their size or risk
characteristics For the remaining lB (FYl7 17) components ("specific

scope components"), we performed audit procedures on the specific
accounts within that component that we considered had the potential
for the greatest impact on the significant accounts in the financial
statements either because of the size of these accounts or their risk
profile The audit scope ofthese components may not have included
testing of all significant accounts of the component but will have
contributed to testing coverage of financial statement line items
in the Group financial statements.

The full and specific scope reporting components where we performed
audit procedures accounted for 85% (FYl7 86%) of the Group's revenue
and 86% (FYl7: 86%) ofthe Group's total underlying operating costs

0f the remaining 104 (FYl7: 93) reporting components that together
represent 14% (FY17 l5%) of the Group's revenue and 14% (FYl7l4%) of the
Group's total underlying operating costs, none are individually greater
than 2% (FYl7 2%) of the Group's revenue or individually greater than
3ot lF\17 : 5%) of the Group's total underlying operating costs For these
components, we performed other procedures, including analytical
review. review of the legal register and discussions with the in-
house legal counsel and testing of unusual or one-off transactions to
respond to any potential risks of material misstatement to the Group
financial statements

Thonc.CoclGroupplc I AnnuolRcportondA.counb2OlS

For the consolidation entry components we tested consolidation
journals and intercompany eliminations

il .l-it;-s' r'r I'tr ;i cr \,t,,i
One component that was previously a specific scope component and
is now a review scope component as the business was sold during
the period There are no other substantive changes in scope from
the prior year.

ln establishing our overall approach to the Group audit, we determined
the type of work that needed to be undertaken at each of the
components by us, as the primary audit engagement team, or by

component auditors including those from other EY global network
firms operating under our instruction 0fthe 20 (FYl7 20) full scope
components, audit procedures were performed on 2 (FY17: 2) ofthese
directly by the primary audit engagement team, lB (FY17: 17) by component
auditors of the EY global network ln FYIT one audit was performed by
a non-EY component team For the components, where the work was
performed by component auditors, we determined the appropriate level
of involvement to enable us to determine that sufficient audit evidence
had been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the Group as a whole

During the current years audit cycle, the Senior Statutory Auditor of the
primary audit engagement team visited the component teams in UK Tour
0peratot Northern Europe Tour operator and UK Airline A senior primary
audit engagement team member visited the Continental Europe Tour
Operator and Condor Airline component teams ln addition to our visits,
the Senior Statutory Auditor and other members of the Group team
attended the year end closing meetings with local management

These visits involved meeting with our component team to discuss and
direct the audit approach, reviewing and understanding the significant
audit findings in response to the risk areas including the presentation
of separately disclosed items, leased aircraft maintenance provisions.
hotel recoveries and associated illness claims and revenue recognition.
holding meetings with local management and obtaining updates on
local regulatory matters The primary audit engagement team interacted
regularly with the component teams where appropriate during various
stages ofthe audit. reviewed key working papers and were responsible
for the scope and dlrection of the audit process This, together with the
additional procedures performed at Group level. gave us appropriate
evidence for our opinion on the Group financial statements

OTHER INFORMATION
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report including the 0verview the Strategic Report and the Directors'
Report set out on pages I to 109, other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon The Directors are responsible for
the other information

0ur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements. our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated lf we identify
such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements,
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we are require material misstatement
in the financial her tn the lioht of the n the
information. lf ude Compariy and its o we
that there is a have no[ identifie s t
we are required to report that fact or the Directors Re

We have nothing to report in this regard

ln this context. we also have nothing to report in regard to our
responsibility to specifically address the following items in the other

information and to report as uncorrected material misstatements of
the other information where we conclude that those items meet the

following conditions:

, Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 77 - the
statement given by the Directors that they consider the Annual Report

& Accounts taken as a whole is fair balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the Group's performance, business model and strategy. is materially

inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit: or
> Audit committee reporting set out on page 78 - the section

describing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately
address matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee; or

> Directors'statement of compliance with the Ul( Corporate
Governance Code set out on page 62 - the parts of the Directors

statement required under the Listing Rules relating to the Companys
compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code containing
provisions specified for review by the auditor in accordance with
Listing Rule 9 B l0R(2) do not properly disclose a departure from

a relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code

ln our opinion, the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be

audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies

Act 2006

ln our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

) the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors'Report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared

ls consistent with the financial statements: and
> the Strategic Report and the Directors'Report have been prepared in

accordance with applicable legal requirements

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation
to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,

tD 0ur'0prflloh:

> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent

company. or returns adequate for our audit have not been received

from branches not visited by us; or
> the parent company financial statements and the part ofthe Directors'

Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns: or

, certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not
made: or

, we have not received all the information and explanations we require

for our audit

As explained more fully in the Directors'responsibilities statement set
out on page// the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the

financial statements and for being satisfied that give a true and fair view
in accordance and for such internal control as the Directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financjal statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements the Directors are responsible
for assessing the Group and Companys abillty to continue as a going

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations,

or has no realistic alternative but to do so

0ur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditors report that
includes our opinion Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
lSAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists
l'4isstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements

il6
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The objectives of our audit, in respect to fraud, are; to identify and

assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud, through
designing and implementing appropriate responses; and to respond
appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified durlng the audit.
However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection
of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity
and management

Our approach was as follows:

> We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks
that are applicable to the Group and determined that the most
significant frameworks which are directly relevant to specific
assertions in the financial statements are those that relate to
the reporting framework (IFRS, the Companies Act 2006 and the
UK Corporate Governance Code) and the relevant tax compliance
regulations in the jurisdjctions in which the Group operates ln addition
we concluded that there are certain significant laws and regulations
which may have an effect on the determination of the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements being the Listing Rules of the
UK Listing Authority, and those regulations relating to health and safety
and employee matters

) We understood how Thomas Cook Group plc is complying with those
frameworks by making enquiries of management. enterprise risk and

internal audit, those responsible for legal and compliance procedures

and the Group legal counsel We corroborated our enquiries through
our review of board minutes, papers provided to the Audit Committee
and Board and correspondence received from regulatory bodies

> We assessed the susceptibility of the Group's financial statements
to material misstatement. including how fraud might occur by meeting
with management from various parts of the business to understand
where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud We also

considered covenant thresholds and performance targets and their
influence on efforts made by management to manage earnings or
influence the perceptions of analysts We considered the programs
and controls that the Group has established to address risks identified,
or that otherwise prevent. deter and detect fraud; and how senior
management monitors those programs and controls Where the
risk was considered to be higher, we performed audit procedures
to address each identified fraud risk These procedures included
assessing the appropriateness of presentation of separately disclosed
items and testing manual journals These procedures were designed
to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were
free from fraud or error

, Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures
to identify non-compliance with such laws and regulations identified
in the paragraphs above 0ur procedures involvedjournal entry testing.
with a focus on manual consolidation journals and journals indicating
large or unusual transactions based on our understanding of the
business: enquiries of legal counsel, group management, enterprise
risk and internal audit, segment management and management
at full and specific scope entitiesl and focused testing, as referred
to in the key audit matters section above

ThomosCoolGroup plc I AnnuollcportandAccountr2Ol8

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditors report

0llrrf 't,iiltl! r/rt. irrI lilir l-?a] tl .riiCre::S

, Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were
appointed by the Company on 9 February 2017 to audit the financial
statements for the year ending 30 September 2017 and subsequent
financial periods

> The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous

renewals and reappolntments is two years, covering the years ending
30 September 2017 to 30 September 20lB

> The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were
not provided to the Group or the Company and we remain independent
of the Group and the Company in conducting the audit

> The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit
committee explaining the results of our audit.

.:. !l - ,' 't lr'l'l
> This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body,

in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006

our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditors report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company's members as a body. for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

RICHARD WITSON
(sEN roR STATUTORY AU DrroR)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP Statutory Auditor
London

28 November 20lB

llotes:

I The marntenance and integlty of the Th0mas Cook Group plc websrte rs the responsrbrlity of the
Directors: the work can red 0ut by the audltors does not involve constderatton of these matters
and accordrngly the auditors accept no responsrbrl ty for any changes that may have occurred
to the frnancral slatements srnce they were rnitially presented on the websrte

2 Legrslatron rn the lln led Krngdom qovernrng the preparaLion and drssemrnahon of I nancial

statements may drffer from legrslatron n otherluflsdlctrons
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2OI8

GROUP INCOME STATEMENT

9,584 9,584 9.006 9 006

Cost of providinq tourism services (7.629) l22l 0,6sr) 12 (Z0r6)

t,955 Q2l 1,933 1992 12) 1.990

(t.ots) (s6) 0,07t) (e7s) (28) (1.003)

12il3 0re) 1222)

(7 0r4)

1222)0r9l

Gross profit

Personnel expenses

Depreciation and amortisation

Net oDeratinq exDenses

Profit/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries and fixed assets t3132

(473) fi6) (s891 (468) (s2) (s20)

(eI
Amortisation of business combination intangibles (8) (B)

Share of results ofjoint venture and associates 14 2 I l0 (l) - tl)

Profit from operations 250 (153) 97 326 {gg) 221

(81(8)

Finance income 5-54-4
(r2e) (26) 0ss) (t47) (4t) 088)Finance costs

{Loss)/Profit before tax 07e) (s3) 183 (r40) 43

Tax e 0r0) (34)

fl63)(Loss)/Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent (t63) 10

Non-controllinq interests (t)

(163) e

fl0.6) 01Basic and diluted earnings per share (pence)

* For details on lhe restatement please refer to Note 33

The Notes on pages 124 to 170 form an integral part ofthe consolidated financial statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2OI8

GROUP STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

,.,r.1

Year ended
30 September

2018
€m

Year ended
30 September

2011
Restated*

Em

lLoss)/Profit for the year fl63)

other comprehensive income and expense

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Actuarial qains on defined benefit pension schemes 122 14

Tax on actuarial qains 128)9124 (28)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Foreiqn exchanqe translation losses (21(e0)

Fair value qains and losses

Gains/(losses) deferred for the year (20)340

Tax on qains/(losses) deferred for the year (s4)9124

Gains transferred to the income statement (r03)

Tax on qains transferred to the income statement 5

Total net other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 202 2

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year t259

Attributable to

owners of the parent l)39

Non-controllinq interests

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year \239

' For detarls on the restatement please refer to Note 33
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2OI8

GROU P CASH FIOW STATEM ENT

Year ended
50 September

20t8
em

Year ended
30 September

2011
Restated'

tm

(Loss)/Prof it before tax (s3)

Adiustments for:

Net finance costs

Share of results ofjoint ventures and associates

lncrease in provisions 2031

Depreciation amortisation and impairment 238264
(profit)/Loss on disposal of subsidiaries and fixed assets (4r)

Share-based payments

Additional pension contributions

lnterest received

(lncrease)/decrease in workinq capital

I nventories l2l
Receivables (io7(r2s)

Payables 164(20)

Cash qenerated from ooerations 178 Eaa

lncome taxes paid 31(3s)

Net cash from operatinq activities

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds on sale of subsidiaries

Proceeds on sale of non-current asset held for sale

lnvestment in loint ventures and associates (6)

Purchase of tanqible assets 023)

Purchase of intanqible assets

Net cash used in investing activities (203) {ree)

Dividends paid to non-controllinq interests 32

Dividends paid 8(e)

lnterest paid (r3s) (r44)

Draw down of borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

688
(7s9)

Payment of facility set-up fees

Repayment of finance lease obliqations

Qll (10)

(3s) (44)

Net cash used in financinq activities (28r)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash cash equivalents and overdrafts at beginning of year 1.399 1234

Effect of foreiqn exchanqe rate chanqes (r6) 43

Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at end of year r,038 1,399

* For detatls on the restaiement please refer to Note 33
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AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2OI8

GROUP BALANCE SHEET

SO SeptemOe, I

2018 I

e. l

Non-current assets

lntangible assets 3,104 3,136

Property. plant and equipment

- aircraft and aircraft spares t3

- other

lnvestments in joint ventures and associates

0ther investments

Deferred tax assets

Pension asset 23

Trade and other receivables 16

Derivative financial instruments

4.40t 4213

Current assets

I nventories

Tax assets

Trade and other receivables 8il

Derivative financial instruments 219 56

Cash and cash equivalents 1,039 1 401

2,113 2,231

Non-current assets held for sale

Total assets

Current liabilities

Retirement benefit obliqations 9(s)30

Irade and other payables (2,3r4) (2,34e)

Borrowings (r84) 1245)

0bligations under finance leases (3e)(34)

Iax liabilities s7)(s7)

Revenue received in advance (1,363)(r s90)

Short-term provisions 168lzt4l
Derivative financial instruments fl0e)(20)

.4.222], (4,33s)

' For detalls on the reslatement please refer to Note 33
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET
CONTINUED

,a,arl

30 September
2011

Restated'
€m

30 September
2018

Cm

Non-current liabilities

Retirement benefit obliqations 439(43s)

Trade and other pa

Lonq-term borrowinqs

l24l
(r,028)

0bliqations under finance leases (182) (Is)

Non-current tax liabilities (7)

Deferred tax liabilities bl

L0nq-term provrst0ns 2821 (507)

Derivative financial instruments I(6)

(2 0r0)(2 0s6)

Total liabilities (6,278) (6,54e)

Net assets 29t 256

Equitv

Called-up share capital 6926

Share premium account 524

Merqer reserve I 547 1,547

o
Hedqinq and translation reserves

Capital redemption reserve

Accumulated losses fl 89r)(r 96s)

lnvestment in own shares 8)(8)

Equity attributable to equity owners of the parent

Non-controllinq interests

Total equity
* For deLails on the restatement please reJer to Note 33

The financial statements on pages 124 to 170 were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 November 2018

Signed on behalf of the Board

Bttt scorr
GROUP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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FORTHEYEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2O]8

Total
equitY

€m

Attributable to Non-
Accumulated equityholders controllrng

losses of the parent rnterests
€m 0m em

Hedgrng
reselve

tm

0ther
reserves

Em

GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

fr"natation I

reserve
tr]

At 30 September 2016

Adlustment on correction of error

At 30 September 2016 restated

Profit for the year as reported

3260.es0) 305

(21) (21)

(r 97r 284 2\

Adlustment on correction of error 33

Restated Profit for the period

0ther comprehensive income/(loss):

Foreign exchange translation losses

Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension
schemes {net 0t taxl

Losses deferred for the year (net of tax)

Gains transferred to the lncome Statement (net
of tax)

Iotal comprehensive income for the year

Equity credit in respect of share-based payments

Dividends paid

(rs) fls) - fls)

(6s) (6s) - (6s)

(80) '27) e6 0r) (1) (r2)

8B8

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest 32

Settlements of non-controllinq interest (r) (il) 11 -
593 1,547 (40) 48 (r.89r) 251 (r) 2s6At 30 September 2017 restated

Loss for the year (r63) (r63) (r63)

0ther comprehensive income/(loss):

Foreiqn exchanqe translation losses (e0)(s0)(e0)

Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension
schemes {net ot taxl 9494

Gains deferred for the year (net of tax)

Gains transferred to the income statement (net of
tax)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Equity credit in respect of share-based payments

Dividends paid

Settlements of non-controllinq interest

(88)(88)(881

r98 (e0) (69) 39 - 5s

55-s(s) (s) - (e)

010)l-
At 30 September 2018 rs8 l42l (r,s6s) 29r - 2st
* For details on the restatement, please refer L0 Note 53

other reserves consist of the merger reserve, the capital redemption reserve and own shares held The capital redemption reserve was created
as a consequence of the share buyback programme during the year ended 30 September 2009

The merger reserve arose on the reverse acquisition ofThomas Cook Group plc and MyTravel Group plc (currently known as MyTravel Group
Limited) by Thomas Cook AG (currently known as Thomas Cook GmbH). In the case ofThomas Cook Group plc, the merger reserve represents the
difference between the existing share capital and share premium of Thomas Cook AG and the share capital of Thomas Cook Group plc issued in

exchange. and in the case of MyTravel Group plc, the merger reserve represents the difference between the fair value and the nominal value of
the share capital issued by Thomas Cook Group plc
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I GENERAL INFORMATION
Thomas Cook Group plc is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006

and listed on the London Stock Exchange The address of the registered office is 3rd Floor. South Building. 200 Aldersgate, London ECIA 4HD

The principal activities ofthe Group are discussed in the Strategic Report on pages 6 to 6l

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 November 2018

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with EU endorsed lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and

interpretations issued by the IFRS lnterpretations Committee (IFRS lC) and Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS

The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted for use in the European Union and therefore comply with
Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation

After making enquiries and taking into account the matters set out in the Risk Management section on pages 56 to 61, the Directors confirm

that they consider it appropriate to use the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report & Accounts

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities (including

derivative financial instruments) at fair value through the profit or loss. share-based payments and defined benefit pension obligations

The financial statements have been rounded to the nearest million in Great British Pounds Amounts in pence have been rounded to the nearest

tenth of a pence

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation ofthe financial information presented in this document are set out below

These policies have been applied consistently to the periods presented unless otherwise stated

Management identified several adjustments that, in their opinion should be applied to Thomas Cook's financial statements for the year ended

S0september20lTAsaresultthesehavebeenrestated RefertoNoteSSforfurtherdetailsoftherestatement

3 SIGN!FICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES
3A CHANGES IN ACCOUNIING POLICYAND DISCTOSURE

No new standards. amendments or interpretations, effective for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after I 0ctober 2017 have

had a material impact on the Group or parent company

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective or EU endorsed:

IFRS 9 'Financial instruments contains new requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and new requirements

to address the impairment of financial assets The new standard also introduces a new hedge accounting model to further align

hedge accounting with risk management strategy and objectives IFRS 9 is effective for periods commencing l.January 2018 and

therefore will be applied by the Group in the financial statements for the year ending 30 September 2019

The Group does not expect IFRS I to materially affect the classification and measurement offinancial assets, most financial assets

will continue to be recognised at amortised cost The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment provisions based

on expected credit losses {'ECI) rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under IAS 39 Most of the Group's trade and

other receivables relate to deposits and prepayments paid in advance to hotel and other suppliers in order to guarantee the provision

of those supplies These are not financial assets and therefore outside the scope of IFRS 9 0f trade recetvables the Group's average

debtors days is seven days (refer to Note 16 for further detail) 0n this basis, the Group does not expect any material adjustments to

existing provisions on transition

The Group will continue to undertake hedging activity in line with its financial risk management strategy and policies The Group's

current hedge relationships will continue to qualify as hedges upon the adoption of IFRS t however the Group expects the following

changes to hedge accounting upon the adoption of the new standard:

, movements in the forward points related to foreign exchange forward contracts to be classified as a cost of hedging and be

classified within 0ther Comprehensive Income:
> similarly, the movements in the time value of options are expected to be classified as a cost of hedging and classified within Other

Comprehensive lncome

Both items are currently classified within Separately Disclosed ltems within the Cost of providing tourism services as part of the lncome

Statement For the current year, a f4m credit was recognised within Separately Disclosed ltems in respect to both items across both the Group

Airline and Group Tour Operator segments

124
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES CONTINUED
3A CHANGES !N ACCOUNTING POTICYAND DISCLOSURE CONTINUED
IFRS 15 'Revenues from Contracts with Customers'introduces a five-step approach to the timing of revenue recognition based on

performance obligations in customer contracts IFRS 15 is effective for periods commencing I January 2018 and therefore will be

applied by the Group in its financial statements for the year ending 30 September 2019 The Group will apply IFRS 15 in accordance
with the modified retrospective transition method.

IFRS 15 considers whether a contract contains more than one distinct good or service This is particularly relevant in the context of
the Group's package holiday offerings. The Group has concluded that under IFRS 15, a package holiday constitutes the delivery of one

distinct performance obligation which includes flights. accommodation. transfers and other holiday-related services ln formulating
this conclusion. the Group has assessed that it provides a significant integration service within a package holiday which produces

a combined output to the customer. lndividual revenue streams, which currently are predominantly recognised at the start of a

customer's holiday. will in future, under IFRS 15 be required to be recognised when services of the single performance obligation are

transferred to the customer lhis will mean, under IFRS 15, revenue and corresponding cost of sales will be recognised over the period

a customer is on holiday

The Group's financial year end of 30 September is at the end of the peak tourist season each year Under IFRS 15, a certain amount of
revenue and cost of sales previously recognised at year-end, under IAS 18, will be deferred at the balance sheet date and recognised
in the following financial year The effect of recognising additional revenue and cost of sales at the beginning of a financial year and

lower revenue and cost of sales at the end of the financial year is expected to materially offset each other. The Group does not expect
a material difference to underlying EBIT as a result of IFRS l5 The adoption of IFRS 15 will mean Equity within the opening balance

sheet is expected to decrease by approximately €lOm in comparison to the reported amount

ln addition. under IFRS 15, the Group expects airport and passenger related taxes be to reported net within revenue The Group

currently reports such items gross within both revenue and cost of sales, lf this change was applied for the current financial year,

the Group would expect revenue and cost of sales to decrease by approximately t400m to f450m within the Group Airline segment
This will have a net nil impact on underlying EBIT.

Aside from the changes noted above, the Group does not expect any material changes to revenue recognition under IFRS 15. as compared
to current treatment under IAS 18, of airline travel services, hotel services, travel agency commission and other travel services

IFRS l6 'Leases' provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for all

applicable leases. This new standard eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases (off balance sheet) or finance
leases (on balance sheet). The only exemptions are for short-term leases and leases for low value assets IFRS 16 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after I January 2019, and therefore will be applied by the Group in fiscal year 2020

TheGrouphasanumberof operatingleasesforassetspredominantlyincludingaircraft,hotel andretail properties Detailsofthe
Group's operating lease commitments are disclosed in Note 27 The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 and expects
its implementation to have a significant impact on the financial statements from the date of adoption The main changes will be

as follows:

> net debt and non-current assets will increase on implementation of IFRS 16 as obligations to make future payments under leases
currently classified as operating leases will be recognised on the balance sheet. along with the related'right-of-use'asset
The Group have tentatively decided to apply the modified retrospective adoption method and expect lease obligations, which are

dominated in foreign currencies such as US Dollar aircraft leases, will be recognised at the exchange rate on the date of adoption
and the appropriate incremental borrowing rate at that date Comparable figures for the year prior to adoption are not adjusted
and all adjustment effects as at adoption are therefore to be presented as adjustments to retained earnings

> there will be a reduction in expenditure within underlying EBIT and an increase in finance costs as operating lease costs
are replaced with depreciation and lease interest expensei

> the amounts recognised as assets and liabilities on adoption of IFRS 16 will be subject to a number of judgements, estimates
and assumptions This includes:

a judgements when reviewing current agreements (such as contracts with hoteliers) to determine whether they contain leases
as defined under the new standard:

b assumptions used to calculate the discount rate to apply to lease obligations, which is likely to be based on the incremental
borrowing rate for the estimated lease term: and

c estimation of the lease term, including options to extend the lease where the Group is reasonably certain to extend
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES CONTINUED
3A CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POTICYAND DISCTOSURE CONTINUED

) The Group's Alternative Performance I.4easures will also be impacted The Group will consider the definitions of such metrics on

adoption of IFRS 16 to ensure that they continue to measure the Group's strategic objectives and monitor performance towards
these goals

IFRS l6 is expected to have the largest impact on the Group's aircraft fleet due to the size and length of these leases The Group

is also reviewing the impact IFRS l6 may have on the accounting of maintenance costs and contractual maintenance obligations
at redelivery of its leased aircraft

For future reporting periods after adoption, foreign exchange movements on lease obligations of aircraft leases, which are

predominantly denominated in US Dollars, will be remeasured at each balance sheet date however the right-of-use asset
will be recognised at the historic exchange rate This will create volatility in the income statement

IFRS 17 'lnsurance Contracts'is effective for annual periods beginning on or after I January 2021 subject to endorsement by the EU IFRS 17

establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope

of the standard The Group plans to assess the impact of IFRS 17 closer to implementation date

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over lncome Tax Treatments' is effective for periods commencing on or after I January 2019 and therefore will be applied

by the Group in its financial statements for the year ending 30 September 2019 IFRIC 23 clarifies how to apply the recognition and

measurements requirements in IAS 12'lncome Taxes' when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments The Group is assessing

the impact of IFRIC 23

There are no further IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on the Group

3B S!GNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES

TheGroupsfinancial statementsconsolidatethoseof theCompanyanditssubsidiaryundertakings Subsidiariesareall entities(includlng
structured entities) over which the Group has control The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to. variable

returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity Subsidiaries are

fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases

lnter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated

Joint venture and associates
Entities, other than subsidiaries. over which the Group exerts significant influence, but not control orjoint control, are associates Entities which
the Group jointly controls with one or more other party under a contractual arrangement are joint ventures

The Group's investments in its associates andjoint ventures are accounted for using the equity method

Under the equity method the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost The carrying amount of the investment
is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate orjoint venture since the acquisition date Goodwill relating

to the associate orjoint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortised nor individually tested
for impairment

Where a transaction involves the sale or contribution of assets which constitute a business (as defined in IFRS 3 'Business Combinations'),

between a Group entity and its joint venture or associate, the Group applies the requirements of IFRS l0 Consolidated Financial Statements' and

recognises in full in profit or loss any gain or loss arising

The presentation currency of the Group is Sterling

Average exchange rates are used to translate the results of all subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures that have a functional currency other
than Sterling The balance sheets of such entities are translated at period end exchange rates The resulting exchange differences are recorded

through a separate component of equity

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of an entity are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities held at the year end are translated at period end exchange rates The resulting exchange gain

or loss is recorded in the Costs of providing tourism services within the income statement When a foreign entity is partially disposed of or sold,

exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTTNG POLICIES CONTINUED
3B SIGNTFICANI ACCOUNIING POTICIES CONTINUED

lrtar-otirleassets gcoowill

Goodwill is recognised as an asset and is reviewed for impairment at least annually Any impairment is recognised immediately in the Group's

income statement and is not subsequently reversed

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the

Group's cash-generating units that are 6*pected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the

acquiree are assigned to those units

0n disposal of a subsidiary, joint venture or associate, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss

on disposal

lni.rng L.le arssets -',rtl'e I

lntangible assets. other than goodwill, are carried on the Group's balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation.

other than capitalised development costs, including those that are internally generated, expenditure is reflected in the income statement in the

year in which the expenditure is incurred

Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over the intangible asset's useful life, when finite, as follows:

Brands

Customer relationships

Computer software

Leasehold properties

Aircraft

Aircraft spares

0ther fixed assets

9 years to indefinite life

I to l5 years

3 to l0 years

lndefinite-lived intangible assets principally comprise those trademarks for which there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which they are

expected to generate net cash inilows These are considered to have an indefinite life, given the strength and durability of our brands and the

level of mark"etingsupport Thenatureof theindustrytheGroupoperatesinissuchthatbrandobsolescenceisnotcommon,if appropriately

supported by advertising and marketing spend.

lntangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually at the CGU level by comparing their carrying amount t0

their iecoverable amount. All other intangible assets are assessed at each reporting date for indications of impairment. lf such indications exist

the recoverable amount is estimated and-compared to the carrying amount. lfthe recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount. the

carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognised immediately in the income statement

Pilperty 1r arrt and eqLriPnrerrt

property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of straight-line depreciation and any provision for impairment. Where costs are incurred

as iartit tne start-up or commissioning of an item of property, plant or equipment, and that item is available-for-use but incapable of operating

inihemannerintend6dbyManagemeniwithoutsuchasiartuporco rmissioningperiod,thensuchcostsareincludedwithinthecostof

the item Costs that are not direitly attributable to bringing an asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating

in the manner intended by Management are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, otherthan freehold land, upon which no depreciation is provided, is calculated on a straight-line

basis and aims to writeldown their cost to their estimated residual vali e over their expected useful lives as follows:

Freehold buildings 40 to 50 Years

Shorter of remaining lease period and 40 years

23 years (or remaining lease period if shorter)

5 to 15 years (or remaining lease period if shorter)

3 to l5 years

Estimated residual values and useful lives are reviewed annually.

Non-cLrrient assets held f cr salt'

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount ls to be recovered principally through a sale transaction

and a sale is considered highly probable They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES CONTINUED
3B SIGN!FICANT ACCOUNIING POtlCIES CONTI N U ED

Major overhaul expenditure, including replacement spares and labour costs, is capitalised and amortised over the average expected life between
major overhauls All other replacement spares and other costs relating to maintenance of fleet assets (including maintenance provided under
pay-as-you-go contracts) are charged to the income statement on consumption or as incurred respectively

Provision is made forthe future costs of major overhauls of operating leased engines. auxiliary power units and airframes by making
appropriate charges to the income statement, calculated by reference to hours flown and/or the expired lease period, as a consequence
of obligations placed upon the Group under the terms of certain operating leases

lnventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost represents purchase price Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all costs to be incurred in marketing. selling and distribution

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate foreign exchange and fuel price risks arising from
operational, financing and investment actlvities ln accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue derivativsfinancial
instruments for trading purposes Howevel derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument and if so the nature of the item being hedged

The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value, on derivatives not designated as a hedging instrument is recognised immediately
in the income statement

Derivatives are presented on the balance sheet on a gross basis A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset
whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is recognised as a financial liability A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a
non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than l2 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within
l2 months

For fair value hedges. changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated as fair value hedges are recognised in
theincomestatementaspartof financeincomeorfinancecostline,wheretheyoffsetthechangesinfairvalueonthehedgeditem Wherethe
hedged item is designated in a fair value hedge relationship of a financial liability held at amortised cost, the change in fair vilue in respect to
the hedged risk is recorded as a fair value adjustment within finance income or finance cost

Fair value hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting Atthat point in time the changes ln fair value on the hedging instrument will continue to be recognised immediately
in the income statement, while the hedged item will no longer be adjusted for fair value changes

The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value on derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as cash flow hedges
of future cash flows is recognised directly in other comprehensive income and the ineffective portion is recognised jmmediately in the income
statement wjthin costs of providjng tourism

Forward points on foreign exchange forward contracts and time value of options are not designated as part ofthe hedging relationship
and therefore are recorded in the income statement within costs of providing tourism

Changes in fair value deferred through the hedge reserve are recognised in the income statement in the same period, or periods in which
the hedged highly probable forecast transactions are recognised in the tncome statement

Cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting At that point in time, any cumulative gains or losses on the hedging instrument recognised in other comprehensive income
are retained until the forecast transaction occurs lf a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss
recognised in other comprehensive income is transferred to the income statement for the period

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument Financial assets
are derecognised when the Group transfers substantially all the risks (and rewards) relating to the financial asset or when the contractual
rights to the cash flows associated with the financial asset expire Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation is discharged.
cancelled or expires Jhe measurement of particular financial assets and liabilities is set out below
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES CONTINUED
3B S!GNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES CONTI N U ED

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, term deposits and investment in money market funds which are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and have an original maturity of three months or less

Where the Group operates centrally pooled accounts and has the legal right along with the intention and ability to pool account balances,

the net cash or overdraft position is disclosed Where the intention or ability to pool balances together is absent, the cash and overdraft are

disclosed on a gross basis in the consolidated balance sheet and the overdraft is excluded from cash and cash equivalents for the purpose

of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised at their fair value and subsequently recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest method

as reduced by allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts An allowance for irrecoverable amounts is established when there is objective

evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms ofthe receivables

The amount of allowance is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows

Available-for-sale f inancial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised and subsequently recorded at their fair value Gains or losses (except for impairment losses

and foreign exchange gains and losses) are recognised directly in equity until the financial asset is derecognised At this point, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in the income statement Any impairment losses, foreign exchange gains or losses

or dividends receivable are recognised in the income statement

Held for trading investments
Short-term investments and derivatives that are not desrgnated in a hedge relationship such as natural hedges of a balance sheet exposure

are classified as held for trading and are recognised and subsequently measured at their fair value Gains or losses are recognised in the
income statement

other non-current asset investments
The fair value of investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market are measured using an

appropriate valuation technique Where a fair value cannot be reliably measured, the investment is measured at cost Loans and receivables

are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method Any impairment losses are recognised in the income statement

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at their fair value and subsequently recorded at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings
lnterest bearing borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value net of any directly attributable transaction costs They are subsequently

recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Borrowings that are designated as hedged items in a fair value hedge relationship are adjusted for changes in their fair value in respect of the
hedged risk The adjustment will be amortised to the income statement at the time when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes

in its fair value attributable to the hedged risk

Provisions

The Group recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources

will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made

Provisions are recognised at the Director's best estimate ofthe expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date,

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is discounted to its present value

Pen siorrs

TheGroupoperatesanumberof definedbenefitschemes Thepensionliabilitiesrecognisedonthebalancesheetinrespectof theseschemes
represent the difference between the present value of the Group's obligations under the schemes (calculated using the projected unit credit
method) and the fair value of those schemes' assets. Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in the period in which they arise within the
statement of comprehensive income and expense The current service cost. representing benefits accruing over the year, is included in the
income statement as a personnel expense The unwinding of the discount rate on the scheme liabilities and the expected return on scheme

assets are presented as finance costs and finance income respectively Past service costs are recognised immediately in the income statement
in personnel expenses
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

3 SIGNIFICANI ACCOUNIING POTICIES CONTINUED
3B SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES CONTI N UED
pension costs charged against profits in respect of the Group's defined contribution schemes represent the amount of the contributions
payable to the schemes in respect of the accounting period

Ordinary Shares including share premium are classified as equity

Leases under which substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership are transferred to the Group are finance leases All other leases

are operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised at the lower of the fair value of the asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments within property, plant and equipment on the balance sheet and depreciated overthe shorter ofthe lease term ortheir expected
useful lives The interest element of finance lease payments represents a constant proportion of the capital balance outstanding and is charged

to the income statement over the period of the lease

Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term

The Group issues equity-settled share options to certain employees as part of their total remuneration The fair values of the share options
are calculated at the date of grant, using an appropriate option pricing model These fair values are charged to the income statement on

a straight-line basis over the expected vesting period of the options, with a corresponding increase in equity This credit is not considered

to be distributable under the Companies Act 2006

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a

capital contribution The fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings with a corresponding credit to equity

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date

at which they are granted

The Groups revenue is measured as the aggregate amount of gross revenue receivable from inclusive tours, airline travel services, hotel

services, travel agency commission and other travel services supplied to customers in the ordinary course of business The Group records

revenue on a net basis after deducting trade discounts, volume rebates, value added tax and compensation vouchers granted to customers

Revenue relating to travel services arranged by the Groups leisure and airline travel providers, are taken to the income statement on the
date of holiday and flight departure Revenue relating to other services provided by the Group is taken to the income statement as earned

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership is transferred to the customer, usually
on delivery of the goods Monies received by the balance sheet date relating to holidays commencing and flights departlng after the period end

are included within current liabilities as revenue received in advance

Direct expenses relating to inclusive tours arranged by the Group's leisure travel providers are taken to the income statement on holiday

departure or over the period to which they relate as appropriate lndirect expenses are recognised in the income statement over the period

to which goods and services are received by the Group

The Group separately discloses to profit before tax in the income statement: non-recurring items, impairment of goodwill and amortisation
of business combination intangiblesi and IAS 39 fair value remeasurement

Separately disclosed items. namely items that are material either because of their size or their nature, or which are non-recurring, are presented

within their relevant income statement category. but highlighted through separate disclosure The separate reporting helps provide a full
understanding of the Group's underlying performance

Items which are included within the separately disclosed category include:

, profits/(losses) on disposal of assets or businesses and costs of acquisitions;
) costs of integration of significant acquisitions and other major restructuring programmes which may extend over a number of years:
) significant goodwill or other asset impairments:
> material write-down of assets/reassessment of accruals. reflecting a more cautious evaluation in light of current trading and economic

conditlons; and

' other individually material items that are unusual because of their size nature or incidence 
B4
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT!NG POTICIES CONTINUED
3B S!GNIFICANI ACCOUNTING POTICIES CONTINUED
Material business combination intangible assets were acquired as a result of the merger between Thomas Cook AG (currently known as Thomas
Cook GmbH) and MyTravel Group plc (currently known as MyTravel Group Limited) and other business combinations made in subsequent years
The amortisation ofthese intangible assets is significant and the Group's Management considers that it should be disclosed separately to
enable a full understanding of the Group's results

IAS 39 fair value remeasurement includes movements in forward points related to foreign exchange forward contracts and time value of options
in cash flow hedging relationships Both items are subject to market fluctuations and unwind when the options or forward contracts mature
and therefore are not considered to be part of the Group's underlying performance lnterest income and charges arising on the Group's defined
benefit pension schemes and interest charges arising on the unwind of discount on exceptional provisions and contingent consideration are
not considered to be part of the Group's underlying performance

ln addition, certain finance costs or income that derive from one-off events or transactions are not considered to be part ofthe Group's
underlying performance The Group's Management considers that these items should be disclosed separately to enable a full understandlng
of the Groups results

: l.t -f:r'f i'16 r1.

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested, expected return on pension plan assets. changes in the fair value of held
for trading interest-related derivatives and fair value adjustments to hedged items in a designated fair value hedge

Finance costs comprise interest costs on borrowings and finance leases, unwind ofthe discount on non-current liabilities. interest cost
on pension plan liabilities, changes ln the fair value of held for trading interest-related derivatives and changes in fair value of derivatives
designated in a fair value hedge relationship

The changes in fair value on derivatives designated in a fair value hedge relationship and the fair value adjustment on hedged items in a fair
value hedge relationship are separately disclosed in Note 7 under the description'Finance related charges'

ll)
Current tax
Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect ofthe taxable profit (tax loss) for a period,

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates and laws that are substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on all temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability and its tax
base, with the following exceptions:

> where the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting or taxable profit or loss:

) in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future: and

> deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, tax losses or credits carried forward can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related asset
is realised or liability is settled. based on tax rates and laws substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Allocation of tax charge or credit between income statement, other comprehensive income and equity
Tax is recognised in the income statement unless it relates to an item recognised directly within other comprehensive income. in which case
the associated tax is recognised directly in other comprehensive income respectively

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its Ordinary Shares Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or
loss attributable t0 ordinary Shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the period
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the weighted average number of 0rdinary Shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
Ordinary Shares EPS measures for continuing operations have been presented in accordance with IAS 33, The Group also presents a basic
and diluted underlying EPS measure based on underlying profit before tax as defined in the'Separately Disclosed ltems'section above
Further details of the EPS calculation are presented in Note ll
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES CONTINUED
3C CRrilCAr ACCOUNTI NG ESTI MATES AN D J U DGEiI ENTS

ln applying its accounting policies, the Group has made estimates and assumptions concerning the future, which may differ from the related

actual outcomes Those estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below

ilevett L,e t ei i-rir iici r

A keyjudgement in recognising revenue is to distinguish where the Group's businesses act in the capacity of principal or agent so to determine

theaCcountingaseithergrossornetrespectively,inlinewithlASlBRevenueRecognition TheGroupexercisesjudgementtoassessprincipal
or agency by considering if it is the prime obligor in all the revenue arrangements, has pricing discretion and is exposed to inventory and credit

risk, in which case the Group will be principal to the arrangement

,,trl,:-: ,ll(. ltt r)t qi)ild\^,/

Judgements have been made in respect of the amounts of future operating cash flows to be generated by certain of the Group's businesses

in oider to assess whether there has been any impairment of the amounts included in the balance sheet for goodwill or intangible assets with

an indefinite life in relation to those businesses

li i :it I iri',iLtr':it-rc! ptar\ 1, arit:

Provisions for the cost of maintaining leased aircraft and spares are based on forecast aircraft utilisation, estimates of future maintenance

costs and planned rollover and renewal of the aircraft fleet,

;r1i,,, -r -,'t, f'.r rla!( ,- .i rl: .rrl,- !i-\:-C rt! :1 -,LlL:i,

ln calculating the level of provisions required, judgements have been made on the probability of success ln defending legal claims and estimated

outcome of iuch claims ln assessing associated recoveries. judgements have been made been on the estimate of the amounts that will be

recovered from hotel suppliers

Judgements have been made in respect of the probable future utllisation of tax losses, and deferred tax assets have been recognised

as jresult Therecoverabilityof theseassetsisdependentontheagreementof thelosseswiththerelevantauthoritiesandtheestimates
of future profitability
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4 SEGM ENIAT IN FORI.IATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into three operating divisions: Tour 0perator, Group Airline and Corporate

These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information Certain residual businesses and corporate functions

are not allocated to these divisions and are shown separately as Corporate

These reportable segments are consistent with how information is presented to the Group chief Executive Officer (chief operating decision

maker) for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance

Segmental information for these activities is presented below:

Year ended 30 september 2018

I Tourooerator I llrtin. I

I e,l e,l
Corporate

Em
Group

€m

Revenue

Seqment sales 2394 3,519 - 10,913

(34) fl,2s5) - [,32e]

7.360 2,224 9,584
Inter-seqment sales

Total revenue

Underlyinq operating prof it/(loss) from operations 16r n9 - 
(40) 250

fll$ m [8] 04s]

Amortisation of business combination intanqibles (8)(8)
Separately disclosed items

Seqment result s8 il7 (58) 91

5Finance income

Finance costs tt5s)
(s3)

-uo

Loss before tax

Tax

Loss for the yeal (r65)

0ther information

Capital additions t9l90

Depreciation t68r53l5

Amortisation of intanqible assets 26

Amortisation of business combination intangibles
-t8
15 19

lmpairment of property, plant and equipment

lmDairment of lntanqible assets
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Corporate Group
€m Em

Tour operator A ilne
€m €m

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

4 SEGMENTAT INFORMATION CONTINUED

At 30 September 2018

Balance sheet

Assets

Segment assets 23 459t0 4818,942

lnter-seqment eliminations (r2092)

6.367

lnvestments in associates and Joint ventures 85

Tax and deferred tax assets It7

Total assets 6,569

0,s82) (2,8sr) (r,3s3) (21,786)

r7092

Liabilities

Segment liabilities

lnter-seqment eliminations

(4.694)

Tax and deferred tax liabilities 0s6l
Borrowings and obligations under finance leases (r,428)

Total liabilities (6,2781

The total external revenue recognised in the UK was f 2,625m (2017: €2.410m) and f4,l30m in Germany (2017: t3,863m)

lntersegment sales are charged at prevailing market prices Segment assets consist primarily of goodwill, other intangible assets property,
plant and equipment, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents Segment liabilities comprise trade and other payables,
revenue received in advance and provisions Capital additions comprise additions to other intangible assets (Note 12) and property. plant
and equipment (Note 13) The total non-current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred tax located in the UK was f2,023m
(2017: tl,99lm) and €541m (2017: €578m) in Germany
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4 SEGMENTAT INFORMATION CONTINUED

Year ended 30 September 2017 restated
J Tour operator I

I trl Group
€m

A r ine corporate
fm tm

Revenue

Seqment sales 1,121 3,185 10,306

(43) (r.257)

1.018 I 928

(r.300)

9 006

lnter-segment sales

Total revenue

Result

Underlyino operatinq profit/(loss) from operations 246 ils (35) 326

174) I (18) (et)

Amortisation of business c0mbination intanqibles (88

Separately disclosed items

Segment result (s3ll6164

Finance income

Finance costs 188

Profit before tax 43

34)Tax

Profit for the vear

0ther information

Capital additions 342071

Depreciation 86

365

62

Amortisation of business combination intangibles

Amortisation of intangible assets

lmpairment of propertv, plant and equipment

At 30 September 2017 restated
Touroperator I GroupAirline corporate IE.l trl tml

Group
fm

Balance sheet

Assets

Seqment assets 7,531 2,921 8 539 18.997

lnter-seqment eliminations {r2.6r5)

6 382

lnvestments in associates and j0int ventures

Tax and deferred tax assets

Total assets 6 605

Lab tes
Seqment liabilities t6 505) I 007)88 il7 593)

lnter-seqment eliminations 12 615

,4718)

Tax and deferred tax liabilities l2s

Borrowinqs and obliqations under finance leases 0,446)

Total liabilities (6,349)
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2011

€m
20t8

Em

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

5 PERSONNET EXPENSES

Waqes and salanes 908

Social security costs

Share-based payments - equity-settled (see Note 29)

Defrned benefjt pension (income)/costs (see Note 301 (s)

Defined contribution pension costs (see Note 30) 52

1,07t 003

The average number of employees of the Group during the year was

zora I

Number 
I

zoru I

Number 
I

Tour 0perator 13.465 14,0t6

7.547 1.525

Corporate 25r 241

21,263 21188

Disclosures of Directors' remuneration. share options, long-term incentive schemes, pension contributions and pension entitlements required

by the Companies Act 2006 and those specified for audit by the Financial Conduct Authority are on pages 88 to 109 within the Remuneration

Report and form part of these audited financial statements

Disclosures in respect of remuneration of key management personnel are included in Note 3l

6 OPERATING EXPENSES

L*l
I trl

2017

Restated
tm

Advertisinq expenses t46

Rents and expenses for building maintenance

lnformation technology and telecommunication costs

Travel expenses and ancillary personnel expenses

24

16

Leqal and consultancy fees 52

54

4B

Write off of bad debt and impairment of plant, property and equipment 54

Auditor s remuneration

0ther oDeratinq exDenses

s89 520

A more detailed analysis of auditors' remuneration on a worldwide basis is provided below:

2011

€m
20t8
tm

Fees payable to Company's auditor and its associates for the audit of parent company and

consolidated financial statements

Audit of subsidiaries

Total audit fees

0ther non-audit services

Total fees

r36
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6 OPERAT!NG EXPENSES CONTINUED
Total non-audit services are inclusive of€0.2m (2017: t0.2m) in relation to the review ofthe Group's interim financial statements and f04m on

assurance services related to the Group's new bond issue in December 2017,

Fees paid to the Company's auditors and their associates for services other than the statutory audit of the Company are not disclosed in

subsidiaries'accounts since the consolidated accounts ofthe subsidiaries'parent. Thomas Cook Group plc, are required to disclose non-audit

fees on a consolidated basis.

A description ofthe work ofthe Audit Committee is set out in the Corporate Governance report on page 78 and includes an explanation of how

auditor objectivity and independence is safeguarded when non-audit services are provided by the auditors

7 SEPARAIELY DISCTOSED ITEMS

| '*l 2017

fm

Affectinq profit from operations:

New 0peratinq Model implementation costs 42)(s7)

Restructurinq costs fl2(241

Onerous leases and store closures (30(40)

Costs of transformation 84(r2r)

lnvestment in business development and start-up costs tbl24l

Airline disruption fl6)

Reassessment of contingent consideration

lmpairment of assets 6)(33)

Amortisation of business combination intanqibles

Disposal of subsidiaries

Loss on disposal of PPE (r0(3)

Litiqation and legal disputes {6)0)

Pension plan amendment

0ther 2)(8)

0s3) (ee)

Affecting finance income and costs:

Net interest cost on bond refinancing 1230sl
1l(6)Net interest cost on defined benefit obliqation

Unwind of discount on provisions and other non-current liabilities 0t)

4)06)Total

Total separatelv disclosed items

New 0perating Model implementation costs
lmplementation costs relating to the New Operating Model ( NUI'40 )totalled t57m (2017 L42n;.) and primarily relate to on-going transformation

and efficiency programmes in Continental Europe and the UK These programmes commenced in 2015 with a focus on generating synergies

within the Group by co-operating more closely across all source markets and harmonising activities, ratherthan duplicating processes in each

individual market across a number ofteams. The transformation projects focus on aligning and integrating activities across the Group in each

business area, including finance, digital, marketing, product and yield management This work represents an investment in our transformation

resulting in a material level of incremental cost that is not reflective of underlying business as usual activity. Accordingly we believe that it is
appropriate to separately disclose these costs

( 40)07el
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

7 SEPARATETY DISCLOSED IIEMS CONTINUED
The costs that we have separately disclosed in relation to these programmes include: [20m ,.2017:124rrJ 

of internal personnel costs in

respect ofemployees who are dedicated to transformation projects and activities, including those in operational and back-office roles
who are designing and implementing change as well as those in project management and project support roles The relevant projects
include: integration of content, marketing and brochure production activities omni-channel optimisation which include retail transformation
and web efficiency initiatives, contact centre rationalisation. finance. lT and other cost reduction programmes, and projects dedicated to
implementing new products ancillaries and customer experience tools NUM0 rmplementation costs also include: fgm (2017 12n) in relation
totheestablishmentof aSharedServiceCentre(of which f7nl20l1:€lm) arepersonnel relatedcosts),€Bm(2017: flm) of redundancies,€7mof
consultancy expense l20l1.l2m). €5m (2017: fnil) of dual-running expenses for old systems that were upgraded in the year, €4m (2017: €9m) of lT

project expense (of which €lm (2017, €nil) are personnel related costs), l2n l20ll. €5m) of contact centre transformation activity (of which €lm
(2017: f3m) are personnel related costs) and €2m (2017: €lm) of other operating expenses

NUM0 was initially established as a three-year transformation project but has evolved as implementation has progressed Certain projects are
expected to continue with costs being incurred into FY 19

Restructuring costs
Restructuring costs of€24m (2017: tl2m) include redundancy costs in the Airline of€l3m (2017: €nil) and Tour Operator restructuring costs
totalling €llm (2017: tl2m) which includes €6m of redundancy costs

0nerous leases and store closures
Onerous leases and store closures total f40m (2017: f30m) Provision is made for onerous lease contracts on stores that have closed, or where
a decision to close has been announced and for those stores where the projected future trading income, including sublet income, is insufficient
to cover the lower of exit cost or cost of continuing to trade the store Where the cost of continuing to trade the store is lower. the provision

is based on the present value of expected future cash flows to the end of the lease term prior to recognising an onerous lease provision,
the Group recognises any impairment loss that has occurred in respect of assets dedicated to that lease onerous lease expenses total €2lm
(2017: €16m) in the UK and €4m (2017: €nil) in France, of which [2m and €3m respectively relate to asset impairments Store closure expenses
incurred in relation to the UK closure programme total f14m (2017: fl4m) There were also €lm (2017: fnil) of personnel costs incurred for internal
time spent dealing with and managing these two matters

lnvestment in business development and start-up costs
During the year. l24m (2017: tl6m) has been incurred in relation to investment in the set-up of partnerships and new business developments
This is comprised of fl3m relating to set-up costs of the Expedia partnership. €8m for Thomas Cook Money and f3m for a joint venture in China

0fthef24m,€l2m(2017: €3m) wasincurredinrespectof personnel costs: comprisedof €7m,€4mandflmforExpedia ThomasCookMoney&
China respectively with the remaining costs being operating expenses

Airline disruption
During the year, following certain insolvencies in the Airline industry, Group Airlines secured additional airport slots and contracted l0 additional
aircraft that would allow the Group to increase capacity in Summer 2018. To fly the new alrcraft it was necessary to obtain new European Air
operators Certificates ('AoC ) and register with the respective N ational Aviation Authorities There were substantia I delays in the processing of these
registrationsacrosstheindustryascompetitorsalsosoughttotakeadvantageof thefall outof theinsolvencies AstheAirlinehadinitiallyplanned
for new AOCs and aircraft to be operational by I l"lay, flight planning and bookings had already been committed for the start ofthe Summer season
The aircraft registration delays meant that the Group had to take expensive mitigating actions. including the use of short term sub-charters, in

order to fly the committed Summer programme The direct incremental costs associated with the disruption have been separately disclosed
These include f5m of costs incurred with flight cancellations, €4m for EU261 compensation costs for those cancelled flights, t4m for the cost of
wet leasing temporary ad-hoc capacity at above market rates and f2m of other costs directly associated with the disruption

lnaddition therewereflmof costsbornebytheTourOperatorinrespectof Airlineinsolvencies

Reassessment of contingent consideration
During FYIZ the Group announced its intention to acquire full control of its UK retail store network, following notification by The Co-operative
Group ('the Co-op') of the decision to exercise its option over its stake in their UK retail joint venture Accordingly, in the prior year, in line with the
requirements of IFRS, the Group reassessed the carrying value of a contingent obligation to acquire the Co-op shares and this reassessment
resulted in a reduction of €32m to the liability previously accrued

lmpairment of assets
lmpairment of assets totalling €35m (2017: t6m) includes fl5m in relation to an internally developed lT asset held within the Corporate Segment
which had been built to serve our complementary offering but will now no longer be used due to the Group's new partnership with Expedia, f7m
of lT asset write downs as part of system upgrades to the tour operator business, €6m of a write down of a legacy receivable within the Tour

Operator, E2m of a write off of a loan receivable from one of our associated entities due to insolvency, f2m of write offs in relation to fixtures
and fittings of a closed hotel and a €lm write off of assets within Thomas Cook Money Australia prior to its disposal
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7 SEPARAIETY DISCTOSED lIEMS CONTINUED
Amortisation of business combination intangibles
Material business combination intangible assets were acquired as a result ofthe merger betweenThomas Cook AG and MyTravel Group

plc andotherbusinesscombinationsmadeinsubsequentyears Theamortisationof theseintangibleassetsissignificantandtheGroup's
Management considers that it should be disclosed separately to enable a full understanding ofthe Group's results

Disposal of subsidiaries
During 2018, the Group announced the launch of its hotel fund, Thomas Cook Hotel lnvestments ICHl), a joint venture with Swiss-based hotel
property development company. LIr,lEY Investments (LMEY) The establishment of the hotel fund included the sale of two of the Group's Greek

hotels, the long-standing family resort Sunwing Kallithea in Rhodes and the well-established Sunwing Makrigialos in Crete, to the new joint
venture At the same time. Aldiana GmbH and LMEY also contributed hotel entities to TCHI. The Group holds a 42% interest in Aldiana GmbH and

equity accounts for its share of Aldiana s profit for the year.

Alongside the share sales, upon the establishment of thejoint venture, Hotel Management Agreements (HMAs) and Direct Licensing Agreements
(DLAs) were signed between the Group and TCHI (and Aldiana GmbH and TCHI), such that the seed hotels will be managed either by the Group

under one of Thomas Cook's own brands, or by Aldiana under the Aldiana brand The HMAs and DLAs signed as part of completion of the disposal

transaction have been fair valued and considered as part ofthe consideration received

This transaction led to a t47m credit in respect of the hotel transactions. of whlch €9m relates to the Group's share of Aldiana's gain on disposal

For each hotel disposed the net gain or loss includes the gain from the net consideration received (including recognitron of HMA/DLA intangibles)

less the net book value of assets disposed and the currency translation reserve recycled to the income statement, net of costs incurred

During the year the Group also disposed of its investments in Tour Vital Touristik GmbH, LLC lntourist and Thomas Cook Airlines Belgium

The net gain on these disposals totals f6m

For further details of these disposals and transactions, refer to Note 32

Loss on disposal of PPE

During the year. certain assets were disposed resulting in a t3m loss on disposal (2017: flOm). This includes a €4m loss arising for the write off
of an aircraft engine and f2m of disposals of fixed assets across the Group, partially offset by a €2m gain from the sale of the Pegase brand

and €lm gain from the sale of an aircraft

Litigation and legal disputes
€7m (2017: €6m) of various one-off litigation costs were incurred in the year, which includes €4m of costs incurred ln connection with defending

fraudulent illness claims, €2m of legal costs relating to a historic acquisition related claim and a €lm commercial settlement in respect of an lT

licensing matter.

Pension plan amendment
The pension plan amendment credit in the year relates to a one-time tl4m gain following an amendment to the defined benefit Condor pension

plan For further detalls, refer to Note 30

0ther
other separately disclosed items total f8m. These include; €6m of expenses for refinancing and the Group's legal entity reorganisation,
principally tied to the refinancing that took place in November and December 2017; €5m for a one time lT failure at a Greek Airport that affected
the Tour operator segment in the Summer of 2018, and: €5m of costs (of which €1m are personnel related costs) incurred in the year to meet

the requirements of General Data protection Regulations ("GDpR') effective May 2018 Given these costs are in relation to the one-time set up

costs for ensuring compliance with GDPR and not the on-going monitoring costs which will recur, we believe that it is appropriate to separately

disclose these costs These were partially offset by an t4m gain (2017: t6m) from the movement in forward points related to foreign exchange

forward contracts and the time value of options in cash flow hedge relationships. The hedging related items are subject to market fluctuations
and unwind when the options or forward contracts mature and are not therefore considered to be part of the Group's underlying performance

Finance related charges
The Group has incurred €l9m (2017: €25m) of interest charges as a result of entering into a new Revolving Credit Facility in November 2017 and

issuing a new Euro bond in December 2017 which refinanced elements ofthe Group's debt at lower interest rates. These charges include the
bond redemption premium paid and the write-off of capitalised fees in relation to extingulshed debt ln addition, net interest charges arising on

the Group's defined benefit pension schemes were €6m (2017 f7m). The Group also has provisions for future liabilities arising from separately

disclosed circumstances, primarily deferred acquisition consideration A notional interest charge of €lm (2017: fllm) on the discounted value of
such provisions is recognised within separately disclosed finance related charges,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

8 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

Underlvinq f inance income

Other interest and similar income

Underlyinq f inance costs

Bank and bond interest (71)

Fee amortisation

Letters of credit

0ther interest payable

Underlying aircraft related finance costs

Interest payable on aircraft related borrowinqs

Finance costs in respect of finance leases

12)

(16)

(8fl9)

Underlying finance cost \147)02e)

Net underlyinq lnterest lt24l (r43)

Separately disclosed finance costs

Bond refinancinq costs fls) 123)

Net rnterest cost on defined benefit obligation (Note 30) 11(6)

Unwind of discount on provisions and other non-current liabilities ll
(26) (4r)

Total net interest (rs0) (r84)

Bank and bond interest includes a fair value gain offlm (2017, €nil gain) on hedging instruments
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9 TAX

2011

em
2018

Em

Analvsis of tax charqe

Current tax

corporation tax charqe for the year

adjustments in respect of prior periods (+

(4

0verseas corporation tax charqe for the vear

adiustments in respect of prior periods

Total current tax 46

Deferred tax

tax charqe/(credit) (864

Total deferred tax (864

Total tax charge

The tax on the Group's profit/(loss) before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the UK standard corporation tax rate
applicable to profits of the Company as follows:

2011

2018 Restated
tm Cm

Tax reconciliation

(Loss)/Profit before tax

Expected tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% {2017: 19.5%)

lncome not liable for tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

l24l

42

Losses and other temporary differences for which tax relief is not available 27

Utillsation of tax losses and other temporary differences not previously recognised

Recognition of losses and other temporary differences not previously recognised

Derecognition of deferred tax previously recognised

Difference in rates of tax suffered on overseas earnings

3)(4)

lmpact of changes in tax rates

0ther

lncome tax charge in respect of prior periods fl) (t)

Tax charqe

ln addition to the amount charged to the income statement, deferred tax relating to actuarial losses on pension schemes and the fair value
of derivativefinancial instrumentsoff6Tmhasbeendebiteddirectlytoequity(2017: debitoff2Sm) UKcorporationtaxiscalculatedat19%
(2017: 19 5%) ofthe estimated assessable profit/(loss) for the year Taxation for otherjurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in
the respective jurisdictions

Thederecognitionofdeferredtaxpreviouslyrecognisedlargelyrepresentsthereleaseof UKdeferredtaxassets. Asaresultofthe
performance of the UK business it is considered appropriate to release these assets,

Surplus losses not recognised in deferred tax of f2,502m 12017: 82,222n) are available predominantly in France, Germany and the UK for offset
against future profits

IO DIVIDENDS

No dividends were declared during the year ended 30 September 2018 (2017:06p per share)

lt0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

TI EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations for earnings per share, based on the weighted average number of shares, are shown in the table below The weighted average

number of shares shown excludes two million shares held by the employee share ownership trusts (2017: three million)

Basic and diluted earnings per share

,o,a Igrl
zorz I

Restated I

erl

Net (loss)/profit attributable to the owners of the parent t0(r63)

zora I

millions 
I

20].7

m tons

Weighted average number of shares for basic earnings per share t,533 r,532

Weiqhted averaqe number of shares for diluted earninqs per share* 1.533 1.556

zora I

pence 
I

zov I

pence 
I

Basic and diluted (loss)/earninqs per share 01

and drluted earnrng per share has not ncluded rtems that are anti driut ve

I2 INTANGIBTE ASSETS

(r0 6)

0ther
purchased

fm
coodwill

em '** 
I

Cost

At I October 2016 2 909 218

24

4149 3,902

Add itions 11

Disposals - 0) 182) - (l) (e0)

45455-59
2,954 239 286 424 40 - 5 3,948

- 20 s8 13 12 103

2.912 210 285 408 40 13 17 3,88s

Exchanqe differences

At 30 September 2017

Add itions

Disposals lt7)559

(49Exchanqe differences

At 30 September 2018

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses

At I october 2016 - 825

-6358-49

13341-21
321 il6 169 160 40 812

-6448--159

r-(s) -(4)
327 76 l7s t62 40 - I 781

5l206l534

Charge for the year

Disposals

Exchanqe differences

At 50 September 20U

Charge for the year

Disposals

lmpatrments

Exchanqe differences

At 30 September 2018

Carrvinq amount

At 50 September 2018 2,585 t34 ll0 246 - 13 16 3.104

2,621 123 ll7 264 

- 

5 
1463156At 30 September 2017

142
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T2 INTANGIBTE ASSEIS CONTINUED
lncluded in the tl9m impairment charge for the year is tl5m for an internally developed lT asset; refer to Note 7

Brand names with indefinite lives acquired through business combination intangibles are allocated by cash-generating unit The carrying value
of brand names and goodwill is analysed by business segment as follows:

Goodwill coodwill Brand names
2018 2011 20t8
€m fm €m

Brand names I

zorr I

erl

UK Tour 0perator r,038 1,038 67 b/

Northern Europe Tour 0perator r30123505476

continental Europe 0perator (z56

Group Airline 890 90t

2,585 2,621

Goodwill lmpairment Testing
ln accordance with IFRS, the Group tests the carrying value of goodwill and brand names with indefinite lives for impairment annually and
whenever events or circumstances change

lmpairment testing is performed by comparing the carrying value of each cash-generating unit (CGU) to the recoverable amount, determined
onthebasisof theCGU'svalueinuse Thevalueinuseisbasedonthenetpresentvalueof futurecashflowprojectionsdiscountedatpre-tax
rates appropriate for each CGU

The Group's CGUs for the purposes of impairment testing. consist of UK Tour Operator, Northern Europe Tour Operator, Continental Europe Tour
0perator and Group Airline

The future cash flow projections used to determine the value in use are based on the most recent three-year Business Plan and an additional
year based on management forecasts (collectively 'the cash flow budget') for each of the CGUS The key assumptions used to determine the
business' cash flow budgets relate to capacity and the pricing of accommodation and fuel inputs Capacity is based on Management's view of
market demand and the constraints to managing capacity such as aircraft lease commitments The accommodation pricing is primarily driven
by the underlying bed rate and the foreign exchange hedges in place The former is based on the businesses'ongoing dialogue with hotel
suppliers and local cost inflation The fuel pricing assumption is primarily driven by the fuel hedges in place and the forward fuel curve at the
time that the budget is set The key assumptions used to determine the independent business'cash flow budget relate to passenger volumes
and commission rates, and are based on the individual businesses'view ofthe market conditions

Cash flow forecasts for years beyond the period of the cash flow budget are extrapolated at an estimated average long-term nominal growth
rale of 270

A pre-tax discount rate of between 9.8% - l0 l% reflecting the specific risks of each CGU is used to calculate the value in use for each of
the CGUs.

The value in use calculations performed as at 30 September 2018 indicate that the Northern Europe Tour 0perator, Continental Europe Tour
Operator and Group Airline CGUs are not sensitive to reasonably possible changes in the key assumptions

However, a reasonably possible change in the UK Tour operator CGU future cash flows would result in the CGU's carrying amount exceeding the
value in use. As at 30 September 2018 the UK Tour Operator CGU's value in use exceeds its carrying value by t257m based on a pre-tax discount
rateof 98% AkeyassumptionmadeintheUKCGU'scashflowbudgetisthesuccessoftheUKTour0peratorturnaroundplan Thecashflow
budget assumes an underlying EBIT constant annual growth rate (CAGR) of 28.30/" from Year I to Year 4 This assumption results in the underlying
EBIT of the UK Tour 0perator CGU in the fourth year returning to a similar level of profitability as it achieved in FYl6. A decrease of the underlying
EBIT CAGR from283o/o to 146% would cause the UK Tour 0perator CGU's value in use to equal its carrying value. Similarly. if the pre-tax discount
rate were to increase from 9.8% to 12l% then the UK Tour 0perator CGU's value in use would be equal to its carrying value

A decrease in projected cash flow of 30% in the fourth year of the value in use calculation will cause the UK Tour Operator CGU s value in use to
equal its carrying value.

Sensitivity analysis for the remaining segments have not been disclosed as Management believe that any reasonable change in assumptions
would not cause the carrying value ofthe CGUs to exceed their recoverable amount
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

13 PROPERIY, PTANI AND EQUIPI.tENT

Other property. plant and equipment

Aircraft and I rreehold land short | other
aircralt spares I and buildings I leaseholds I fixed assets--- -'-fi| ti"l ,, e,l

0ther
Total

Em

Cost

At 30 September 2016 I 415 l7l 82 190 443

108 4 29 15 46

(146) (l) (43) 0e0)

(8s) - 124) (s3) 011

533528
89 109 230

162-84048
fl8s) 0) (e) (40) (s0)

5--ll

Transferred to held for sale

Disposals

Exchange differences

At 50 September 2017 461

Additions

Disposals

Exchanqe differences

At 30 September 2018 1.449 31 88 ll0 229

Additions

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At 30 September 2016 3240

Charqe for the year

Provision for impairment
8e)

(7s(83)

Transferred to held for sale

Disposals

Exchanqe differences

At 30 September 2017 29

36

Charoe for the year r5027918
-13518

(lse) 12) (15) (33) (48)

4-

Provision for impairment

Disposals

Exchanqe differences

At 30 September 2018

Carryinq amount

At 30 September 2018 568 t50

139

68

48

52

60

50

3t

20't1
tm

At 30 September 2017 581

Freehold land with a cost of f20m (2017: t20m) has not been depreciated

The net book value of aircraft and aircraft spares includes 8215n12011: f244m) in respect of assets held under finance leases

The net book value of other property, plant and equipment includes t8m (2017: f20m) in respect of assets held under finance leases

The depreciation of owned assets during the year was flOOm (2017: t79m) Depreciation for property, plant and equipment held under finance

lease was f6Bm (2017: tl07m)

capital commitments

2018
Em

53Capital expenditure contracted but not provtded for in the accounts 31
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14 TNVESTMENT rN ASSOCTATES ANDJOTNT VENTURES

2017
fm

20t8
!m

Cost

At I October 20U 33

Additions

Group's share ofjoint ventures and associates' profit /(loss) for the year t0

0)Exchanqe differences

At 30 September 2018 |2
Amounts written off or provided

At 1 October 2017

Exchange differences

At 30 September 2018 2127

Carrying amount

Thomas Cook Hotel lnvestments Limited
ln May 2018, the Group acquired a 50% interest in Thomas Cook Hotel lnvestments Limited. a hotel fund focused on acquiring hotel
properties across Thomas Cook s key destination markets, for €60m Thomas Cook Hotel lnvestments Limited has subsidiaries in Greece
and Spain The Group's interest in Thomas Cook Hotel lnvestments Limited is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements

Summarised financial information in respect of Thomas Cook Hotel lnvestments Limited, based on IFRS. is as follows:

85

20t8
fm

Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents of €2m 56

Non-current assets

Current liabilities. including borrowings of fl2m

Non-current liabilities. including borrowings of fllm
Equity

(2sl

t07

Group's share of equity 54

Goodwill

Group's carrying amount of the joint venture

20t8
Em

Revenue

Depreciation (3)

Finance costs

Profit before tax

l2lTax

Profit for the year

Group's share of Thomas Cook Hotel lnvestments Limited's profit for the year

other Joint Ventures and Associates
Other lnvestments in joint ventures and associates at 30 September 2018 included a 40% interest in Activos Turisticos S A, an incoming agency
and hotel company based in Palma de Mallorca, Spain and 49%joint venture share in Kuyi lnternational Travel Agency (Shanghai) Co. Ltd
whichformspartofThomasCookChina,theGroup'sjointventurewithFosun lnFebruary20lS,theGroupacquireda42%interestinAldiana,
a German tour operator, for f10m
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CONTINUED

14 INVESTMENT lN ASSOCIATES ANDJOINT VENTURES CONTINUED

Summarised financial information in respect of other joint ventures and associates is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS

20t8
Jo nt ventures and

assoctates
tm

zou I

Joint ventures and I

associates I

e'l

Total assets
ZE

Total liabilities 21)

Net assets 32

Group's share of net assets 23

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Grou0's share of profit/(loss) for the year

lncluded within the Groups share ofjoint venture and associates profit for the year is €9m profit being the Group's share of a gain on disposal

recognised by Aldiana This has been reported within Separately Disclosed ltems, refer to Note 7 for further details

The accounting period end dates of the joint ventures and associates consolidated in the Group financial statements differ from those of

theGroup Forthepurposesof applyingtheequitymethodof accountingthemostrecentfinancial statementsofthesejointventuresand
associates and the management accounts are used to draw up the financial position and performance ofeachjoint venture and associate

I5INVENTORIES
2017

fm
20t8

€m

Goods held for resale

Airline spares and other operatinq inventories

42

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense was [2]lm (2017: tl96m)

T6 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABTES

2018
Em

2011

Restated
!m

Non-current assets

Trade receivables

0ther receivables

Deposits and prepayments 49

Current assets

Trade receivables 229 220

0ther receivables

Deposits and prepayments

Loans

0ther taxes

146

8ll
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I6IRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABTES CONTINUED
The average credit period taken on invoicing of leisure travel services is seven days (2017: eight days) No interest is charged on the receivables
The credit risk in respect ofdirect receivables from customers is limited as payment is required in full before the services are provided,
ln the case of travel services sold by third-party agents. the credit risk depends on the creditworthiness of those third parties, but this risk
is also limited because of the relatively short period of credit

Deposits and prepayments include amounts paid in advance to suppliers of hotel and other services in order to guarantee the provision of those
supplies The Group's current policy is that deposits and prepayments will normally be made for periods of up to two years in advance

Thereisacreditriskinrespectofthecontinuedoperationofthosesuppliersduringthoseperiods Depositsandprepaymentsalsoinclude€17m
(2017: €7m) of deposits on aircraft lease arrangements

The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables An allowance for impairment is made where there
is an identified loss event which, based on previous experience. is evidence ofa reduction in the recoverability ofthe cash flows

Allowances for doubtful debts in respect oftrade receivable balances are managed in the business units where the debts arise and are based
onlocal Managementexperience Factorsthatareconsideredincludetheageofthedebt,previousexperiencewiththecounterpartyandlocal
trading conditions. Trade receivables arise from individual customers as well as businesses in the travel sector The Directors do not consider
there to be significant concentration of credit risk relating to trade and other receivables

''1it','t t!irt 'q:;i ilr,''r.11'qLS {,.t atrrrlrlf -i i.cl ,:,!lc.S

2011

2018 Restated
€m €m

At beginning ofyear

Additional provlsions

Exchange differences

Receivables written off

Unused amounts released 3(sl

At end of year

At the year end. trade and other receivables of 8172m (2017: fllSm) were past due but not impaired

The analysis ofthe age ofthese financial assets is set out below:

Ar;liirq arl.rivst:, l]t r:ve :dir0 Ir:rdC arril 0ihr..r ieit ,,ai,r e:

,0,, I
€rl

2017

Restated
fm

Less than one month overdue 66

Between one and three months overdue l9
Between three and 12 months overdue 345l

More than 12 months overdue

Trade and other receivables are not subject to restrictions on title and no collateral is held as security

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate to their fair values
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20t8
tm

2017

Em

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVATENTS

Cash at bank and in hand 833702

Cash in transit 60

Term deposits with a maturity of less than three months 277 493

1.039 t,407

Cash and cash equivalents largely comprise bank balances denominated in Sterling, Euro and other currencies for the purpose of settling

current liabilities as well as balances arising from agency collection on behalf of the Group's travel agencies lncluded within the above balance

are the following amounts considered to be restricted:

, t34m (2017: t24m) held within escrow accounts in respect of local regulatory requirements and;

> €4m (2017 €4m) of cash held by Voyager Android lnsurance Services, a Group captive insurance company

Cash in transit largely comprises amounts receivable on credit cards where the transaction has been authorised but the funds have yet to clear

the bank These balances are considered highly liquid with minimal risk of default, typically funds are received in less than 3 days

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of these assets approximate to their fair value

Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at the end ofthe year as shown in the Group cash flow statement can be reconciled to the related items

in the Group balance sheet position as shown below:

20t8
€m

Cash and cash equivalents 1,039 1,407

Overdrafts (Note l9) (l) (B)

1.038 I ZOO

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABTES

Current liabilities

Trade pavables

Social securitv and other taxes

Accruals and deferred income 442

0ther Davables 163136

2314 2349

Non-current liabilities

Accruals and deferred income

0ther payables l6
.E24

The average credit period taken for trade purchases is 72 days (2017: 82 days)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate to their fair value

Trade payables include tl08m (2017: f59m) that represent balances with corporate card providers these arrangements are considered to be an

extension of normal working capital management providing an extension of terms of 60 to 90 days on average These balances accrue interest

at the following rates 0% to 3%

148

152



Thomor CookGrcup plc i Annuct tcportond Accountt 2Ot8

I9 BORROWINGS

2011

tm
2018
!m

Short-term borrowings

Unsecured bank loans and other borrowings 176 217

Unsecured bank overdrafts

Current portion of long-term borrowings

184 245

Long-term borrowings

Bank loans and bonds:

repayable within one \/ear

repayable between one and five years

repayable after flve years

t,035 1,067

Less: amount due for settlement within one year shown under current liabilities 0) (20)

Amount due for settlement after one year t,028 1041

Current
e.]

zora I

Non-current I

erl
Current

!m

20t1

Non-current
€m

Group committed credit facility (including transaction costs)

Aircraftrelated bank loans (including transaction costs)

Commercial Da0er 28
other bank borrowinqs

lssued bonds (includinq transaction costs)

t,028 1,041

The Directors consider that the fair value of the Group's borrowings with a carrying value of €l,2l2m is €1,228m (2017: carrying value €1,292m:

fair value tl,476m) tl,030m (2017 f 1,183m) of the fair value which relates to issued bonds has been ca lcu lated using quoted market prices.

For all other borrowings, the Directors consider that the fair value of tl98m (2017: t29lm) is approximate to the carrying amount ln 2018,

the Group has tl5m as security to aircraft (2017: €32m) and €26m as a security to property (2017: €37m)

Borrowing facilities
lnDecember20lZtheGroupissuedanew€400mbond ThenewbondbearingSST5%andmaturingon.luly2023.enabledtheGrouptoredeem
in full the €400m bond due to expire in June 2021 which bore a coupon of 675o/o

As at 30 September 2018, the Group had undrawn committed debt facilities of €630m l.2017: f412n) and undrawn committed debt facilities plus
cash available to repay the revolving credit facility of €1,598m (2017: tl,824m) Whilst these facilities have certain financial covenants they are not
expected to prevent full utilisation of the facilities if required The Group has complied with its covenants throughout the year.

From I October 2018, the Group increased the commercial paper programme capacity from 0250m to €500m

245t84
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

19 BORROWINGS CONTI N U ED

Covenant measures
The Group's revolving facilities agreement contains covenant measures that are tested quarterly The covenant measures consist of a leverage

covenant and a fixed charge covenant. The leverage covenant is a measure of pre-exceptional earnings before interest, tax, depreciation,

amortisation and aircraft operating lease rentals compared to net debt The fixed charge covenant is a measure of pre-exceptional earnings

before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and operating lease charges compared to net interest and operating lease charges The leverage

and fixed charge covenant hurdles vary depending on the period that they relate to, reflecting the seasonality of the Group's business

20 OBIIGATIONS UNDER F!NANCE TEASES

ttinimum tease payments I

zoraLo,Irml r.l

Present value of I

minimum lease payments I

zoraLorrlerl erl

Amounts payable under finance leases:

Within one year 3449

Between one and five years 05146

After five years 84

279

Less: future finance charqes (63)

24

t54

present value of lease obliqations 54

Less: amount due for settlement within l2 months (shown under current liabilities)

Amount due for settlement after l2 months

The currency analysis of amounts payable under finance leases is:

2011

Em
20t8
tm

Euro

US Dollar

Finance leases principally relate to aircraft and aircraft spares

No arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments

The Directors consider that the fair value of the Group's finance lease obligations with a carrying value of €216m was [186m at 50 September

2O1B (2017: ca rrying value f l54m; fair value tl76m) The fa ir values quoted were determined on the basis of the interest rates for the

corresponding terms to repayment as at the year end

The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors' rights over the leased assets

154
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2I FINANCIAT INSTRUMENIS
C;rrryinq rait es c{ f irani al ls,seis a -rcj irab riies

The carrying values ofthe Group's financial assets and liabilities as at 30 September 2018 and 30 September 2017 are as set out below

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

0bliqations under finance leases

Provisions arisinq from contractual obliqations

Derivative financial instruments

-rai i;1 .i: I r-:l':.,;, il:titr1 p,-1-

The fair values of derivative financial instruments as at 30 September 2018 were:

I

I

I

- 594

1,039 1.401

- (2,3il) - 12.202)

lt,2t2l 11,292)

016) - (ts4)

524

4 203 (e) 141)

4 203 1,s63 (4,2t9) (9) \47) r 80r (4 080)

Fuel
contracts

fm

lnterest rate 
I

swaps 
I

fm

Currency
contracts

€m
,o,r,l
erl

At I october 2016

Movement in fair value during the year

16 96

{r7) (r8r)

127)

51

30

ll8

85

041)

56)

t48

At I october 2017

Movement in fair value durinq the year

At 30 September 2018

2017

€m
20t8
fm

Non-current assets t1

Current assets 56219

Current liabilities (0e(20)

Non-current liabilities 9(6)

56)207

155
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

2I FINANCIAL INSTRUMENIS CONTI N U ED

ri,t \,.i t., ll a',:ra'r
The fair value ofthe Group's derivative financial instruments are disclosed in hierarchy levels depending on the valuation method applied

The different methods are defined as follows:

Level l: valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments

Level 2: derived using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability. either directly (i e

as prices) or indirectly (i e derived from prices) The fair value of financial instruments is determined by discounting expected cash

flows at prevailing interest rates

Level 3: valued using techniques incorporating information other than observable market data as at least one input to the valuation cannot be

based on observable market data

The fair value of the Groups derivative financial assets and liabilities at 30 September 20i8 and 30 September 2017 are set out below:

Levetrl Level2 t-evetsl 111|,1l revell Levelzl revel3 ;Il
erl erl erl trl Erl Em €m crl

Financial assets

Currency contracts

r48-148-32Fuel contracts

Financial liabilities

Currency contracts _ ':' _--+ _ "B - "l;]Fuel contracts

Continqent consideration

At 30 September 2018 207-207-(56) 56

The fair values of financial instruments have been calculated using discounted cash flow analysis,

Currency hedges are entered into up to a maximum of 24 months in advance of the forecasted requirement As at 30 September 2018, the Group

had in piace currency hedging derivative financial instruments with a maximum maturity of September 2020 12017: l''lay 2019)

The Group also uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate the risk of adverse changes in the price of fuel The Group enters into fixed

price contracts (swaps) and net purchased options in the management of its fuel price All fuel hedges are designated as cash flow hedges

Fuel price hedges are entered into up to a maximum of 24 months in advance of forecasted consumption of fuel Trades with maturities

longer than 2{months need additional approval in line with treasury policy As at 30 September 2018, the Group had in place fuel price

hedging derivative financial instruments with a maximum maturity of March 2020(2011: March 2019)

152

156
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2I FINANCIAL INSTRUT,IENTS CONTI N U ED

ln addition, the Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its interest rate exposures. The Group enters into interest rate swaps

to hedge against interest rate movements in connection with the financing of aircraft and other assets and to hedge against interest rate

.*posuires-on fixed rate debt. The Group also enters into cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge the interest rate and the currency

exposure on foreign currency external borrowings. The fair value of interest rate swaps and cross currency contracts in designated fair value

hedge relationships at 30 September 20lB was a liability of €lm (2017; €lm)

As at 30 September 2018, the maximum maturity of interest rate derivatives was..June 202212011: )une2022l

The fair values of the Group's derivative financial instruments have been calculated using underlying market prices available

on 30 September 20lB

During the year. a gain of €103m (2017: t60m gain) was transferred from the hedge reserve to the income statement following recognition of the

hedgdd transactiois. tn addition, a loss oftlm was recognised in the income statement in respect ofthe forward points on foreign exchange

casli flo* hedging contracts (2017: €6m gain) and a gain of €5m in respect of the movement in the time value of options in cash flow hedging

relationships (2017: nil)

The amount included in each line item in the income statement is shown below:

2011

tm
20t8
!m

Cost of orovidino tourism services

release from hedge reserve t03

time value on options 5-
- forward points on foreign exchange cash flow hedging contracts (l) 6

- fair value movements on derivatives in fair value

During the year a loss of €l2m (2017: €10m loss) was taken directly to the income statement in respect of held for trading derivatives that

are used to hedge Group balance sheet exposure

The closing hedging reserve, excluding the impact of tax. was a gain of fi94m (2017: €44m loss) The periods in which the cash flows are

expected 6 0..r, ind when they are-expected to impact the inCome statement are a gain of €lB5m (2017: f35m loss) within one year and

a gain of €9m (2017: €9m loss) between one and five years

Finance income/(costs):
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enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

2I FINANCIAT INSTRUMENIS CONTINUED

The following financial assets and liabilities are subject to offsetting

As at 30 September 2018

Derivatives financial assets 233 - 233 :5) 208
(26) - (26) 2s - (l)

1,039-t,039--t,039
(t)-(l)-fl)

Derivatives financial liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank overdrafts

Total

As at 30 September 2017

Derivatives financial assets

Derivatives financial liabilities (n8) - (ll8) sj 

-- 

- (6s)

t.q2 (s) 1407 1,407

(t3) s(8) -(8)
1.543 - 1,343 - - 1345

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank overdrafts

Total

For the financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar arrangements above, each agreement
between the Group and the counterparty allows for net settlement ofthe relevant financial assets and liabilities when both electlo settle on a
net basis ln the absence of such an election. financial assets and liabilities will be settled on a gross basis however each party to the master
netting agreement or similar agreement will have the option to settle all such amounts on a net basis in the event of default of the other party

53bt62

Cash flows
Em

Reclassification I

between current I Foreign exchange
and non-current I movement 

Jr.l erl
| ,0."0,"r0", I

other | 2ot8 Ierl trl

Current interest bearinq loans and borrowinqs (r84)l2t(6)69Q45l
Current obligations under finance leases and
hire purchase contracts (34)l2l(s)66(s0)(3e)

Non-current interest-bearing loans and
00rr0wrnqs (r.047) (r 028)t2(7)

Non-current oblagations under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts

Total liabilities from financing activities

(66) (l) - 082)
(r9) r0 0.42s1

r54
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2I FINANCIAL INSIRUMENIS CONTI N U ED

Prior year:

Reclassification
I october between current

2016 Cash flows and non-current
tm Em tr]

o,n* I

erl
Fore gn exchange

movement
tm

30 September
2011

Em

Current interest bearinq loans and borrowinqs (8e1)

142) 21 128) 6 (2 (3e)

(t)

l9)

0412410e4)

Current obligations under finance leases and
hire purchase contracts

Non-current interest-bearing loans and
borrowinqs

Non-current obligations under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts (l4t) - 28 (21 (ils)

(r,e2r) 484 - (r0) r (r,446)Total liabilities from financing activities

22 FINANCIAT RISK

The Group is subject to risks related to changes in interest rates. exchange rates, fuel prices liquidity and counterparty credit within
the framework of its business operations

Lr'1r:i€':: ali -'l :i

The Group is sub.ject to risks arising from interest rate movements in connection with the issue of Eurobonds. bank debt. aircraft financing
and cash investments lnterest rate swaps are used to manage these risks and are designated as both cash flow and fair value hedges

[_,,:e, i,r,)(:, -,1 rtq.,,,-.

The Group has activities in a large number of countries and is therefore subject to the risk of exchange rate fluctuations These risks arise
in connection with the procurement of services in destinations outside the source market For example, US Dollar exposure arises on the
procurement offuel and operating supplies for aircraft. as well as investments in aircraft

The Group requires segments to identify and appropriately hedge all exposures in line with approved treasury policies designed to reflect
the commercial risk of each underlying business. Each segmental hedging policy includes the hedging build up and permitted instruments
The maximum hedge tenor is 24 months and each segment should achieve at least an 80% hedge ratio prior to the start of the season

The Group uses currency forwards, currency swaps and currency options to manage transactional currency risks and these are usually
designated as cash flow hedges

The Group does not hedge translation exposures arising from profits generated outside the UK

Frrer 1ri ce risk

Exposure to fuel price risk arises due to flying costs incurred by the Groups aircraft.

The Group requires segments to identify and appropriately hedge all exposures in line with approved treasury policies designed to reflect
the commercial risk of each underlying business Each segmental hedging policy includes the hedging build up and permitted instruments
The maximum hedge tenor is 24 months and in general each segment should achieve at least an 80% hedge ratio prior to the start
of the season

The Group uses commodity derivative contracts, including fixed price contracts (swaps) and net purchased options to manage fuel price risk
and these are usually designated as cash flow hedges

The market risks that the Group is subject to have been identified as interest rate risk, foreign exchange rate risk and fuel price risk The impact
of reasonably possible changes in these risk variables on the Group. based on the period end holdings offinancial instruments have been
calculated and are set out in the tables below ln each case it has been assumed that all other variables remain constant As at 30 September
2018, the sensitivity of these risks to the defined scenario changes are set out below:
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before tax
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2018
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on profit mpact

before tax on equity
€m €m
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22 FINANCIAT RISK CONTINUED
,nterest rate itsk

1%,.2011:l%) increase in interest rates

025%\2011:0 25%) decrease in interest rates t)

For eiqn exthar-rge r ate r.isk

lmpact
on profit

before tax
em

20t8

lmpact
on profit mpact

before tax on equity
€m fm

5% 
,,2011:5%) 

strenqtheninq of Euro

5% (2017: 5%) weakening of Euro

5%,,2011:5%) strengthening of US Dollar (5) 86 2 ]s
fl) (67)5%Q011,5%) weakeninq of US Dollar (78)

ILrr, Dr re'sk
2011

mpact
on equity

fm

lmpact
on profit

before tax
€m

2018

lmpact
on profit mpact

before tax on equity
Cm €m

l0% (2017: l0%) increase in fuel price

l0% (2017: l0%) decrease in fuel price (8) 0l) - (63)

Given recent historical movements in fuel prices management believe a l0% shift is a reasonable possibility.

Liqu crty -sk

The liquidity position of the Group is significantly influenced by the booking and payment pattern of customers As a result, liquidity is at its

lowest in the winter months and at its highest in the summer months. The Group manages the seasonal nature of its liquidity by making use

of its bank facility, the terms of which. including the covenant measures. are detailed in the borrowings note (refer to Note 19) The Group also

uses liquidity swaps to manage short-term currency positions These liquidity swaps are presented as held-for-trading financial instruments

The undrawn committed debt facility plus the cash available ranged between tl,l87m and fl,596m during the current financial year 12017:

between €993m and €1.824m).

Surplus short-term liquidity is invested in accordance with approved treasury policy

r56
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22 FINANCIAI RISK CONTINUED
Financial liabilities are analysed below based on the time between the period end and their contractual maturity. The amounts shown

are estimates ofthe undiscounted future cash flows and will differfrom both carrying value and fair value

At 30 September 2018

lmount due I

in tess than I b.t*".n I between I in more than I I

smonthsl Sandl2monthsl landsyearsl syearsl TotallE.l c.l €rl c.l rrl

Trade and other payables 1,732 2.51r

t 437

84t46

1.248Borrowinqs

0bliqations under finance leases

Derivative financial instruments

- payable 804 2,081 3.593

receivable (832) Q,t22l (7r4) (3.6681

Provisions arisinq from contractual obligations 48030284

4.432122t7tl1.9t0 686

in less than between I

3 months L 3 and 12 months It.l trl

Amount due I

in more than I I

s years I rotat 
I€ml eml

between
and 5 years

€m

Trade and other payables 1,967 80 5l 2,202

I 579Borrowings 224 I 310

0bliqations under finance leases 180

At 30 September 2017

Derivative financial instruments:

- payable 546 3,654

- receivable 542){r 0s3 (r.989) (3,s84)

provisions arisinq from contractual obliqations

For all gross settled derivative financial instruments, such as foreign currency forward contracts and swaps, the pay and receive leg has been

disclosed in the table above For net settled derivative financial instruments, such as fuel swaps and options, the fair value as at the year

end of those instruments in a liability position has been disclosed in the table above Trade and other payables include non-financial liabilities

of t26m (2017: fl65m) which have not been analysed above

Ccirrter par '\ crt,il t llsi
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to deposits, outstanding derivatives and trade and other receivables

Themaximumexposureinrespectof eachof theseitemsatthebalancesheetdateisthecarryingvalue TheGroupassessesitscounterparty
credit risk exposure in relation to the investment ofsurplus cash, fuel contracts, foreign exchange and interest rate hedging contracts and

undrawn credit facilities The Group primarily uses published credit ratings to assess counterparty strength and to define the credit limit for

each counterparty in accordance with approved treasury policies.

The Group's approach to credit risk in respect oftrade and other receivables is explained in Note 16

432

4,4632,232

2?4

r 694
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23INSURANCE

lncidental to its main business, the Group. through its subsidiary White Horse lnsurance lreland DAC. issues contracts that transfer significant
insurance risk and that are classified as insurance contracts As a general guideline, the Group defines as significant insurance risk
the possibility of having to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder

Business written is travel insurance for both Group and non-Group customers

The principal nature of travel insurance risks is one of short-term, low-value and high volume Underwriting performance is monitored
on an ongorng basis and pricing reviewed annually for each individual contract. Exposure is capped by specific limits within the insurance
policy and by using reinsurance contracts for any claims in excess ofthese retention limits

lnsurance risk is spread across the EEA countries including the UK, lreland and Continental Europe

When estimating the cost of claims outstanding at the year end, the principal assumption underlying the estimates is the Group's past

development pattern This includes assumptions in respect of historic claims costs, average claims handling expenses and market
developments The Group has an Actuarial Function to review its liabilities to ensure that the carrying values are adequate. Any changes
to these variables are not expected to have a material effect on the Group financial statements

The Group operates a reinsurance policy approved by the White Horse lnsurance lreland DAC Board of Directors which ensures that reinsurers
have a financial stability rating of A (S&P) The Group has assessed these credit ratings as being satisfactory in diminishing the Group's

exposure to the credit risk of its insurance receivables

24 DEFERRED TAX
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current year:

lircraft I Retirement Fair value other I

finance I benefit offinancial ] temporary Tax I

leases I obligations instruments J differences losses fotat I

trl tr] trl tm tm €rl

At I 0ctober 2017 (sl) 4s 3 (59 2r1 rs5

(8) (r) {s) 22 04 (64)

(26) (3e) - (2) (67)

(Charqe)/credit to income

Credit to equity

2

3

I

Disposals

Exchanqe differences

At 30 September 2018 (60) 18 (39) l27l r37 29

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

I zora I zoru 
I

I fml €rl

Deferred tax assets lt7 216

Deferred tax liabilities (88) (6r)

29 t55

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses of f3,028m (2017 €3,182m) available for offset against future profits Deferred tax
assets have only been recognised to the extent that the business has forecast future taxable profits against which the assets may be

recovered As a result of the performance of the UK business it is considered appropriate to release UK deferred tax assets

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses of €2.502m 12017. 12,222n) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams E2,454moftheselosseshavenoexpirydate,withtheremainingt48mexpiringwithinl0years

r58
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24 DEFERRED TAX CONTINUED
0ther temporary differences on which deferred tax has been provided primarily relate to the difference in book to tax value on qualifying tax
assets, provisions for which tax relief was not originally available, and fair value accounting on assets acquired as part of the merger

ln addition, the Group had unused othertemporary differences amounting to t4l4m (2017:[.432n) for which no deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred tax liabilities were offset against the corresponding deferred tax assets as appropriate within territories.

No deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of unremitted earnings of subsidiaries, associates andjoint ventures because the Group

is in a position to control the timing ofthe reversal ofthe temporary difference and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

i;a'.,11:, ali=Ci,--; l.l :.:r ) il'air,,.ie l-r irlirll,-'i,]t'r ,ii5

A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from l9% to 17% was substantively enacted on 6 September 2016 This change in rate will be effective
from I April 2020 Deferred tax on temporary differences and tax losses as at the balance sheet date is calculated based on the substantively
enacted rates at which the temporary differences and tax losses are expected to reverse The Group's future tax charge could be affected by

numerous factors, including but not limited to:

> Amendments to the UK tax rules relating to the utilisation of brought forward losses and the deductibility of interest were substantively
enacted on 31 0ctober 2017 These new rules apply retrospectively from I April 2017 We do not expect this legislation to have a significant
impact on our tax charge in the foreseeable future ; and

) Any tax reforms in jurisdictions where we have a taxable presence. including any reforms which may arise from the UK's proposed exit from
the EU. any reforms adopted from the oECD's BEPS actions such as those in relation to the deductibility of interest, anti-avoidance or transfer
pricing or any future changes to accounting standards.

25 PROVTSTONS

Aircraft
maintenance off-market

provisions leases
€m fm

I Reorganisation I I

lnsuranceand I and restructuring | other I

litigation I plans I provisions 
IErl €.1 €rl

arr,l
e. 

I

At I 0ctober 2016 330

13

1l

109Additional provisions in the year 225

Unused amounts released in the year 48(42)(51231)

Unwinding of discount -ttz
fl02) (28) 0s3)Utilisation of provisions t2)(38)

Exchanqe differences -2(l)
At 30 September 2017 366 - 15 I 33 475

Additional provisions in the vear

Unused amounts released in the year (68(4)62

Unwindinq of discount

Utilisation of provisions (s640t2)(78)(26)

Exchange differences

At 30 September 2018 5876378

2011

Em
20t8

Cm

lncluded in non-current liabilities 242

168lncluded in current liabilities 211
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25 PROVISIONS CONTI NUED

The aircraft maintenance provisions relate to maintenance on leased aircraft and spares used by the Group's airlines in respect of leases which

includecontractual returnconditions Thisexpenditurearisesatdifferenttimesoverthelifeof theaircraftwithmajoroverhaulstypically
occurring between two and l0 years The aircraft maintenance provisions are reassessed at least annually in the normal course of business

with a corresponding adjustment made to either non-current assets (aircraft and aircraft spares) or aircraft costs, and this results in a release

to the aircraft maintenance provision

lnsurance and litigation represents costs related to legal disputes, customer compensation claims (including EU261) and estimated costs arising

through insurance contracts in the Group's subsidiary, White Horse Insurance lreland DAC,

Reorganisation and restructuring plans predominantly represent committed restructuring costs in the Tour Operator segment

Otherprovisionsincludesitemssuchasonerouscontracts,dilapidationsandemissionstradingliabilities 0fthef45m(2017: €3lm) charge

recognised in the year t20m (2017: €l3m) has been classified as Separately Disclosed ltems. for further details refer to Note 7 Onerous lease

provisions will be utilised over the lease terms

25 CAttED-UP SHARE CAPlTAt
Attot pl I I I lttott.o..rtt.d-rpl

dl I I I andpartlypaidl

I I ordrnary shares I Deferred shares I Ior s I Deferred Shares I of c0.01 each I of e0.09 each I Deferred Shares I

n I of€o.ogeach I t, I e, I oftleach.2sppaid 
I

At I october 2016 1,555 85r,316 934,981,938 58il 50.000

Exercise of Warrants

lssue of shares

At 30 September 2017 1,535,851,316 934,981,938 s0 000

Exercise of Warrants

lssue of shares

At 50 September 2018 1.535.85t.316 934,981,938 50,000

Ihe Ordinary Shares carry the right to the profits of the Company available for distribution and to the return of capital on a winding up of the

Company The Ordinary Shares carry the right to attend and speak at general meetings of the Company; each share holds the right to one vote

The Ordinary Shares are admitted to the premium segment of the Official List and to trading on the London Stock Exchange's main market

Both classes of Deferred Shares carry no right to the profits of the Company, 0n a winding up, the holders of the Sterling-denominated Deferred

Shares would be entitled to receive an amount equal to the capital paid up on each Sterling-denominated Deferred Share and the holders of

the Euro-denominated Deferred Shares would be entitled to receive an amount equal to the capital paid up on each Euro-denominated Deferred

Share only afterthe holders ofthe ordinary Shares and Sterling-denominated Deferred Shares have received, in aggregate, the amounts paid up

thereon The holders of both classes of Deferred Shares are not entitled to receive notice. attend. speak or vote (whether on a show of hands or

on a poll) at general meetings of the Company

As at 30 September 2018, options to subscribe for ordinary Shares were outstanding with respect to the Thomas Cook Group plc 2007

Performance Share Plan, the Thomas Cook plc 20ll Restricted Share Plan and the Thomas Cook 2014 Deferred Bonus Plan For further details
refer to Note 29 0n exercise, the awards of shares under the plan will be satisfied by either purchases in the market of existing shares or.

subject to institutional guidelines, issuing new shares

Shares of the Company are held under trust by EES Trustees lnternational Limited in respect of the Thomas Cook Group plc 2007 Performance

Share Plan, the Thomas Cook plc 20ll Restricted Share Plan and the Thomas Cook 2014 Deferred Bonus Plan Equiniti Share plan Trustees Limited

hold shares in connection with the Thomas Cook Group plc Buy As You Earn Scheme ln accordance with IFRS. these are treated as Treasury

Shares and are included in 'other reserves' in the balance sheet

The number of shares held at 30 September 2018 by EES Trustees lnternational Limited and Equiniti Share Plan Trustees Limited was 1,906.643

12011:3.211,284) and 513751 (2017 343.310) respectively The cumulative cost of acquisition of these shares was €3m (2017: t5m) and the market
value at 30 September 2018 was €lm (2017: f4m) Shares held by the trust have been excluded from the weighted average number of shares

used in the calculation of earnings per share

58
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26 CAttED-UP SHARE CAPITAL CONTINUED

a,j0 1 al rf arragellLirri

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns

for Shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

The capital structure ofthe Group consists of debt (net of related hedging instruments). cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to

equity holders of the parent (as shown in the Group balance sheet) At the ba lance sheet date the Grou p had tota I capital of f 807m (2017: €320m)

27 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEl'IENIS
T ri !rlitll:l:,':5!?€
At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases, which fall due as follows:

zora 
I

property I aircraft and I I

and other I aircraft spares I Total IEml €ml €rl

property I lircraft and I

and other I aircraft spares Itrl t.l

2011

Iotal
tm

Within one year EO6866

Later than one and less than five years 655 825 187 558 145
all

After five years 491545412

369 r,253 1,622 375 1,094 1,469

operating lease rental payable charged to the income statement for hire of aircraft and aircraft spares was t33lm (2017: f 2l9m) which includes

fl62m (2017: t75m) for seasonal wet leases Operating lease rental payable charged to the lncome Statement for property and other was €90m

(2017: t92m) which includes €20m of onerous lease provisions recognised in the year (2017: tl3m)

Operatinq lease payments principally relate to rentals payable for the Group's retail shop and hotel properties and for aircraft and spares used

bytheGroup'sairlines Shopleasesaretypicallynegotiatedforanaveragetermoffouryears

Leases for new aircraft are typically negotiated for an average term of 12 years, leases for second hand aircraft and extensions are typically

considerably shorter.

28 CONT!NGENT TIABITITIES
2018

€m
2011

em

Continqent liabilities

Contingent liabilities primarily comprise guarantees, letters of credit and other contingent liabilities, all of which arise in the ordinary course of

business The amounts disclosed above represent the Group's contractual exposure

The Group complies with all the standards relevant to consumer protection and formal requirements in respect of package tour contracts and

hasall thenecessarylicencesforthevarioussalesmarkets.Thecustomers righttoreimbursementof thereturntravel costsandamounts
paid in case of insolvency or bankruptcy on the part ofthe tour operator or travel agency is guaranteed in all Thomas Cook sales markets

in line with local legislation and within the various guarantee systems applied. ln the United Kingdom, there is a fund mechanism whereby

travel companies are required to collect and remit a small charge for each protected customer upon booking Customer rights in relation to

Thomas Cook Group in Germany, Belgium and Austria are guaranteed via an insolvency insurance system, in lreland, Scandinavia and France

via guarantees provided by banks. insurance companies, accredited associations and in the Netherlands via a guaranteed fund

ln the ordinary course of its business, the Group is subject to commercial disputes and litigation including customer claims, employee disputes

taxes and other kinds of lawsuits. These matters are inherently difficult to quantify. ln appropriate cases, a provision is recognised based on

best estimates and Management'sjudgement but there can be no guarantee that these provislons will result in an accurate prediction of the

actual costs and liabilities that may be incurred These are not expected to have a material impact on the financial position of the Group

54133



fhomorCookGroup ptc' Annu.lR.portondAccounts20lS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

29 SHARE-BASED PAYMENIS

The Company operates equity-settled share-based payment schemes, as outlined below The total charge recognised during the year in respect
of equity-settled share-based payment transactions was [5m (2017: €5m charge)

The Thomas Cook Group plc 2007 Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Executive Directors and senior executives of the Company and its subsidiaries are granted options to acquire, or contingent share awards of,

the Ordinary Shares of the Company The awards will vest if performance targets are met during the three years following the date of grant

The Thomas Cook Group plc 20ll Restricted Share Plan (RSP)

Senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries are granted options to acquire, or contingent share awards of the Ordinary Shares of
the Company Executive Directors are excluded from receivrng awards under the RSP The Company will determine at the date of award whether
the award will be subjectto a performance target and the date ofvesting.

The Thomas Cook 2014 Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP)

Executive Directors and a small number of senior Executives of the Company and its subsidiaries are granted contingent share awards of the
OrdinarySharesoftheCompany,relatingtoaproportionoftheirannual bonus Awardsaresubjecttoforfeitureif aclawbackeventoccurs
during the period that the award is held

The movements in options and awards during the year in relation to the PSP and the other awards were:

1,,,1 2018
0ther

0utstanding at beginning of year 52,975,118 3,950,829

Granted 12,771,664 2.805.022

Exercised

Forfeited

- (1,327,s89)

- (709,018)

Lapsed (il,234,864)

outstanding at end of year 34,51t,9r8 1,719,244

Exercise price (€)

Averaqe remaininq contractual life (years) l-3

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for the options exercised during the year ended 30 September 2018 was tl 27

l*,1 zon I

other 
I

1.5

outstanding at beginning of year 20,295.442 1,730,112

Granted 17,167250 2971 514

Exercised (90 684) {6r7,874)

Forfeited 0 948,444)

Lapsed 12.448.446) flr 648)

Outstanding at end ofyear 32 975,r18 5.950.829

Exercise price (l)

Averaqe remaininq contractual life (years)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for the options exercised during the year ended 30 September 2017 was t0 89

162
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29 SHARE.BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED
The fair value of options and awards subject to basic EPS performance targets was determined by the use of Black-Scholes models and the fair

value of options subject to TSR performance targets was determined by the use of Monte Carlo simulations For options and awards granted

during the year the key inputs to the models were:

1,,,1 zors I I

oee I eso 
I

2011

DBP

Weighted average share price at measurement date Et.l9 €t.29

Weighted average exercise price n

Expected volatility 66%

5

0.80% 0.80% 0190/" 079%

Weiqhted averaqe option life (years) 3 1.38

Weiqhted averaqe risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield nn

Weiqhted averaqe fair value at date of qrant €0.81 fl.29 t0 69 €0 89

Expected volatilrty has been based on the historic volatility of the Company's shares and the shares of other companies in the same or

related sectors

30 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
'r..Cl.qi'OL I^f

The Group supports a number of post-employment benefit plans, including defined contribution pension plans and defined benefit pension plans

These benefit plans have been developed in accordance with normal local practice in the countries in which Thomas Cook Group operates

The largest plans are in the UK and Germany

, At 30 September 2018. the Group had total defined benefit obligations offl,605m (2017: €1,753m) The majority ofthe Group's defined benefit

obligations are in in the UK 00% of total obligations) and Germany (23%) The remaining defined benefit obligations are mainly in the

Netherlands. Sweden, Switzerland, Belgium and France
) During the year, a number of amendments were made to the defined benefit plans resulting in a net past service credit of €l4m which relates

to changes to the Condor plans in Germany
, The UK plans were closed to accrual in 20ll The plans that are open to accrual are collectively-agreed plans in Germany and Sweden

The current service cost for all plans for the year to 30 September 2018 was €l3m (2017 flTm)
,TheGrouppaidtsgmtodefinedbenefitplansintheyearto30september20lS Themajorityof thecashcontributionsweredeficitfunding

payments to the UK plans (128m) and pension payments from unfunded German pension plans (€Bm) Thomas Cook Group expects to pay

t40m to defined beneflt plans in the year to 30 September 2019

, At 30 September 2018, the Group had total pension plan assets of fl,446m (2017 €1,425m) in defined benefit plans The UK plans were all funded

with a net IAS l9 surplus of f278m, whereas the European plans were mainly unfunded with a net IAS 19 deficit of f433m The total IAS 19

deficit on the balance sheet was f165m (2017 t325m). The IAS 19 deficit has reduced by fl60m during the year primarily due to a net gain

recognised in Other Comprehensive lncome. the net past service credit in Germany, and payment of deficit recovery contributions in the UK,

UK pians

The Group supports four UK defined benefit plans of which the largest is the Thomas Cook Pension Plan (95% of total UK obligations), All four
plans are funded, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds The trustees are required by law to act in the interests of all

plan members and are responsible in particularforthe investment policy and the day-to-day administration of the benefits The Company and

trustees are currently considering a consolidation of these plans

Employees are entitled to retirement benefits linked to their salary and length of service The UK plans are closed to future accrual

UK employees participate in the Thomas Cook UK Defined Contribution Scheme for future service

The Thomas Cook Pension Plan's investments have been substantially de-risked since 2014 wilh72% ofthe total assets invested in bonds and

liability driven investments in order to provide protection against interest rate and inflation changes The remaining assets are invested in a

diversifiedportfolioof equities.alternativeinvestments(includingdiversifiedgrowthfunds),propertyandcash Areviewoftheinvestment
strategy is in progress and will be completed in 2019



fhomorCookGroupDlc I Annuoll.portqndAccount 2OlS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

30 RET!REMENT BENEFII OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED
ln line with UK legislation the cash funding of the UK defined benefit plans is determined by the trustee of each plan Cash funding is
determined following actuarial valuations which take place every three years and use assumptions that are more prudent than those used to
determine the IAS 19 defined benefit obligations The current contributions to the Thomas Cook Pension Plan are based on a valuation carried
out in 2017 Annual deficit payments of t28m will continue to be paid until the next valuation The next scheduled valuation of the Thomas Cook

Pension Plan will be carried out in 2020 Funding on the technical provisions basis improved from 85% at the 2014 valuation to 93% at the 2017

valuation, largely due to the de-risking of assets that had taken place

ln line with general market practice the German pension plans are mainly unfunded and the Company pays benefit payments as they fall due

The majority (85%) of the unfunded liabilities are in respect of the Condor Group company (Condor Flugdienst GmbH, Condor Berlin GmbH and CF

GmbH). Benefits for Condor Group employees are established under industry trade union and works council agreements The benefits provided
to Condor pilots have historically been in line with those provided to pilots in the Lufthansa group

The Condor Group unfunded defined benefit plans have been closed to new entrants (with the exception of pilots) since 2004 The defined
benefit plans provide retirement benefits on a contributions-based basis: with additional benefits payable in the event of early retirement

pilotsJoiningafter20lS.andcabincrewmembersjoiningafter2005,areinfundedpensionarrangements Theseareaccountedforasinsured
arrangements and are not included as part ofthe liabilities for retirement benefit obligations on the balance sheet

0n 20 April 2018 it was agreed that the pilot's plan would be amended and, with effect from I October 2018, Condor pilots will be provided with a

funded defined contribution plan Assets in this plan will be held in a German Contractual Trust Arrangement Under local legislation, Condor will
provide a minimum investment return guarantee: and the plan will be accounted for as a defined benefit plan under IAS 19

A defined contribution plan is a plan for which the Groups only legal or constructive obligation is to pay a fixed contribution into a separate.
private or state run, entity For these plans contributions are recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis The largest plan is the
ThomasCookUKDCPensionScheme,whichisopentoall UKemployees Thetotal chargefortheyearinrespectof thisandotherdefined
contribution plans. including insured benefits relating to workers'compensation arrangements outside the UK, amounted to €52m (2017: €5lm)

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets:

I

I

I

pension plans is the present value ofthe defined benefit obligation at

Ul( cermany I nestofcroup 
I

2018 fm I

fotrf 
I

ZOtz t, I

rotar 
I

Present value of funded obligations 1.122 46 1]72 1,315

(36) [.446] (l 425)Fair value of plan assets (r,406)

(Surplus)/deficit of funded plans (284) r0 (2141 (r0)

Present value of unfunded obliqations 435

Unrecoqnised asset due to asset ceilinq

Additional liability required under IFRIC l4

Total deficit of defined beneflt pension plans 1278l 397

ln the event that Thomas Cook Group is not expected to benefit economically from any plan with a surplus. the balance sheet assets for
that plan are restricted to allow for any surplus that is not expected to be recovered (including, in accordance with lFRlCl4 any additional
contributions that the Thomas Cook Group has contractually committed to pay to these plans) The unrecognised assets and additional liabilities
for 2018 in the above table, totalling [6m are in respect of one of the smaller UK defined benefit plans

32516546
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30 RETIREMENT BENEFII OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED
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The amounts recorded in the income statement in relation to the defined benefit pension plans are as follows:

2011

tm
20t8
tm

Current service cost

Past service credit (r4)

Settlement gain 00)(4)

Total service (credit)/cost (s)

Total administration expenses recoqnised in profit and loss

lnterest income on plan assets ZE(38)

lnterest expense 0n post-retirement plan 0bligations

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability

42

1

Total exDense recoqnised in profit and loss

lnApril 20lS.theCompanyannouncedthatthepilot'splanwouldbeamendedwitheffectfromlOctober20lB Asaresultof thisplan
amendment there is a gain of t14m recognised in 20lB as a result of changes to pension indexation and discretionary pension increases
The settlement gain of t4m (2017: f 10m) is primarily in relation to transfers of liabilities from Condor to Lufthansa as a result of pilots moving
between the two companies

of comprehensive income in relation to the defined benefit pension plans are as follows:

;l lr_r., ti: .rl l- .lll . i_,:r il- ,t rli_

The amounts recorded in the statement

2018 2011

€m Em

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income) (r0)

Gain from change in demographic assumptions on obligations 34(2r)

Gain from change in financial assumptions on obligations 127lt4l
Experience (qains)/losses on obliqations 11(23)

Effect of the asset ceilinq

Change in balance sheet adjustment required under IFRIC 14

Total recognised in other comprehensive income

3-
lt22l (il4)
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30 RETI REI'I ENT BENEFIT OBTIGATIONS CO NTI N U ED
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The tables below show the reconciliations for the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the plan assets:

I
I

I

Benefit obligation at the beginning of year

20t8
€m

t,753

rou I

€rl

1927

Net current service c0st t]

lnterest cost on benefit obliqation 42

Actual benefits paid from plan (s3(s6)

Actual benefits paid dlrectly by employer 8(s)

Plan amendments (l4)

Settlements l0(4)

Transfers & changes in scope of plans included in consolidation

Gain due to chanqes in financial assumptions

Gain due to chanqes in demoqraphic assumpti0ns

Experience qain \1l23l

Exchanqe rate (gain)/loss

Benefit obliqation at the end of period 1,605

0n 26 october 2OlB the High Court ruled that Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) equalisation in the UK is required This ruling impacts any

UK employer sponsored pension plan that was contracted out ofthe UK state earnings related pension between 1990 and l99Z including

Thomas Cook's UK DB plans There is a period in which an appeal can be launched but, if there is no appeal, the position will effectively be

confirmed in the coming months

ln line with most other UK companies, Thomas Cook has not included any allowance for GMP equalisation in its accounts to-date Thomas Cook

expects to recognise the changes required to plan benefits, as a result of GMP equalisation, as a plan amendment in the next financial year

| ':lll
2017

€m

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of year 1,425 1,470

lnterest income on plan assets 38 ?q

Actual employer contributions

Actual benefits paid EZ(66)

Actual expenses paid 2(2)

Transfers & changes in scope of plans included in consolidation

Asset qain/(loss) 65l0

Exchange rate gain

Actual fair value of plan assets at the end of period 1.446

I

1,425

166

170
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30 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBTIGATIONS CONTINUED
Farr valLre of iretl5ra,i p ai I assets

Pensionplanassetsareinvestedindifferentassetclassesinordertomaintainabalancebetweenriskandreturn Themajorityofthepension
plan assets are in the Thomas Cook Pension Plan in the UK The investment strategies for the funded plans are set by the trustees of each plan

in consultation with Thomas Cook Group

The following table provides details on the composition of the fair value of plan assets:

or*"0 
| 

uncuoteo 

I

zorr I

Quoteo I Unquoted I rotrr I%l %l *l

2018

Total
%

Liability driven investments 3555

3137

Equities 7

Alternative investments/other investment funds

Real estate/property

lnsurance contracts 33-33
3-31-l

10089

The scheme assets do not include any ofthe Groups own financial instruments, nor any property occupied by. or other assets used by the

Group The scheme currently has part of its assets invested in a liability driven investment portfolio These assets, in combination with the

other protection assets in the portfolio, provide interest rate and inflation rate protection

l''ieinods.:lcj .rssi; rtpi r)ns

The defined benefit obligations ofthe Groups main plans are calculated regularly by independent actuaries using the projected unit method

The actuaries use a number of assumptions, which are reviewed each year and agreed by Thomas Cook Group Due to the long-term nature of

the plans, the assumptions may not necessarily be borne out in practice, The key significant assumptions were as follows:

l,-t zors I

C"rarny 
I

zou I

ux ] oermany 
I

Discount rate 22oA21%

lnflation

RP 3.t% 310/" l.\Yo

CP 2.1% 21%

Rate of increases in salaries nla 28%

Life expectancy for a current pensioner at aqe 65:

- Male 22.4 19.1 233 19 2

211 23.5 252 232- Female

Life expectancy at age 65 for a current employee aged 40:

- Male 22J 255 224

26.6 27 5 263
24.2

?6.7- Female

Discount rates are derived by reference to the market yields on AA rated corporate bonds, and are selected to reflect the currency and term of
the expected benefit payments Life expectancy assumptions are based on standard industry mortality tables, including allowance for expected

future improvements

ln the UK (Thomas Cook Pension plan), the mortallty assumptions are based on 100%/95% (males/females) of 52PA base tables with mortality improvements

in line with: the 2013 CMI proJection model with a long-term trend rate of 1.5% to 2017 and the 2017 CMI projection model with a long-term trend rale o'1125%

from 2017 ln the prior year, the mortality assumption was based on 90% of the S2PA base tables (males and females) with mortality improvements in line

with: the 2013 CMI projection model with a long-term trend rate of I 5% from 2007 to 2017 The change in mortality assumptions, along with reduced long-

term longevity improvements in the 2018 assumptions has reduced the life expectancy for current and future pensioners since the prior year.

ln Germany, the mortality assumptions are based on the Heubeck-Richttafeln 2005 G standard tables.
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30 REIIREMENT BENEFII OBTIGATIONS CONTINUED

The defined benefit plans expose Thomas Cook Group to actuarial risks such as longevity, interest rate inflation and investment risks There are

a number of other risks of running the Group's defined benefit including operational risks (such as paying out the wrong benefits) and legislative
risks (such as the government increasing the burden on pension funds through new legislation) Thomas Cook Group and the trustees of
the funded pension plans have put in place governance structures to monitor and mitigate these risks including regular reviews of funding,
investment strategy and plan designs

The calculations of the defined benefit obligation are sensitive to the assumptions set out above The effect of changes in the principal

assumptions on the defined benefit obligation is:

Discount rate , I - 0.25% (81) 84

. I - 0.25% 46 (45)

./-lyear 40 (41)

lmpact ined benefit obligation I

(rm) 
|

change in I oecrease in Iassumption I assumption 
I

the Group:

Associates and joint ventures I

zorsLo,Irrl rrl

lnflation rate

Mortalit

The above sensitivity analyses (with the exception of the inflation sensitivity) are based on a change in one assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant ln practice, this is unlikely to occur, and some changes of the assumptions may be correlated The inflation sensitivity
above includes changes to any inflation linked pension increases and salary increases

The weighted average duration ofthe defined benefit obligation is 2l years and approximately 21o/" ofthe obligation is in respect of
pensioner members

31 RETATED PARTY TRANSACT!ONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed
in this note Transactions between the Group and itsjoint ventures and associates are disclosed below Transactions between the Company
and its subsidiaries,joint ventures and associates are disclosed in the Companys separate financial statements

During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions with related parties who are not members oI

Sale of qoods and services

Purchases of goods and services

Finance income

Amounts owed by related parties

Amounts owed to related parties (2) (t)

All transactions are considered to have been made at market prices 0utstanding amounts will normally be settled by cash payment

Further information about the remuneration of individual Directors is provided in the audited part of the Remuneration Report on pages BB

to 109

2011

tm
20t8
tm

Short-term employee benef its

The short-term employee benefits include employer social security payments which are excluded from the Directors Remuneration Report
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32 NON-CURRENT ASSEIS CTASSIFIED AS HEtD FOR SALE AND DISPOSALS

2011
fm

2018
fm

Non-current asset classified as held for sale

The non-current assets classified as held for sale consist mainly of properties in Germany and Spain currently reported within the Group Tour
0perator segment, these properties are due to be sold within one year and have been recorded at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less cost to sell

)tst)(is,rr S

Sunwing Kallithea and Sunwing Makrigialos
0n 7 March 2018. the Group announced the launch of its hotel fund, Thomas Cook Hotel lnvestments Limited ('TCHI'), a joint venture with
Swiss-based hotel property development company, LMEY lnvestments AG The establishment of the hotel fund included the sale of two of the
Group's Greek hotels, the long-standing family resort Sunwing Kallithea in Rhodes and the well-established Sunwing Makrigialos in Crete to
the newjoint venture The disposal was completed on 16 May 20lB As consideration. the Group received t60m in share capital in TCHI and have

enteredintomanagementcontractswithTCHl TheGroup'sinvestmentinTCHl isassessedasaninvestmentinajointventure,refertoNote14
for further details The Group disposed of Sunwing Hotels Hellas S A. the owner of Sunwing Kallithea and its subsidiary Helios Palace S A, the
owner of Sunwing Makriagialos Both entities were wholly owned subsldiaries of the Group prior to disposal

Financial information related to the disposal is set out below:

fm

Consideration received

lnvestment in TCHI

Manaqement contracts

Disposal costs

Net book value of assets disposed;

Non-current assets held for sale

lnventories

Irade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Irade and other payables

Deferred tax liabilities

l42l

Currency translation reserve recycled to lncome Statement

Gain on disposal

The Group made a number of other disposals which resulted in a net gain of t6m These were as follows:

Ihomas Cook Airlines Belgium
0n 3l May 2017 the Group announced the sale of its Belgian airline, Thomas Cook Airlines Belgium N,V. to SHS Aviation BV. This followed the
announcement on I May 2017 that the Group had extended its partnership agreement between Thomas Cook Belgium and Brussels Airlines

The disposal was completed on 31 October 2017 and followed the commencement of the partnership with Brussels Airlines in late 0ctober 2017

TheGroupdisposedof nil netassetsandreceivednil consideration TheGrouphasrecognisedaf9mgainondisposal fromrecycling€l2mof the
currency translation reserve t0 the lncome Statement, net of€3m of costs incurred to sell

Tour Vital
0n 3l August 2018, the Group disposed of Tour Vital Touristik GmbH, a German based tour operator specialising in holidays with an accompanying
doctor. The Group received net cash proceeds of tlm and disposed of t6m of net assets which included t5m of goodwill and intangible assets
(net of tax) recognised upon the Group's acquisition of Tour Vital in 2011. The Group has recognised a loss on disposal of €5m,

38
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32 NON-CURRENI ASSEIS CTASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SAIE AND DISPOSATS CONTINUED

[[C lntourist
0n 28 September 2018, the Group disposed of its interests in LLC Intourist, a

assets and received nil consideration The Group has recognised a [2m gain

to the lncome Statement

subsidiary of its Russian business The Group disposed of nil net
on disposal from recycling t2m of the currency translation reserve

33 PR!OR YEAR RESTATEMENTS

During the year management identified a total of t27m of aged debit balances within the UK balance sheet that are considered unsupportable

as at 30 September 2Ol7 These balances represent amounts that were recorded as income in error over the period of FYl4 to FYIT ln addition

€3m of income should have been recognised during FYl6 and FYIT These errors arose through the miscalculation of income earned, the

incorrect recognition of adjustments intended to eliminate intercompany transactions and the miscalculation of amounts that could be

cleared from the revenue in advance and accounts payable ledgers, in each case as a result of ineffective systems interfaces and controls

The company is confident that these system issues have now been rectified ln aggregate these errors are material to the net assets of the
prior year and have therefore been reflected as prior year restatements

The impact ofthis restatement affects the opening balance at I 0ctober 2017 and prior periods and resulted in a f7m decrease in trade and

other receivables and t6m increase in trade and other payables and [8m decrease in revenue in advance, recorded within opening reserves

as at I october 2017 A further t3m has been adjusted against underlying profit in 2017 with fsm reducing trade and other receivables

The errors have been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for the prior perrods as follows:

lmpact on equity - increase/(decreasel in equity 30 september 2017 tm

Trade and other receivables (r0)

Trade and other payables (6)

Revenue in advance (8)

Net assets

0pening reserves

Retained earninqs

Total equity l24l

lmpact on statement of prolit or loss - increase/(decrease) in profit for 30 September 2017

statutory profit 
I

rml

Revenue

Cost of Sales l2l

Net impact on profit for the year (3)

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent (3)

Non-controllinq interests
(3)

lmpact on basic and diluted earnings per share (EpS) - increase/(decrease) in Eps

Basic and diluted EPS lo.l) pence

34 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

From the I october 2018, the Group increased the commercial paper programme capacity from C250m to C500m

170
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AS AT 3O SEPTEMBER 2OI8

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

*r,a, 
I

30 September I
20t7 I

r. 
l

30 September
2018

Em

Non-current assets

lntangible assets

Propertv, 0lant and equipment

Deferred Tax Assets

lnvestments in subsidiaries 2,054

2,096

Current assets

Irade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets 3.889 5 665

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables (rs )078)

Borrowinqs lnl
Short-term provisions (ll

(3s6)

Non-current liabilities

Borrowinqs (6ss) (6s5)

Total liabilities (l,0ls) 80s)

Net assets 2 8582874

Equity

Called-up share capital 6969

Share premium account 524

Merqer reserve 1,429

Hedqinq and translation reserve 519

Capital redemption reserve

Retained earnings surplus 333 71

lnvestment in own shares (8(8)

Total equity 2,874 2858

The profit aftertax ofthe Company amounted to f20m (2017, €52m loss aftertax)

The financial statements on pages Ul to U3 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 November 20lB

Signed on behalf of the Board

BItt SCOTT
D IR ECTOR

Notes I to 20 form part of these financial statements
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YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2OI8

COM PANY CASH FIOW STATEM ENT

Year ended
30 September

2011
fm

Year ended
50 September

20t8
fm

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit/(loss) before tax

Adiustments for

lnterest expense

lmpairment of intanqible assets

Amortisation

Share-based payments

lncrease in orovisions

(lncrease)/decrease in receivables

lncrease/(decrease) in payables

Net cash used in operating activities

lnvestinq activities

Purchase of tanqible and intanqihle assets

Net cash from investinq activities

Financinq activities

Net inflow/(outflow) from boriowings

lnterest paid

Dividends received/(paid)

Net cash used in financing activities 371

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beoinninq of year

0) I

t-
ICash and cash equivalents at end of year

172

176
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 20]8

MeIger
reserve

fm

0wn
shares Total

€m tm

capital
redemptron

reserve
€m

69 524 1,429 (8) 2,915

(s2) - ls2)

At 30 September 2016 519 314

Loss for the year

COMPANYSTATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

sf,"r" J

capital
€m

Share
premium

€m

tl
Iranslation I Retained 

I

reserve I earnrngs Icrl trl

Total comprehensive loss for the year s2)s2)

Dividends paid (B8

Equitv credit in resoect of share-based pa\/ments

At 30 September 2017 317 (8) 2,858

Loss for the year 2020

Total comprehensive profit for the year

Dividends paid (e)(e)

Equity credit in respect of share-based payments

At 30 September 2018 524 r.429 519 333 (8) 2.874

other comprehensive income and expenses relates to translation of the balance sheet

The merger reserve arose on the issue of shares of the Company in connection with the acquisition of the entire share capital of Thomas Cook

AG and MyTravel Group plc on 19 June 2007 and represents the difference between the nominal value and the fair value of the shares acquired

The share premium arose in connection with the issue ofOrdinary Shares ofthe Company following the issuance ofshares to Fosun in

March 2015

At 30 September 2018, the Company had distributable reserves of t300m (2017: I286m)

Details ofthe own shares held are set out in Note 26 to the Group financial statements



Thcm.rCookGroupplc I AnnuotR.portondAcccunts2Ol6

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T ACCOUNTING POTICIES

Thomas Cook Group plc is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006 and

listed on the London Stock Exchange The address of the registered off ice is 3rd Floor. South Buildin g, 200 Aldersgate, London ECIA 4H D

The accounting policies applied in the preparation ofthese Company financial statements are the same as those set out in Note 3 to the Group

financial statements with the addition of the following:

' ,::i .' l

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment

These policies have been applied consistently to the periods presented

The functional currency of the Company is Sterling

New or amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective or EU endorsed

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Company has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective or EU endorsed:

IFRS 9 Financial instruments' contains new requirements on the classification and measurement of financial assets and new requirements
toaddresstheimpairmentof financial assets Thenewstandardalsointroducesanewhedgeaccountingmodel tofurtheralign
hedge accounting with risk management strategy and objectrves

The Company expects the following changes arising from IFRS 9:

> Classification and measurement: the Company does not expect IFRS 9 to materially affect the classification and measurement of
financial assets, most financial assets will continue to be recognised at amortised cost

> lmpairment: The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment provisions based on expected credit losses ('ECLJ

rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under IAS 39 The new model is expected to apply for amounts owed by

relatedundertakings TheCompanysassessmentof theimpactof impairmentisstill ongoing
, Hedge accounting: All existing hedge relationships for the company will transition to IFRS 9 on adoption.

IFRS l5 'Revenues from Contracts with Customers'This standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company

For other standards and amendments, refer to Note 3 to the Group financial statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with EU endorsed lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and

interpretations issued by the IFRS lnterpretations Committee (IFRS lC) and Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS

The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted for use in the EU and therefore comply with Article 4 of the
EU IAS Regulation

After making enquiries and taking into account the matters set out in the Risk Management section on pages 56 to 61, the Directors confirm
that they consider it appropriate to use the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report & Accounts

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities
(including derivative financial instruments) at fair value through the profit or loss, share-based payments and defined benefit
pension obligations

The financial statements have been rounded to the nearest million in Great British Pounds Amounts in pence have been rounded to the nearest
tenth of a pence

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation ofthe financial information presented in this document are set out below

These policies have been applied consistently to the periods presented unless otherwise stated

3 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As permitted by section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006. the Company has elected not to present its own income statement for the year.

The auditors' remuneration for audit services to the Company was €0 6m (2017: €0 6m)

178
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4 PERSONNET EXPENSES

2018
€m

2011

tm

Waqes and salaries t6

Social security costs

Share-based payments - equity settled

20

zora I

number 
I

zon I

numoer 
I

The average number of employees ofthe Company during the year was:

Disclosures of individual Directors remuneration, share options, long-term incentive schemes. pension contributions and pension entitlements
required by the Companies Act 2006 and specified for audit by the Financial Services Authority are on pages 88 to 109 within the Remuneration
report and form part of these audited accounts.

The employees ofthe Company are members ofthe Group pension schemes as detailed in Note 30 ofthe Group financial statements

5 TAX

At the balance sheet date, the company had a recognised deferred tax asset of f4 million (2017: nil) on the difference in book to tax value on
qualifying tax assets There were unrecognised tax losses of t98 million (2017: €99 million) and unrecognised deductible short term temporary
differences of f B million (2017: €20 million)

6 DlVIDENDS
The details of the Company's dividend are disclosed in Note l0 to the Group financial statements

T INTANGIBTE ASSETS

0ther intangible assets:

83t92

Tm

Cost

At 30 September 20)6

Additions

44

t5

At 50 September 2017 59

Additions

At 30 September 2018

Accumulated amortisation and impairment

At 50 September 2016

Charqe for the year

At 30 September 20U

Charge for the year

lmpairment

At 30 September 2018 33

Carryinq amount

At 50 September 2018 z1

At 30 September 2017 49
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

7 INTANGIBTE ASSETS CONTINUED

Software and intangible assets are initially measured at cost The direct costs associated with the development of business software and

intangibles are capitalised where project success is probable and the capitalisatlon criteria is met Following initial recognition. software and

intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses Software and intangible assets with a finite life are

amoriised from the date the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life which is four years (websites five years)

At each reporting date, Thomas Cook Group plc reviews the carrying amounts of its software and intangible assets to determine whether there

is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss Where estimated useful lives or recoverable values have diminished,

amortisation is accelerated

8 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

| ,,1

Cost and net book value

At 30 September 2016

Adjustment in respect of share

At 30 September 2017

Adiustment in respect of share-based payments

Additions

Disposa ls

At 30 September 2018

A list of the Company's related undertakings is shown in Note 20 to the financial statements

0n 3l December 2017 the Company purchased partnership interests in LLG Nord GmbH & Co Delta 0HG for flOm from Thomas Cook GmbH

0n the same day. it sold all of these interests to Thomas Cook Group Airlines Limited for fl0m

On 28 September 20lB the Company purchased interests in Thomas Cook Airlines Scandinavia A/S for fl70m from Thomas Cook Northern Europe

A/S 0nthesameday,itsoldall oftheseintereststoThomasCookGroupAirlinesLimitedfor€170m

0n 28 September 2018, the Company purchased interests in TCNE Aircraft Leasing AB for f25m from Thomas Cook Nordic Holdings AB 0n the

same day, it sold all of these interests to Thomas Cook Group Atrlines Limited for t25m

9 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABTES

2054

20t8
tm

2017

tm

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings t,790 I 562

0ther receivables

Deoosits and prepayments

r,793

Amounts owed by subsidlary undertakings are repayable on demand The average interest on overdue amounts owed by subsidiary

undertakings is 0 6% (2017: 0 8%) The Directors consider the fair value to be equal to the book value

I 575

176
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IO CASH AND CASH EQUIVAIENIS
20t8 I

frl

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash and cash equivalents includes balances which are considered to be restricted f0 lm (2017: €0.1m) is held within escrow accounts in

Denmark and Norway in respect of local regulatory requirements

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of these assets approximate their fair value

II TRADE AND OTHER PAYABTES

20t7
Em

20t8
Cm

154Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings tt5

Social security and other taxes

0ther payables

]EIJt78

The average interest on overdue amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings is060/"12011:12"/o)

Amounts owing to subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand The Directors consider the fair value to be equal to the book value

I2 FINANCIAT !NSTRU 1.{ ENIS
The Company's financial instruments comprise investment in subsidiary undertakings, amounts due to/from subsidiary undertakings, cash and

cash equivalents. and other payables and receivables The Company's approach to the management of financial risks is discussed on pages 155

to 157 The Company believes the value of its financial assets to be fully recoverable

2018: The carrying value ofthe Company's financial instruments is exposed to movements in foreign currency exchange rates (primarily Euro).

The Company estimates that a 5% strengthening rn Euro would increase profit before tax by €nil, while a 5% weakening in Euro would decrease

profit before tax by Inil.

2017: The carrying value of the Company's financial instruments is exposed to movements in foreign currency exchange rates (primarily Euro)

The Company estimates that a 5% strengthening in Euro would increase profit before tax by f nil. while a 5% weakening in Euro would decrease

profit before tax by fnil

Thecarryingvalueof theCompany'sfinancial instrumentsisexposedtomovementsininterestrates TheCompanyestimatesthatal%
increase in interest rates would increase profit before tax by €nil 12017:l% increase in interest rates increase loss before tax by €nil). while a
0.25% decrease in interest rates would decrease profit before tax by €nil ,.2011:025ot 

decrease in interest rates decrease loss before tax by €nil)

CarryrirQ va ues of f Inancial assets arrc ltaltlltties

The carrying values ofthe Groups financial assets and liabilities as at 30 September 20lB and 30 September 2017 are set out below:

At 30 September 2018

I rinanctat i

Loans & I tiabitities at I

recelvables I amortised cost Ie.l [rl Iotal
tm

Non-current asset investments

Trade and other receivables t,793 t.793

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables (1781fl78)

Borrowings (836) (836)

Provisions arisinq from contractual obliqations

t,793 (r,0rs) 778

(t)
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Financial
toans & liabilities at

receivables amortisedcost
€m €m

Total
€m

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAT STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

At 30 September 2017

Non-current asset rnvestments

Trade and other receivables I 575 I 575

Cash and cash equivalents I

(rsr) (rsr)Trade and other payables

Borrowinqs (6s3) (6s3)

Provisions arising from contractual obligations

Financial liabilities are analysed below based on the time between the year-end and their
estimates of the undiscounted future cash flows and will differfrom both carrying value
are calculated using interest rates as set at the date ofthe last rate reset

contractual maturity The amounts shown are

and fair value Any cash flows based on a floating rate

805)I 576

At 30 September 2018

Amount due I

tn less than I Between 3 and Between I and I I

3 months I 12 months 5 years I rotat Itrl €m €.1 €rl

Trade and other payables (r74)fl)(r73)

Borrowinqs (r78) (4r) (r2s) (544)

Provisions arisinq f rom contractual obliqations

(sl8)(r2s)(3sr) l42l

At 30 September 20U

Amount due I

tn less than I Between 3 and Eetween I and | |

3 months I 12 months 5 years I lotal Irrl tm t.l trl

Trade and other payables lt43

221Borrowinqs

Provisions arisinq from contractual obliqations

004(8lB12264

The Company is exposed to credit risk in relation to cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and amounts due from subsidiary
undertakings. The maximum exposure in respect of each of these items at the ba lance sheet date is their carrying value The Com pa ny

assesses its counterparty exposure in relation to surplus cash using credit limits based on counterparty credit ratings For amounts due from
subsidiaryundertakingsandreceivables,futureoperatingcashflowsareassessedforanyindicationof impairment lntheopinionofthe
Directors,thefairvalueof theCompanysinvestmentsisnotlessthanthecarryingvalueasstatedinthebalancesheet Asof 30September
2018, Company receivables from Group undertakings were not past due and were expected to be recovered in full

The Company's approach to credit risk in respect oftrade and other receivables is explained in Note 9
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13 PROVTSTONS

0ther provlsions:
2011
fm

20t8
Em

At I october

Utilisation of provision

At 30 September

Other provisions relate to provisions for insurance claims

14 BORROWINGS

Current borrowings in 20lB comprise of commercial paper of €177m Non-current borrowings in 2018 and 2017 comprise of a C750m bond with an

annual coupon o'f 6250,6 maturing in )une 2022.

15 CATTED-UP SHARE CAPITAT
The details ofthe Company's share capital are the same as those ofthe Group, and are disclosed in Note 26 to the Group financial statements in

this report

Details of share options granted by the Company are set out in Note 29 to the Group financial statements

I6 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Company had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments. related to property, under non-

cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2011

Cm

20t8
€m

Within one year

Later than one year and less than five years

After five years

17 CONIINGENI IIAB!tlTIES
At 30 September 2018, the Company had contingent liabilities in respect of counter-guarantees for bank funding, letters of credit and guarantees

of amounts owed by subsidiaries amounting to f654m (2017: t820m) This predominately relates to a guarantee on the drawndown portion of
the group banking facility (detailed in Note 19 ofthe Group financial statements)

Also included are guarantees related to aircraft finance lease commitments. estimated based on the current book value of the finance lease
liabilities f216m (2017: fl54m)

The Company complies with all the standards relevant to consumer protection and formal requirements in respect of package tour contracts
andhasall thenecessarylicences lntheUKthecustomeisrighttoreimbursementofthereturntravel costsandamountspaidincaseof
insolvency or bankruptcy on the part of the tour operator or travel agency is guaranteed in line with legislation in the UK via a fund mechanism,
whereby travel companies are required to collect and remit a small charge for each protected customer upon booking,

The Company has issued a letter of support to confirm its intention to provide each subsidiary ofthe Group with sufficient funds to enable it to
pay its debts as they fall due for a period of at least l8 months
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAT STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

I8 RETATED PARTY TRANSACTIOT{S
SLrtr-<iciiar es

The Company transacts and has outstanding balances with its subsidiaries, The Company enters into loans with its subsidiaries at both fixed

and floating rates of interest on a commercial basis Hence, the Company incurs interest expense and earns interest income on these loans

The Company also received dividend income from its subsidiaries during the year

| '*l 2011

€m

Transactions with subsidiaries

lnterest receivable (s)

lnterest payable

Manaqement fees and other expenses 50

Dividend income received 142

Yearend balances arising on transactions with subsidiaries

Loans receivable

0ther receivables

Llo

ao

Loans payable 0361 94

0ther payables 00)

JL: I [r]r!i,-rl uit r1 liL.\' lia']1-,-tqc liE'li irl-tsii'' t,l

The remuneration ofthe Directors, who are the key management personnel ofthe Company, is set out in Note 3l ofthe Group

financial statements

I9 SHARE.BASED PAYMENTS

The employees of the Company, including the Directors, collectively participate in all of the Group's equity-settled share-based payment

schemes. The details relating to these schemes in respect of the Company are identical to those disclosed in Note 29 to the Group financial
statements and have therefore not been re-presented here

The share-based payment charge of€2m (2017: €lm) is stated net of amounts recharged to subsidiary undertakings

t6

r80
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20 SUBStDIARtES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

ln accordance with section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a full list of subsidiaries. associates and joint ventures as at 30 September 2018

is disclosed below:
nroportion of I

shares held by I

the company 96
I n.giste,"o ofrice aaoress ct.r. of rf,rr., 

I

l84l Llmited Busrness Park

AB 9807 fhomas Cook platz I 61440 0berursei 100 ordinary

Aclivos Tunslicos S A Cal e General Rrera 154 07010 Palma de l'4allorca

AHRC Aldlana Hote Resort Consu t S a r l.lFdenrne Zone Tour strque Hotel Atlantrda 4258 ordrnary

Atr Ber rn Avlatron GmbH' Thomas Cook Platz I 61440 oberurse

A rtours Finance Limlted l,lonl Crevelt .louse BJlwe'AverrF St Sanpson Gv2 aLf ouer 100 ordrnary

Arlours Holidavs Transoort L m ted Business Park Lynch Wood pE2 6F7

A ilours Resort ownershrp Espana S L Calle Fray luniperSerra 6 Enllo 07014 palma de t4allorca llles Ba eas Sparn 100 ord nary

A drana GmbH Thomas Cook P atz I 61440 0berursel

A diana club Hotel Bad l'4itterndorl Gmb| Neuhofen 183 8983 Bad Mitterndorf Austila

A drana Club Hote 8ad l'4itterndorf GmbN I Co (G Neuhofen 183 8983 Bad l'4itterndorf Austria

42 1tdinaty

42 ord nary

42 ordhary

42 1tdnatypoststrrasse 4 8808 pfaffkon Switzerland

Tours - Aoencra De E Turismo Lda Estraoa N.c ona 125/10 LsI Ae'oporto Fdr'Ce'i I 8000 Faro 100 ordinary

Aloha Re seburo Partner GmbH Thomas Cook platz I 61440 ober!rsel 50 ordinary

SI Carle yayo'de -r ana'20 5 0almas de Grar Ca1afia Las Palmas 35002 Sparn 100 ordrnary

70 ordrnaryAstral Hellas SA Aonostou Slraiot Souare l7 741 00 Rethvnroon Crete Greec€

C/ CalCat 2 07011 Pa ma de lula lorca Sparn 100 Ordrnary

Astral Tours (Cyprus) Lrm ted l'4akanos lll Avenue 195 Neocleous House l-5 Floor L masso Cy 3030 C

I GmbH IhomasCook Patz I 61440 0b€rurse

Be oian Travel Nelwork CVBA aat l0/3 1930 Zaventem

70 ord nary A

00 ordrnary

50 ordrrary

42 ord nary

50 ord nary

50 ord nary

Blue DolDhln Betriebs - !nd Ver Thomas Cooh p atz 61410 0berursel Germany

Blue Doloh n Hotel 0oerdLrnq dn( Adnir:9ralron C'ticlana S L urbanrzacr6n Novo Sanctr petr s/n lll30 Chlclana de la Frontera Cediz SDaln

Hotel 0Deratirq ald Admril5tralrol Alcardesa S L lJrb Alcaidesa La Hacrenda ll3l5 La Linea de la

Blue Do ph n Hotel ope.anng and Admin stration Fuerteventura S L

Blue Sea 0verseas lnv€stments Lrm led

Urbanrzaci0n Novo Sanctr peln s/n lll30 Chrclana de la Frontera CSdrz Soa n

WestPornt Busrness Park Lynch Wood pE26Ft 100 ordrnary

Blue Doloh n Tuilzm ve Tlcarel Lrm ted Srrket stanbul Sisli adoes Smse(ApartmentNo 25/4 lstalbJl -Jr 42 1rdnaty

Eucher Rersen 5 0aer Tours GmbHi He denkampsweg 8l Hamburg 20097 Germany 100 ordinary

Buz2ard Lelsure Lrmited Busrness Park 100 ordinary

Capltol l-loldirqs Limrted Business centre Co Meath lreland 100 ordrnary

Casa Gracro 0!erat on S L C/ Va carlos ll 608 28050 l'4adr d Sparn 50 ordrnary

Close Number 40 Limited l4 Charinq Cross 5t Heier .lE2 3RP 100 ordrnary

C ose Number 6 Limited Park LynchWood Peter 100 ordinary

Condor Berlin GmbHrd Ellv-Beinhorn-Rino4 l2529Schbnefeld Berlrn Germanv 49 995 ordinary

GmbH:r Condor Plaiz 60549 Frankfurt am l'1ain Germany 49 996 ordinary

Condor Lufttransport I GmbH ThomasCook platzl 61440 0berurse Germanv 100 ordrnary

Thomas Cook P atz I 61440 oberurse 49 996 ord nary

CondorTechnik 6mbHli Condor plalz 60549 Frankfurt am 14ain Germanv 49996 ordlnary

Grou! Travel Da'k tynciWood oeterbo,oJqh pt26FZ tngland I00 ordrnary

Cooperatleve Parkway l.J a Atnum 7th Floor Strawrnskylaan 3105 Amsterdam The Netherlands 100 Class A lnterests lnit al
Preferred Class B and

Prelerred Cass B

Dl4H ln Destinatron l"lakarlos I Avenue 195 Neocleous House 1-5 Floor Lrmassol CY'3030 0rdtnary

0rdina rYDomrnrcan Republic lncom 6 Serv S R L Boulevar Turistico del Este Avda de Estados s/n l' planta local 107 Higuey provincla Altagracra
Dom nrcan ReDublic

Eurocenter Beteiligungs und Reisevermittlung GmbH' Thomas Cook platz I 61440 0berursel 0rdina ry

Feri-o-mai Rersen GmbH- 0!sseldorfer StraBe 83 40667 l'4eerbusch 100 ordinary

Fulure Travei Limited Westpoint peterborough Business park Lynch Wood peterborough PE2 6FZ England 88
00

0rd nary and

Gese lschaft fur Reiseverir ieb Herne' Slrasse 299 GebaJde A/6 44 809 BochLn Germany

Go den DrvasS L C/ loseo lrla I Bosch 4 I I 08034 Barceloha

CamD S PA Cavour 2l 5/0ll Bardolino

Helios Palace SA lonos Draqoumr 5 Rhodes 05100 Greece

Hotel lnvestmenls T!rPm Trcaret L S Osmanrye Koyu Sariqerme 0rtaca 46065 14uqla Turkey

0rdinarY

0rdlnarY

0rdlnary

0rdlnary

ord nary

ord nary

0rdinary

ord narY

0rdrnary

0rdinarY

0rdlnarY

Hoteles Sunwino SA C/ lvllnerva 15 07400 Alcudra Soain

Hotels4u com Limrted Westpoint peterborouqhBusrnessPark LynchWood pelerborouqh pE26FZ Enqland

Hotel Vela S L llrban zaqion Novo sancti patri s/n lll30 Chiclana de la Frontera Cadiz sDarn

Hoteles y Resorts Aldiana S L Urbanizaci6n Novo Sanctr petn s/n lll30 Chiclana de la Fronlera CAdiz Spain

InspIations Limited Wesloornt peterborouqh B!s ress park LynchWood peterborouqh pE2 6FZ Eoqland

ln Destination lncominq S L U GINERAI e'EAA 154 07010 palma de I'lal orca llles Ba ea,s Spa,r
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
CONTINUED

20 suBstDtARtEs, AssoctATEs ANDJoINT vENTURES CONTINUED

I negistereo orttce aooress

Proportion ot

I shares held by

J the Company % Ctuaa ot at uraa 
I

llC Enterprises Lrmited Busrness Park PE2 6FZ England

ITC Trave nvestments S I Calle Genera Rrera 154 07010 palma de l"lallorca ll es Ba ears Soarn

lamaica lncom 6 Serv Limited S! tes B4'85 17 Claude Clarke Avenue I P0 Saint lames lama ca

100 ord nary

75 0 d rary

100 old raly

100 ord fary

I00 Partnersh p

leropaturvlagens e Tunsmo Lrmrtada

let Eldo l'.laroc

Rot!nda da Cruz de Edifrcro Collna 8300-999 Sr ves

lmmeuble Sa am n" 2l Les Am!cales AGADIR l'4or0cco

let Eldo Tunrs e Hote Salanmbd 8050 Hammamet T!nisra Partnersh p

let llaraues S A 92 98 Bo!levard Vrctor Huqo France 100 ord nary

)FS GmbH:s' Elly Belnhorn Rrng 4 12529 Schoneleld Berlrn Germany 49996 ordrnary

100 ordrnary3 Bell l,ne Gibraltar

lnternanonal Travel Room l0l0 loth Floor No 6 Prlot Free Trade Zo Chrna 49 ordrnary

LLC NTC lnlourist 5 11933,4 Moscow Russian Federatron 75 ordrnary

Street B! ldrnq l6 Constructlon I 129090 Moscow Russ an Federahon

LLG Nord GmbH 6 Co Delta oHGr"' Io zer Skasse l5 82031 Grunwald 49996 ordrnary

LI.lEY Ib|za S L C/ portrrol numero 2 Note Apartamentos Acor playa 07820 Sant Antoni De lb za Spa I 50 ordrnary

I MFY lnvers on-as Cabarete S R L Carretera Sosua-Cabarete Flotel Club A dlana Sosia Dom n can Repub rc 50 ordrnary

Lusc nla lnveslments S L Ci Claudio Coe lo 124 28006 I'ladr d Spa n 50 ordrnary

Maretours NV Diestsesteenweo l41 3202 Aarschot Be o um 33 333 ordinary

14ertus 360 GmbH: Thomas cook platz I 61440 0berursel 100 ordrnary

Mertus 351 GmbHl Thomas cook platz I 61440 0berursel 100 ordrnary

Movables lnversiones 2014 S L de C!ra s/n 35140 l4oq5n Las palmas SDain 100 ordrnary

l'1uh bach am c lbhotel GmbH Rohrmoos 5505 luluhlbach am 42 Ainaty

i4uh bach am C ubhotel GmbH & co KG RohrmoDs 5505 MuhLbach am 42 Atdnaty

f,lyTravel 330 Leas nq Ltd i'4&C Corporale Servrces Limrted Ugland Ho!se South Church Sreet p0 Box 309 Grand Cayman KYI-1104 100 CunrulatrveCassA B C D

slands Preference and ordrnary

Travel Deutschland GmbH Thomas Cook P atz I 61440 0berursel Ger 100 ordrnary

l"lyTravel Group Lim ted Westpornt peterborough Bus ness Park Lynch Wood peterborough pE2 6FZ Eng and Qedeemab e Preference

IPR lreland L mited Frrst F oor Rrneanna House Shannon Free zone Shannon co Clare reland

UK llnl mlted Bus fess Park Lvnch Wood

and ordrnar!

100 ordrnary

00 ordrnary

100 ordrnary

100 ordrnary

100 ordrnary

North Amenca L mrted Buslness Park Lynch Wood PE2 6FZ Enq and

Ploneer Lrm ted Busrness Park Lvnch Wood pE2 6F7

NALG Hold nqs unIm ted Comoany First Floor Rtneanna House Shannon Free Zone Shannon Co Clare re and

NALG lre and Unlrm ted Comoafv Flrst Floor Qineafna House Shannon Free Zone Shatnon Co Clare re and 100 ordrnary

Neckermann Polska BP SP i o o Jerozolimsk e Nr 94 00 807 Warszawa poland 100 ordinary

Neckermann Slovakra s ro panska 2J 8ll0l Brat slava Slovakla 60 ordrnary

Neckermann llr aubswelt GmbH Thomas Cook platz I 61440 Oberurse Germany 100 ordrnary

N U R Neckernrann_utazas u 5 lllS BudaDest 100 ordinary

0rlando {ABC) Lrm ted Cross St Helrer lE2 3RP lersey 100 ord nary

0y Tlaereborq AB llrho Kekkonens gatan 3 B FIN-00100 H€lsink Frnland

Park Norel SNC l8 rue Trezel 9r300 Leval ols-perr€t France

100 ordinary

50 ordrnary

C/0 BDWServcesptyLtd Leve 35 Crosvenorplace 225 NSW 2000 austra a 100 ord rary
parkway Alto Realisations (Germany) Thomas Cook platz I 61440 Oberu.se Germany
Vermogensverwaltungs GmbH

Parkway H€llas Holdings Limrted

Parkway Hold ngs GmbN

Parkway Hold ngs UK 8V

Parkway PR (Cyprusl Lrmlted

Parkway PR Limlied

Parkway Lrmlted

Parkway Neder and BV

parkway Northern Europe fold ng A/S

potnTrave sA

WestDornt peterborouqh Busrness Park

Frankfurt am l4a n Germany

Rotterdam Netherlafds

l*1akar os lll Avenle 195 Neocleous House I 5 F oor Lrmassol CY-3030 CvDrus 0rdrnary

0rdinarywestpornt Deteroorouql BJsrness Da k Lylal Wooo pa2 6FZ

p0 Box ll9 lvlart€llo Colrt Admrral park St peter port Glernsey GYI 3HB

Rotterdam Netherlands

F skers Plads 9 4 2300 S Denmark

0tdtnary

0rdinary

0 drnary

0rdrnary

Resorts l'1al orca Hote s lnternatronal S L Calcat 2 07011 palma de l'lallorca Baleaflcs SDarn

Street Kalllthea 17671 Athens Greece

0rdtnarY

0rdlnarY

0TdtnarY

0rdinary

0rdrnary

0rdrnary

0rdrnary

Reta I Travel Lrm ied Westpornt peterborouqh Busrness park Lynch Wood

R0SATA Grundstucks' Verm eLungsgese lschafl mbl & Co objekl
am Hammerqarten (G

I'lercedesstra[3e 6 40470 Di]sseldorf Germany

Sandbrook 0verseas lnvestments L m ted Weslporni peterborouqhBusinessPark LynchWood peter PF) F,F7

Se' / cios de Ad-rn sra( or y opEracrol de Foteles S A de CV

182

pF2 6FZ

186

Sandbrook IJK nvestmenls Llmted peterborouqh Busrness park Lvnch Wood

SATEE GmbH' Thomas Cook platz I 61440 0ber!rse Ger

100 0rdrnary

100 ordinary

100 ordinary

100 ordrnary

100 ordrnary

sEN TDo Hotels 6 Resorts GmbN: Thomas Cook platz I 61440 0ber!rse Ger

Bollevard (uku an Kf,l I 5 Cancun 0u ntana Roo 77500 Me, co
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20 suBstDtARtEs, AssocIATEs AND JoINT vENTURES CONTI N U ED

I 
negistereo ottice aooress

I proponion ot I

I shares held by I

I the company 96 
|

Ct.r, of rn.r., 
I

Societe Tourislrque et Hotel ere du Seneqal soTHou_SE S A SSRT'C !b Aldiana

Eoulevard du 2? Aout complere Hotel Tivoli 15 ordLnary

99 5 ordrnary

Spres A/S

sumango (Propnetary) Lm led

Sun Club El Dorado SA

Frskers Plads I 2300 Copenhaqen S Denmark 100 ordinary

Blandford House 27 Caledon Street Somersel West 7130 South Afrca 100 ordinary

PleTe Poda Ptnteda I l" 07002 Palma 49 50 ordinary

Sun nternational IUK) L mrted Business Park Lynch wood PEz 6FZ I00 Deferred and ordrnary

Hel as AB Ralambsvaqen 17 SE 105-20 Stockho m Swedeo 100 ordinary

sunwino Hotels {Cvorus) Lrmrted 75 Nrssr Avenue 5540 Avla Napa 100 ordinary

llotels Nel as To!fistic 8ox 207 85100 Rhodes Greea€ 50 ordrnary

TC DE tA GMbH?,I Thomas-Cook-p alz I 61440 oberursel 49 996 ordrnary

TC in-Destinaion l.,1ember PC I Lord Bvron Street Heraklion Crete 71202 Greece 100 ordrnary

TCCl 44 EsDlanade St Helrer lE4 gWG 100 ordinary

ICCT Holdinqs U( Lrmrted Westooint Peterborouqh Buslness park LvnchWoad peterborouqh pE2 6FZ Enaland 100 ord nary

rCCT Retai Limrted B-s.ress par( .y1cl'!!ood pelerborough pE2 6FZ Engand 100 oldinary

tCGH Noldlnqs Lrmrted WestDoint peterboro!ah gusrness park Lvnch Wood peterborou0h pE2 6FZ Enqland

tClM Lrmrted Hrll House I Lrttle New Slreel London EC4A sIR U0 ted

100 ordrnary

50 05 ordinary

100 ordrnary

99 95 ordrnary

TCNE Aircraft U SE 105-20 Stockho m Sweden

Suite I Burns House l9 Town Ranqe Grbraltar

The A r ne Group Limrted c/o Natrona'Air'ra'l c Servrce5 (NA'Sl Bretlelhan HoLse SoLtf 5th c oo' I arra5ler place 66 0rdifary
London WC2N 7EN Uniled

Ihe Ffeedom Travel Group Limited WeslDornt peterborouqh Busine$park LynchWoo.d peterborouqh pE2 6FZ Enaland I00 ordrnary

ING Tounstrk CmbN lhomas-Cook-p afz I 61440 0berursel 100 ordr[ary

Thomas Cook (ClS) AB 17 Sl05 20 Stockho m Sweden 100 0rdrnary

Ihomas Cook Arr,(ereskedelm Es S2oloAltat6 Kfl Gabor u 5 lllS 100 ordrnary

Ihomas cook Arrcrafi Eng neenng (Mexico) sA de cV

Ihomas Cook Aficraft Engineennq Inc

Ihomas Cook Aircraft Englneeilnq Limrted

Thomas C0ol Airlrnes Balearics S L LJ

l.lariDosa No 394 Col Smza 5l Canc!n Cancur Benilo Juarez oulntana Roo C Pfi553 tlexico 100 ordinary

27ll Centervil e Road Delaware 19805 USA 100 ordinary

Westpoint peterboro!qh Eusiness park LynchWood peterborough pE26FZ England 100 ordrnary

Calle trav JJr.0ero Se"a n0-ero 6 entresue 0 01014 0alma de yal olca Sparl

Thamas Cook Arr nes LeasrnQ L mrted Westpoint peterborough Busrnesspark LynchWood peterborough pE26FZ England

100 ordrnary

100 ordinary

100 ordrnary

100 ordlnary

Thomas Cook A rllnes Limiled Business Park pE26FZ

Ihomas Cook A rllnes Servrces Lrmrted Westpoint peterborough Business park Lynch wood peterborough pE2 6FZ Engiand

Thomas Cook AirInes Servlces S L Cal,e F'ay,Lnipe o Serra lime'o 6 enrresLelo 070'4 pa -a de Yallo'ca Sparr 100 ordlnary

Thomas Cook Arrlrnes ScandinavLa A/S c/o Hangar 276 Copenhagen Airport DK-2791 0ragor oenmark 100 ordlnary

Thomas Cook Arroon Service GmbHr Thomas Cook platz I 61440 0berursel 100 ordinary

Thomas Cook Air|nes Treasury plc Westoolnt Peterborouqh Buslness park LvnchWood peterborouqh pE26FZ Enqland 100 ordinary

Thomas Cook Austria AG se 59 61 1030 Wren Austna 100 ord nary

Thomas Cook Beqrum NV Tramstraal 63 67 9052 Gent Be oilm 100 ordrnary

Thomas Cook BrokArr Services g2l98 Boulevard Vrctor Huqo 92115 100 ordinary

Thomrs Cook Coniinental Holdrnos Lrmlted Business Park pEZ 6F1 100 ordinary

Thomas Cook Ihomas Cook platz I 61440 0berursel 100 ordinary

Thomas Cook Crurse Services Lim ted Busrness Park Lynch Wood pE2 6F1 100 ordrnary

Thomas Cook Destination Services lnc f4organ Lewrs & Bockius 5300 Flrst Unron Frnancia Center 200 South Siscayne Bo!levard
f4ramr 33131-2339 llSA

0rdrnary

lhomas Cook Destinations GmbHr Thomas Cook platz I 61440 oberursel

ThomasCook Frnance 2 Plc' Weslpornt peterborouqh Business park Lynch Wood peterborouqh PE2 6FZ England

ThomasCook F nance Business Park Lynch !!ood pE2 6FZ

Thomas Cook Financial Servrces Tramstraat 63 65 9052 Genl

Thomas Cook France Hoteller e SARL 92/98 Boulevard Vrctor Cedex Ftance

Thomas Cook France S A S 92/gB Eoulevard Viclor Huqo 92115 C|chy Cedex Franc€

Thomas Cook GmbH s ThomasCook platz I 61440 0berurse Ger

Thomas Cook Grou! Airlrnes Lrmited' Westpoint peferborough Busrness park Lynch Wood peterborough pE2 6FZ England

Thomas Cook Lrmited Eusrness Park Lynch Wood pE2 6FZ

0rdlnarY

0rd oary

0rd nary

0rdlnary

0rdinary

0rdinary

0rdrnary

0rdrnary

0rdinary

0rdinarY

Redeemable Preference
Preference 0rdinary

Pedeemable Preference
0rdinarY

0rdtnarY

0rdlnary

0rdtnarY

0rdinary

Thomas Cook Group Servrces Lim ted Westooint peterboro!qh Busrnesspark LynchWood peterborouqh pE26FZ Enqland

Thomas Cook Group Tour 0perations Llmited Westpoint peterborough Busrness park Lynch Wood peterborough pE2 6FZ England

Thomas Cook Group Treasury Limiled Westpornt Peterborough Busrness park Lynch Wood peterborough PE2 6FZ Enqland

Thomas Cook GrouD UK L mit€d Business Park Lvnch wood

Thomas Cook Holdco I S L Calle Fray lunipero Serra n[rmero 6 entresuelo 07014 palma de ]'lallorca Sparn

Thomas Cook Hotel lnvestments Llm ted Westoornt peterborouoh Busrness Park Lvnch Wood peterborouah pE2 6FZ Enqland

Thomas Cook Holdco 2 S L Cd'le Fray Junipero Serra numero 6 en!resuelo 07014 parra de qallo'ca Spa,r
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CONTINUED

20 suBstDtARtEs, AssoctATEs AND JotNT vENTURES CONTT N U ED

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

I 
negistereo offic" 

"ooress

Proportion of
shares held by
the Company X ctara ot rt rr"a 

I

Thomas Cooh Hotel l'lanagement Lrmited Westoornt peierborouah Bus ness park Lynch Wood peterborouqh PE2 6FZ Ena and

Ihomas Cook Hotels 6 Resorts Limrted Westooint peterboro!ah Bus ness park Lynch Wood

0rdinary

0rdtnary

0rdinary

0rdrnary

Ihomas Cook Hotpis and nvestmerts st SerTa numero 6 entresle o 07014 palma de Ma orca

rhomas Cook Ln Dest natron Cost2 R ca SA prma Busrness CenterlT5 m 0este del C Comercral La paco 0f crna 2ll San.los6 de Costa Rrca

Costa Rica

Thomas C0ok n Desilnatron Holdco S t Calcat 2 07011 palma de l',la lorca Balear cs SDain

Ihomas Cook n Dest nairon l'1exico S A d CV Avda Bonampak Lote 48 2 no 200 Loca I7-f4 Sli'1 4A Benito ]larez 0u niana Roo Cancun 77500 l'4exrco

0rdtnary

0rdrnary

0rdrnaryIhomas Cook ln Deslinatron Management (Thailand) Ltd No l6li I SG Tower 5th Floor S0r Mahadlek Luang 3 Raldamr Road Lumprn Sub-drstilct pathumwam

Drsnct Banokok Thalland

Ihomas Coo[ ln Destinatron Serv ces L mrLed Busrness Park pE2 6F7

Thomas Cook IndEn P L mited Weslpornt peterborouqh B!5 ness park Wood Pelerborouqh PE26FZ Enqland 100

t00Ihomas Cook lnt€rnaironal AG poststrasse4 8808 pfaeffrkon Swilzerand

Ihomas Cook lnvestments (?) Lrm ted Westpoint peterboro!ah g!srnesspark LynchWood pelerborouqh pE26FZ Enqand

Ihomas Cook lnvestments J Limited Business Park Lynch Wood

Thomas CooI l4oney Austra a pty Lld Leve 2 lll Yacquaile Slreet Hobart -AS 7000 AJstalra

Ihomas Cook l'1onev F nancral Servrces pl Leve 2 lll Macquarie Street Hobart TAS 7000 Australra

Thomas Cook l'1oney Limrted 3rd Floor South Burldrna 200 Aldersqate Lond0[ ECIA 4HD

0rdinarY

0rdlnary

0rdinary

0rdrnary

0rdinary

0rdrnary

0rdinary

ord nary

0rdrnary

0rdinarY

0rdrnary

0rdrnary

ord nary

0rdinary

0rdrnary

0rdrnary

0rdrnary

Ihomas Cook Nederland BV SDrcalaan41 21321G NoofddorD Netherlands

Thomas Cook Nord c Ho d nasAB ll SE 105-20 Siockholm Sweden

Thomas Cook Northern EuroDe A/S Flskers Plads 9 2500 S Denmark

Thomas Cook Norlhern EuropP AB l? S-105 20 Stockholm Sweden

Thomas Cook 0nline L mited lYont Crevelt Nouse Eulwer Avenue St SamDson GY2 4LN Guern

Thomas Cook Pensron Tftlst Lrm led westooinl pelerborouoh Bus ness park Lvnch Wood pelerborouoh pE2 6FZ Enoland

Ihomas Cook Retarl Belaium NV Tramstraat 67C 9052 Gent

Ihomas Cook Retatl Llmted Pelerboro!oh Busrness Park PE2 6FZ

Ihomas Cook Retail NV Tramstraat 6lB 9052 Genl

IhomasCook sro 0rdtnary

ord naryThomas Cook SAS 92-98 Boulevard VrcLor

Ihomas Cook Servrce AG poststrasse4 8808 pfaeffikon Sw lzerand

Ihomas Cook Serv ces L m led WestDornt peterboro!Qh B!srness park pE2 6Ft

Thomas Cook Touristik GmbHr Thomas cook platz I 61440 0berurse Germany

Thomas Cook Tour 00erairons L mrted Westooint peterborouah Bus ness park pE2 6FZ 0rdlnarY

0rd nary

n/aThomas Cook Trave pensron Trustees Llmlted Westpornt peterborough Bus ness park Lynch Wood peterborough pE2 6FZ Eng afd Llm ted by

Guarantee

Thomas Cook Treasurv Lrmiied Westpornt Peler Bus ness Park pF) e,F? 100 ordrnary

100 ord naryThomas Cook UK Lim ted 8us ness Park

Ihomas Cook LJl( Travel Lrmited Euslness Park DF2 F,F? I00 ord nary

Ihomas Cook Vertnebs GmbH" Thomas Cook Platz I 61440 0berurse 100 ord nary

Thomas Cook West Holdlnos L mited Westpoint peterboro!qh B!srness park pE2 6FZ

Ihomas Cook West lnvestments Limited B!srness Park

Ft Servrces Rue du Lac de Constance - Les Berqes du Lac T!nrs 1053 Tunrsra

100 ordrnary

100 ord nary

9995 ord nary

Limited Peterboro!ah B!s ness Park 100 ord nary

Ameilck;351/9 l?0 00 Praha Czech 40 ordrnary

Trave and Flnanc a Servic€s Lrmited B!s ness Park Lynch Wood I00 ordlnary

lnit et ve I mrt-ad Vrctofla House 5l Victona Street Br sto Avon BSI 6AD llnited 9 091 ordrnary

VA lnsLranc€ Serv ces Lim led Tower House Loch promenade Douolas ll"1l 2Lz lsle of Man

Eufemias 16 0l9l Oslo Nor 100 ordrnary

17 S - 105 20 Slockholm Stockholm Sweden

VR Espana SA Avda De Tunte l8 San Fernando de MasDaiomas San Bartolom6 de Tilatana 35 Las palmas SDarn 100 ord nary

Wave I Holdrnqs BV Rotterdam Netherlands

Whrle Horse Adm n straiion Servlces Lrmiled Flrst Floor Rineanna House Shannon Free Zone Shannon Co Clare lre and 100 0rdLnary

Whrte Norse ns!rance Teland Deslqnated Actrvrty Company F rst Floor Rrneanna House Shannon Free Zone Shannor Co Clare lre ard

Notes:
I Shares held drrectly by Thomas Cook Group p c

3 The company has exercised ts nght of exemptron under sect on 264(3) German Handelsgesetzbuch (HGB)

4 Thecompanyhasexercrseditsflqhlofexempnonundersecton264lb)GermanHandelsgesetzbu.hlHGB)
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lncome Statement (tm)

EIGHT.YEAR FI NANCIAL SU M MARY

I nestateo-l
2ors I 2ou 

I
,ru 

I
,', 

I
,,, 

I
,,, 

I
,ol ,rl

Statutory

Revenue 9.s84 9,006 7810 7,834 8,588 9,315 9195 9,809

Gross profit t,933 r,990 I 820 \,772 r,866 2,020 2031 2098

Gross profit margin {%) 20.2% 22t% 233% ?26% 21lv" 221% 2140,4

Profit/(loss) f rom operations 97 1261)

Is0] 184 (3517)( 68)(r69163)

(r70)

(r68)

Prof it/(loss) before taxation (s3) 43 54 50 398(357)(634)

(sl81441123(t s)(1631Profit/(loss) for the financial year

Weighted average number of shares (millions)

Basic earnings per 0rdinary Share (pence)

1,535 1,536 1,530 1,487 1,440 I,196

(10.6) 07 03 16 (82) (r7t) 167 2l (60 7)

Underlyinq (f m)

Revenue 9 8099,r951.834 8,588

515303023262s0EBT

9,584

Gross profit 1,955 1,992 1,829 1,114 1,916

20.4% 221% 234% 2260/o 223%

2 059 2026 2.160

Gross profit marqin 221% 220% 220/o

Underlying EBIT (%)

Separately disclosed items

Underlying interest

Underlying profit before tax

2.6% 31% 3970 40% 38% 28% 19%

(r7s) 040) (t2B) (120) (2e6) (28t) (593) (s73)

(124) {145) 040) 04r) (r43) fl46) (146) 123

t26 t83 162 170 t75568B2

Weighted average number of shares (millions) t,533 I s56 I s30 1481 I 440 I t96 812 858

Underlying earnings per share (pence) (0.3) 9t 8l 89 06 102

Like-for-like (f m)

Gross profit

9,584 9,010 8.438 8,996 8,959 9,211 9.159 8,978

1,955 1,962 r,9ll 1.955 1.965 1.97s r 916 l92l

20.1% 218% 226% 211% 219% 214% 209% 214%Gross profit margin (%)

Underlvinq EBIT 308 254 353 333 221 162 252

{l2e) (120) (296) (263) 1212) (48e)

(r39) (r4r) (r43) 046) l14a (130)

l--(5)
92 (ros) (r82) l2s2) (37r)

Separately disclosed items 040)(t741

0ther income/ (expense)

{r43)l24l

(s3)Profit before taxation

Profit for the financial year 063) (4Bs)344l'232107)6)(e)
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EIGHT.YEAR FI NANCIAT SU M MARY
CONTINUED

I n"rtrt"a4
2or8 | 2ot7 

|
2016 

|
,ol5 

|
,ot4 

|
,or3 

|
,ol, 

I
,UI

Statement of financial position (fm)

Total assets 6,569 6 605 6,943 5.958 5,794 6,285 5.907 6.690

2.64s 2.035 1,829 1.933 1,s24 1,646

t1,222l. (4.33e) (4.633) (3.702) (5,894) (3.688) (3.s40) (3.74e)

il6sl (32s) l4sll l21e) (448) (404) (331) (331)

Current assets 2.2312il3

29r

Current liabilities

Net pension deficit

Net assets 256 326 315 239 548 458 I,183

Net debt (38e) (40) 028)r29) (3r5) 14261 0s2) (894

Statement of cash flows (f m)

0perating cash flow

lnvesting activities

Financing activities

Exchanqe (losses)/qains

395496t59

(2031 ( e9) (200) ( 80) (78)

.14360)l7s)(28r1

(3(eE'(3sl343(r6)

l27Bl

Net {decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents (34s) 283304(r6s)122 211 633

56206210 206 200Capex

Averaqe number of emolovees 21.263 21.788 21.940 21.813 22,612 26,448 32.250 31,097

l{ote:
(l) see Note 33 for details of restatement
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SHARE HOLDER I N FORMATION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEET!NG (AGM)

The AGM will be held at Upper Ground Flool North Building,
200 Aldersgate, London ECIA 4HD on 7 February 2019 at l0 30am
The last date for AGM proxy votes to be received by the Registrar

is l0 30am 5 February 2019

All Shareholders can submit their proxy vote for the AGM electronically
at wwwsharevote co uk To register their vote, Shareholders will need
the numbers detailed on their form of proxy

Alternatively, Shareholders who have already registered
with Shareview can submit their proxy vote by logging on to
www shareview co uk and clicking on the link to vote underneath
their Thomas Cook Group plc holding

SHARE REGISTER AND SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

The Company's share register is maintained by Equiniti

Queries relating to Thomas Cook Group plc shares should be

addressed to:

The Registrar
Equiniti
Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing
West Sussex BN99 6DA

Tel: 0371 384 2154*
(lnternational telephone number: -44 (0)121 415 0182)

* Lrnes are open 8 30am to 5 30pm (London trme) Monday to Fr day (excludrng LIK pub|c ho|daysl

Shareholders should quote the Company reference number 3174 and

their Shareholder reference number (which can be found on their
share certificates), when contacting the Registrar

SHAREVIEW
To be able to access information about their shares and other
investments online, Shareholders can register with Shareview
(wwwshareview.co uk) Registration is free; Shareholders will
need their Shareholder reference number which is shown on their
form of proxy and share certificate By registering for this service,
Shareholders will:

, help reduce paper, print and postage costsr
, help the environment;
> be able to submit their queries by email; and
> be able to manage their shareholding easily and securely online

0nce registered, whenever Shareholder documents are available.
Shareholders will be sent a link to the appropriate website,
where the documents will be available to view or download

Receiving documents online does not affect Shareholders'
rights in any way

lhomo.CookGroupplc I AnnualRaportondAccount.20lS

WEBSITE

The Group's corporate website, www.thomascookgroup.com, provides

information including:

> news, updates. press releases and regulatory announcements:
> investor information, including the Annual Report, financial results,

financial calendar and share price informationr
) details of Shareholder meetings and poll results:
) biographies of the Board of Directors:
) the Company's Articles of Association and the Terms of Reference

for the Committees of the Board and
> the Sustainability reporting

MULTIPTE ACCOUNTS ON THE SHARE REGISTER

lf a Shareholder receives two or more sets ofthe documents
concerning the AGI'1, this means that there ls more than one account
in their name on the Shareholder register, perhaps because either the
name or the address appears on each account in a slightly different
way. For security reasons, Equiniti will not amalgamate the accounts
without the Shareholders written consent. Therefore, if a Shareholder
would like their multiple accounts to be combined, they should write
to Equiniti. detailing the different Shareholder reference numbers, and

request that they be combined into one account

ELECTRON IC COM M U N ICATIONS
At the AGM on 10 April 2008, the Company passed a resolution allowing
the Group's corporate website to be used as the primary means of

communication with its Shareholders Election forms are sent to
Shareholders enabling them to choose either to:

> receive notiflcation by email when Shareholder documentation
is available on the website: or

> continue to receive Shareholder documentation in hard copy

Shareholders who do not respond are deemed, in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006, to have agreed to receive Shareholder
documentation via the Company's corporate website

These arrangements for electronic Shareholder communications
provide Shareholders with the opportunity to access information
in a timely manner and help the Company to reduce both its costs
and its environmental impact

DIV!DEND
Reflecting the overall net loss after tax reported by the Group, the
Board decided to suspend the dividend for FYl8. For FYIZ the Group
paid a dividend of 0 6 pence per share,



SHAREHOLDE R I N FORMATION
CONTINUED

THOMAS COOK AGIMYTRAVEL GROUP PtC MERGER

Thomas Cook Group plc was formed in June 2007 upon the merger of
Thomas Cook AG and MyTravel Group plc

MyTravel Group plc Shareholders received one Thomas Cook Group
plc Ordinary Share for every one MyTravel Group plc share previously

held. MyTravel Group plc share certificates are no longer valid and can

be destroyed Replacement Thomas Cook Group plc share certificates
were sent to Shareholders. who held shares in certificated form, on

or around 19 June 2007 lf you have any queries relating to this, please

contact the Registrar.

WARNING TO SHAREHOLDERS ABOUT SHARE FRAUD

Fraudsters use persuasive and high-pressure tactics to lure investors
into scams.

They may offer to sell shares that turn out to be worthless or
non-existent, or to buy shares at an inflated price in return for an

upfront payment

While high profits are promised, if you buy or sell shares in this way
you will probably lose your money

5 000 people contact the Financial Conduct Authority about share
fraud each year, with victims losing an average of t20,000

lf you are offered unsolicited investment advice discounted shares,
a premium price for shares you own, or free company or research
reports you should take these steps before handing over any moneyi

I Keep in mind that firms authorised by the FCA are unlikely to
contact you out of the blue with an offer to buy or sell shares

2 Do not get into a conversation, note the name of the person and

firm contacting you and then end the call

3 Check the Financial Services Register from wwwfca org uk to see

if the person and firm contacting you is authorised by the FCA

4 Beware of fraudsters claiming to be from an authorised firm,
copying its website or giving you false contact details

5 Use the firm's contact details listed on the Registerif you wantto
call it back

6 Callthe FCAon 0800 lll 6768 ifthefirm does not have contact
details on the Register or you are told they are out of date

7 Search the list of unauthorised firms to avoid at wwwfca org uk/
SCAMS

B. Consider that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthorised firm
you will not have access to the Financial 0mbudsman Service or
Financial Services Compensation Scheme

9 Think about getting independent financial and professional advice
before you hand over any money

l0 Remember: if it sounds too good to be true, it probably is!

Thomo3 CookGroupptc : AnnuotRGportondAccountr20IS

REPORT A SCAM
lfyou are approached about a share scam you should tell the FCA

using the share fraud reporting form at wwwfca gov uk/scams. where
you can find out about the latest lnvestment scams You can also
call the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 lll 6768 lf you have already
paid money to share fraudsters you should contact Action Fraud on

0300 123 2040

SHAREGIFT

Shareholders with a small number of shares. the value of which
make it uneconomical to sell, may wish to consider donating them
to the charity ShareGift (Registered Charity Number 1052686), which
specialises in using such holdings for charitable benefit Find out
more about ShareGift at www sharegift org or by calling
.44 (0)20 7930 3737

SHAREVIEW DEALING
A telephone and internet dealing service has been arranged through
the Registrar to provide a simple way of buying and selling Thomas
Cook Group plc shares for existing and prospective UK-based

Shareholders For telephone dealing call 05456 037 037 (international

telephone number, -44 (0)l2l 415 7560) between 8 00am and 4 30pm
(London time), Monday to Friday (excluding UK public holidays), or visit
the website: www.shareviewco uk/dealing Shareholders will need the
Shareholder reference number shown on their share certificate(s)

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This Annual Report has been prepared for, and only for the members
of the Company, as a body, and no other persons The Company, its
Directors, employees. agents or advisers do not accept or assume
responsibility to any other person to whom this document is shown
or into whose hands it may come and any such responsibility or
liability is expressly disclaimed By their nature, the statements
concerning the risks and uncertainties facing the Group in this Annual
Report involve uncertainty since future events and circumstances
can cause results and developments to differ materially from those
anticipated The forward-looking statements reflect knowledge and

information available at the date of preparation of this Annual Report
and the Company undertakes no obligation to update these forward-
looking statements



3rd Floor South Building. 200 Aldersgate London ECIA 4HD

Registered Numben 6091951

SHAREHOLDER CONTACTS
Shareholder Helpline: 0371 384 2154
(lnternational telephone number: -44 (0)l2l 415 0l82)

Website: wwwthomascookgroup com

Registrar's website: www shareview co uk

Lines are open B 50am to 5 30pm (London time Monday to Friday
(excluding UK public holidays))

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Event

7 February 2019

7 February 2019

Ql 2019 Quarterly Results

Annual General Meetinq

l6 May 2019 lnterim results f0r six months ended 3l March 2019

24 )uly 2019 Q3 2019 QuarterlV Results

www.thomascookgroup.com

The Thomas Cook Group website provides news and

details of the Group's activities plus links to our customer
sites and up-to-date information, including:

> corporate news
) presentations
> share price data
> historic Annual and Sustainability Reports
, half-year results and interim management statements
> news alerts
> career opportunities
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